
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD PACKET 
02/27/19 REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 



 PAGE 1 OF 3 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
 THE REGIONAL GOVERNMENT OF CAPE COD 

Board of Regional Commissioners

COMMISSIONERS 
RONALD R. BEATY, Barnstable 
RONALD BERGSTROM, Chatham 
MARY PAT FLYNN, Falmouth 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Moment of Silence

4. Public Comment

5. Approval of Minutes

a. Regular Meeting of February 13, 2019

6. General Business

a. Discussion on the status of County Counsel

b. Discussion on a possible purchase of a third County Dredge

c. Discussion on and review of the proposed County Early Retirement
Incentive Program

d. Discussion on the scheduling of a review of Board of Regional
Commissioner Executive Session Minutes pursuant to Massachusetts
General Laws Chapter 30A, Section 22(g)(1)

e. Discussion on adopting the County’s website as the official method of
posting notices for meetings of County Public Bodies pursuant to Title 940
of the Code of Massachusetts Regulations, section 29.03(2)(b)

02/25/19 @ 8:45 A.M. 

February 27, 2019 

9:00 A.M. 

Commissioners’ Meeting Room 
Superior Courthouse 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630 

DATE: 

TIME: 

PLACE: 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
 



 FEBRUARY 27, 2019  REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 9:00 A.M.  

 PAGE 2 OF 3 

Note: For all items under General Business, the Board may take official action including 
votes 

7. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair

8. Commissioners’ Actions

a. Authorizing the creation of the new position of HMIS (Homeless
Management Information System) Program Manager, replacing the vacant
HMIS Coordinator position

b. Authorizing the refilling of the vacant Laboratory Director Position, in the
County Health and Environment Department, as recommended by the
County Review Committee

c. Authorizing the execution of a notarized letter designating Stephen Amara,
County Accountant, as Entity Administrator of the County and authorizing
his access to the United States Government’s online System for Award
Management (SAM)

d. Authorizing the approval of a grounds request by 2019 Cape Cod Doxie
Day to utilize the Barnstable County Superior Courthouse for an event on
September 28, 2019

e. Authorizing the addition of: PA Landers; John Egan Co., Inc. and; Drizos
Contracting, LLC to the Current List of Approved Tradespersons, utilized
by the County and Barnstable County Towns

f. Authorizing the award of a contract to Agilent Technologies, Inc. for the
supply and delivery of an Inductively Coupled Plasma Mass Spectrometry
(ICP-MS) for the Health Lab at a cost of $108,761.54

g. Authorizing the execution of a contract with Lawrence Lynch, Corp. for
Miscellaneous Public Works for Towns in Barnstable County for the period
of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one
(1) additional year

h. Authorizing the execution of a contract with Lawrence Lynch Corp. for
Road Resurfacing in the Towns of Chatham, Harwich, Provincetown and
Yarmouth for the period of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020



Reasonable accommodations for people with disabilities are available upon request. Please contact Justyna Marczak, Barnstable 
County ADA Coordinator at jmarczak@barnstablecounty.org or call 508-375-6646 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting The 
County Commissioners’ meeting may be viewed in real time at https://www.youtube.com/user/BarnstableCounty, 
https://www.barnstablecounty.org/ 
 

 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630                               p.   (508) 375-6648     f. (508) 375-4136 

 
 
 
                  FEBRUARY 27, 2019                                                                                                                      REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
                  9:00 A.M.                        PAGE 3 OF 3 
                       
       
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
    

 
      
 
 

i. Authorizing the execution of a contract with Lawrence Lynch Corp. for 
Roadway Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 
1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year 

 
j. Authorizing the execution of a contract with Markings Inc. for 

Miscellaneous Public Works for Towns in Barnstable County for the period 
of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
(1) additional year 

 
k. Authorizing the execution of a contract with MCE Dirtworks for Road 

Resurfacing in the Town of Orleans for the period of April 1, 2019 through 
March 31, 2020 

 
l. Authorizing the execution of a contract with PA Landers, Inc. for Roadway 

Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 1, 2019 
through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one additional year 

 
m. Authorizing the execution of a contract with PJ Keating for Road 

Resurfacing in the Town of Sandwich for the period of April 1, 2019 
through March 31, 2020 

 
n. Authorizing the execution of a contract with Sealcoating Inc. for 

Miscellaneous Public Works for Towns in Barnstable County for the period 
of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
(1) additional year 

 
o. Authorizing the execution of a discharge of mortgage by Arthur R. Hillier 

and Katherine E. Hillier to Barnstable County, acting by and through the 
Cape Cod Commission, dated October 23, 2000, recorded with the 
Barnstable County Registry of Deeds Book 13824 Page 249 

 
p. Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
 

9. Commissioners’ Reports  
 
10. County Administrator and Staff Reports 
 
11. Adjournment 

https://www.youtube.com/user/BarnstableCounty
https://www.barnstablecounty.org/


20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5a 
 

               Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of February 13, 2019 

  



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6c 
 

Discussion on and review of the proposed County Early Retirement Incentive 
Program 

  



BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE 

3195 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 427 

BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

February 17, 2019 

VIA Email and First-Class mail 

John W. Parsons, Esq. 

Executive Director 

PERAC 

5 Middlesex Avenue Suite 304 

Somerville, MA 02145 

Re: Barnstable County ERIP 

Dear Mr. Parsons, 

Jsck T. Yunits, Jr. 

Cowty Administrator 

Cell: (508) 510-1127 
Office: (508) 375-6771 
Fax: (508)362-4136 

jack.yunits@bamstablecounty.org 

In accordance with Section 1.A, Barnstable hereby submits the Early Retirement Plan for the approval of the 

Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). 

On November 8, 2017 the bill to allow Barnstable County to offer an Early retirement Incentive Program was 

filed by Timothy R. Whalen of Brewster and others. With one amendment to the original filing the bill known as 

H.4107 was signed by Governor Baker on December 28, 2018. 

The County labored diligently with all interested legislators and Committees, and James H. Quirk, Attorney for 

the Barnstable County Retirement Board and consulted with the Public Employees Retirement Administration 

Commission during the process. The County considers this legislation to be a vital component in its efforts re-

organize and streamline the organization and to reduce personnel costs and related unfunded liabilities. 

Thank you in advance for your time. Please do not hesitate to contact me at 508-510-1127 or 

jack.yunits(a~barnstablecounty. org. 

ary T. McIsaac, Finance Director 



~U V lJ 1~~~rlt~ 

~ SLY ~~TI~~M~i"T I~1(~~NTI~~ ~'~Q~~ l~ 

~~$~~~~Y ~~ 1 ~ 



I. Introduction 

II. Eligibility 

III. Restrictions 

IV. Excess Liability 

V. Historical Costs 

VI. Legislation 

VII. Other Requirements 

VIII. Other Considerations 

IX. Appendix 

H.4107-An Act to Establish an Early Incentive Program for 

Barnstable County (as amended) 



~S~D~~~~~~~ 

Barnstable County is committed to providing Regional Services to the towns and the people of Cape Cod 
in the most efficient and reliable manner within a reasonably framed budget. By the very nature of a 
regional government, Barnstable County is a "service organization", heavily invested in employment of 
personnel to accomplish this. 

As most municipal entities can attest it has become increasingly difficult to sustain the personnel costs 
and the future unfunded liabilities related to the workforce. With double-digit inflation in health care and 
the high salaries of an aging workforce we have reached an unsustainable level of operation. An analysis 
of the approved budgets for FY2014 to FY2019 shows the percentage of combined salaries and fringes to 
the total budgets to be in the range of 71.5% - 75.4%. To ensure that the organization continues to stay 
the course of its core mission and fulfill its commitment to the towns and people of the region, the 
administration must take the necessary steps to examine the entire operation, analyze both the 
controllable and non-controllable component costs and commit to a plan of action to reach a more stable 
financial position and guarantee the future. This is easier said than done. 

Barnstable County has a greater burden than most, being responsible for the payment of the liability for 
the retirees of the Sheriff's Department which moved under the control of the Commonwealth with 
legislation effective January 1, 2010. The assessment in FY2019 is $1,506,576. Segal Consulting in its latest 
valuation projected annual increases of 6.30% in the assessment through FY2035, the final year of the 
funding schedule and there is no contribution from the Commonwealth. 

Communities have implemented changes to address these rising costs. Reduction of personnel through 

attrition, reorganization, consolidations and the subcontracting of some services have proved successful. 
The personnel reductions have caused reductions in pension and OPEB liabilities as well. Healthcare costs 
have been addressed by eliminating the more expensive health plans, changing plan designs, offering 

Health Savings Accounts (known as HSAs) and requiring the employees to pay a greater percentage of 

premiums. Some of these changes also reduce the OPEB liability reported on the financial statements. 

The offering of an early retirement incentive program has been utilized in past years for the same reason. 
Over and over we have seen and heard that these programs are not successful and do nothing to 
invigorate and improve an organization. One would have to examine each case to determine the reasons 
why the result did not meet the expectation but one thing is clear; if the organization keeps to its course, 

makes the tough decisions and stands by them, manages the operation by this mandate and continually 
measures progress and results adapting as necessary to stay the course, success can be achieved. 



An offer of an early retirement is restricted to eligible employees. An employee may be eligible if they 

meet the following requirements and additionally the County reserves the right to limit participants. 

I. The employee is actively employed by Barnstable County on the date of the application and 

the retirement date. 

II. The employee is an active member of the Barnstable County Retirement System making 

regular payroll contributions on the application date and the retirement date. 

III. The employee must be vested in the retirement system as follows: 

a. Confirmed with a minimum of fifteen (15) years of credible service and at least SS years 

of age or 

b. Confirmed with twenty years of credible service. 

IV. The employee must be a Group 1 member in service. 

~~~~ ~~ ~ 

Participation in an offering of an early retirement is further restricted as follows: 

I. Elected officials of any sub-division of Barnstable County are not eligible. 

II. Employees of the Barnstable County Retirement Association are not eligible. 

III. Employees of the Barnstable County Fire Training Academy are not eligible. 

IV. Any active employee who has achieved maximum age and maximum years of credible 

service is not eligible. 

V. Employees who are paid from Federal grants are not eligible. 



~~ ~~ ~~~~ 

The gains achieved by an offering of an early incentive program to employees are offset by the excess 

liability placed on the employer. Excess liability refers to the difference in cost of a retiree between 

original cost of retirement (with no incentive) and the cost of the retiree participating in an early 

retirement incentive offering. 

The excess liability is calculated by a licensed actuary. Upon the plan's approval and the identification of 

the participants the excess liability is confirmed and apportioned over the next ten years of the 

employers' annual retirement assessment. In past years, certain liabilities calculated for other offerings, 

were apportioned over the entire funding schedule which currently runs through 2035. 

Segal Consulting was engaged to make projections of the excess liability for Barnstable County. 

Employee data, some of which was provided by the Barnstable County Retirement Association, was 

provided by the County to Segal Consulting. Segal analyzed the data and made projections for a 

maximum of 20 participants prioritized by the years of credible service of each, the average cost of 

eligible employees, and the employees with the greatest excess liability. The projected excess liability 

ranged from $230K to $280K based on a conservative set of assumptions 

These numbers are estimates based on assumptions of participation. Not ali eligible employees will 

participate. The excess liability will be born be the County general operations, the Dredge Fund, the 

Septic Loan Fund, and the Cape Cod Commission according to management. The administration may 

consider an increase in the maximum number of participants. 



f~ 

Employees of Barnstable County have participated in early retirement incentive programs in the past. 

The programs introduced in 2002 and 2003 were structured differently and in the case of the 2002 at 

least, it has been suggested that employers did not have enough control over the design and 

implementation ending up with an unlimited number of retirees, no cost control and a liability that 

stretched through 2035 which is the end of the funding schedule. 

The numbers for Barnstable County have played out as follows: 

Early Retirement Incentive Program — 2002 
Program Participants 28 

Group 1: County Hospital - 2 
County —All Other - 9 

Group 2: County —All Other- 1 
Group 4: County —Sheriff's Dept.- 16 

FY2017 Chargesfor all ERI participants, benefits payable to retirees, spouses and others 
County Hospital $7,722 
County —All Other $89,680 
Sheriff's Dept. *The Retiree Sheriff 2002 ERI is included in the total of 

the County Sheriff Liability, reported in 2017 at 
$1,359,250. 

Segal Consulting projected the increase thru 2035 to rise at 6.30% annually. 

Early Retirement Incentive Program — 2003 
Program Participants 6 

Group 1: County —All Other- 6 

FY2017 Charges for all ERI participants, benefits payable to retirees, spouses and others 
County —All Other $28,320 

Segal Consulting projected the increase thru 2035 to rise at 6.30% annually. 

Barnstable County did not participate in the 2010 Early Retirement Incentive Program. The excess 

liability for the 2010 offering is scheduled to be repaid in 10 years, the final payment due by the 

participating employers in 2022. 



Numerous cities, towns, districts and other governmental units joined the Commonwealth in past early 

retirement incentive programs. The County joined in the offerings of 2002 and 2003. (See Historical 

Costs). There was an early retirement incentive program in 2010. Barnstable County had no participants. 

Early retirement incentive programs are enabled by legislation. The plan must be submitted to the 

Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC) for approval. Additionally, 

participating employees are required to be actively employed and contributing members of the system 

to which the employer belongs on the dates of application and retirement. No employee who is fully 

vested can participate as there is no benefit to the employee and no savings to the employer. Some 

programs limit the number accepted into the program and further limit the numbers by department. In 

some instances, positions are identified to be so critical to the employer that they cannot be included in 

the program however we usually see this where the program further requires the elimination of vacated 

positions. 

Program restrictions are management decisions based on the strategic plan for the organization, the 

projection of future costs and affordability. Early retirement incentive programs also can help avoid 

workforce reductions by layoffs. 

Legislated early retirement incentive programs are usually date driven from the date of the bill's 

passage. 

Our review of prior legislation included but was not limited to the following: 

H.2566 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE 

MASSACHUSETTS PORT AUTHORITY (190r") 

5.1402 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE FOR STATE EMPLOYEES (189r") 

H.61 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM (189TH) 

H.3189 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM (189r") 

H.4107 An Act to Establish an Early Retirement Incentive Program for Barnstable County was passed 

by our legislators and signed by Governor Baker on December 28t'', 2018. 



~~~~ 
r.~ r ~~ 

Eligible employees will be further considered only if an application is submitted by the established 
deadline, in proper form and complete. 

Each employee must agree to meet with the HR Assistant Director of the County within the time frame 
prescribed by the County as a condition of participation in the program. 

Each employee must attend a counseling session with the Barnstable County Retirement Association 
within the time frame prescribed by the County. The Barnstable County Retirement Association will 
confirm the meetings. 

Each employee must agree to file an application for asuper-annuation retirement with the Barnstable 
County Retirement Association as a condition of participation in the program. 

~~ <<, 

Based on further management discussions and to assure a successful early retirement incentive 
program, other considerations will be deliberated and incorporated into the management plan going 

forward . 

These other considerations will be the foundation of the budget for personnel and fringes in future 
years and may include such mandates as: 

The exhaustive review of how departments are structured and staffed to increase 
efficiencies, eliminate redundancies, and focus back on the mission of the County by 
Charter. 

The adoption of a strict hiring policy which requires the assessment of need and 
affordability. 

The requirement that no department or division which provides services to the towns 
exceeds cost limitations established by the County in their annual budget. 
Increasing the contribution rates for health, dental and life insurances for new employees. 
Modification of plan designs for certain health plans, including the increases of co-pays and 
deductibles. 
The elimination of certain high cost plans for new employees. 
The periodic review of certain practices for increases and stipends. 
The periodic review of insurance for elected officials. 



~~ ~G'T ~0~ £5~~~1~~~~ ~~V" ~.LY ~t~T1~~~1V"I` 1N~ ~11~ ~~a~~ ~ ~0~~ 

~~~1iS~~~1 ~ CQ~L~NTY 





IG/L 1/LV 10 ulll i I.Y 1 V I 

HOUSE DOCKET, NO. 4349 FILED ON: 11/8/2017 

HOUSE . . . . No. 4107 

~L~je ~ommonboeait~j of ~asgac~jugettg 

PRESENTED BY: 

Timothy R. Whelan 

To the Honorable Senate and House of Representatives of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in General 

Court assembled: 

The undersigned legislators and/or citizens respectfully petition for the adoption of the accompanying bill: 

An Act To Establish an Early Retirement Incentive Program for Barnstable County. 

PETITION OF: 

NAME: ~ DISTRICT~ADDRESS: 

Timothy R. Whelan 1st Barnstable 

William L. Crocker, Jr. 2nd Barnstable 

Randy Hunt Sth Barnstable 

Viriato M. deMacedo Plymouth and Barnstable 

Sarah K. Peake 4th Barnstable 

Julian Cyr Cape and Islands 

David T. Veira 3rd Barnstable 

HOUSE DOCKET, NO. 4349 FILED ON: 11/8/2017 

HOUSE   No. 4107 
By Mr. Whelan of Brewster, a petition (subject to Joint Rules 12 and 7A) of Timothy R. Whelan 

and others for legislation to establish an early retirement incentive program for Barnstable 

County. Public Service. 

~~je ~tCommon~ueart~j of ~ag~ac~jugett~ 

In the One Hundred and Ninetieth General Court 
(2017-2018) 

An Act To Establish an Early Retirement Incentive Program for Barnstable County. 

Be it e~iacted by the Senate atzd House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and by the authorit)~ of the same, as 

follows: 

https://malegislature.gov/Bills/190/H4107 1/2 



12/21 /"1018 rsm n.4 iui 

Section 1. Notwithstanding subsection (g) of section 66 of chapter 188 of the Acts of 2010 to the 

contrary, the County Commissioners of the County of Barnstable may establish and implement an early 

retirement incentive program for county employees as otherwise provided in section 66 of said chapter 188 and 

subject to the following provisions: 

(i) The County Administrator shall submit a plan to the public employee administration commission for 

approval within two (2) months after the effective date of this act; 

(ii) Once the plan has been approved, the County Administrator shall submit a plan to the Board of 

County Commissioners for acceptance no later than the next meeting of the Board of County Commissioners at 

which the plan can be practically submitted; 

(iii) Within one month after the plan has been accepted by the Board of County Commissioners, the 

County Administrator shall publish and make the approved plan available to the employees; 

(iv)The County Administrator shall require employees to participate within two (2) months of the plan's 

publication; 

(v) The County Administrator shall determine which employees shall be allowed to participate in the 

program and shall notify those employees within one (1) month of the application deadline; and 

(vi) The County Administrator shall require that participating employees shall retire within two (2) 

months of notification of acceptance. 

Section 2. This act shall take effect upon its passage. 

https://malegislature.govlBifls/190/H4107 2/2 



Amendment #1 to H4107 

Floor Amendment 

Mr. Speliotis of Danvers moves to amend the bill by inserting after section 1 the following section: 

"SECTION lA. The county administrator, with the approval of the commissioners of Barnstable county, may fill 

county department position vacated as a result of participation by an eligible employee in the retirement 

incentive program vacated by such participation; provided, however, that the total annualized cost of regular 

compensation paid out by the county in fiscal year 2019 for all refilled positions shall not exceed 20 per cent of 

the total annualized cost of regular compensation that would have been paid out by the county during fiscal year 

2019 for positions vacated in county pursuant to the retirement incentive program had the positions not been 

vacated; and provided further, that the total annualized cost of regular compensation paid out by the county in 

fiscal year 2019 for all refilled positions shall not exceed 20 per cent of the total annualized cost of regular 

compensation which would have been paid out by the county during fiscal year 2019 for the positions vacated in 

the county pursuant to the retirement incentive program had the positions not been vacated. 

An employee retired under this act shall not be re-employed in county service, whether as a consultant, an 

independent contractor or a person whose regular duties require time devoted to county service, within 30 days 

after the date of retirement." 

https://malegislature.gov/Bills!190/H4107/Amendments/House?pageNumber=!$direction=asc&sortColumn=Title&keyword= 1/1 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6d 
 

Discussion on the scheduling of a review of Board of Regional Commissioner 
Executive Session Minutes pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 
30A, Section 22(g)(1) 

  



��������� ��	�
��������
������������������
����������	��

����� ��!���"�����#
�$"�%��������	�
���������
������������������
����������	�� ���

&'()* +,-./.012+1.3/3415673862/-6/19:);<*** =+>026=+1./71301+16344.?620@A'B)<(CDE01+16+,-./.012+1.86F23?6,G26H<I):JKLL -./G16034-661./700MNOPQRSSTUVW+XYZ[PNZQ\]̂_V[[ǸMVOMVR\aVPROVPRVNNỲVOMaPRYOM̂QbV[[aMMOPRĉdPRN[Y\PRcMeMNYOPfM̂M̂̂PQR̂d̂MOOPRcbQ̀O_O_M\VOMdOPaMVR\X[VNMdO_MaMaZM̀̂X̀M̂MROQ̀VẐMROdV̂YaaV̀]QbO_M\P̂NŶ P̂QR̂QRMVN_̂YZgMNOdV[P̂OQb\QNYaMRÔVR\QO_M̀Me_PZPÔŶM\VOO_MaMMOPRcdO_M\MNP̂PQR̂aV\MVR\O_MVNOPQR̂OVhMRVOMVN_aMMOPRcdPRN[Y\PRcO_M̀MNQ̀\QbV[[fQOM̂TUZW/QfQOMOVhMRVOVRQXMR̂M̂̂PQR̂_V[[ZMZ]̂MǸMOZV[[QOT+R]fQOMOVhMRVOVRMeMNYOPfM̂M̂̂PQR̂_V[[ZM̀MNQ̀\M\Z]̀Q[[NV[[VR\MROM̀M\PROQO_MaPRYOM̂TUNW-PRYOM̂QbV[[QXMR̂M̂̂PQR̂̂_V[[ZMǸMVOM\VR\VXX̀QfM\PRVOPaM[]aVRRM̀T1_MaPRYOM̂QbVRQXMR̂M̂̂PQRdPbO_M]MeP̂OVR\i_MO_M̀VXX̀QfM\Q̀PR\̀VbObQ̀ad̂_V[[ZMaV\MVfVP[VZ[MYXQR̀MjYM̂OZ]VR]XM̀̂QRiPO_PRkl\V]̂TU\W,QNYaMRÔVR\QO_M̀Me_PZPÔd̂YN_V̂X_QOQc̀VX_̂d̀MNQ̀\PRĉQ̀aVX̂dŶM\Z]O_MZQ\]VOVRQXMRQ̀MeMNYOPfM̂M̂̂PQR̂_V[[dV[QRciPO_O_MaPRYOM̂dZMXV̀OQbO_MQbbPNPV[̀MNQ̀\QbO_M̂M̂̂PQRT



��������� ��	�
��������
������������������
����������	��

����� ��!���"�����#
�$"�%��������	�
���������
������������������
����������	�� ���

&'()*'+,-./'0123-415'-0'00,1-6/*'-1/'067'8179,-:0171/*'7+3/'7,3;0.0'9,-/*'57'5373/,1-120.8*+,-./'03-93;;918.+'-/03-9'<*,=,/0.0'93//*'0'00,1-60*3;;='5.=;,87'81790,-/*',7'-/,7'/43-9-1/'<'+5/271+9,08;10.7'5.70.3-//13-412/*''<'+5/,1-0.-9'78;3.0')>'-/4?0,</*120'8/,1-@128*35/'7ABC1/>,/*0/3-9,-:/*,05373:735*6/*'21;;1>,-:+3/'7,3;00*3;;=''<'+5/271+9,08;10.7'/1/*'5.=;,8305'701--';,-217+3/,1-D&E(+3/'7,3;0.0'9,-35'7217+3-8''F3;.3/,1-123-,-9,F,9.3;='37,-:1-*,05712'00,1-3;81+5'/'-8'6571F,9'9/*'4>'7'-1/87'3/'9=4/*'+'+='7012/*'=194217/*'5.7510'012/*''F3;.3/,1-G3-9&H(+3/'7,3;0.0'9,-9';,='73/,1-03=1./'+5;14+'-/173551,-/+'-/12,-9,F,9.3;06,-8;.9,-:355;,83/,1-03-90.5517/,-:+3/'7,3;0G571F,9'96*1>'F'76/*3/3-47'0.+'0.=+,//'9=43-355;,83-/0*3;;-1/=''<'+5/B&2()*'+,-./'0123-4'<'8./,F'0'00,1-6/*'-1/'067'8179,-:0171/*'7+3/'7,3;0.0'9,-/*'57'5373/,1-120.8*+,-./'03-93;;918.+'-/03-9'<*,=,/0.0'93//*'0'00,1-6+34='>,/**';9271+9,08;10.7'/1/*'5.=;,8,-/*',7'-/,7'/4.-9'70.=8;3.0'&3(128;3.0')>'-/4?0,</*120'8/,1-@128*35/'7A630;1-:305.=;,83/,1-+349'2'3//*';3>2.;5.7510'012/*''<'8./,F'0'00,1-6=./-1;1-:'7G571F,9'96*1>'F'76/*3//*''<'8./,F'0'00,1->30*';9,-81+5;,3-8'>,/*0'8/,1-HEBI*'-/*'5.7510'217>*,8*3F3;,9'<'8./,F'0'00,1->30*';9*30=''-0'7F'96/*'+,-./'0657'5373/174+3/'7,3;03-9918.+'-/03-9'<*,=,/012/*'0'00,1-0*3;;='9,08;10'9.-;'00/*'3//17-'4?8;,'-/57,F,;':'17E17+17'12/*''<'+5/,1-0.-9'703,98;3.0')>'-/4?0,</*1203,90'8/,1-@1203,98*35/'7A355;4/1>,/**1;9/*'0'7'817906173-4517/,1-/*'7'126271+9,08;10.7'B



��������� ��	�
��������
������������������
����������	��

����� ��!���"�����#
�$"�%��������	�
���������
������������������
����������	�� ���





20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6e 
 

Discussion on adopting the County’s website as the official method of posting 
notices for meetings of County Public Bodies pursuant to Title 940 of the Code 
of Massachusetts Regulations, section 29.03(2)(b) 

  



  

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE 
3195 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 427 

BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 

 

 

Jack T. Yunits, Jr. 

County Administrator 

Cell: (508) 510-1127 

Office: (508) 375-6771 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 

jack.yunits@barnstablecounty.org 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: February 26, 2019 

TO: County Commissioners 

FROM: Jack Yunits, County Administrator 

SUBJECT: Adopting the County’s website as the Official Method of Posting 

  

 

Please authorize the adoption of the County website as the official method of posting notices for meetings 

of County Public Bodies pursuant to Title 940 of the Code of Massachusetts Regulations, section 

29.03(2)(b). 

 

 
Approved: 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Date 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

940 CMR 29.00: OPEN MEETINGS 

Section 

29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions 
29.02: Definitions 
29.03:  Notice Posting Requirements 
29.04: Certification 
29.05:  Complaints 
29.06: Investigation 
29.07: Resolution 
29.08: Advisory Opinions 
29.09: Other Enforcement Actions 
29.10: Remote Participation 
29.11: Meeting Minutes 

29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions 

(1) Purpose. The purpose of 940 CMR 29.00 is to interpret, enforce and effectuate the purposes
of the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25.

(2) Severability. If any provision of 940 CMR 29.00 or the application of such provision to any
person, public body, or circumstances shall be held invalid, the validity of the remainder of 940 CMR 
29.00 and the applicability of such provision to other persons, public bodies, or circumstances shall not 
be affected thereby.

(3) Mailing. All complaints, notices (except meeting notices) and other materials that must be sent 
to another party shall be sent by one of the following means: first class mail, email, hand delivery, or 
by any other means at least as expeditious as first class mail.

29.02: Definitions 

As used in 940 CMR 29.00, the following terms shall, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, 
have the following meanings: 

County Public Body. A public body created by county government with jurisdiction that comprises 
a single county. 

District Public Body. A public body with jurisdiction that extends to two or more municipalities. 

Emergency. A sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances demanding immediate 
action. 

Intentional Violation. An act or omission by a public body or a member thereof, in knowing violation 
of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25. Evidence of an intentional violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 shall include, but not be limited to, the public body or public body member that: 

(a) acted with specific intent to violate the law;
(b) acted with deliberate ignorance of the law's requirements; or
(c) was previously informed by receipt of a decision from a court of competent jurisdiction or 
advised by the Attorney General, pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07 or 940 CMR 29.08, that the
conduct violates M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25.  Where a public body or public body member 
has made a good faith attempt at compliance with the law, but was reasonably mistaken about its 
requirements, such conduct will not be considered an intentional violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 
18 through 25.

Person. All individuals and entities, including governmental officials and employees.  Person does not 
include public bodies. 

Post Notice.  To place a written announcement of a meeting on a bulletin board, electronic display, 
website, or in a loose-leaf binder in a manner conspicuously visible to the public, including persons with 
disabilities, at all hours, in accordance with 940 CMR 29.03. 

(MA REG. # 1349, Dated 10-6-17) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.02: continued 

Public Body. Has the identical meaning as set forth in M.G.L. c. 30A, § 18, that is, a multiple-member 
board, commission, committee or subcommittee within the executive or legislative branch or within any 
county, district, city, region or town, however created, elected, appointed or otherwise constituted, 
established to serve a public purpose; provided, however, that the governing board of a local housing, 
redevelopment or other similar authority shall be deemed a local public body; provided, further, that 
the governing board or body of any other authority established by the general court to serve a public 
purpose in the commonwealth or any part thereof shall be deemed a state public body; provided, 
further, that Public Body shall not include the general court or the committees or recess commissions 
thereof, bodies of the judicial branch or bodies appointed by a constitutional officer solely for the 
purpose of advising a constitutional officer and shall not include the board of bank incorporation or the 
policyholders protective board; and provided further, that a subcommittee shall include any 
multiple-member body created to advise or make recommendations to a public body. 

Qualification for Office. The election or appointment of a person to a public body and the taking of 
the oath of office, where required, and shall include qualification for a second or any subsequent term 
of office.  Where no term of office for a member of a public body is specified, the member shall be 
deemed to be qualified for office on a biennial basis following appointment or election to office. 

Regional Public Body. A public body with jurisdiction that extends to two or more municipalities. 

Remote Participation.  Participation by a member of a public body during a meeting of that public body 
where the member is not physically present at the meeting location. 

29.03:  Notice Posting Requirements 

(1) Requirements Applicable to All Public Bodies.
(a) Except in an emergency, public bodies shall file meeting notices sufficiently in advance of a 
public meeting to permit posting of the notice at least 48 hours in advance of the public meeting, 
excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20.  In an 
emergency, the notice shall be posted as soon as reasonably possible prior to such meeting.
(b) Meeting notices shall be printed or displayed in a legible, easily understandable format and 
shall contain the date, time and place of such meeting, and a listing of topics that the chair
reasonably anticipates will be discussed at the meeting.  The list of topics shall have sufficient 
specificity to reasonably advise the public of the issues to be discussed at the meeting.
(c) Notices posted under an alternative posting method authorized by 940 CMR 29.03(2) through 
(5) shall include the same content as required by940 CMR 29.03(1)(b).  If such an alternative 
posting method is adopted, the municipal clerk, in the case of a municipality, or the body, in all 
other cases, shall file with the Attorney General written notice of adoption of the alternative method, 
including the website address where applicable, and any change thereto, and the most current 
notice posting method on file with the Attorney General shall be consistently used.
(d) The date and time that a meeting notice is posted shall be conspicuously recorded thereon or 
therewith.  If an amendment occurs within 48 hours of a meeting, not including Saturdays, Sundays, 
and legal holidays, then the date and time that the meeting notice is amended shall also be
conspicuously recorded thereon or therewith.

(2) Requirements Specific to Local Public Bodies.
(a) The official method of posting notice shall be by filing with the municipal clerk, or other person 
designated by agreement with the municipal clerk, who shall post notice of the meeting in a manner 
conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in, on, or near the municipal building in which the 
clerk's office is located.
(b) Alternatively, the municipality may adopt the municipal website as the official method of notice 
posting.

owen.fletcher
Highlight

owen.fletcher
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

    

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.03: continued 

1. The Chief Executive Officer of the municipality, as defined in M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, must
authorize or, by a simple majority, vote to adopt the municipal website as the official method 
of posting notice.  Any municipality that has adopted its website as the official method of
posting notice by another method as of October 6, 2017 will have satisfied the adoption
requirement.
2. If adopted, a description of the website as the notice posting method, including directions 
on how to locate notices on the website, shall be posted in a manner conspicuously visible to 
the public at all hours on or adjacent to the main and handicapped accessible entrances to the 
municipal building in which the clerk’s office is located.
3. Once adopted as the official method of notice posting, the website shall host the official 
legal notice for meetings of all public bodies within the municipality.
4. Notices must continue to be filed with the municipal clerk, or any other person designated 
by agreement with the municipal clerk.

(c) A municipality may have only one official notice posting method for the purpose of M.G.L. 
c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, either 940 CMR 29.03(2)(a) or (b).  However, nothing precludes a
municipality from choosing to post additional notices via other methods, including a newspaper. 
Such additional notice will not be the official notice for the purposes of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18
through 25.
(d) Copies of notices shall also be accessible to the public in the municipal clerk’s office during 
the clerk's business hours.

(3) Requirements Specific to Regional or District Public Bodies.
(a) Notice shall be filed and posted in each city and town within the region or district in the
manner prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.
(b) As an alternative method of notice, a regional or district public body may, by majority vote, 
adopt the regional or district public body’s website as its official notice posting method. A copy 
of each meeting notice shall be kept by the chair of the public body or the chair's designee in
accordance with the applicable records retention schedules.  The public body shall file and post 
notice of the website address, as well as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in each 
city and town within the region or district in the manner prescribed for local public bodies in that 
city or town.

(4) Requirements Specific to Regional School Districts.
(a) The secretary of the regional school district committee shall be considered to be its clerk.  The 
clerk of the regional school district committee shall file notice with the municipal clerk of each city 
and town within such district and each such municipal clerk shall post the notice in the manner 
prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.
(b) As an alternative method of notice, a regional school district committee may, by majority vote, 
adopt the regional school district’s website as its official notice posting method.  A copy of each 
meeting notice shall be kept by the secretary of the regional school district committee or the
secretary’s designee in accordance with the applicable records retention schedules. The regional 
school district committee shall file and post notice of the website address, as well as directions on 
how to locate notices on the website, in each city and town within the region or district in the
manner prescribed for local public bodies in that city or town.

(5) Requirements Specific to County Public Bodies.
(a) Notice shall be filed and posted in the office of the county commissioners and a copy of the 
notice shall be publicly posted in a manner conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in such 
place or places as the county commissioners shall designate for this purpose.
(b) As an alternative method of notice, a county public body may, by majority vote, adopt the 
county public body’s website as its official notice posting method.  A copy of the notice shall be 
kept by the chair of the county public body or the chair's designee in accordance with the
applicable records retention schedules.  The county public body shall file and post notice of the 
website address, as well as directions on how to locate notices on the website, in the office of the 
county commissioners and a copy of the notice shall be publicly posted in a manner conspicuously 
visible to the public at all hours in such place or places as the county commissioners shall designate 
for this purpose.

owen.fletcher
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

      

   

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.03: continued 

(6) Requirements Specific to State Public Bodies. Notice shall be posted on a website. A copy of 
each notice shall also be sent by first class or electronic mail to the Secretary of the Commonwealth's 
Regulations Division.  The chair of each state public body shall notify the Attorney General in writing 
of its webpage for listing meeting notices and any change to the webpage location.  The public body 
shall consistently use the most current website location on file with the Attorney General.  A copy of 
the notice shall be kept by the chair of the state public body or the chair's designee in accordance with 
the applicable records retention schedules. 

(7) Websites. Where a public body adopts a website as its method of noticing meetings, it must make 
every effort to ensure that the website is accessible to the public at all hours.  If a website becomes 
inaccessible to members of the public within 48 hours of a meeting, not including Saturdays, Sundays, 
and legal holidays, the municipal clerk or other individual responsible for posting notice to the website 
must restore the website to accessibility within six hours of the time, during regular business hours, when 
such individual discovers that the website has become inaccessible.  In the event that the website is not 
restored to accessibility within six business hours of the website’s deficiency being discovered, the 
public body must re-post notice of its meeting for another date and time in accordance with M.G.L. 
c. 30A, § 20(b). 

29.04: Certification 

(1) For local public bodies, the municipal clerk, and for all other public bodies, the appointing 
authority, executive director, or other appropriate administrator or their designees, shall, upon a public 
body member's qualification for office, either deliver to the public body member, or require the public 
body member to obtain from the Attorney General's website, the following educational materials: 

(a) The Attorney General’s Open Meeting Law Guide, which will include an explanation of the 
requirements of the Open Meeting Law; the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 
25; and 940 CMR 29.00. 
(b) A copy of each Open Meeting Law determination issued to that public body by the Attorney 
General within the last five years in which the Attorney General found a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, 
§§ 18 through 25. Open Meeting Law determinations are available at the Attorney General’s 
website. 

(2)  Educational materials may be delivered to public body members by paper copy or in digital form. 

(3)   Within two weeks after receipt of the educational materials, the public body member shall certify, 
on the form prescribed by the Attorney General, receipt of the educational materials.  The municipal 
clerk, appointing authority, executive director or other appropriate administrator, or their designees, 
shall maintain the signed certification for each such person, indicating the date the person received the 
materials. 

(4) An individual serving on multiple public bodies must sign a certification for each public body on 
which he or she serves.  A public body member does not need to sign a separate certification when 
joining a subcommittee of the public body. 

(5) A public body member must sign a new certification upon reelection or reappointment to the 
public body. 

29.05:  Complaints 

(1)  All complaints shall be in writing, using the form approved by the Attorney General and available 
on the Attorney General’s website. A public body need not, and the Attorney General will not, 
investigate or address anonymous complaints.  A public body need not address a complaint that is not 
signed by the complainant.  A public body need not address a complaint that is not filed using the 
Attorney General’s complaint form. 

(2) Public bodies, or the municipal clerk in the case of a local public body, should provide any person, 
on request, with an Open Meeting Law Complaint Form. If a paper copy is unavailable, then the 
public body should direct the requesting party to the Attorney General’s website, where an electronic 
copy of the form will be available for downloading and printing. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.05: continued 

(3)   For local public bodies, the complainant shall file the complaint with the chair of the public body, 
who shall disseminate copies of the complaint to the members of the public body.  The complainant 
shall also file a copy of the complaint with the municipal clerk, who shall keep such filings in an orderly 
fashion for public review on request during regular business hours. For all other public bodies, the 
complainant shall file the complaint with the chair of the relevant public body, or if there is no chair, then 
with the public body. 

(4) The complaint shall be filed within 30 days of the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 or, if the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 could not reasonably have 
been known at the time it occurred, then within 30 days of the date it should reasonably have been 
discovered. 

(5) Within 14 business days after receiving the complaint, unless an extension has been granted by 
the Attorney General as provided in 940 CMR 29.05(5)(b), the public body shall meet to review the 
complaint’s allegations; take remedial action, if appropriate; and send to the complainant a response 
and a description of any remedial action taken.  The public body shall simultaneously notify the 
Attorney General that it has sent such materials to the complainant and shall provide the Attorney 
General with a copy of the complaint, the response, and a description of any remedial action taken. 

(a)  Any remedial action taken by the public body in response to a complaint under 940 CMR 
29.05(5) shall not be admissible as evidence that a violation occurred in any later administrative or 
judicial proceeding against the public body relating to the alleged violation. 
(b) If the public body requires additional time to resolve the complaint, it may obtain an extension 
from the Attorney General by submitting a written request within 14 business days after receiving 
the complaint. A request may be submitted by the chair, the public body’s attorney, or any person 
designated by the public body or the chair.  The Attorney General will grant an extension if the 
request demonstrates good cause.  Good cause will generally be found if, for example, the public 
body cannot meet within the 14 business day period to consider proposed remedial action.  The 
Attorney General shall notify the complainant of any extension and the reason for it. 

(6)  If the public body needs additional information to resolve the complaint, then the chair may request 
it from the complainant within seven business days of receiving the complaint.  The complainant shall 
respond within ten business days after receiving the request.  The public body will then have an 
additional ten business days after receiving the complainant’s response to review the complaint and take 
any remedial action pursuant to 940 CMR 29.05(5). 

(7) If at least 30 days have passed after the complaint was filed with the public body, and if the 
complainant is unsatisfied with the public body’s resolution of the complaint, the complainant may file 
a complaint with the Attorney General.  When filing a complaint with the Attorney General, the 
complainant shall include a copy of the original complaint along with any other materials the complainant 
believes are relevant.  The Attorney General shall decline to investigate complaints filed with the 
Attorney General more than 90 days after the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, 
or if the alleged violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, could not reasonably have been known 
at the time it occurred, then within 90 days of the date it should reasonably have been discovered. 
However, this time may be extended if the Attorney General grants an extension to the public body to 
respond to a complaint or if the complainant demonstrates good cause for the delay in filing with the 
Attorney General. 

(8) The Attorney General shall acknowledge receipt of all complaints and will resolve them within a 
reasonable period of time, generally 90 days. 

(9)  Mediation to Resolve a Complaint. 
(a)   If a complainant files five complaints alleging violations of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, 
with the same public body or within the same municipality within 12 months, upon the fifth or 
subsequent complaint to that public bodyor a public body within that municipality within the 
12-month period, the public body may request mediation with the complainant, at the public body's 
expense, to resolve the complaint.  A mediator is defined by M.G.L. c. 233, § 23C, and will be 
selected by the Attorney General. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

        

  

 

 

 
 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.05: continued 

(b) A public body must request mediation prior to, or with, its response to the complaint. If the 
mediation does not produce an agreement, the public body will have ten business days from the 
last joint meeting with the mediator to respond to the complaint. 
(c)  A public body may participate in mediation in open session, in executive session through 
M.G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(9), or by designating a representative to participate on behalf of the public 
body. 
(d)  If the complainant declines to participate in mediation after a public body's request in 
accordance with 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a), the Attorney General may decline to review the complaint 
if it is thereafter filed with the Attorney General. 
(e)   If the mediation does not resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of both parties, then the 
complainant may file a copy of his or her complaint with the Attorney General and request the 
Attorney General’s review. The complaint must be filed with the Attorney General within 30 days 
of the last joint meeting with the mediator. 
(f)   Any written agreement reached in mediation shall become a public record in its entirety and 
must be publicly disclosed at the next meeting of the public body following execution of the 
agreement. 
(g)  Nothing in 940 CMR 29.05(9) shall prevent a complainant from filing subsequent complaints, 
however public bodies may continue to request mediation in an effort to resolve complaints in 
accordance with 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a). 
(h) Nothing in 940 CMR 29.05(9) shall prevent a public body or complainant from seeking 
mediation to resolve any complaint.  However, only mediation requests that follow the requirements 
of 940 CMR 29.05(9)(a) will trigger the application of 940 CMR 29.05(9)(d). 

29.06: Investigation 

Following a timely complaint filed pursuant to 940 CMR 29.05, where the Attorney General has 
reasonable cause to believe that a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 has occurred, then 
the Attorney General may conduct an investigation. 

(1) The Attorney General shall notify the public body or person that is the subject of a complaint of 
the existence of the investigation within a reasonable period of time.  The Attorney General shall also 
notify the public body or person of the nature of the alleged violation. 

(2) Upon notice of the investigation, the subject of the investigation shall provide the Attorney General 
with all information relevant to the investigation.  The subject may also submit a memorandum or other 
writing to the Attorney General addressing the allegations being investigated. 

If the subject of the investigation fails to voluntarily provide the necessary or relevant information 
within 30 days of receiving notice of the investigation, the Attorney General may issue one or more civil 
investigative demands to obtain the information in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 24(a), to: 

(a)  Take testimony under oath; 
(b) Examine or cause to be examined any documentary material; or 
(c)   Require attendance during such examination of documentary material by any person having 
knowledge of the documentary material and take testimony under oath or acknowledgment in 
respect of any such documentary material. 
Any documentary material or other information produced by any person pursuant to 940 CMR 

29.06 shall not, unless otherwise ordered by a court of the Commonwealth for good cause shown, be 
disclosed without that person's consent by the Attorney General to any person other than the Attorney 
General's authorized agent or representative.  However, the Attorney General may disclose the material 
in court pleadings or other papers filed in court; or, to the extent necessary, in an administrative hearing 
or in a written determination to resolve the investigation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07. 

29.07: Resolution 

(1) No Violation. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 has not been violated, the Attorney General shall issue a written determination to the subject 
of the complaint and copy any complainant. 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

  

  
 

       

   
 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.07: continued 

(2) Violation Resolved Without Hearing. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that 
M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 has been violated, the Attorney General may resolve the 
investigation without a hearing.  The Attorney General shall determine whether the relevant public body, 
one or more of its members, or both, were responsible.  The Attorney General will notify in writing any 
complainant of the investigation's resolution.  Upon finding a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 
25, the Attorney General may take one of the following actions: 

(a)   Informal Action.  The Attorney General may resolve the investigation with a letter or other 
appropriate form of written communication that explains the violation and clarifies the subject's 
obligations under M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, providing the subject with a reasonable period 
of time to comply with any outstanding obligations. 
(b) Formal Order.  The Attorney General may resolve the investigation with a formal order. The 
order may require: 

1. immediate and future compliance with M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25; 
2.   attendance at a training session authorized by the Attorney General; 
3.   nullification of any action taken at the relevant meeting, in whole or in part; 
4.   that minutes, records or other materials be made public;  
5. that an employee be reinstated without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure or other 
benefits; or 
6. other appropriate action. 
Orders shall be available on the Attorney General's website. 

(3) Violation Resolved After Hearing. The Attorney General may conduct a hearing where the 
Attorney General deems appropriate.  The hearing shall be conducted pursuant to 801 CMR 
1.00:  Formal Rules, as modified by any regulations issued by the Attorney General.  At the conclusion 
of the hearing, the Attorney General shall determine whether a violation of M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 
through 25 occurred, and whether the public body, one or more of its members, or both, were 
responsible. The Attorney General will notify in writing any complainant of the investigation's 
resolution. Upon a finding that a violation occurred, the Attorney General may order: 

(a)  immediate and future compliance with M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25; 
(b)  attendance at a training session authorized by the Attorney General; 
(c)  nullification of any action taken at the relevant meeting, in whole or in part; 
(d) imposition of a fine upon the public body of not more than $1,000 for each intentional 
violation; however, a fine will not be imposed where a public body or public body member acted 
in good faith compliance with the advice of the public body's legal counsel, in accordance with 
M.G.L. 30A, § 23(g); 
(e) that an employee be reinstated without loss of compensation, seniority, tenure or other 
benefits; 
(f)   that minutes, records or other materials be made public; or 
(g)  other appropriate action. 
Orders issued following a hearing shall be available on the Attorney General's website. 

(4) A public body, subject to an order of the Attorney General following a written determination 
issued pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07, shall notify the Attorney General in writing of its compliance with 
the order within 30 days of receipt of the order, unless otherwise indicated by the order itself.  A public 
body need not notify the Attorney General of its compliance with an order requiring immediate and 
future compliance pursuant to 940 CMR 29.07(2)(b)1. or 940 CMR 29.07(3)(a). 

(5) A public body or any member of a body aggrieved by any order issued by the Attorney General 
under 940 CMR 29.07 may obtain judicial review of the order through an action in Superior Court 
seeking relief in the nature of certiorari. Any such action must be commenced in Superior Court within 
21 days of receipt of the order. 

29.08: Advisory Opinions 

The Attorney General will generally not issue advisory opinions.  However, the Attorney General 
may issue written guidance to address common requests for interpretation.  Such written guidance will 
appear on the Attorney General’s website. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
     

 

 

   

 

 

 

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.09: Other Enforcement Actions 

Nothing in 940 CMR 29.06 or 29.07 shall limit the Attorney General's authority to file a civil action 
to enforce M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25 pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A, § 23(f). 

29.10: Remote Participation 

(1) Preamble. Remote participation may be permitted subject to the following procedures and 
restrictions.  However, the Attorney General strongly encourages members of public bodies to 
physically attend meetings whenever possible.  By promulgating 940 CMR 29.10, the Attorney General 
hopes to promote greater participation in government.  Members of public bodies have a responsibility 
to ensure that remote participation in meetings is not used in a way that would defeat the purposes of 
M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18 through 25, namely promoting transparency with regard to deliberations and 
decisions on which public policy is based. 

(2) Adoption of Remote Participation. Remote participation in meetings of public bodies is not 
permitted unless the practice has been adopted as follows: 

(a)  Local Public Bodies.  The Chief Executive Officer, as defined in M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, must 
authorize or, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the 
requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that authorization or vote applying to all subsequent 
meetings of all local public bodies in that municipality. 
(b)  Regional or District Public Bodies.  The regional or district public body must, by a simple 
majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 
29.10, with that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees. 
(c)   Regional School Districts.  The regional school district committee must, by a simple majority, 
vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with 
that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees. 
(d) County Public Bodies. The county commissioners must, by a simple majority, vote to allow 
remote participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote 
applying to all subsequent meetings of all county public bodies in that county. 
(e)  State Public Bodies.  The state public body must, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote 
participation in accordance with the requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote applying to 
all subsequent meetings of that public body and its committees. 
(f)   Retirement Boards.  A retirement board created pursuant to M.G.L. c. 32, § 20 or M.G.L. c. 
34B, § 19 must, by a simple majority, vote to allow remote participation in accordance with the 
requirements of 940 CMR 29.10, with that vote applying to all subsequent meetings of that public 
body and its committees. 
(g)  Local Commissions on Disability. In accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20(e), a local 
commission on disability may, by majority vote of the commissioners at a regular meeting, authorize 
remote participation applicable to a specific meeting or generally to all of the commission’s 
meetings.  If a local commission on disability is authorized to utilize remote participation, a physical 
quorum of that commission’s members shall not be required to be present at the meeting location; 
provided, however, that the chair or, in the chair’s absence, the person authorized to chair the 
meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location.  The commission shall comply with all 
other requirements of law. 

(3)  Revocation of Remote Participation.  Any person or entity with the authority to adopt remote 
participation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.10(2) may revoke that adoption in the same manner. 

(4) Minimum Requirements for Remote Participation. 
(a)   Members of a public body who participate remotely and all persons present at the meeting 
location shall be clearly audible to each other as required by M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20(d); 
(b)  A quorum of the body, including the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person authorized to 
chair the meeting, shall be physically present at the meeting location as required by M.G.L. c. 30A, 
§ 20(d); 
(c)   Members of public bodies who participate remotely may vote and shall not be deemed absent 
for the purposes of M.G.L. c. 39, § 23D. 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

     
       

 

  

  

            

   

 

  

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.10: continued 

(5)  Permissible Reason for Remote Participation. If remote participation has been adopted in 
accordance with 940 CMR 29.10(2), a member of a public body shall be permitted to participate 
remotely in a meeting in accordance with the procedures described in 940 CMR 29.10(7) only if 
physical attendance would be unreasonably difficult. 

(6)   Technology. 
(a)   The following media are acceptable methods for remote participation.  Remote participation 
by any other means is not permitted.  Accommodations shall be made for any public body member 
who requires TTY service, video relay service, or other form of adaptive telecommunications. 

1.   telephone, internet, or satellite enabled audio or video conferencing; 
2. any other technology that enables the remote participant and all persons present at the 
meeting location to be clearly audible to one another. 

(b) When video technology is in use, the remote participant shall be clearly visible to all persons 
present in the meeting location. 
(c)  The public body shall determine which of the acceptable methods may be used by its 
members. 
(d) The chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the meeting, may decide how to 
address technical difficulties that arise as a result of utilizing remote participation, but is encouraged 
wherever possible to suspend discussion while reasonable efforts are made to correct any problem 
that interferes with a remote participant's ability to hear or be heard clearly by all persons present 
at the meeting location.  If technical difficulties result in a remote participant being disconnected 
from the meeting, that fact and the time at which the disconnection occurred shall be noted in the 
meeting minutes. 
(e)  The amount and source of payment for any costs associated with remote participation shall 
be determined by the applicable adopting entity identified in 940 CMR 29.10(2). 

(7) Procedures for Remote Participation. 
(a)  Any member of a public body who wishes to participate remotely shall, as soon as reasonably 
possible prior to a meeting, notify the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the 
meeting, of his or her desire to do so and the reason for and facts supporting his or her request. 
(b) At the start of the meeting, the chair shall announce the name of any member who will be 
participating remotely.  This information shall also be recorded in the meeting minutes. 
(c)  All votes taken during any meeting in which a member participates remotely shall be by roll 
call vote. 
(d) A member participating remotely may participate in an executive session, but shall state at the 
start of any such session that no other person is present and/or able to hear the discussion at the 
remote location, unless presence of that person is approved by a simple majority vote of the public 
body. 
(e)  When feasible, the chair or, in the chair's absence, the person chairing the meeting, shall 
distribute to remote participants in advance of the meeting, copies of any documents or exhibits that 
he or she reasonably anticipates will be used during the meeting.  If used during the meeting, such 
documents shall be part of the official record of the meeting and shall be listed in the meeting 
minutes and retained in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 22. 

(8) Further Restriction by Adopting Authority. 940 CMR 29.10 does not prohibit any person or 
entity with the authority to adopt remote participation pursuant to 940 CMR 29.10(2) from enacting 
policies, laws, rules or regulations that prohibit or further restrict the use of remote participation by 
public bodies within that person or entity's jurisdiction, provided those policies, laws, rules or 
regulations do not violate state or federal law. 

(9) Remedy for Violation. If the Attorney General determines after investigation that 940 CMR 29.10 
has been violated, the Attorney General may resolve the investigation by ordering the public body to 
temporarily or permanently discontinue its use of remote participation. 



 

 

 

   

   

940 CMR:   OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

29.11: Meeting Minutes 

(1) A public bodyshall create and maintain accurate minutes of all meetings including executive 
sessions, setting forth the date, time and place, the members present or absent, a summary of the 
discussions on each subject, a list of documents and other exhibits used at the meeting, the decisions 
made and the actions taken at each meeting, including the record of all votes in accordance with 
M.G.L. c. 30A, § 22(a). 

(2) Minutes of all open and executive sessions shall be created and approved in a timely manner.  A 
“timely manner” will generally be considered to be within the next three public body meetings or within 
30 days, whichever is later, unless the public body can show good cause for further delay.  The 
Attorney General encourages public bodies to approve minutes at the next meeting whenever possible. 

REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

940 CMR 29.00:  M.G.L. c. 30A, § 25(a) and (b). 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8a 
 

Authorizing the creation of the new position of HMIS (Homeless Management 
Information System) Program Manager, replacing the vacant HMIS Coordinator 
position 

  



  

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE 
3195 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 
 

Justyna Marczak 
Human Resources Director 
Phone: (508) 375-6646 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 
jmarczak@barnstablecounty.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: February 26, 2019 
TO: County Commissioners 
FROM: Justyna Marczak, Human Resources Director 
SUBJECT: Creation of the position of HMIS Program Manager 
  

 
Please authorize the creation of the new position of HMIS (Homeless Management Information System) 
Program Manager, replacing the vacant HMIS Coordinator position, in the Human Services 
Derpartment. 
 
 
 
 

 

Approved: 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Date 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 



 

 
 
 

 

Creating a Healthy Connected Cape Cod 
The Mission of the Department of Human Services is to plan, develop, and implement programs which enhance the overall delivery of human services 
in Barnstable County and promote the health and social well-being of County residents through regional efforts that improve coordination of services. 

 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

3195 Main Street, Post Office Box 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630 

Office: 508-375-6628 | Fax: 508-362-0290 
www.bchumanservices.net 

 

 
Elizabeth Albert, Director 

balbert@barnstablecounty.org 

 

 
 

 

February 20, 2019 
 
To:  County Commissioners Ronald Bergstrom, Mary Pat Flynn and Ronald Beaty 
 
Cc: Jack Yunits, County Administrator 

Mary McIsaac, Director, Finance 
 Justyna Marczak, Director, Human Resources 
 
From: Beth Albert, Director, Human Services 
 
Re:  Request for Approval of New Job Description – HMIS Program Manager 
 
Background for the request:   

 

• Barnstable County Department of Human Services is the Collaborative Applicant for the 

Cape and Islands Continuum of Care (CoC) and currently administers five HUD Continuum 

of Care grants that come directly to the County: Planning ($51,248), Coordinated Entry 

System ($29,698), Coordinated Entry Expansion ($55,594), Homeless Management 

Information System (HMIS- $67,356) and HMIS Expansion ($59,646).  The entire CoC, 

which includes 6 other grantees in addition to Barnstable County, was recently awarded 

an $1.8 million in funding to support 146 units of supportive housing for formerly 

homeless households.  

 

• Effective 7/1/18 the department began administering the Homeless Management 

Information System (HMIS) for the Continuum of Care (CoC).   

 

• Effective 7/1/18 the County Commissioner’s approved a HMIS Coordinator position.   We 

were unsuccessful in filling this position and it remains vacant.  However, as a short-term 

measure, we contracted with Simtech Solutions to administer some components of the 

HMIS program for a 10-month period ending 6/30/19.    

 



 

 

 
 

• After administering the HMIS program since 7/1/18 (about 9 months), we now have a 

better understanding of the HMIS program and staff responsibilities. In order to meet our 

responsibilities, I have revised the job description and upgraded the HMIS Coordinator 

position to a HMIS Program Manager.  Over the past 9 months, Martha Taylor, CoC 

Program Manager, has been trained in HMIS and has acquired the requisite technical and 

management skills to transition successfully into the HMIS Program Manager position.   

 
 

In consideration of these factors, I request your approval of the revised position for a HMIS 

Program Manager.  The currently vacant HMIS Coordinator position will not be filled.  Martha 

Taylor, CoC Program Manager will transition into the HMIS Program Manager position and 

recruitment will begin immediately to fill the CoC Program Manager position.  This request does 

not increase in the number of CoC grant funded positions.  I am seeking approval for a revised 

job description to ensure the department has appropriate staff to operate and meet the 

obligations of these grant funded programs.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8b 
 

Authorizing the refilling of the vacant Laboratory Director Position, in the County 
Health and Environment Department, as recommended by the County Review 
Committee 

  



 1 

Memorandum 
 
 
TO :  Justyna Marczak, Director 
  Barnstable County Human Resources Department 
 
FROM: Sean O’Brien, Director 
  Barnstable County Department of Health and Environment 
 
DATE:  February 21. 2019 
 
RE: Hiring of a New Director of the Barnstable County Laboratory 
 
 
Please let this memorandum serve as a request to refill the laboratory director position 
recently vacated by Gongmin Lei.  As you are aware, this position is necessary for the 
laboratory to maintain its’ certification with the Massachusetts Department of 
Environmental Protection.  We are required to have a director with at least 24 credits in 
college chemistry and a minimum of three years of experience working in an 
environmental analysis laboratory. 
 
We would like to advertise the position on March 3, 2019.   
 
I am also available to attend next Wednesday’s Barnstable County Commissioner’s meeting 
to further discuss the position. 
 
Thank you for your assistance 
 
 
Approved by County Commissioners: 
 
 
 
___________________   _____________________   ____________________ 
Ronald Bergstrom   Mary Pat Flynn   Ronald Beaty 
Chair     Vice-Chair    Commissioner 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Date 

 
 

Barnstable County Department  
Of 

Health and Environment 
SUPERIOR COURT HOUSE 

POST OFFICE BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MA 02630 

 

Phone: (508) 375-6618 
FAX:   (508) 362-2603 
Email:  sobrien@barnstablecounty.org 
 
 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8c 
 

Authorizing the execution of a notarized letter is to designating Stephen Amara, 
County Accountant, as Entity Administrator the County and authorizing his 
access to the United States Government’s online System for Award Management 
(SAM) 

  



 
 

P.O BOX 427  
  BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 

02630 
(508) 375-6649 

FAX (508) 362-4136 
 

 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
RONALD R. BEATY 
Barnstable 
 
LEO G. CAKOUNES 
 Harwich 
 
MARY PAT FLYNN 
 Falmouth 
 
 

 
 

    BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

HOME RULED CHARTERED 
 
 

 

IN 1989 
 

 DATE: February 27, 2019 

 

FEDERAL SERVICE DESK 
ATTN: SAM.GOV REGISTRATION PROCESSING 
460 INDUSTRIAL BLVD. 
LONDON, KY  40741-7285 
 

RE: In response to the SAM registration renewal requirements:  

  

Legal Organization Name:      Barnstable, County of                             DUNS Number:        076612407 

Physical Address:          3195 Main Street 

            Barnstable, MA  02630 

Entity Administrator Name:        Bobbi Moritz 

Address:   3195 Main Street 

    Barnstable, MA  02630 

Phone:    508-375-6873 

Email Address:   bobbi.moritz@barnstablecounty.org 

 

ACTION #1 

 The following notarized letter is below: 

 



 
 

P.O BOX 427  
  BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 

02630 
(508) 375-6649 

FAX (508) 362-4136 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
RONALD R. BEATY 
Barnstable 
 
LEO G. CAKOUNES 
 Harwich 
 
MARY PAT FLYNN 
 Falmouth 

    BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

HOME RULED CHARTERED 
 IN 1989 

 

February 27, 2019 
 
“The  purpose  of  this  notarized  letter  is  to  designate  Stephen  Amara  as  Entity  Administrator  for 
Barnstable, County of.  
 
 I,  Ronald  Bergstrom,  County  Commissioner,  Chair,  (Signature):  _____________________________, 
hereby  confirm  that  Stephen  Amara  is  an  authorized  officer,  agent,  or  representative  of  Barnstable, 
County of.   
 
This  letter will authorize Stephen Amara to have access to the System for Award Management (SAM).  
SAM is a computer system managed by the U.S. Government, and it is only accessible by individuals who 
are  either  authorized  to  represent  a  particular  entity,  or  by  individuals  representing  themselves.  
Accessing or using SAM, or information contained therein, for any unauthorized or illegal purposes, may 
have civil or criminal penalties, and may negatively impact the status of the SAM registration maintained 
on this entity.  I, the below signed, attest to the accuracy of all information contained in this letter.” 
For the purpose of registering with the United States Government through the online System for Award 
Management (SAM), I (we) do not authorize any third party to act on behalf of Barnstable, County of.” 
 
Barnstable County Commissioners: 
 
Ronald Bergstrom, Chair  _______________________________   Date:  ______________ 
Mary Pat Flynn, Vice‐Chair  _______________________________   Date:  ______________ 
Ronald R. Beaty              _______________________________   Date:  ______________ 
 
Barnstable, ss  
 
On this ____ day of February, 2019, before me, the undersigned notary public personally appeared Ronald 
Bergstrom, Mary  Pat  Flynn  and  Ronald  R.  Beaty  and  proved  to me  through  satisfactory  evidence  of 
identification,  which was  ___________________,  to  be  the  persons whose  names  are  signed  on  the 
preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that they signed it voluntarily for  is stated 
purpose. 
 

_________________________ 
Notary Public:  
My Commission Expires:  

 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8d 
 

Authorizing the approval of a grounds request by 2019 Cape Cod Doxie Day to 
utilize the Barnstable County Superior Courthouse for an event on September 
28, 2019 

  



  

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE 
3195 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 
 

Jack T. Yunits, Jr. 
County Administrator 
Cell: (508) 510-1127 
Office: (508) 375-6771 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 
jack.yunits@barnstablecounty.org 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: February 26, 2019 
TO: County Commissioners 
FROM: Owen Fletcher, Executive Assistant 
SUBJECT: Grounds Request by 2019 Cape Cod Doxie Day 
  

 
Please authorize the approval of a grounds request by 2019 Cape Cod Doxie Day to utilize the Barnstable 
County Superior Courthouse for an event on September 28, 2019, subject to the County Use Policy, 
including yet not limited to, proof of insurance, post event clean-up, and any other provisions set forth by 
the Facilities Director. 
 
 Approved: 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Date 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 



CdIPE 
COD 
DOXIE 
DIY 

February 8, 2019 

Owen Fletcher, Executive Assistant 

Barnstable County Administration 

P.O. Box 427 

3195 Main Street 
Barnstable Superior Court House 

Barnstable, MA 02630 

Dear Mr. Fletcher, 

The Cape Cod Doxie Day Committee request permission to have the 2019 Cape Cod Doxie Day on 

Saturday, September 28, 2019 at the grounds behind the Barnstable Superior Court House. We held 2018 

Cape Cod Doxie Day at this location with the assistance and approval of the Barnstable Village 

Association and had a terrific turnout. 

The attached proposal for 2019 Cod Doxie Day, a 501(c)(3) organization, is attached. I have also 

attached last year's program for additional information about the event. This year we are planning to 

donate the proceeds from the event to Cape Cod 

Please contact me at 617-918-1576 (w) or 508-563-9391(h) or at cocomochachip@aol.com if you need 

further information about the event. 

Sincerely, 

Betsy Davis 

Cape Cod Doxie Day Committee 



CAPE 
COD 
DOXIE 
DAY 

To: Owen Fletcher, Executive Assistant, Barnstable County 

From: Eva Carbonaro and Betsy Davis 

Subject: Cape Cod Doxie Day in Barnstable Village 

Date: February 8, 2019 

The purpose of Cape Cod Doxie Day is to create a family friendly event, open to everyone, to 

celebrate and bring together dachshunds, dachshund wanna-a- be's and support the health of our 

dogs. 

Request of Barnstable County: approval of location for 2019 Cape Cod Doxie Day behind the 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable Courthouse., Barnstable, MA 

Location: Open space behind the Barnstable Courthouse in Barnstable Village 

Time and Date of Event: Noon to 3 pm, September 28, 2019 

Rain Date: Noon to 3pm, September 29, 2018 
Expected Attendance: 150 to 250 people with their dogs 

Event Description: Cape Cod Doxie Day is a gathering of dachshunds with their owners each 

autumn on beautiful Cape Cod. This year's event shall tentatively include 

* a short parade on Main Street with participants ending at the proposed event location, behind 

the Barnstable County Courthouse 

* blessing of the dogs 

* singing of the "Dachs Song" 

* contests to include but not limited to 

best ears, teeniest weenie, longest doxie, loudest bark, senior star, most prized puppy, 

owner pet look alike, hairiest hound, handsomest hound, best trick, foxiest doxie, best 

smile, best kisses, best tail wagger, best waddle, best in show, and most convincing 

wiener wanna-be's. 

Donations raised will go to a local animal organization to support the health and wellbeing of 

dogs. 



CAPE. 
COD ''~ ~,~ 
DOX1E 
D A~ 

CAP ~. 
COD 
DOXI 
DAY ''' 



CAPE 
COD  
DOXIE 
DAY 

CELEBRATING DACHSHUNDS, FAMILIES, FRIENDS and WIENER-WANNA-BE's 



i 
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 

P. O. BOX 2508 

CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

~~~~~2018 

CAPE COD DOXIE DAY INC 

24 BAY ROAD 

NORTH FALMOUTH, MA 02556-0000 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 

$3-2459821 

DLN: 

26053718001878 

Contact Person: 

CUSTOMER SERVICE ID# 31954 

Contact Telephone Number: 

(877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 

November 30 

Public Charity Status: 

170 (b) (1) (A) (v-i) 

Form 990/990-EZ/990-N Required: 

Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 

May 11, 2018 

Contribution Deductibility: 

Yes 

Addendum Applies: 

No 

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax 

under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)(3). Donors can deduct 

contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified 

to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under 

Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your 

exempt status. Please keep it for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c)(3) are further classified as 

either public charities or private foundations. We determined you're a public 

charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form 

990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you're required to file an annual 

information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 990-N, 

the e-Postcard). If you don't file a required return or notice for three 

consecutive years, your exempt status will be automatically revoked. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the 

enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter. 

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt 

organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar 

to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Public Charities, 

which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements. 

Letter 947 



-2-

CAPE COD DOXIE DAY INC 

Sincerely, 

Director, Exempt Organizations 

Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 947 



~ ~ ~ 

~ / ~ /R ~ ~ 

~ ~ / .~ / ~ \ ~ ~ .~ / 
~ ~ _ E ~ 0 ~ — ~ E E ~ O 

~/ 
O~ 2 0~ $~ 0 2 2 g ~ 

~ /~ ~~ /~ ~E 
~ ~~ $ ~ 3 ~ ~ k 2~ E 

~ ^ « ~ h ~ ~ ~ \ ~ 

~ ~ 3 E ~ @ 3 / ~ 
~ ~_ O ~ ~ /_: @ ~ 

U ~ ~ E O 
C g ~ \ ~ O.I ~ 

//`~ ®~ ~ ~ 7 Viz. ~ ~ O ~ ~ « ~ e ~ 

~~~ ~ E ƒ ~ ~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~~ g ~ ~ ~ 
~~ ~~ 2 3 0 3 3 

~ $ ~ ~ D ~ U 4 

~.\~~ 7~ OE 
% ~ 0 ~ ~« ~ / 2

E 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ \ ~ 

0 ~ \ _o @ ~ / ~ 
~ J ~ \ /_: I ~ 
~® « ~ E O 
~ ~ ~~ 6  O.9 ~ 

~O 
~ 

~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 2 

~ ~ ~ 2 ~ $ ~ ~ ~ ~ E g ~ ~~ 

0/$/ O« p$ 
~ ~ ~ ~ D ~ U 4 

( R 
f \ 

\ § 
> \ _ 

\/=E 

S ? ~ ~ 
g ~/ \ 
®2» » 
mo o= ~~ 

~~~~~ 
% £ [ \ c 
t ¢ c U g 

f\/ EE 

~§/ /2 

~ E« Ef 

~/§ /2 ~ e a / ._ 

Zba e~ 
Q [ ~2 § 2 

~E~i\ 

k 
0 
U 
2 

E 
0 
2 
~ 
% 

/~ 0 

\ ~ 

~ / 

§a 

t § 
cp 

\2 
= u

~ a 

/U 



9 
I c 

\ \ \ 
o° ©~ 

\ [k k7 
~_ ~4 ~_ 

~ / \ 2 ~ 

\ ~ / / ~ 

\ f6 ~~ e 4 
\ 5/ §& 

9e cƒ 
/ ~§ /E 

2 ~2 \ § / 6 
\ \\ t/ 20 

0 

¢ ~ k ~ 2 / _~ f 
05 ■ƒ ai tom °~/ /\ f¥ ~ §o 

~_ §u §=2 
%2 %= of o\c 

7\ 2 7 f\ k\\ 

k( k/ $\ 
Ef2 

22 ~2 ~0 «~U 

~ ~ o 
~ ~ ~ _ r 

E 

E S 

q~ 

2 ~ 
@ 

k ~ 

v2 
k~ 

$2 

.ƒ 

2 

G 

~ 
» 

\k 
:o 
:~ 
~S 
~~ 

~ 

\ 

\ / 

-/E 

\\~ 
/_± 

a\\ 

~( / / 
I 
/$4 

\~\ 
~c ƒ c 
\\Q 

~/%/ 
Go\~ 

~\[ƒ 

of/\ 
~ = z I 
O*2~ 

af%/ 
~2oa 
2&6_ 
~</G 
~g7= 

\ 
0 
@ 
\ 
0 S

ile
n

t 
A

u
c
ti
o

n
 C

lo
se

s 

~ 
■ 

\ 
0 

k 

_2 

k~ 

f~ 
2■ 
~ 

\~ 
ok 
x 

~ c 

t~ 
~\ 

/~ ~ 
k3 

/ 
} 

} 

k 
I \ / 

$ 
/\7 / 

\~~®~ ~ 
'3 \ ( } / 2 e ~ 
£ § / / m ƒ 7 / 

\~ ~~~ E~ / 

$ } k\ / ~ ~ \ 
.§ / ~ / § ( ~ ® ~ 

e f~ m= \\~ R c 

// ( k\\ 3 \\/7/ 
5 E / @ % 3 F / / / \ / 
/?\/ 3 ~* mo b>2~ 
4-Eo/~e2ucaf 

_ _ = O o = 

k\\~/\ 2// 2 \~ 

\ \ 3  \ \ \ ~ ~ f / ~ \ 
2 m \ / > > \ 

~ e - 5 ~ 

222 2 {~~\\i f
« / / 6 2 $ \ 

@ 2 ~ a \ 
y > ~ I= , 2= O> 2 

\ § 
7 A 2 

~/\ 

\[d 

J ~ r 
~ t 5 

w \k~ 

@ ~ J ~ 5 

~ ~ » ~ ~ ~ 
b k 2 ~ ~ 

~~ ~ o § § 2 

~ 3 ~I\ R 

m ~ ~/f~ 

~ ~ _ ~ . 
~ 2 ~ ; 
V 322 

°ia 
I % 7 
2 a c 

~ k ~ 

\ \ k 

) 3 
0 

~ 

~~ ~ ■ 

2 
~ 
~ 
m 

.
 
r
 e
a
r
t
h
 r
a
t
e
d
 

~ 
~ 

~~ 
0 
U 
~ 



H
O

W
 T

O
 W

IN
 A

T
 A

 S
IL

E
N

T
 A

U
C

T
IO

N
 

% 

\ ` ~ ~j® 2 
] \ 

@I~/± 

}f ~ ~\k/~ \ 
B 2 ~ 20 003 0 

) \ § §{/\/ f 

f ) ~ \ }§§/\~ / / 

2 f » , © = S g e = o ~ _ 
_ 

§§ / \ ° ] % ] § (E££)\ E ±\ § } 
$ ~ > ~ ~ 2 u o ® Z » ~ % $ f n o « G 
~ o = ~ ~ _ _ ~ » ~ 2 - ~ ~ e a » = o J ~ _ 
§ £ 2 ~ § § ~ ~ ~ ; 2 2 0 2 a \ . ; o t = o -
t » 5 ~ f o ~ } ] ] c , > = S = % = o ) - o-
t ~ o ~ b I § ] _ _ , c ~ e « o g o ~ _ ~ ~ ~ = c § 

U Q = - - ° _ _ ̀  ~ ~ - o g °- o 
o@~ ~o \ E ~§§ § ~ ~ c 2 4 t 2= m o\ 5 2 2% o k t 3
0 

!n= ~ o= _ ug=@¥ . 
E- .~~. o o e ~ ~ ~ . 

Q${:~~ 7 ~&) v o o = 2~ a 2 2 2 t t t ©§ _& t e o _ ~ _ / oe =- 0£ <0$20° - 4 

k \ \) ~ / ~ ~ \ k ) J § k _ \ f 77 / / ®E } [ 5 E ~ $) 2 
± ~ t - u I o = e @ 5 e ~ . o ~ _ _ ~ _ ~ = o = ~ a 2o%c 2 c~ < « ~ 2 gOg»~~e_oo/o o« 

\ g ~ 2 § { ~ f ~ $ $ _ _ « ~ ~ _ > U ■ « ~ 
o = 2 _ _ ~ ~ o ~ 

-oo~c» ~ ~3~= ~_ §~ §_ £ E \ 5  ~f~~~/®&§E-~ ~~ 
: _ ~_ , % ~ o = c u ~ o u = u ~ ~ 0 0 0 ~ o ~ ~ ~ 2
~° ~ ~ E 2 2 2 G 2 7 Z 2 t ° o o J 7~~~] U 4§\~\~§ 

t o= t®§ ~°~ u c v o 0 o b o a z~ e~■~ u o~ U~~~~ 
f t]± t§ 3$%§ 2\ g@ o 0 0 o I c 2 0 <= 6 ~~~< ° U i~~ a=~ o « _ 0 ~ ~ ■ \ o ° o R © \ ° \ ~ % ■ / 5 _§ k # - ~ ~ ~ x ~ o - z 2 0 © _ ~.= 0 0 oq o g ~ ~ ~ ~ _ ~ 

~%~fE.E.$Sg2=«\/ §§§\§§E 2) f)~(~§§ 
~ \ » ~ k % 2 \ 2 R 2 R ° R S % ~ ~ ~ ~ § k K « $ q ~ E ■ k 0 § 
o s; 2 0 0= o z o o e o c u g n z z Q a U~= a a 2~ 2 ~>~ed>d>U>U>~>_> 
w w w ¥ a » > a www «57&36/Kb/// 

S 

1
6

. K
A

Y
A

K
 C

O
O

K
IE

S
 T

h
re

e
-m

o
n

th
 C

o
o

k
ie

 C
lu

b
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

17
. T

R
A

D
E

R
 J

O
E

'S
 G

ift
 b

a
s
k
e

t 

7 

\\ 

\} 

k\ 

7~ 

j/ 

\\ 

k) 
t 

{) 

)) 

7/ 

)~ 

}} 

){ 



U
ni

R
ue

 H
om

es
 fo

r 
U

ni
R

ue
 H

om
e 

O
w

ne
rs

 

E
co

lo
gi

ca
lly

 S
en

si
tiv

e,
 

G
R

E
E

N
 B

u
ild

e
rs

 b
y 

C
ho

ic
e 

T
el

. 5
0

8
-5

6
3

-9
3

9
3

 
E

m
a

il:
 P

M
a

rs
h

a
llK

@
a

o
l.c

o
m

 

w
w

w
.c

a 
p

e
ca

rp
e

n
tr

y.
co

m
 

~a 0 
~w 

ao 
d' 

Q 
0 } 

2̀ 
r 

0 

Q O L

W 
} 

2 a
C' 

O 

~' U 

W~ 
~~ 

O 

0 0 
~ ~ U 
O C 

~ Z N L 
w N 

~ ~ Q 

~ m ~ 

C ~ ~ 

W Q •~

~Q 
w 

L
U
N
C
H
 
•
D
I
N
N
E
R
 
•
C
O
C
K
T
A
I
L
S
 





z~ 
~~ £ a 

3 
I ~ / 

4/~ e ~ g>7 
)/9~~/ $~97k 
$~&>c2~abye> 
>2 %«/32»2res 
a/\y%Ga=ge\n 
=»Sego§=mu~ƒ 
g\g\2gu2+gmw 

e§~It= 
\%77/)$«§\7\ 
u~~a=<~n~e<a 

~ \ ) ( / . § _ ~. _ 

~ ~£tƒ?± 

~ ~ ± ~ / 2 ± 
~ ~ 6 ~ ~ ~ % § 
~ ~ / e E 2 2 ~ 
. \ / f  ~ / ~ / 

% ~~ .g ~- y .g @ t 
> ~ ~ ~ a E — .§ 

© e ® ~ ° » / u ~0 ~} .22 g ~ 

~ ~ 2 a ~ ~ ~ ~ ± ~ ~ e u 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ _ _~ / g t = t 
~ » / •E f ° ~ ( u — u \ 

# ~ ƒ k 5 k k 

~ k 
r$ . 7

~ k ~ < 

\ 

5
0
8
.
7
7
5
.
4
5
?
l
 

\ / 

,~ f \ 
~ ~ < 

~ ~ 2§/ 
~ ~ ) 7 E f 

. ~ _ 

~~ ~ ~ ~ § ~ 
~ ~ ~}S ~~ 

~ § a § ~ ~ ._ . ? \ ~ 

~ ~ k\/ \~ 

~ ~ ~ ~ O 
~ k ~ ~ 5 ~ 

§{} j h
y
a
n
n
is

a
n
im

a
lh

o
sp

it
a
l.

c
o
m

 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8e 
 

Authorizing the addition of: PA Landers; John Egan Co., Inc. and; Drizos 
Contracting, LLC to the Current List of Approved Tradespersons, utilized by the 
County and Barnstable County Towns 

  



COUNTY OF BARNSTABLE 
PURCHASING 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
SUPERIOR COURT HOUSE 

P.O. BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 
        February 5, 2019 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   County Commissioners 
FROM:   Elaine Davis, Chief Procurement Officer 
RE:  Approval of Pre-Qualified Vendors 
Changes to MA General Law through the Municipal Modernization Act allow for an awarding 
authority to procure a list of vendors for defined categories of trades work for individual 
construction projects that are estimated to cost between $10,000 and $50,000. Once a list of 
vendors has been approved, municipalities may use the list to solicit three quotes for each 
project engagement and award a contract to the responsive, responsible bidder offering the 
lowest price.  The Purchasing Division currently has a list of approximately sixty vendors 
which is utilized by the county and many of the towns.  The Purchasing Division recently 
re-bid a Request for Qualifications for additional bidders to be added to the list.   
 
Please approve the following list of vendors who have responded with all the necessary 
information and whose references have been satisfactory, to be added to the current list of 
approved tradespersons for the period of one year with two one-year options to renew. 
 
 

Vendor  Category 
 
PA Landers     Septic Services 
      Asphalt & Paving Services 
      General Contractor 
 
John Egan Co., Inc    Painters 
 
Drizos Contracting, LLC   General Contractor 
      Painting 
      Masonry 
       
 
Thank you. 
 
County Commissioners:  
 
_____________________                    _______________________            ____________________ 
Ronald R. Beaty, Jr.                Mary Pat Flynn                                 Leo Cakounes 
 
 
_______________________ 
Date 

Elaine Davis 
Chief Procurement Officer 
 

Phone: (508) 375-6637 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 

Email: 
edavis@barnstablecounty.org 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8f 
 

Authorizing the award of a contract to Agilent Technologies, Inc. for the supply 
and delivery of an Inductively Coupled Plasma Mass Spectrometry (ICP-MS) for 
the Health Lab at a cost of $108,761.54 

  



COUNTY OF BARNSTABLE 
PURCHASING 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
SUPERIOR COURT HOUSE 

P.O. BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 
 
 
        February 20, 2019 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   County Commissioners 
 
FROM:   Elaine Davis, Chief Procurement Officer 
 
RE:  Notice of Bid Award 
Barnstable County issued an Invitation for Bids for the supply and delivery of an Inductively 
Coupled Plasma Mass Spectrometry (ICP-MS) for the Health Lab.  Two bids were received by the 
deadline from Agilent Technologies, Inc and Fisher Scientific.  The bid from Fisher Scientific was 
incomplete and was deemed non-responsive.       
 
Please vote to award the contract to Agilent Technologies, Inc.  as the responsive, responsible 
bidder at a cost of $108,761.54.   
 
County Commissioners:  
 
 
_____________________                    _______________________            ____________________ 
Ronald R. Beaty, Jr.    Mary Pat Flynn                                 Ronald Bergstrom 
 
 
_______________________ 
Date 

Elaine Davis 
Chief Procurement Officer 
 

Phone: (508) 375-6637 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 

Email: 
edavis@barnstablecounty.org 



20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8g 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with Lawrence Lynch, Corp. for 
Miscellaneous Public Works for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of 
April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one (1) 
additional year 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Bams#able County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
Lawrence Lynch 
396 Gifford Street, PO Box 913 
Falmouth, MA 02541 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 11th day ofFebruary, 2019 by and between Lawrence 
Lynch, Corp. (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Mary Pat Flynn, Ronald Beaty and 
Ronak! Bergstrom as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal 
liability. 

1MTNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Miscellaneous Public works 
For Towns in Barnstable County 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
items highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Towns 
harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, unemployment compensation 
benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Contractorfiles such claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year. 

4. Payment. Bid pricing as submitted in their bid and as highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. !f through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County or Town shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under 
this Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either 
party shalt thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving written 
notice to the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date 
thereof. Such notice shall be given at least fifteen (15) calendar days before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and For reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 

7. Changes. The County or Towns may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of 



Services to be performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the 
amount of the Customer costs, which are mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, 
shall be incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimina#ion in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran status. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State statutes, 
rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited to: Title Vlt 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 1518§(1); the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and executive orders 
including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontractor delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. If this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly or indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation}, without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to 
become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other fnancial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7} years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 
All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. If this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-si#e audits, review and copying of records. 

14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 
by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 



not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Contract. 

i6. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used far any partisan political activity or to further the election ar defeat of any candida#e for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51°J° of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 
entities which directly ar indirectly own at least 51 °10 of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shalt be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction wi#hin the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a patty. All parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Force Majeure. Neither 
party 

shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 
penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractor's failure 

to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal 

funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal 
requirements including but not limited #o audit requirements. Not-far-Profit entities that receive 
federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 

convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Gantract. If any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 

to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 

and a!I claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any liability arising out 
of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



IN WETNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the year Two Thousand and Nineteen. 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABt.E COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

Ron Bergstrom 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ron Beaty 

Date 

FOIE THE CONTRACTOR: 

Christopher M. Lynch, President 

Februa 11, 2019 

Date 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Work under this Contract consists of providing various materials as described herein to the Towns of 
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Orleans, 
Provincetown, Sandwich, Truro, Wellfleet, and Yarmouth through an Agreement with the County of 
Barnstable. 

All Work done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the 1988 Massachusetts Highway 
Department (MassDOT} Standard Specifications far Highways and Bridges, the Supplemental Specifications, 
the 2005 Standard Special Provisions, the 2010 Construction Standard Details, and the 2409 Manual on 
Unifonn Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and these Special Provisions. The General Conditions and 
Special Provisions shall take precedence over the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

As noted on the Bid Form, steel price adjustments will be allowed for a limited camber of items. 

FOR ESTIMATED QUANTITIES SEE ATTACHMENT A 

WORK SCHEDULE 

The Contractor shall commence Work within ten {10} working days of receiving a Notice to Proceed from a 
Town. If the Contractor can not begin work within the ten {10) working days, that Town may order such 
services from such contractors as are available, and the Contractar shall reimburse that Town for all expenses 
incurred above the Contract Price. When needing work completed for those items that will be awarded to the 
two (2) lowest bidders, each Town shall first forward by a-mail or fax a Notice to Proceed to the lower of the 
two lowest bidders. If the lawest bidder does not schedule the work requested within forty-eight {48) hours 
of receiving the Notice to Proceed andlor can not begin (and remain at} work within ten (10) working days, 
then the Town shall have the right to forward a Notice to Proceed to the second low bidder. 

Work is restricted to a normal eight-hour day, five-day week, with Contractor and all subcontractors working 
on the same shift. 

No Work shall be done on this Contract on Saturdays, Sundays or holidays or on the day before or the day 
after a long weekend which involves a holiday without prior approval by the specific Town. 

OSHA REQUIREMENT 

Any employee found an the worksite without documentation of the successful completion of a course in 
construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
that is at least I O hours in duration shall be subject to immediate removal. OSHA certifications must be 
submitted with the certified payrolls for all workers during the first week they work on a project. 

PROGRESS 4F WORK 

The Contractor shall promptly start and continue actual construction work under this Contract with the 
necessary equipment to properly execute and complete this Contrac# in the specified time. No cessation of 
Contractor's operations will be allowed without the approval of the Engineer. The rate of progress shall be 
satisfactory to that Town and the Engineer. The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer a schedule for the 
Work prior to the start of construction. 

SP-1 



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THE FIELD 

The Contractor shall keep a copy of the Contract Documents at the work site at all times while work is being 
performed and said copy is to be available to those in charge of work. 

POLICE SERVICES 

Each Town shall provide alI Town paIice services at no cost to the Contractor to direct traffic when such 

protection is required by that Town's Police Department. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
contacting and scheduling police services with the Police Department. If the Contractor must cancel police 
services, he must do so within the time limits set by the Police Department. If the Contractor does not cancel 
police services within the time limits, then Contractor shall be responsible to promptly pay the minimum 
required amount. 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE 

The Contractor shall be required without additional compensation to provide safe and convenient access to all 
abutters during the prosecution of the Work. 

No excavation shall be left open during non-working hours. 

MSDS sheets and information shall be available on site and copies submitted to a Town as requested. 

NECESSARY ACCESS FOR FIRE APPARATUS AND OTHER EMERGENCY VEHICLES SHALL BE 
MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE POLICE 
AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS AT ALL TIMES REGARDING ACCESS. 

For the protection of life and property, all backfill operations shall follow closely behind completed work. 
The Contractor shall insure that no excavation be Ieft open, unguarded, or water f lied during any period of 
time when work is not actually in progress. It is the purpose and intent that all excavations and backfill, 
including consolidation operations, and temporary surfacing within an area be accomplished expeditiously 
before proceeding to other work areas. 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws, regulations and Guidelines of any public body {example: 
OSHA, DIGSAFE, MassDOT Work Zane Safety Guidelines, Police) having jurisdiction for the safety of 
persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or lass; and shall erect and maintain all necessary 
signs/ safeguards for such safety and protection at no extra cost to the Owner. See General Conditions also. 

CLEANUP

Cleanup shall be done on a daily basis. At the end of each working period, the Contractor shall completely 
backfill all holes and trenches, and remove all equipment from the traveled way. The Contractor shall ensure 
that all safety marking and warning devices are satisfactorily in place prior to leaving any job. 

During the course of the Work, the Contractor shall keep the site of his operations in as clean and neat 
condition as is possible. He shall dispose of all residue resulting from the construction work and, at the 
conclusion of the work, he shall remove and haul away any surplus excavation, broken pavement, lumber, 
equipment, temporary structures, and any other refuse remaining from the construction operations, and shall 
leave the entire site of the work in a neat and orderly condition. 

SP-2 



Sweeping and cleaning of surfaces beyond the limits of the Project to clean up material caused by spillage or 
vehicular tracking during the various phases of the work shall be considered as incidental to the Work being 
performed under the Contract and there will be no additional compensation. 

EMERGENCY CONTACTS 

The Contractor shall maintain a 24-hour, 7-day a week telephone service and a local facility to handle 
emergency requirements such as settled trenches, clogged drains, rain damage, work zone safety issues, etc. 
A List of personnel {minimum of two) and their telephone numbers shall be submitted to the Engineer, the 
Highway Superintendent (or his designee}, the Public Works Director and to the local Police and Fire 
Departments. This requirement shall apply during the entire length of the Project. or Service for each Town 
where work is being completed. This list shall be submitted on the Contractor's letterhead and shall state that 
should an emergency arise during the implementation of this Projector Service, these people are to be 
contacted. The Contractor shall submit this letter to the Engineer prior to initiating construction, The 
Highway Superintendent for each Town or his designee has the right to determine whether or not an 
emergency exists and to require Contractor to promptly resolve the emergency at no cost to that Tawn. If 
Contractor can not respond in a timely manner as determined by the Highway Superintendent, the Town has 
the right to complete the necessary work and to bill Contractor for that work. 

DIGSAFE

The Contractor shall notify "iVlass. DIG SAFE" and the Local Water Department or District and procure a 
DIG SAFE number of each location prior to disturbing ground in any way. 

"DIG-SAFE" Call Center: Telephone 1-SS&344-7233 

Commonwealth Electric has a policy regazding the location of electric utilities. Dig-Safe can no longer be 
relied upon to locate electric utilities that are "privately" owned. This can include electric cables located in 
Public ways that run from utility poles to buildings. It is therefore incumbent upon Contractor to ascertain if 
any electric cables are located in any area prior to excavation. This will be done at Contractor's expense. 

The Contractor shall make his own investigation to assure that no damage to existing structures, drainage 
lines, traffic signal conduits, and other utilities will occur as a result of his operations 

PROTECTION OF UTILITIES AND PROPERTY 

The Contractor, in constructing or installing facilities alongside or neaz sanitary sewers, stoml drains, water 

or gas pipes, electric or telephone conduits, poles, sidewalks, walls, vaults or other structures shall, at his 

expense, sustain them securely in place, cooperating with the officers and agents of the various utility 
companies and municipal departments which control them, so that the services of these structures shall be 

maintained. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the repair or replacement, at his own expense, of 

any damage to such structures caused by his acts or neglect, and shall Ieave them in the same condition as 

they existed prior to commencement of the Work. In case of damage to utilities, the Contractor shall 

promptly notify the utility owner and shall, if requested by the Engineer, furnish labor and equipment to work 
temporarily under the owner's direction in providing access to the utility. Pipes or other structures damaged 

by the operation of the Contractor may be repaired by the municipality or by utility owner which suffers the 

loss. The cost of such repairs shall be borne by the Contractor, without compensation therefor. 

SP-3 



If, as the Work progresses, it is found that any of the utility structures are so placed as to render it 

impracticable, in the judgment of the Engineer, to do the Work called for under this Contract, the Contractor 

shall protect and maintain the services in such utilities and structures and the Engineer will, as soon thereafrer 
as reasonable, cause the position of the utilities to be changed or take such other actions deemed suitable and 

proper. 

If live service connections are to be interrupted by excavations of any kind, the Contractor shall not break the 

service until new services are provided. Abandoned services shall be plugged off or otherwise made secure. 

Full compensation for furnishing alI labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals for doing all the work 

involved in protecting or repairing property as specified in this section, shall be considered included in the 

prices paid for the various Contract items of Work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 

PROVISIONS FOR TRAVEL AND PROSECUTION OF THE WORK 

For the items that require traffic control, the Contractor shall supply and use traffic control devices, 
positioning and methodology, conforming with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
and MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines at no additional cost to any Town. Traffic control devices 

required only during working hour operations shall be removed at the end of each working day. Signs having 
messages that are irrelevant to normal traffic conditions shall be removed or properly covered at the end of 
each work period. Signs shall be kept clean at all times and Iegends shall be distinctive and unmarred. 

Particular caze should be taken to establish and maintain methods and procedures which will not create 
unnecessary or unusual hazards to public safety. 

WORK DONE BY OTHERS 

Relocation and/or resetting to new grades of all private utilities, including utility poles, made necessary by 
the construction of this Project, will be accomplished by the respective utility companies. 

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS MATERIALS 

All materials not required or needed for use on the Project, and not required to be removed and stacked, shall 
become the property of the CONTRACTOR and shall be removed from the site and legally disposed of. No 
separate payment will be made for this Work, but all casts in connection therewith shall be included in the 
prices bid for various Contract items. 

COMPACTION

Compaction of filled areas under pavement (no matter what type of fzll material} shall be completed in 6" 
lifts. Compaction of filled areas elsewhere (no matter what type off 11 material) shall be completed in 12" 
Iifrs. Appropriate compaction equipment shall be used. 

PROPERTY BOUNDS 

Any bounds or markers flagged by a Town and disturbed by the Contractor shall be replaced utilizing the 
services of a Registered Land Surveyor. The cost of replacing flagged bounds or markers disturbed by the 
Contractor's operations shall be at the Contractor's expense. 

WEIGHING 

SP-4 



All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery and the 
weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may provide use of its 
scale and require gross weights and vehicle tare weights verified at time of delivery. 

SP-5 



ITEM 100 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 
ITEM 101 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR STOP BARS &CROSSWALKS 
ITEM 102 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR ARROWS &MISCELLANEOUS 
MARKINGS 

The Work shall include the furnishing and installing of alkyd traffic paint modified with chlorinated rubber 
and glass beads conforming to Section M7 of the Standard Specifications. The white or yellow reflectorized 
traffic paint shall comply with Section 860 of the Standard Specifications. 

Low VOC Chlorinated Rubber Traffsc Paint 

The durable, fast drying, Alkyd modified with chlorinated rubber traffic paint shall conform to the current 
V.O.C. regulations and the following: 

Composition White Yellow (lead freel 
Vehicle % by wt. 40-43 40-43 
Pigment % by wt. 57-80 57-60 
Total Solids % by wt. 74 min 74 min 
Total Solids % by vol. 50 min SO min 
V.O.C. grams/liter 150 max i 50 max 
Titanium dioxide rutile (type II) 1 lb/gal min .3 lbs/gal min 
Organic yellow pigment {lead free) n/a .2S lbs/gal min 
Chlorinated rubber .5 lbs/gal min .S lbs/gal min 

Detailed Requirements 
WUGaI 12.5 +/_,2 12.1 +/-.2 
Viscosity K.U. 75-85 75-85 
Dry Time 1 S mils wet film 10 max ] 0 max 
@ 77 F Minutes 
Dry Opacity @ 15 mils wet .96 min .9b min 
Reflectance 84 min 50 min 
Grind 3 min 3 min 
CC Flash Point (F) {-4 F) min (-4 F) min 

The application rates shall be 1 gallon of paint and 5 pounds of beads per 3201inear feet of 4" wide line. 

Application Conditions 

Temperature: 50°F (10°C) minimum, 1 IO°F (43°C} maximum (air, surface, and material} and at least 5°F 
(2.8°C} above dew point 
Relative humidity: 85%maximum 

Equipment

The Contractor shall supply 1 long Iine spray truck, manufactured with stainless steel components to properly 
apply alkyd traffic paint modified with chlorinated rubber, capable of applying solid lines in a sharp and true 
manner. The unit must have a minimum paint tank capacity of 400 gallons and a minimum bead truck 
capacity of 2,000 pounds. The long line spray truck must be capable of producing an acceptable 4" wide 
single or double line at the application rate of 5 pounds of beads and 320 lineal feet per one gallon of paint 
while traveling at a minimum of 7 miles per hour. 

SP-6 



The Contractor shall supply 1 cone truck (rack body with hydraulic tail gate} with 300 cones. 

The above units shall include protective devices and warning signs for the painting operation. Each unit shall 
be radio controlled with a portable unit available for the Highway Division lead truck. 

The Contractor shall supply 2 operating personnel for the spray truck and 3 cone setters/retrieverpersormel 
for the traffic cone setting truck. 

The Contractor will place traffic cones on ail freshly painted lines to reduce tracking. 

Contractor Responsibilities 

The Contractor shall complete the painting as indicated herein, subject to weather conditions, such as wet or 
extremely cold pavement. The Contractor shall have backup equipment available to him in the event of a 
breakdown. 

The Contractor shall have a supervisor or foreman available to direct operations. The supervisor or foreman 
will report to the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee, any problem, as well as, give daily 
progress reports. 

The Contractor must show by past performance that he is capable of performing a Contract of this magnitude. 

On new road surfaces, the Contractor shall pre-mark the centerlines and foglines, as needed, at no 
additional cost to the Town. 

Measurement and Payment 

The measured quantity for 4" Reflectorized Line and 12" Stop Bars and Crosswalks will be paid at the 
Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The measured quantity for Arrows and Miscellaneous Markings will be 
paid at the Contract Unit Price per Square Foot, which price shall include ail labor, equipment, materials and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 103 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 
ITEM 104 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR STOP BARS &CROSSWALKS 
ITEM 105 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR ARROWS &MISCELLANEOUS MARHINGS 

The Work under these items shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 8b0 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

Material used and method of installation shall conform with the relevant provisions of Subsection M7, 
M7.01.03, M7.01.04, M7.01.18, and 860 of the Standard Specifications. All dimensions and spacing shall be 

as directed by the Engineer. 

The Contractor shall install all pavement markings at locations as directed by the Engineer. On new road 
surfaces, the Contractor shall pre-mark the centerlines and foglines, as needed, at na additional cost to 
the Town. 

Measurement and Payment 

SP-7 



The measured quantity for 4" Reflectorized Line and 12" Stop Bars and Crosswalks will be paid at the 

Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and incidental 

costs required to complete the Work. The measured quantity for Arrows and Miscellaneous Markings will be 

paid at the Contract Unit Price per Square Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and 

incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 146 EPDXY PAINT FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 

Work under these items cover white and yellow epoxy reflectorized pavement marking material that is 
sprayed onto the pavement. Immediately Following this, a surface application of glass beads is applied. The 
work, materials, and methods of installation under these items shall conform to the relevant provisions of 
Sections 860 and subsection M7 of the Standard Specifications. and the following: 

The epoxy marking material shall be two-component (Part A and Part B}, ] 00% solids type system 
formulated and designed to provide a simple volumetric mixing ratio (e.g. two volumes of Part A to one 
volume of Part B). 

Part A of both white and yellow shall conform to the following requirements: 

Percent by weight: 

WHITE Pigment - 18 Minimum, Titanium Dioxide {ASTM D476, Type II} Epoxy Resin -
75 to 82 

YELLOW Figment - 18 Minimum, Titanium Dioxide (ASTM D476, Type II) 5 Minimum, Organic 
Yellow, Epoxy Resin -- 73 to 77 

The entire pigment composition shall consist of either titanium dioxide or titanium dioxide and organic 
yellow. No extender pigments are permitted. Yellow pigment shall be lead-free. 

The work of these items shall only be performed when atmospheric and surface temperatures are 40'F higher 

All dimensions and spacing shall be as directed by the Engineer. 

The measured quantity for Epoxy Paint far 4" Reflectorized Lines will be paid at the Contract Unit Price per 
Linear Foot, which price shall include all labor, materials and incidental costs required to complete the work.. 

ITEM 147 PAVEMENT MARKING REMOVAL 

The Work under this section shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 850.67 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following. Existing pavement markings shall be removed to the fullest extent possible 
by an approved method. Pavement removal methods shall not cause damage to the pavement or cause drastic 
change in texture, which could be construed as delineation at night, and shall be approved by the Town. It is 
not permissible to paint over existing markings with black paint in lieu of removal. Approved methods 
include but are not limited to: 

1. High pressure air. 
2. High pressure water (cold weather use not permitted). 
3. Sand blasting. 
4. Mechanical devices such as grinders, sanders, scrapers, scarifters, and wire brushes. 

SP-8 



Painting over a pavement marking by use of asphaltic liquids or paints will not be permitted. Conflicting 
pavement markings shall be removed before any change in the traffic pattern. 
Material deposited on the pavement as a result of removing markings shall be removed as the work 
progresses. Accumulations of sand or other material, which might interfere with drainage or could constitute 
a hazard to traffic, will not be permitted. 

Any damage to the pavement or surfacing caused by pavement marking removal shall be satisfactorily 
repaired at no additional cost to the Town. 

Where the removal operation is being performed near a lane occupied by traffic, a vacuum attachment 
operating concurrently with the removal operation must be in use. AlI residues shall be removed immediately 
from the surface being treated. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Foot which price shall include 
all labor, equipment, vacuuming, sweeping, hauling, disposing, and incidental costs required to complete the 
Work. 

ITEM 108 DRAINAGE PIPE CLEANING 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage pipes. Work under this item shall be 
performed under the direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage pipe cleaning will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Day {8 working hours exclusive of 
travel time} broken down as follows: 

* Drainage pipe cleaning performed between ~ and 4 hours wilt be paid for at half the Contract Unit 
Price per Day. 

* Drainage pipe cleaning performed for a period greater than 4 hours will be paid for at a proportion of 
the full Contract Unit Price per Day. 

The Contract Unit Price per Day shall include all labor, equipment, transportation and incidental costs 
required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal disposal of 
hazardous material. 

ITEM 109 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY CLAMSHELL (WITH DISPOSAL) 

'The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 

complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 

direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially {95°fo) 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted far approval by 

the Town Engineer or his designee. 

The contractor shall be responsible for stockpile area management including confinement of debris, erosion 

control, loading, and removal of the debris. The contractor shall provide documentation of proper disposal to 

the town as a condition of payment. The contractor shall be responsible for any testing costs required for legal 

disposal of the catch basin cleanings. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to contact each Town and 

SP-9 



determine if a staging and stockpile area is available on town property or if the contractor will have to make 

alternative arrangements for a legal stockpile area. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 

costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 

disposal of hazazdous material. 

ITEM I10 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY CLAMSHELL (Wi0 DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures, Work under this item shall 
be performed under the direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his 
designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially {95%} 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Town Engineer or his designee. 

The town shall provide the contractor an area to dump the catch basin cleanings. The town will manage the 
stockpile area and Iegally dispose of the debris. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of ha~ardaus material. 

ITEM 111 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY VACUUM TRUCK {WITH DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Wark also includes the 
complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 
direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%} 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Highway Division Superintendent. 

The contractor shall be responsible for stockpile area management including confinement of debris, erosion 
control, loading, and removal of the debris. The contractor shall provide documentation of proper disposal to 
the fawn as a condition of payment. The contractor shall be responsible for any testing costs required for legal 
disposal of the catch basin cleanings. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to contact each Town and 
determine if a staging and stockpile area is available on town property or if the contractor will have to make 
alternative arrangements for a legal stockpile area. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 112 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY VACUUM TRUCK (W/0 DISPOSAL 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 
complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 
direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

SF-10 



Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially {95%) 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Highway Division Superintendent. 

The town shall provide the contractor an area to dump the catch basin cleanings. The town will manage the 
stockpile area and legally dispose of the debris. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 113 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE ADJUSTED 

The Work under this item shall consist of the adjustment of utility castings for overlays and minor 
reconstruction where said adjustment is no greater than 6 inches (rise or fall) from existing line and grade and 
shall conform to the relevant provisions of Sections 201, 202, and 220 of the Standazd Specif cations and the 
following: 

The Contractor shall maintain the drainage (or sewer) system in the project areas or drainage facilities outside 
the project area affected by the work performed by the Contractor to providw continual drainage of the 
travelways and construction areas. All drainage (or sewer) castings required to be raised to accommodate 
pavement overlays shall be paid for under this item. 

When in the judgment of the Engineer, the masonry below the casting shows deterioration and directs the 
contractor to remodel, the pay item shall be by the vertical foot and the cost per vertical foot as measured 
from the bottom of the existing casting, shall be paid as described in Item 108 Drainage Structure Rebuilt. 

Clay brick conforming to Subsection M4.05.2 of the Standazd Specifications shall be used to make grade 
adjustments of structure frames. 

Any castings damaged due to the Contractor's operations shall be replaced with similar H-20 North 
American made cast iron castings at no cost to the Town. 

A structure adjusted more than once by the Contractor, due to his plan of operation, will be paid for only 
once regardless of how many adjustments are made to the structure. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. No separate payment will be made for the maintenance of the existing 
drainage (or sewer) system, but all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the unit prices bid far 
the various Contract items. 

ITEM 114 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE REBUILT 

This item applies to the complete rebuilding of an existing structure and includes new masonry 
construction, backfilling around structures and other incidental work and shall conform to the relevant 
provisions of Sections 201 and 220 of the Standard Specifcations and the following: 

The Work shall consist of rebuilding, removing, replacing and adjusting the masonry units and adjusting 
the castings of existing structures. The casting and deteriorated masonry shall be removed in a neat manner 

SP-11 



THIS PAGE IS TO BE USED AS ThiE COVER OF YOUR BID 
CERTIFICATE of NON-COLLUSION AND TAX COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter 62C, Section 49A, i certify under the penalties of perjury that I, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with a!l laws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and 

remitting child support. 

I certify under the penalfies of perjury that this bid/proposal has been made and submitted in good 

faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certificate, the word 

"person" shalt mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, club 

or other legal organization, entity or group of individuals. 

Company:  Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 

Address: 396 Gifford Street 

Falmouth, MA 02540 

Signature of Individual Si 

Bid, or Corporate Officer. `.J\..~ 1 \ t 1 \ ~'\~—'~, 

Telephone Number. _ (508) 548-1800 

Social Security Number 

Or Federal Identification Number: 

Date:  January 24, 2019 

OI-0807936 

My parson or aorporatlon whkh tailst to execute this document 

will be coasldared a non•ranporoive bkidar 

and rrllt bs rejected pursuant to ~ilGl. Chapter 30, 39M. 

BF-S-



Chelres Q 87Uer Governer 
l47r~n E Pdrtc. Ucutcnant Goacmor 
Siepliarvc PcVLick, Scsrcyary 5 CfC7 

Jonvr+an L G,utkrcc tiigtrnay Adrnb~6a~[or 

EAWRENCE LYNCH CARP 

PO 130X 913 

FALMOUTH, MA 02541-0913 

Dear Contractor. 

~~~ 
usetET Oeparernerh of TTaRlatlrfaSlol! 

ghway t?hris7on 

January 03, 2819 

Praqualification Certificaia No LD3U-4? 

In accordance with the Raguiatlans Governing Pzequalification of Contractors,. as approved by the Massachusetts tepartment of 
Transportation Prequalifx~tion Committee, you arc hereby notified that the following class{es} of worts and Slagle Contract Limits 
(it applicable} have been assigned to you as of the date of this letter. !fin the opinion of the Cammittec you failed to submit 
proper documentation or have not demonstrated the abr'kty to perfonn alt dosses of work requested then you were denied 
Prequalification Status far that datss(es} of work. 

Qualified Class of Work Umit Amount Qualified Class of Work !.knit Amount 

Bridge - Canstauctbn 34,11 A~,000 00 t3ridge -Culverts s1,so4,004.44 
Bridge -Deck Repairs 31,s0o~o44.40 Darn Constnrction 53,000,004.00 
Demolition 38,040,000.OD Drainage 37,500,000.W 
Highway -Bike Paths 317,200,000.00 Highway - Canswction s17,24a,go0.04 
Highway -Sidewalk And Curbing 517.200,000..00 Pavement -Milling And Catd Planing SS,4ao,oai,o4 
Pavement - Surf ing 38,000,000.00 Recreation Facilities 54,930,000.00 
Sewer and Water S'7,500,000. QO 

Bonding Capacity 5200,000,040.00 bond Single Limit 5120,000,000.40 Expiration Date 51318019 

The class{es} of worts, Single Contract Limits and Aggregate Bonding Capacity set fotih will continue in effect until May 31, 2019 
unless previously modified or rescinded in accordance with the Regulations, or by law. In order to tai continuousty eligible to bid 
on projects to be undertaken far this Department, your next Prequatification Statement should be subrrdtted at least 30 days prior 
to expiration of this Certificate. N there are any quesifons or concerns, contact the Prequalification Department of {857} 368-8660 
or email to prequal.r109(~state.ma.us. 

Very ' y yours, 
THE flUALIF ~ CgMMItTEE 

By. ~ " ' ~ 
lsidora De.lesus Pe 
Dirac w ' -Office at Construction Prequalificetion i 
Ret•F a'- 8 Procedures 



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLAI~iEOUS PUBLIC WORKS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED BCD QUANTITIES 

Each Town has provided estimated quantities for each bid item that it presently intends to order. These 

estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. The estimated amounts are also a 

total aggregate which the town intends to use during the contract period and the bidder should famiiiarize 

themselves with the minimum job quantities defined in the individual specifications far each item. 

HID FORM 

BID IDENTIFICATION: MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS FOR HIGHWAYS 

(UNIT PRICE WORK} 

THIS BID iS SUBMITTED TO: 
(Name and Address Office of the County Commissioners 
of Owner) Superior Court House 

P.O. Box 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02b30 

1. The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if the Bid is accepted to enter into an Agreement with 

the County, to complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract 
Unit Frices during the contract period of April I, 2019 to March 31, 2020, with the option to renew 
for one additional one near period and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

2. BIDDER accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders. This Bid will remain 
open far sixty (ti0}days after the day of Bid opening. BIDDER will sign the Agreement and submit 
other documents {e.g. Bonds, Insurance Binders} required by the Contract Documents within five {5) 
working days after the date of the County's Notice of Award. 

3. In submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that: 

3.I BIDDER has examined copies of all the Contract Documents and of 
the following addenda: 

N/A 

Date Number 
Date  Number 

{receipt of $11 of which is hereby acknowledged} and also copies of the Notice to 
Bidders and the Instructions to Bidders. 

3.? BIDDER has examined the legal requirements {federal, state and local Iaws, by-laws, rules and 
regulations} and the conditions affecting cost, progress of performance of the Work and has 
made such independent investigations as BIDDER deems necessary. 

3.3 This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm 
or corporation, and is pat submitted inconformity with any agreement or rules of any group, 
association, organization or corporation; BIDDER has not directly ar indirectly induced or 
solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; BIDDER has not solicited or induced 

BF- 1 - 



any person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding; and BIDDER has not sought by 
collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or over the County. 

4. BIDDER will complete all the Work assigned for the unit prices}listed in the Bid Form. 

5. The following documents are attached to and made a condadon of this Bid: 

5.1 A tabulation of Subcontractors and other persons or organizations required to be identified in 
this Bid. 

6. Communications concerning this Bid shall be addressed to: 

Company Name: Lawrence-Lynch_ Carp. 

Address: 396 Gifford Street, Falmouth, MA 

Telephone No.:  (508) 548-1800 

Fax No.: (508)548-6917 

02540 

E-mail Address: _ clynch@lawrea:celynch.com 

Bidder's Contact Person: = Christopher M. Lynch _ , 

7. Bid comparison will be based on each item unit price provided for each Town. Bidders may bid on any 
or all items for any or all Towns listed. Bid selection will be by each item by Town and will be based 
on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each Town. 

8. It is the intent to award ■.:.contract to the two {2) lowest, qualifed, responsible, and responsive 
bidders for Bid Items IIS it 12Z. 

9. The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this $id is in all respects bona fide, fair and 
made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this paragraph, the word "person" 
shall mean any natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal entity. 

10. The undersigned also certifies: that he is able to furnish Iabor that can work in harmony with all other 
elements of labor employed or to be emplaycd in the work; and, that all employees ai the worksite will 
have successfully completed a course in constraciion safety and health approved by the United States 
t~ccupational Safety and Health Adminisirafion that is at least 14 hours in duration at the time the 
employee begins work and who shall famish documentation of successful completion of said course 
with the first certified payroll report far each employee. 

SUBMITTED on  lanuary 24 , 2019 . 

BF- 2 - 



An IndividaAt 

$Y_........~ __ ~ {SEAL) 
(Individual's Name and Signature} 

doing business as 

$usiness address: 

Phone No.: 

$y {SEAL} 
(Firth Name} 

(General Partner Name and Signature) 

Business address: 

Phone No.: .. 



A CarnoratiQn 

By Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 

By 

(Corporation Name) 

MA 

(Name of person' i~.horized t~r,~'f~n i~;Signatwe) 
Christnghcr M. Lynch, President 

(Corporate Seal} 

Attest  ~ '#1~L~ [~' ~` -~-fit_.. 
[hrris Christiani 

Business address:  396 Gifford Street 

(Secretary} 

Falmouth, MA 02540 

Phone No.: 

A Joint Vcature 

(508} 548-1800 

By_ _  _ 
(Name and Signature) 

(Address) 

By _ 
{Name and Signatwe) 

(Address) 

(Each joint veniwe must sign. The manner of signing far each individual, partnership and corporation that is 
party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above. 

BF- 4 



BID FORM 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS 

{UNIT PRICE WORK) 

State the unit bid price (written in words and in numerals} for each Town listed. See Attachment A far 

estimated quantities. Bidders may wish to contact each Tawn to obtain actual quantities purchased during 

prior years. Bidders may hid on any yr all items for any or all Towns. Bid selection will be by each item and 

wil! be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid far each item far each Tawn. 

Price Adia9hnents: The Massachusetts Department of Transportaiian (MassDOT) method for calculating 

price adjustments due to cast fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel fuel, gasoline, and 
structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Steel adjustment shall apply to all items captaining steel. No 
other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Steel price adjustment shall be based on the difference between the respective prices at the time of the 
bid (base bid price) and the prices an the date the work is performed. The Steel base bid price shall be the 
prices posted an the MassDOT Website for the month of December, 2018. 

Two Lowest Bidders: It is ties intent to award s contract to the two {2} lowest, qualified, respaeesible, 
aced e•esponsive bidders ilia Bid Items 115 tp 122. When needing work completed for each of these items, 
each Tawn shall first forward by a-mail yr fax a Notice to Proceed to the lower of the two lowest bidders. If 
the lowest bidder dues not schedule the work requested within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving the Notice 
tv Proceed and/or cannot begin {and remain at} work within ten {lU) working days, then the Town shall have 
the right to forward a Notice to Proceed to the second !ow bidder. 

Tied Bids: In tlee case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the awarded bidder. 

MussDOT Preae,alification: Items highlighted and noted with an asterisk require vendors is be prequalified 
by MassDOT. 

BF-6-



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BiD 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 100 

Town 

Estimated 
Quantity 

Barnstable 2,000,000 

Bourne 200,000 

Brewster 600,Q00 

Dennis 300,000 

Harwich 1,000,000 

Orleans 374,398 

Sandwich 150,000 

~Ne1tNe~ 100,000 

Yarmcuth 500,000 

Item 101 

Town 

Estimated 

Quantity 

8~:, nstabte 32,000 

Saurne 2,000 

Brewster 5,000 

Dennis 500 

Orleans 1,200 

Sandwich 1,500 

Yarmouth 

Item 102 

Town 

500 

Estimated 

Quantity 

Barnstable 11,250 

Bourne 500 

Brewster 3,004 

Orleans 3,500 

Yarmouth 500 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for 4" 

Refiedorized Lines 

unit Bid Price !n Words 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for Stop Bars & 

Crosswalks 

unit Bid Price in Wards 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for Arrows & 

Miscellaneous Markings 

Unit Btd Price in Words 

Per LF 

to Numerals 

Per LF 

to Numerals 

Per SF 

In Numerals 

BF-



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBUC WORKS BID 

BIO FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 103 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Thermoplastic Paint for 4" Refledorized lines Per LF 

Tawn Unh Bld Price In Words !n Numerals 

9arnstable 28,000 

Bourne 25,000 

Dennis 80,000 

Harwich 25,000 

Item 104 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Thermoplastic Paint for Stop Bars &Crosswalks per LF 

Town Unit 81d Price In Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 500 

eaurne 1,000 

Dennis 2,000 

Harwich 600 

eilElaet 600 

Item 105 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Thermoplastic Paint for Anows & Miscellaneous 

Markings 
Per SF 

Tawn Un/t Bld Price In Words In NumeroJs 

Barnstable 500 

Bourne 500 

Dennis 300 

Harwich 30 

Item 106 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Fpoxy Paint for 4" Refiectarized Lines Per LF 

Tow» Un)t Bid Price In Words /n Numerals 

Barnstable 4,000 

Bourne 2,000 

Dennis 300,000 

BF- g 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 107 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Pavement Marking Removal Per SF 

Town Unit Bid Price !n Words !n Numerafs 

Barnstable 10,000 

Bourne 5,000 

Chatham 200 

Dennis 5,000 

Frovincetown 200 

Sandwich 35,000 

item 108 
Estimated 

quantity 
Drainage Pipe Cleaning Per DAY 

Tnrvn Unit Bid Price fn Words !n Numerals 

Brewster 5 

Dennis 3 

Sandwich 3 

Yarmouth 3 

Item 109 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Drainage Structure Cleaning By Ciarnsheli 

(wjDlsposalj 
Per EA 

Town Unit eld Price in Wards !n Numerols 

eamstabie 2,000 

Brewster 900 

Chatham 200 

Dennis 1,300 

Frovincetawn 200 

Sandwich 50 

Yarmouth 100 

Item 120 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Drainage Structure Cleaning By Clamshell (wjo 

Disposal) 
Per EA 

Town Unir eld Price Jn Words !n Numerols 

BF-



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBUC WORKS t3ID 

B10 FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 1.3,1 
Estimated 

Quan#ity 

Drainage Structure Cleaning By Vaccuum Truck 

{w/Oisposai} 
Per EA 

Town Unfr 8fd Frfce Jn Words fn Numerols 

Barnstable 2,000 

Brewster SO 

Chatham 200 

Bennis 100 

Provincetown 200 

Sandwich 40 

Yarmauth 100 

Item 112 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Drainage Structure Cleaning sy Vaccuum Truck (w/v 

Disposal} 
Per EA 

Tow» Unfr 81d Prfre fn Words fn Numerals 

Harwich S00 

~A+elltieet 30 

Item 113 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Drainage Structure Adjusted Per EA 

Town Unit Bid Price Jn Words fn Numerals 

Bamstabie 100 Five Hundred Fifty-Two Dollars and No Cents $ 552.00 

Brewster 50 Five Hundred Ninety-Eight Dollars and No Cents $ 598.00 

Chatham 20 Six Hundred Nineteen Dollars and No Cents $ 619A0 

Dennis 25 Five Hundred Seventy-Eight Dollars and No Cents $ 578.00 

Provincetowa 20 Six Hundred Forty-Six Dollars and No Cents $ 646.00 
Sandwich 20 Five Hundred Sixty-Two Dollars and No Cents $ 562.00 
Yarmouth 50 Five Hundred Fifty-Two Dollars and No Cents $ 552A0 

8F- j0 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLlC WORKS BlD 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 1i4 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Drainage Structure Rebuilt Per VF 

Town Unif Bid Price !n Words to Numemis 

Barnstable 25 Seven Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars and No Cents $ 775.00 

Brewster 50 Eight Hundred Dollars and No Cents $ 800.00 

Chatham 20 Eieht Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and No Cents $ 825.00 

Dennis 20 Seven Hundred Ninety Dollars and No Cents $ 795.00 

Provincetown 20 
Eight Hundred Thirty Dollars and No Cents $ $30.00 

Sandwich 10 Seven Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars and No Cents $ 775.00 

Yarmouth 20 Seven Hundred Sixty Dollars and No Cents $ 760.00 

Item 115 

Town 

eamstabie 

Estimated 

Quantity 

300 

Qennis 400 

Harwlth 500 

Qrleans 750 

Sandwich 100 

Yarmouth 

Item 116 

Tawn 

200 

Estimated 

Quantity 

Barnstable 4,0{}0 

Dennis 400 

Harwich 500 

Sandwich 100 

Yarmouth 200 

Steel Beam (Weathering) Highway Guardrail Single 
Faced/Wood Pasts} 

tJnlf Bid Price !n Wards 

Stee! Beam (Weathering} Highway Guardrail (Single 

Faced/Wood Posts) (Including Removal and Stacking 

of Existing Guardrail} 

Unit Sid Arlce fn Words 

Per LF 

in Nut7te: als 

Per LF 

!n Numerals 

BF-l! 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

ttent 217 

Town 

Barnstable 

Estimated 

Quantity 

75 

Dennis 10 

Harwich 10 

Sandwich 5 

Yarmouth 

Item 13.8 

town 

Barnstable 

4 

Estimated 
Quantity 

500 

Bourne 300 

Sandwich 

Item 119 

Town 

Barnstable 

ioa 

Estimated 

Quantity 

300 

Brewster 250 

Dennis 240 

Sandwich 100 

~Weltfleet 1,500 

Yarmouth 

Item 120 

Tarvn 

Barnstable 

200 

Estimated 
Quantity 

200 

Bourne 200 

Dennis 150 

Orleans 275 

Sandwich 100 

Steel Beam (Weathering) Highway Guardrail-Terminal 

End 

Unit Bid Price Irt Words 

Steel Beam Highway Guardrail (Single Faced/Wood 

Pasts] 

UnFr Bid Price in Words 

Steel-Backed Timber Guardrail 

Unit 8fd Price )n Words 

Wooden Guardrail 

Unit 8Id Price In Words 

Fer F.A 

in Numerals 

Pet LF 

!n Numerals 

Per LF 

in Numerals 

Per LF 

in Numerals 

BF•~~ 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBItC WORKS BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 121 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Granite Curb Type VB-Straight Per LF 

Town Unit Sid Price in Wards !n Numerals 

Barnstable 300 Fifty-Seven Dollars and Sixty Cents S 57.60 

Bourne 300 Fifty-Seven Dollars and Sixty Cents S 57.60 

Brewster 250 Sixty Dollars and No Cents 5 64.44 

Chatham 50 Seventy-Six Dollars and Eighty Cents S 76.00 
Dennis 300 

Sixty-Three Dollars and No Cents S 63.00 
Pravincetown 50 

Eighty-Fear Dollars and No Cents $ s4.44 
Sandwich SD Sixty-Six Dollars and No Cents $ 66.00 

Yarmouth 800 Fifty-Six Dollars and No Cents 5 56.00 

Item 122 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Granite Curb Type VA4-Straight Per L.F 

Town Unit Bld Price In Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 300 Sixty-Two Dollars and Sixty Cents S 62.6,3 

Baume 100 Sixty-Three Dollars and No Cents S 63.00 

Chatham 50 Eighty-Two Dollars and No Cents S 82.00 

Pravincetown 50 Eighty-Nine Dollars and No Cents S 89.00 

Sandwich 100 Seventy Dollars and No Cents $ 70.40 

Item 223 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Pave Shield Pavement Sealing (1500 Square Yards or 

Greater) 
Per SY 

Town Unit 81d Price in Words !n Numerate 

Barnstable 4,000 

Bourne 1,500 

Brewster 12,D00 

Dennis 6,D00 

Yarmouth 1,5DD 

6F- 1'~ 



A~!~~ ® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
DATE (MMIDD/YYYY) 

2/11/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 

The Driscoll Agency 
141 Longwater Drive, Suite 203 
Norwell MA 02061 

CONTACT 
NAME: 
PHONE 781-681-6656 Fax 781 681 6686 (ACA Ext)~ (A/C. NoJ; Lo 

ADDREss• kchristianson@driscollagency.com 

INSURERS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INsuRERA:OId Republic General Ins Corp. 24139 
INSURED 3130 
Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 
PO Box 913 
Falmouth MA 02541 

INsuRERe:Travelers Indemnity Co of CT 25682 

INsuRERc:Starr Indemnity &Liability Co. 38318 

INSURER D 

INSURER E 

INSURER F 

COVERAGE CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1681544319 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS 

INSR 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL 
INSD 

SUBR 
WVD POLICY NUMBER 

POLICY EFF 
(MMIDD/YYYY) 

POLICY EXP 
(MMIDD/YYYY) LIMITS 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY A2CG99941807 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES {Ea occurrence) $100,000 CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR 

MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000 X X.C.0 Incl 

PERSONAL&ADVINJURY $1,000,000 X BlktContractual 

GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000 GEN'LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER: 

POLICY 

OTHER: 

X JECT  LOC PRODUCTS -COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000 

$ 

A AUTOMOBILE 

X 

X 

LIABILITY 

ANY AUTO 

OWNED 
 AUTOS ONLY 

HIRED 
AUTOS ONLY 

— NON-OWNED 
X 

SCHEDULED 
AUTOS 

AUTOS ONLY 

A2CA99941807 MA ( ) 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 
(Ea accident) 

$ 
1,000,000 

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
{Per accident) $ _ 

Comp R Coll Deductib $1,000 

C 

X 

UMBRELLALIAB 

EXCESSLIAB 

X OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE 

1000585026181 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000 

AGGREGATE $10,000,000 

$ DED X RETENTION $0 
q WORKERS COMPENSATION 

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
ECUTIVE 

(Mandatory In NH) 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 

YNN N / A 

AZCW99941807 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 X PER X OTH- 
STATUTE ER USL&H 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000 

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000 

E.L. DISEASE -POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000 

B Contractors Equipment 
Leased/Rented Equipment All Risk 
Installation Floater 

QT660739X9338-TCT-18 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 Sched & Unsched On File W/Ins. Co. 
Max Per Item: $500,000 
Per Job site Limit $1,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 107, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

FY2019 Barnstable County "Miscellaneous Public Works for Various Towns"; 4/1/19 through 3/31/20. 

Barnstable County is included as Additional Insured for Automobile Liability on a Primary Basis for the conduct of the (Named) Insured, but 
only to the extent of that liability. 

Barnstable County is included as Additional Insured for General Liability for ongoing operations per form CG2010 04/13 and for completed 
See Attached... 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable MA 02630 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
1 J'  ~~ /~: 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: 3130 

LOC #: 

AC ~~ 
~.~"' ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1 

AGENCY 

The Driscoll Agency 
NAMED INSURED 

Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 
PO Box 913 
Falmouth MA 02541 POLICY NUMBER 

CARRIER NAIC CODE 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUMBER: 25  FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 

operations per form CG2037 04/13 and Excess Liability, as required by a signed written contract or agreement with the Named Insured. 

The Additional Insured coverage for a General &Excess Liability detailed above applies on a primary, non-contributory basis where required 
by a signed written contract or agreement with the named insured. 

The General Liability, Excess Liability, Automobile Liability and Workers Compensation /Employers Liability Policies include a Waiver of 
Subrogation in favor of Barnstable County is on whose behalf the Named Insured is required to obtain this Waiver under a written contract or 
agreement executed prior to a loss. 

General Liability policy includes coverage for "X, C, U" (hazards, collapse of building, blasting and damage to underground property), 
Completed Operations and Contractual Liability. 

30 day's notice of cancellation, except 60 days applies to GL, Auto, WC and Excess Liability. 10 Days notice applies to non-payment of 
premium, on all policies. 

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 









20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8h 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with Lawrence Lynch Corp. for Road 
Resurfacing in the Towns of Chatham, Harwich, Provincetown and Yarmouth for 
the period of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3295 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 
396 Gifford Street 
PO Box 913 
Falmouth, MA 02540-0913 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 8th day of February,2019 by and between Lawrence-
Lynch Corp. (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Mary Pat Flynn, Ronald Beaty and Ronald 
Bergstrom as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal liability. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Road Resurfacing 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
Towns of Chatham, Harwich, Provincetown and Yarmouth. 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Tow n 
harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, unemployment compensation 
benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Contractorfiles such claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020 

4. Payment. Town of Chatham: $641,510.25 
Town of Harwich: $635,970.00 
Town of Provincetown: $149,135.00 
Town of Yarmouth: 270,535.00 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either party 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. 
Such notice shall be given at least fifteen (15) calendar days before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to and including the date of 



termination or suspension. 

7. Changes. The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 
performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Customer costs, which are mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, shall be 
incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran status. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited 
to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 
1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. If this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly or indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to 
become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 
All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. If this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 



14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 
by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 
not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Contract. 

16. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51% of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 
entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51% of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a party. All parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 
penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractor's failure 
to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal 
funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal 
requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Profit entities that receive 
federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract. If any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 
and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any liability arising out 



of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the year Two Thousand and Nineteen. 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Beaty 

Date 

THE CONTRACTOR: 

Christopher M. Lynch, President 

Februa 8, 2019 
Date 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Work under this Contract consists of Road Resurfacing as described herein to Towns within 
Barnstable County. Estimated Quantities and project roads are listed in Attachment A. 

All Work done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the 1988 Massachusetts 
Highway Department (MassDOT} Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the 

Supplemental Specifications, the 2005 Standard Special Provisions, the 2010 Construction 
Standard Details, and the 2009 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and 
these Special Provisions. The General Conditions and Special Provisions shall take precedence 
over the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

As noted on the Bid Form liquid asphalt, diesel fuel, gasoline, Portland cement, and steel 
price adjustments will be allowed for a limited number of items. 

OSHA REQUIREMENT 

Any employee found on the worksite without documentation of the successful completion of a 
course in construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration that is at least 10 hours in duration shall be subject to immediate removal. 
OSHA certifications must be submitted with the certified payrolls for alI workers during the first 
week they work on a project. 

WORK SCHEDULE 

The Contractor shall commence Work within. ten (10) working days of receiving a Notice to 
Proceed from a Town. If the Contractor cannot begin work within the ten (10) working days, 
that Town may order such services from such contractors as are available, and the Contractor 
shall reimburse that Town far all expenses incurred above the Contract Price. When needing 
work completed for those items that will be awarded to the two {2) lowest bidders, each Town 
shall first forward by a-mail or fax a Notice to Proceed to the lower of the two lowest bidders. If 
the lowest bidder does not schedule the work requested within forty-eight (48} hours of 
receiving the Notice to Proceed and/or cannot begin {and remain at) work within ten {10} 
working days, then the Town shall have the right to forward a Notice to Proceed to the second 
low bidder. 

Work is restricted to a nonnaI eight-hour day, five-day week, with Contractor and all 
subcontractors working on the same shift. 

No Work shall be done on this Contract on Saturdays, Sundays or holidays or on the day before 
or the day after a long weekend which involves a holiday without prior approval by the specific 
Town. 

SP-1 



PROGRESS OF WORK 

The Contractor shall promptly start and continue actual construction work under this Contract 
with the necessary equipment to properly execute and complete this Contract in the specified 
time. No cessation of Contractor's operations will be allowed without the approval of the 
Engineer. The rate of progress shall be satisfactory to that Town and the Engineer. The 
Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer a schedule for the Work prior to the start of construction. 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THE FIELD 

The Contractor shall keep a copy of the Contract Documents at the work site at all times while 
work is being performed and said copy is to be available to those in charge of work. 

POLICE SERVICES 

Each Town shall provide all Town police services at no cost to the Contractor to direct traffic 
when such protection is required by that Town's Police Department. The Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for contacting and scheduling police services with the Police Department. If 
the Contractor must cancel police services, he must do so within the time limits set by the Police 
Department. If the Contractor does not cancel police services within the time limits, then 
Contractor shall be responsible to promptly pay the minimum required amount. 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE 

The Contractor shall be required without additional compensation to provide safe and convenient 
access to all abutters during the prosecution of the Work. 

No excavation shall be left open during non-working hours. 

MSDS sheets and information shall be available on site and copies submitted to a Town as 
requested. 

NECESSARY ACCESS FOR FIRE APPARATUS AND OTHER EMERGENCY VEHICLES 
SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE 
WITH THE POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS AT ALL TIMES REGARDING ACCESS. 

For the protection of life and property, all backfill operations shall follow closely behind 
completed work. The Contractor shall insure that no excavation be left open, unguarded, or 
water filled during any period of time when work is not actually in progress. It is the purpose 
and intent that all excavations and backfill, including consolidation operations, and temporary 
surfacing within an area be accomplished expeditiously before proceeding to other work areas. 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws, regulations and Guidelines of any public body 
(example: OSHA, DIGSAFE, MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines, Police} having 
jurisdiction 

SP-2 



for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss; and shall 

erect and maintain all necessary signs/ safeguards for such safety and protection at no extra cost 

to the Owner. See General Conditions also. 

CLEANUP

Cleanup shall be done on a daily basis. At the end of each working period, the Contractor shall 
completely backfill all holes and trenches, and remove all equipment from the traveled way. The 
Contractor shall ensure that all safety marking and warning devices are satisfactorily in place 
prior to Ieaving any jab. 

During the course of the Work, the Contractor shall keep the site of his operations in as clean and 
neat condition as is possible. He shall dispose of all residue resulting from the construction work 
and, at the conclusion of the work, he shall remove and haul away any surplus excavation, 
broken pavement, lumber, equipment, temporary structures, and any other refuse remaining from 
the construction operations, and shall leave the entire site of the work in a neat and orderly 
condition. 

Sweeping and cleaning of surfaces beyond the limits of the Project to clean up material caused 
by spillage or vehicular tracking during the various phases of the work shall be considered as 
incidental to the Work being performed under the Con#ract and there will be no additional 
compensation. 

EMERGENCY CONTACTS 

The Contractor shall maintain a 24-hour, 7-day a week telephone service and a Iacal facility to 
handle emergency requirements such as settled trenches, clogged drains, rain damage, work zone 
safety issues, etc. A list of personnel (minimum of two) and their telephone numbers shall be 
submitted to the Engineer, the Highway Superintendent (or his designee), the Public Works 
Director and to the local Police and Fire Departments. This requirement shall apply during the 
entire length of the Project. or Service for each Town where work is being completed. This list 
shall be submitted on the Contractor's letterhead and shall state that 
should an emergency arise during the implementation of this Project or Service, these people are 
to be contacted. The Contractor shall submit this letter to the Engineer prior to initiating 
construction. The Highway Superintendent far each Town or his designee has the right to 
determine whether or not an emergency exists and to require Contractor to promptly resolve the 
emergency at no cost to that Town. If Contractor can not respond in a timely manner as 
determined by the Highway Superintendent, the Town has the right to complete the necessary 
work and to bill Contractor for that work, 

DIGSAFE

The Contractor shall notify "Mass. DIG SAFE" and the Local Water Department or District and 
procure a DIG SAFE number of each location prior to disturbing ground in any way. 

"DIG-SAFE" Call Center: Telephone 1-888-344-7233 

SP-3 



Commonwealth EIectric has a policy regarding the location of electric utilities. Dig-Safe can no 
longer be relied upon to locate electric utilities that are "privately" owned. This can include 
electric cables located in Public ways that run from utility poles to buildings. It is therefore 
incumbent upon Contractor to ascertain if any electric cables are located in any area prior to 
excavation. This will be done at Contractor's expense. 

The Contractor shall make his own investigation to assure that no damage to existing structures, 
drainage lines, traffic signal conduits, and other utilities will occur as a result of his operations 

PROTECTION OF UTILITIES AND PROPERTY 

The Contractor, in constructing or installing facilities alongside or near sanitary sewers, storm 
drains, water or gas pipes, electric or telephone conduits, pales, sidewalks, walls, vaults or other 
structures shall, at his expense, sustain them securely in place, cooperating with the officers and 
agents of the various utility companies and municipal departments which control them, so that 
the services of these structures shall be maintained. The Contractor shall also be responsible far 
the repair or replacement, at his own expense, of any damage to such structures ca~:jed by his 
acts or neglect, and shall leave them in the same condition as they existed prior to 
commencement of the Wark. 

In case of damage to utilities, the Contractor shall pramptIy notify the utility owner and shall, if 
requested by the Engineer, furnish labor and equipment to work temporarily under the owner's 
direction in providing access to the utility. Pipes or other structures damaged C; the operation of 
the Contractor may be repaired by the municipality or by utility owner which suffers the loss. 
The cost of such repairs shall be home by the Contractor, without compensation therefor, 

If, as the Work progresses, it is found that any of the utility structures are so placed as to render it 
impracticable, in the judgment of the Engineer, to do the Work called for under this Contract, the 

Contractor shall protect and maintain the services in such utilities and structures and the 
Engineer will, as soon thereafter as reasonable, cause the position of the utilities to be changed or 

take such other actions deemed suitable and proper. 

If live service connections are to be interrupted by excavations of any kind, the Contractor shall 

not break the service until new services are provided. Abandoned services shall 6e plugged off 

or otherwise made secure. 

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals for doing 

all the work involved in protecting ar repairing property as specified in this section, shall be 

considered included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of Work and na additional 

compensation will be allowed therefor. 

TRAFFIC CONTROL 

If requested by a Town, the Contractor shall negotiate a fair additional cost to supply and use 

traffic control devices, positioning and methodology, conforming with the Manual an Uniform 

Sl?-4 



Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD} and MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines. Traffic 

control devices required only during working hour operations shall be removed at the end of 
each working day. Signs having messages that are irrelevant to normal traffic conditions shall be 
removed or properly covered at the end of each work period. Signs shall be kept clean at all 
times and legends shall be distinctive and unmarred. 

Particular care should be taken to establish and maintain methods and procedures which will not 
create unnecessary or unusual hazards to public safety. 

WORK DONE BY OTHERS 

Relocation and/or resetting to new grades of all private utilities, including utility poles, made 
necessary by the construction of this Project, will be accomplished by the respective utility 
companies. 

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS MATERIALS 

All materials not required or needed for use an the Project, and not required to be removed and 
stacked, shall become the property of the CONTRACTOR and shall be removed from the site 
and legally disposed of. No separate payment will be made for this Wark, but all costs in 
connection therewith shall be included in the prices bid for various Contract items. 

COMPACTION

Compaction of filled areas under pavement (no matter what type of fill material) shall be 
completed in 6" lifts. Compaction of filled areas elsewhere (no matter what type of fill material) 
shall be completed in 12" lifts. Appropriate compaction equipment shall be used. 

PROPERTY BOUNDS 

Any bounds or markers flagged by a Tawn and disturbed by the Contractor shall be replaced 
utilizing the services of a Registered Land Surveyor. The cost of replacing flagged bounds or 
markers disturbed by the Contractor's operations shall be at the Contractor's expense. 

WEIGHING

All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery 
and the weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may 
provide use of its scale and require grass weights and vehicle tare weights verified at time of 
delivery. 

SP-5 



ITEM 101.3 STREET SWEEPING 

The Work under this item shall consist of the preparation of areas to be paved by removing and 
drying any standing or puddled water and cleating all dirt, dust and debris at the locations indicated 
on the plans or where directed by the Engineer. 

Sweeping by means of mechanical and/or vacuum sweepers and all other preparation necessary 
of the areas and surfaces to be paved shall be included in the unit bid price for this item. In areas 
where it is impractical to use a mechanical or a vacuum sweeper, the contractor could use a 
power sweeper, broom, blower or any other method to remove any standing or puddled water 
and all dirt, dust and debris but only with the prior approval of the Engineer and the cost of this 
work shall be included in the unit bid price for this item. 

All locations and methods must be prior approved by the Engineer and all debris removed shall 
become the property of the contractor and be disposed outside of the right-of--way subject to the 
regulations of state and local authorities governing the disposal of such materials, at no 
additional compensation. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Feet of roadway, 
which price shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to 
complete the Work. 

ITEM 120.1 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 

The work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section l20 of the Standard 
Specifications. The work shall include providing all labor and equipment for the excavation, 

removal and satisfactory disposal of any material within the work zone as determined by the 
engineer and which is not covered under any other pay items in this contract. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Cubic Yard, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 129 PAVEMENT MILLING 

The Work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 120, Section 
120.bb of the Standard Specifications and the following. 

The work shall include the cold planing of existing bituminous concrete pavement surface to 

various depths to shape the pavement cross-section (crown or super elevation}, to meet 
driveways, and/or to produce a uniform surface for the application of the pavement surfacing. 

Pavement areas abutting utility structures and other areas which cannot be planed by the 

principal cold planing machine shall be excavated with smaller mechanical cold planing 
equipment designed far this purpose or by manual methods at no additional cost to any Town. 

The machine shall be capable of being operated at speeds from 10 to 40 feet per minute and 

SP-6 



designed so that the operator can at all times observe the planing operation without leaving his 

control area. Pneumatic rubber-tire mounted equipment shall be used only for trimming and 

edging operations. 

The equipment furnished by the Contractor shall be maintained in good repair at all times. 

No pavement cuttings shall remain on the project at the end of each work period. The pavement 

cuttings shall become the property of the Town and the Contractor shall be responsible to 

remove, haul, and deposit the pavement cuttings at no additional cost to a site as directed by the 

Town. 

The measured quantity will be paid far at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental costs required to 

complete the Work. 

ITEM 129.1 COLD PLANED {MILLED) PAVING JOINTS 

The work shall include the cold planing of existing bituminous concrete pavement surface to 

create key ways (paving joints} for the purpose of overlaying pavement. All work is to be 
performed no more than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled start of paving. 

The machine shall be capable of milling to a depth of two (2) inches and a minimum width of 

twenty four {24) inches. The cutter head must be able to rotate l5 degrees to provide a beveled 
cut. All key ways shall be one (1) to two {2} inches in depth and twenty four (24) inches to forty 
eight (48) inches in width at the discretion of the Town. The Contractor is responsible milling 
and clean up of all excavated materials. 

The equipment furnished by the Contractor shall be maintained in good repair at all times. 

Na pavement cuttings shall remain on the project at the end of each work period. The pavement 
cuttings shall became the property of the Town and the Contractor shall be responsible to 
remove, haul, and deposit the pavement cuttings at no additional cost to a site as directed by the 
Town. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental costs required to 
complete the Work. 

ITEM 191.7 TEST PIT 

The work under this item shall consist of providing labor and equipment necessary to perform a 
test hole through pavement or shoulder material to determine depth of utilities within the 
proposed work area. 

When test holes are deemed necessary and approved by the Engineer, the contractor shall make 
as small a test hole as possible to obtain the necessary information on the utility line. After 

SP-7 



obtaining the information, the test pit shall be brought to proper grade with compacted dense 
graded stone or other approved material. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Each, which price shall 
include all labor, materials, equipment, compacting, and incidental costs required to complete the 
Work. 

ITEM 220 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE ADJUSTED 

The work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Sections 201 and 220 of the 
Standard Specifications and the following: 

The Contractor shall maintain the drainage system in the project areas or drainage facilities 
outside the project area affected by the work performed by the Contractor to provide continual 
drainage of the travelways and construction areas. All drainage castings required to be raised to 
accommodate the pavement overlays or sidewalk improvements shall be paid for under this item. 
Clay brick conforming to Subsection M4A5.2 of the Standard Specifications shall be used to 
make grade adjustments of drainage structure frames. 

Any drainage castings damaged due to the Contractez's operations shall be replaced with 
similar North American made cast iron castings at no cost to the Town. 

A structure adjusted more than once by the Contractor, due to his plan of operation, will be 
paid for only once regardless ofhow many adjustments are made to the structure. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Each, which price shall 
include all labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental costs required to 
complete the Work. 

ITEM 220.2 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE REBUILT 

The new masonry construction, backfilling around structures and other incidental work shall 

conform to the relevant provisions ofthe Standard Specifications and the following: 

The work shall consist of rebuilding, removing, replacing and adjusting the masonry and 
castings of existing structures. When, in the judgment of the Engineer or as designated on the 

Plans as "rebuild existing drainage structure", the structure shall be rebuilt. The casting and 
deteriorated masonry shall be removed in a neat manner until a clean sound base is obtained 

upon which concrete blocks and clay bricks maybe set to rebuild the structure. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Vertical Foot, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental costs required to 

complete the Work. 

SP-8 



ITEM 358 GATE BOX ADJUSTED 

The work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Sections 301 of the 

Standard Specifications and the following: 

Concrete collars shall be included in the work for this item. Concrete shall be 4,000 PSI and 

construction shall meet the MassDOT Construction Standards dimensions for Water Service 

Boxes and relevant sections of Section 301. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Each, which price shall 

include all Iabor, materials, equipment, sawcutting, excavating, hauling, disposing, and 

incidental casts required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 402 DENSE GRADED CRUSHED STONE FOR SUB-BASE 

The Work under this item shall conform to the provisions of Section 402 of the Standard 

Specifications. 

The measured quantity will be paid far at the Contract Unit Price per Cubic Yard, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, fine grading, compacting, and incidental costs 

required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 403 RECLAIMED PAVEMENT FOR BASE COURSE 

The Work under this item shall conform to the provisions of Section 170 & 403 of the Standard 

Specifications and the following: 

Fine grading and compacting (FG&C) of the subgrade and protection of subsurface utilities shall 

be included in the work for this item. If requested by a Town, the Contractor shall negotiate a 
reasonable additional cost for related work (e.g., excavating and hauling away excess materials}. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, fine grading, compacting, and incidental costs 
required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 403.3 RECLAIMED PAVEMENT FOR BASE COURSE (INCLUDING 
CALCIUM CHLORIDE) 

The Work under this item shall conform to the provisions of Section 170 & 403 of the Standard 
Specifications and the fallowing: 

Fine grading and compacting (FG&C} of the subgrade, protection of subsurface utilities and 
adding and mixing liquid calcium chloride to the pulverized mass shall be included in the work 
for this item. If requested by a Town, the Contractor shall negotiate a reasonable additional cost 
for related work (e.g., excavating and hauling away excess materials). 

SP-9 



The calcium chloride solution shall be provided by the manufacturer as a true solution and shall 
not be reconstituted from flake calcium chloride. The calcium shall meet the following material 
specifications {see ASTM Designation D98; AASHTO-M144}: 

Calcium Chloride 35%+/-1% 
Alkali Chloride as NaCI 2%max. 
Magnesium as MgCI 0.1% 

Typical (Pounds per gallon) 
Calcium Chloride 5.05 
Sodium Chloride 0.2 
Magnesium Chloride 0.004 
Calcium Sulfate 0.004 
Water 6.002 

11.26 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 
shall include ail labor, materials, equipment, fine grading, compacting, and incidental costs 
required to complet the Work. 

ITEM 460 HOT NIIX ASPHALT 

The Work shall include the furnishing and placement of top course, binder course, and/or 
leveling course for new pavements and existing pavement overlays by self-powered 
mechanical pavers. Any Town may specify any job -mix formula from Section M3.11.00 of 
the Standard Specifications. 

A tack coat of liquid bituminous material (RS-1 or equal) shall be furnished and applied to 
existing pavements at the rate of 0.10 gallon per Square Yard immediately prior to placement of 
pavement overlay and the cost shall be included in the unit price bid. The tack coat shall be 
machine applied and sprayed uniformly. Hand application will not be allowed. 

Contractor shall install Owner provided risers on gate valve boxes at no additional cost to the 
Town. Drainage and sewer casting adjustments are paid for under a separate item. 

When bituminous concrete berm (Cape Cod berm) is required, the Work shall also include the 

berm construction and the cost shall be included in the unit price bid. 

If requested by the Tawn, Contractor shall provide and install MassDOT approved temporary 

pavement markings at no additional cast to the Town. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Tan, which price shall 

include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

SP-10 



ITEM 472 HOT MIX ASPHALT FOR MISCELLANEOUS WORK 

The Work shall include the furnishing and placement of top course and binder course material 

by mechanical and hand methods far sidewalk resurfacing, berm, driveway, aprons, and 

other construction. Any Town may specify any job -mix formula from Section M3.11.00 of the 

Standard Specifications. 

A tack coat of liquid bituminous material {RS-1 or equal) shall be applied to existing pavements at 

the rate of O.l 0 gallon per Square Yard immediately prior to placement of pavement and the cost 

shall be included in the unit price bid. 

Contractor shall install Owner provided risers on gate valve boxes at no additional cost to the Town. 

Drainage and sewer casting adjustments are paid for under a separate item. 

The measured quantity will be paid far at the Contract Unit Price per Ton, which price shall include 

all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 472.2 PARTIAL DEPTH PAVEMENT PATCH 

The Work shall consist of the construction of partial depth pavement patches at various locations 
as directed by the Engineer. The Work shall include the following: 

Partial depth pavement patch excavation shall consist of the removal and satisfactory disposal of all 
bound pavement materials, the removal of which is necessary for the proper completion of the work. 
The excavation will be made to a minimum depth of 1.5". Contractor shall make the excavation 
square or rectangular with faces straight and vertical. The Contractor may use any type of pavement 
saw-cutting or milling equipment that will not damage adjacent pavement. Ajack-hammer and 
compressor will not be allowed for cutting the pavement surface. 

The Contractor shall swab or paint the existing vertical faces of the pavement with an approved 
emulsified asphalt such that a uniform film of asphalt will remain when cured. 

Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement shall be placed and properly compacted with a power roller. The 
surface shall not deviate more than l/8" from a straight edge placed on the existing pavement. 

The perimeter of the patch shall be painted with an emulsified asphalt or approved equal such that 
a 4" wide strip will be equally spaced on the new and existing pavement. The joint sealing 
material shall be dusted with stone screenings or stone dust such that no tracking or pick-up of the 
seal will occur. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 482.3 SAWING ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

This item is for saw cutting of bituminous asphalt not included as incidental work for other 

SP-1 I 



payment items. All lines shall be neat and straight. 

Sawcut areas damaged by the contractor shall be re-cut at the contractors expense prior to 
paving. 

The measured quantity will be paid far at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM SO4 GRANITE CURB TYPE VA4 —STRAIGHT 

Work under these items shall conform to the relevant provision of Section SOi of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

All curbing shall be set on a bed of dry compacted gravel base. The spaces between the curb and 
the walls of the trench (both front and back sides of the curb) shall be filled with 4,000 PSI 
concrete to the depth directed, and shall then have a 2-inch base of Hot Mix Asphalt placed upon 
it. This shall ensure proper adhesion of the overlays to the existing surface. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for saw cutting the existing pavement edge as directed by the 
Town, far excavating the area needed for the curbing and concrete installation, and for hauling 
and disposing of the excavated material. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for meeting all current Federal and State architectural 
accessibility requirements. This includes but is not limited to: slopes; grades; and construction 
materials. 

If requested by the Town, the Contractor shall negotiate an additional cast per Linear Foot 
for transition and curved granrtc curbing. 

The measured quantity will be paid far at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, saw cutting, excavating, hauling, disposing, and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 5Q6 GRANITE CURB TYPE VB —STRAIGHT 

Work under these items shall conform to the relevant provision of Section 501 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

AlI curbing shall be set on a bed of dry compacted gravel base. The spaces between the curb and 
the walls of the trench (both front and back sides of the curb) shall be filled with 4,040 PSI 
concrete to the depth directed, and shall then have a 2-inch base of Hat Mix Asphalt placed upon 
it. This shall ensure proper adhesion of the overlays to the existing surface. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for saw cutting the existing pavement edge as directed by the 
Town, for excavating the area needed for the curbing and concrete installation, and for hauling 
and disposing of the excavated material. 

SP-12 



The Contractor shall be responsible far meeting all current Federal and State architectural 
accessibility requirements. This includes but is not limited to: slopes; grades; and construction 
materials. 

If requested by the Town, the Contractor shall negotiate an additional cost per Linear Foot 
for transition and curved granite curbing. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, saw cutting, excavating, hauling, disposing, and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 580 CURB REMOVED AND RESET 

Work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 580 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

Mortar, concrete, asphalt, soil, and all debris and deleterious material shall be removed from 
the curbing prior to setting as part of this work item. 

All curbing shall be set on a bed of dry compacted gravel base. The spaces between the curb 
and the walls of the trench (both front and back sides of the curb) shall be filled with 4,000 PSl 
concrete to the depth directed, and shall then have a 2-inch base of Hot Mix Asphalt placed 
upon it. This shall ensure proper adhesion of the overlays to the existing surface. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, compacting, and incidental costs required to 
complete the Work. 

SP-13 



THIS FORI111 IS TO BE'USED'AS THE''~OVER SHEET TO YOl,IR BID 

CERTIFICATE of NON-CO~i.US10N AND TAX COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter 82C, Section 49A, I certify under the penalties of perjury #Flat 

f, to the best of my know{edge and belief, have complied with all laws of the 

Commonweal#h of Massachusetts rela#ing to taxes, reporting ofi employees and 

contractors, and withholding and remitting child support. 

i certify under the penalties of perjury the# this b'tdlproposal has been made and 

submitted in good faith and withou# coAusion or fraud with any other person. As used in 

this certificate, the word "person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, 

corporation, union, committee. club or other legal organization, entity or group ofi 

individuals. 

Company:  Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 

AddresJ3: 346 Gifford Street 

Falmouth, MA 02540 

Signature of Individual S' 

Bid, ar Corporate Officer: 
Christopher M. Lynch, 

Telephone Number:  (508} 548-1800 

Soria! Security Number 

Or Federal lderttifit:ation Number: _ 01-D807936 

P 

Date: January 24, 2019 

Any person or carporatlon which falls to execute this document 

will be considered a non•responslve bidder 

snd will Jbs reJectsd pursuant to 14lGL Chapter 30, 39M. 

BF•5 



Lharlcs D Bake►. GoVernar 
1Wtyn E Patna. lieutenant GavCtncr 

Strpharric PsyUck Sccrctary b LEO 

Jawtnan L Ou17,wct Hlgtway AdmM 

LAWRENCE LYNCH CORD 

PO BOX Si 3 

FALMOUTH, MA 02541-0913 

Dear Contractor. 

January 03, 2019 

Prequalification Certificate No L030-07 

to accordance with the Regulations Gaueming Prequslitication of Contractors, as approved by the Massachusetts Department of 
Transports#ion Prequalification Camnkfee, you are hereby notified that the following class{es} of walk and Single Contract Limits 
{if applicable) have been assigned to you as of the date of this letter. It in the opinion of the Committee you failed b submit 
proper documentation ar have not demonstrated the ability to perform aA classes of work requested then you were denied 
Prequalification Status for that classes) of wank, 

Qualified Class of Work Limit Amount Qualified Class of Work Umit Amount 

Bridge -Construction 54,114,000..00 8rtdge -Culverts st,soa,noo.ao 
Bridge -Deck Repairs 51,800,000,:00 i?am Constnrctian s3,oaa,aoaoo 
Demolkion 38,000,000,00 Drainage 37,500,OOD.00 

Highway •Bike Paths sn,2ao,aao,ao Highway -Construction 317,200,000.00 

Highway •Sidewalk And Curbing stt,2aa,aoa no Pavement -Milling And Cokl Planing 55,000,000.00 

Pavement -Surfacing SS,000,OOOAO Recreation Facilities 34,930,000.00 

Sewer and Water 57,500,000.00 

Bonding Capacity 5200,000,000.00 Bond Single Limn 3120,000,000.00 Expiration Date 513712019 

The classes} of worts, Single Can#tact Limits and Aggregate Bonding Capacity set forth will continue in effect until May 31, 2019 
unless previously modified or rescinded in accordance with the Regulations, or by law. In order to be continuously eligible to bid 
on projects to be undertaken far this Department, your next Prequatification Statement should be smutted at feast 30 days prior 
to expiration of this Certificate. If there are any questions ar cancems, contact the Prequalification Department ai {857) 368-8660 
or email to prequaLrtOg~state.ma.us. 

y yam, 
QUALIF~A~f Cr~MMiTTEE 

By: 
tsido ~ DeJesus Pe 
Dt - •n= -Office of transtNCtiOn PfequalifrCatian ~ 

Rec •~ ,.: ~ &Procedures 



ATTACHMENT A 
BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

ROAD RESURFACING SPECIFIC PROJECTS 

Each Town has provided estimated quantities for each bid item that it presently intends to order. 
These estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and cannot be guaranteed. The estimated 
amounts are also a total aggregate which the town intends to use during the contract period and 
the bidder should familiarize themselves with the minimum job quantities defined in the 
individual specifications for each item. 

BID FORM 
BID IDENTIFICATION: ROAD RESURFACING SPECIFIC PROJECTS 

(UNIT PRICE WORii{~ 

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO: 
(Name aad Address Office of the County Commissioners 
of Owner) Superior Court House 

P.O.3oa 427 
Barr~;'able, Massachusetts 02630 

I . The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if the Bid is accepted to enter into an 
Agreement with the County, to complete ail Work as specified or indicated in the Contract 
Documents for the Contract Unit Prices during the contract period of April I, 2019 to 

March 31, 2820 and in accordaia~.: with the Contract Documents. 

2. BIDDER accepts a!l of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders. This Bid 
will remain open for sixty (b0) days after the day of Bid opening. BIDDER wil! sign the 
Agreement and submit other documents (e.g. Bonds, Insurance Binders) required by the 
Contract Documents within five (5) working days after the date of the County's Notice of 
Award. 

3. In submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the AgreemenE, that: 

3.1 BIDDER has examined copies of ail the Contract Documents and of 
the following addenda: 

Dale  January 1 I, 2019  Number  I 
Date  Tanuary 21, 2019  Number  2

{receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged) and also copies of the Notice to 

3 ~ BIDDER has examined the legal requirements (federal, state and local Laws, 
by-laws, rules and regulations} and the conditions affecting cost, progress of 

performance of the Work and has made such independent investigations as 
BIDDER deems necessary. 

3.2 This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or an behalf of any undisclosed 

person, firm or corporation, and is pat submitted in conformity with any 

BF-I 



agreement or rotes of any group, associa#ion, organization or corporation; 

BIDDER has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to 

submit a false or sham Bid; BIDDER has not solicited or induced any person, 

firm or corporation to refrain from bidding; and BIDDER has not sought by 

collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or over the 

County. 

4. BIDDER will complete alt the Work assigned for the unit prices) Iisted in the Bid Form. 

5. The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid: 

5.1 A tabulation of Subcontractors and other persons or organizations required to be 

identified in this Bid 

6. Communications concerning this Bid shall be addressed to: 

company Name:  Lawrence-_Lynch Corp. 

Address:  396 Gifford Street, Falmouth, MA 02540 

Telephone No.:  {508) 548-1800 

Fax No.:  {508) 548-6917 

E-mail Address:  clynch@lawrencelyrrch.com

Bidder's Contact Person: Christopher M. Lynch 

7. Bid comparison will be based on total value of alI bid items carried forward from all 
construction items provided for each Town. Bidders must bid on all items for every Town 
that he is bidding for or the bid will be considered nonresponsive. Bid selection will be by 
total bid value by Town and wilt be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and 
responsive bid for each Town. 

8. The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this Bid is in alI respects bona 
fide, fair and made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this 
paragraph, the word "person" shall mean any natural person, joint venture, partnership, 
corporation or other business or legal entity. 

9. The undersigned also certifies: that he is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony 
with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed in the work; and, that all 
employees at the worksite wi1I have successfully completed a course in construction safety 
and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
that is at least l0 hours in duration aE the time the employee begins work and who shall 
furnish documentation of suceessfut completion of said course with the First certified 
payroll report far each employee. 

SUBMITTED on January 24 , 2019 . 

BF-2 



An IndiviauaI 

By  {ssAL} 
{lndividua~'s Name and Signature) 

doing business as 

Business address: 

Phone Na.:  

A Partnership 

By _ (SEAL} 
(Firm Name) 

(Gcnerat Partner Name and Signature) 

B€~ :ncss address: 

Phone No.: 

BF-3 



A Corporation 

By Lawrence-Lynch Carp. 

(Corporation Name) 

(Name of person su •rued Eo si ~ .~n:~ignature) 
Christopher M. Lynch, Prrsidcat 

(Corporate Seal} 

Attest 
Doris Christlani 

Business address: 

(Secretary} 

396 Gifford Street 

Falmouth, MA 02540 

Rhone i~lo.:  (508 548-1800 

A Joint Vesture 

BY 
(Name and Signatwe) 

{Address) 

By    . . 
(Name and Signature) 

(Address) 

(Each joint venture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and 
corporation that is party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.) 

BF-4 



BID FORM 
ROAD RESURFACING PROJECTS 

(UNIT PRICE WORD 

Bidders may bid for any or all Towns. Bid selection will be by each item and will be based on 
the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each Tawn. 

MassDOT Preaualification: Some Towns may use Chapter 94 (State} funds to finance some of 
the work. Therefore, Bidders may be required to be prequalified through the Massachusetts 
Department of Transportation (MassD4T). Bids received from Bidders not prequalified by the 
MassDOT will be declared invalid. Items highlighted and noted with an asterisk require vendors 
to be prequalified by MassDOT. 

Price Adiustments: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDl7T} method for 
calculating price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in Liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel 
fuel, gasoline, and structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Liquid Asphalt adjustment shall 
apply to Hot Mix Asphalt and Hot Mix Asphalt for Miscellaneous Work (Handwork) on 
orders greater than 100 tons where the adjustment results in a change in the Unit Price of 
5% or more. The Diesel Fuel adjustment shall apply to Hut Mix Asphalt and Hot Mix 
Asphalt for Miseellaaeous Work (Handwork) where the adjustment results is a change in 
the Unit Price of 10% or more. No other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt and Diesel Fuel price adjustment shall be based on the difference between 
the respective prices at the time of the bid (base bid price} and the prices on the date of paving. 
The Liquid Asphalt and Diesel Fue! base bid price shall be the prices pasted on the MassDQT 
Website for the month of December, 2018. 

Tied Bids: In the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the 
awarded bidder. 

BF-b 



ADDENDUM N0.2 

Barnstable County Purchasing Department 

PO Box 427 

Barnstable, MA 02630 

DATE ISSUED: January 21, 2019 

TO: Aft Bidders of Record 

SUBJ: Barnstable County, on behalf of the Towns in Barnstable County, is seeking 

Sealed bids for Road Resurfacing Spedfic Projects for the period of April i, 

2019 through March 31, 2020. 

ADDENDUM N0.2 

Attached: 

1. Responses to questions submitted by potential bidders 

2. Revised estimates for Chatham and 5andwfch 

3. Revised bid farm pages showing revised estimates —Replace pages BF-13 through BF-21 

in the bid farms w'sth the attached pages BF13-RZ through BF21•R2 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY POTENTiAf_ BIDDERS: 

1.) For the Chatham quantities it lists 5,800 sy of milling, 5,800 sy of redafming and then 

11,600 sy of fine grading and compacting. Item 403 states that fine grading and compaRing is 

included in the item and there should be no fine grading and compacting required for milled 

quantities. l do not believe there should be any fine grading and compacting quantities for the 

3 streets fisted. 

2.J Also, on the Chatham quantities it lists a total of 6,060 cy of unclassified excavation. This 

equates to removing 12" of material from the entire area to be resurfaced, including the milled 

surfaces. There is no quantity for material to put back {ie: dense grade) so I am questioning 

that quantity an the removal. 

3.) Item 403.3: Reclaimed Pavement for Sase Course (including calcium chloride) includes " 

fine grading and compacting of the subgrade"and fine grading of the reclaimed base. What 

are the quantities listed in Item 170 —Fine Grading and Compacting specifically for ? 

4.) Also, the Fine Grade quantity for Bridge Street indicates 11,600 SY with the Reclaimed 

quantity at 5800 SY. Ptease address. 

5.j Quantities listed for Item 120. Unclassified Excavation seem to support a removal of 12 

inches from the Reclaimed Area. is this the intention? 

Reseanse to Ghatharn questions: 

Originally, we antidpated the Bridge Street to be reciaimedjpulverized, however after a recent 

water main break we found that there was geofabric placed under the existing pavement of 

the road and this wartld not allow us the perform this operation {so only Cross Street & f.ibrary 

Cane will be reclaimed). pn Bridge Street we have carried (under item 120.1 Unclassifed 



Excavations 2,281 CY to excavate/remove flinches of HMA and property dispose of same and 

the other two roadways we carried 554 CY & 182 CY under the same item to excavate and 

remove flinches of pulverized material from each roadway and properly dispose of offsite in 
order to bring the roadway bade to the same height prior the reclaim work. 

Where Bridge Street is not being reclaimed, and we are excavating the existing mix by machine 
as mentioned above, we have included fine grading and compaction far the roadway (11,600 
SYJ so the contractor bidding this street get compensated for this operation where we have 
eliminated the reclaim work. 

The 5,800 SY o#milting was #or another street which we had originally contemplated on 
including with this contract (but it was eliminated}, I have removed the 5,800 SY from the 
attached chart. 

Gtuestions rettardinitSandwich and the resuonses: 

6.j For the Sandwich quantities, it appears tha#the street sweeping is in sy not If, Sweeping 

quantity was submitted in error. 

Answer: See updated quantity attached for Street Sweeping by ̀ ;he l.F. 

7.j Also, on Sandwich leannes way is listed with a quantity for fine grading and compacting but 
no reclamation. Is this quantity in the wrong place our is the road being reclaimed or 
otherwise ripped out separate from this contract and are we only bidding on grading and 
paving? 

Answer: Regarding leannes Way, the existing hat mix asphalt on the roadway is proposed to 
be removed by Pavement Milting {Bituminous Excavation by Coid Planer), and a quantity has 
been provided. Other items such as fine grading &compaction, hot mix asphalt paving and 
other work also apply as shown on the attached quantity sheet. 

`Elaine Davis 

Chief Procurement ©fficer 



Town Chatham 

8ridtie 
Street 

Cross 
Street 

library 
torte _ 

item OesclpUon 

_ 

tJnk Quantity Quantity Quantty 7otai 

101.3 Street Sweeping LF 4,150 2,030 820 7,010 

224.1 
UnclassiRed 
Excavation 

~, 12$1 554 182 2,017 

129 Pavement MilAng 5Y 0 4 0 0 

129.1 
Cold Planed 
{MINed} Paving 
!Dints 

5Y 270 270 270 $20 

r270 
Flue Grading b 
Compatting 

5Y 11,600 0 0 11,600 

191.7 Test Pit tiA 2 2 1 3 

ZZO ~~ ~Siructure 
EA 10 ZO 5 35 

2ZO.Z 
Orainage5tructure
Rebuilt 

VF 5 S 0 10 

358 fate Sax Adjusted EA S 4 3 12 

402 
uense Graded 
Crush Stone for 
5ub•Base 

CY 4 0 4 4 
- 

403 

Reclaimed 

Pavement for Base 

Course 

SY 0 0 0 

w

0 

403.3 

Reclaimed 
Pavement far Base 
Course {q~ciuding 
Calchrm t]}toride) 

SY 5,0~ 1,700 8,700 

460 Hat Mix Asphalt TON 2,600 1,130 380 4,110 

472 
Hot Mix Asphalt 

for Miscellaneous 
work {Handwork} 

TON 520 3ti0 140 2,020 

472.2 
Partial Depth 
Pavement Patch 

SY 0 4 0 0 

482.3 
Sawing Asphah 
Pavement 

~ 404 200 80 680 

504 
Granite Curb Type 

VA3-Straight ~ 0 4 0 4 

506 
Granite Curb Type 
V8-5tralght 

~ 0 0 0 0 

584 
Curb Rernaved and 

Resat s 

~ 
4 0 0 0 



1~e ~tise d ~~t~ ~ 

inwn Sandwicfi 

6rarnblebu 

sh Grive 
8uddn=ha 

m Crlve 
Chrstnut 

lane 
LroweB 

Road 
leaetnes 

Way 
Morse 

Road 
~~ 

Crossfleld 
Road 

Wood 

Avemue 

down
Neck 
Beach 

Parking 

tat} 

Item 0esaiptSon Urdf Quantity Quantity Quantity Quantity Quantity Quantity Quantity Quantity Total 

101,3 SCrcetSweeping !.f 2,744 1,825 1,230 3,184 2,000 2,b73 900 960 15,516 

120,1 
Undasslfred 
Exeavatian 

~ 100 59 39 84 84 ~ 29 28 433 

124 Pavement MBiing SY 4,689 4,889 

229.1 
Colo Planed 
{Milted) Paving 
blots 

SY i07 71 53 160 27 T3 ?1 5t3} 

170 
!'k►eGradingand 
Compacting 

~ 
4,884 4,889 

141.7 list Pit F.A v 2 2 2 2 8 

224 
Drafnge Structure 

Ad}usted 
~ 13 i0 10 16 10 2 6 3 70 

220 2 
Dntnage Structure 

Rebulk 
Vi` 2 2 2 7 1 2 Il 

358 Gate Sax AdJusted 8A 8 2 2 2 3 2 7 2 26 

402 

Dense Graded 

Crush 5tonefar 

5ufr6ase 

CY 35 15 15 30 15 15 15 120 

403 
Redaimed 
Pavement for ease 
Course 

5Y 0 

403,3 

Reclaimed 
Pavement for base 
Course {inducting 
Caldum Chioricte} 

~ 4,594 3,073 6,250 7,932 6,600 30,449 

460 Not Mis Atphah Tt)N 488 836 559 1,502 890 1,444 164 , I,20i 7,083 

472 
Hat Mix Asphalt 

for Mlscaftaneous 
Work {Nandwork~ 

iON 50 35 39 90 9R 20 la 338 

472.2 
Parttat depth 
Pavement Patch 

SY 0 

482.3 
Sawing Asphalt 
Pavement 

~ 

J .—

0 



~e~ise~ ~sh'm~ 

~ 

Granite Curb Type 

VA4•Strafght ~ 
II

506 
Granite Curb Type 

VB~Stralght 

~ p 

58p Curb Removed and 

Reset 

~ p 



ATTA[HMENT A 

ROAD RESURfAtING BID-SP!~tiflt: ROApS 
BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town Chatham 

item Q~~ Item with that Bid Price Writtten In Wards 
Unit Bld Prfce 

Douars cents 

/lmount 

Donors cants 

101.3 7,010 

Sireei Sweeping 

At Zero Dollars and Forty Cents 

w

0 4fl 2,804 

4b,895~25 

00 

Per tF 

i20.i 2,Oi7 

Unclassified Excavation 

Ai Twen -Three Dollars and Twen -Five Cents ty yt 23.25 

Per CY 

129.1 810 

Cold Plarred (MiNed? Paving JcJnts 

At Eighteen Dollars and Twenty Cents 18 20 14,742.p0 

_ 

Per SY 

i70A 1 i,ti00 

Fine Grading and Campac6r>g 

Al One Dollar and Ten Cents 1 ~ 

~ 

10 12,760 

. 

00 

Per SY 

191.7 3 

Test Pit 

At Three Hundred Dollars and No Cents 300A0 

_ 

900 00 

Per EA 

220.0 35 

t?rainge 8truciureAdjusted 

At Three Hundred Sixty Dollars and No Cents 3b0A0 22,60(} 00 

Per EA 

?20.2 10 

Drainage Struucture Retwilt 

Ai Four Hundred Sixty Dollars and No Cents 460.00 4,600 flfl

Per VF 

358.0 i2 

Gate Box AdjeJsted 

At C}ne Hundred Five Dollars and No Cents 1fl5~00 1,260 00 

Par' EA 

41)3.3 6,700 

iZeclaimed Pav~nenf far Base Course {Jncludtrtg Calcium Chloride} 

At Six Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents b.25 41,875 00 

Per SY 

481}.0 A,110 

Hot Mix Asphalt 

At One Hundred One Dollars and Twenty Cents 10220 415,932 fl0 

Per TON 

472.0 1,OZ0 

Hot Mix Asphalt for M}scellaneaus Work {Hsndworkj 

At Eighty-Three Dollars and Sixty Cents 83.50 85,272.(?{} 

Per TON 

482.3 6B0 

Sawing Asphalt Pavement 

At Two Dollars and Seventy-Five Cents 2.75 1,870 00 

Per )F 

g~-t3-RZ 



AiTACHMIrNTA 

ROAD RBSURfAQNO BID-SPEQFlC ROADS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTii'IES 

Town Chatham 

Iter» 
r Estimated 

Quffitdty 
Item with I,Mk Sid Prioer Written In Wards 

tlnR Bkl Price 

Dogars Cents 

Amount 

Dollars Cents 

Chatham 7otalAmount $641,510.25 

Six Hundred Forty-One Thousand Five Hundred Ten Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents 

E3 



ATTACHMENT a 
ROAb RESItRFAClNG Blp-SPECIFICROAQ5 
B!D FARM AND ESTlt1MTEp gUANTiT1ts5 

Town l~w~ 

Item ~ 1#em wkh Unit Sid Price VYritten to Words 
Untt Std Prlcs 

Aopars Cents 

Aa~aunt 

t)otlars Cents 

729.0 32,004 

Pavement Milling 

At Two Dollars and Thirty Cents 2.30 73,fi00 00 

Per SY 

129.1 700 

Cold Planed (MHted) Paving Joints 

At Two Dollars and Thirty Cents 2 30 1,610 00 

Per 5Y 

720.0 95 

Drainge Si~ucture Adjusted 

At Three Hundred Sixty Dollars and No Cents 36040 34,20000 

Per EA 

4ti0.0 4,500 

Hai Mix Asphalt 

At pne Hundred Dollars and ~eveniy Cents 100 70 453,150,00 

Per ~olv 

472.0 300 

Hot Mix asphalt for Miscellaneous work (Handwarkj 

At One Hundred Dollars and Seventy Cents IOQ70 30,210 00 

Per T{1N 

472x i,t100 

Partial D~tlh Aavement Paich 
x_ 

At Twenty-Faur Dollars and No Cents 24A0 43,200 00 

Per 5Y 

tiarwkh Total A~morrnt~- 5635,970.00 

Sur Hundred Thirty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Dollars and No Cents 

S~-



ATTACHMENT A 

ROAD RESURFACING 81D-SPECIFIC ROADS 

SID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town OrkSans 

Item 
Q

E:s~n ~t
Item with Unit Bfd Price Written in Wards 

~~ Bki Pr{ce 

Datlars Cents 

Amount` 

t"}o~ats Cents 

129.0 1,372 

Pavem~t Milting 

At Three Dollars and Sixty-Five Cents 3 ti5 5,047 80 

Per SY 

220.0 23 

Orainge StructureAc~usted 

Ai Five Hundred Dollars and No Cents 500 00 11,50000 

Per t:A 

220.2 4 

Drainage Stnuture Rebuilt 

At Seven Hundred Ten Dollars and No Cents 710A0 2,840 00 

Per VF 

358.0 2 

Gate Box Adjusted 

At One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and No Cents 125 00 250.00 

Pw EA 

403.3 27,759 

t~eelaimed Pavement fa Rase Course (including Calcium Chloride} 

At Four Dollars and Five Cents 4 05 112,423.95 

Per SY 

A60.0 6,598 

fiat Mix Asphalt 

At Qne Hundred Eight Dollars and Forty-Five Cents 108,45 715,553 10 

Per TON 

4720 25 

tfot Mix Asphalt for Miscellaneous Work ttiandwork} 

At One Hundred Eighty-Eight Dollars and Fifty Cents 188 50 

-

4,712 50 

Per TON 

504.0 75 

Granite Club Type VA4S~fght 

At Seventy-Eight Dollars and Sixty-Five Cents 78 65 5,898,75 

Fen !F 

OrleansTotalAmaunt' ~ 5858,186.10 

Eight Hundred nifty-Eight Thousand One Hundred Eighty-Six Dollars and Ten Cents 

@F- ~~ ~Z„ 



aTTACHMENT a 
RDAD Rt:SURfAClNG BiD-SPECIFIC ROADS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QIJANTITiES 

Town Pravincatowrr 

Item ~ ~ Item with Unit t3td Price Written In Words 
Unit Bkt Pr1~ 

Datfats Cants 

Amount 

flotfars Cents 

t41.3 2,500 

Street Swe~ing 

At Dne Dollar and Twenty-Five Cents 1..25 3,125 00 

Per IF 

124.1 144 

Unclassified Excavation 

At Fifty-Two Dollars and Twenty Cents 5220 5,220 00 

Per CY 

129.4 5,500 

Paverent Milling 

At Three Dollars and Forty Cents 3 40 18,70UOtl 
Fer SY 

17D.0 500 

Fine Gratfing and Compacting 

At Six Dollars and Fifty Cents 6 50 3,250 00 

Per SY 

220.0 10 

Drainge S1nicluse Adjusted 

Ai Six Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and No Cents 625 00 6,250 00 

Per EA 

2242 i4 

Drainage Structure Rebuilt 

At Eight Hundred Dollars and No Cents 800 00 8,000 00 

Per v~ 

35t3A t0 

Gate BoX Adjusted 

At One Hundred Sixry-Five Dollars and No Cents 165A0 1,650,00 

Per EA 

4020 104 

Demme Graded Crush Stare for Sub•8ase 

AiOne Hundred Three Dollars and Seventy~Five Cent; 10375 10,375,00 

Per GY 

403.3 500 

Reclaimed Pavement for Base Course (lrcludG~g Calcium Chloride} 

At Sixteen Dollars and Fifty Cents 16.50 8,250 00 

Per SY 

460.0 454 

Hot Mix Asphalt 

At One Hundred Thirty Dollars and No Cents 130 00 58,500 00 

Per TON 

472.0 48 

Hot Mix Asphalt for MisceNareous Work (Handwork} 

Ai Two Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars and No Cents 265 00 10,600 00 

Per 7ON 

482.3 

y

504 

Sawing Asphalt Pavement 

At Four Dollars and Seventy Cents 4,70 2,350 00 

Per t_F 

BF- ~~" 



ATrACti MENT A 

ROAD RESURFACING BID-SPECIfiC ROADS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town Provincetown 

item 
Estim~ed 
Quan#ity 

item with Unit Btd Price Written in Words 
Unit Bkf Price 

ooaa~ i;ents 

Amount 

Mortars t:enrs 

504.0 50 

Granite Curb Type VA4-Straight 

Ai Eighty-One Dollars and No Cents 81 00 4,45840 

+ 

Per iF 

506.0 50 

Granite Curb Type V{3-Strali~t 

At Eighty-Five Dollars and Seventy Cents 85 70 4,285 00 

Per LF 

580.0 100 

Curb Removed and ReseE 

At Forty-Five Dollars and Thirty Cents 45 30 4,530►00 

Pet lF 

Provrncetown total Amount $149,135.00 

tine Hundred Forty-Nine Thousand One Hundred Thirty-Five Dollars and No Cents 

BF- ~,g ~ ~ 



ATTACHMtcNT A 

ROAD Rt'sSURFACING BID-SPECiRC itaAD5 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town Sandwich 

Item 
Estknated 
Quantity 

r
Stem with Unit Bid Price Written in Words 

Unk Bfd Price 

Doaars Cents 

Amount 

Dollars Cents 

101.3 15,516 

Sheet Sweeping 

At Zero Dollars and Fifty Cents 0 50 7,758A0 

Per CF 

020.1 433 

Unclassified Excavation 

At Twenty-Five Dollars and Sixty Cents 25 60 11,08480 

Per CY 

029.0 4,889 

Pavement Milling 

At One Dollar and Seventy Cents 170 8,311.30 

Per SY 

129.1 560 

Cold Planed (Milled} Paving Jafinfs 

At Thirty-Five Dollars and Sixty Cents 

r

35 

r

60 19,936 00 

Per SY 

170.0 4,889 

Fine Grading and Compacting 

Al One Dollar and Twenty Cents 1,20 5,866 80 

Per SY 

191.7 $ 

Teri Pit 

AtThree YIundred Seventy-Five Dollars and No Cents 375A0 3,000 00 

Per EA 

220.0 70 

Qrairge Structure Adjusted 

At Four Hundred Twenty Dollars and No Cents 420 0{} 29,400 00 

Per EA 

220.2 17 

prainage Structure Rebtnli 

At Four Hundred Five Dollars and No Cents 405.30 4,455 00 

Per VF 

358.0 28 

Gate Box Adjusted 

At One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and No Cents 125,00 3,500 00 

Per EA 

4020 120 

lknse Graded Crush Stone for Sub-Base 

At Seventy-Seven Dollars and Eighty Cents 77 80 9,336A0 

Per CY 

403.3 30,448 

Reclaimed Pavement far Base Course {including Calcium ChlorEde 

At Four Dollars and Ten Cents 4.10 124,840 90 

Per SY 

460.0 7,083 

Plot Mix Asphalt 

At One Hundred Dollars and No Cents 100 00 708,300 00 

Per TOh! 



ATTACFIMBNT A 

ROAD RES~RFApNG tilt?-SPEUFIC ROADS 

81!'3 FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town Sandwkh 

~n 
Estimated 

Quantity 
item with Unit Std Pdca Written in Wands 

Unit Bl~Price 

Dollars Cents 

Amount 

Dollars Cents 

472.0 338 

Fiat Mix Asphalt for Miscellaneous Work {lisrtttworkj 

At One Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars and Fifty Cents 16754 56,615 00 

Per TON 

Sandwkh TotavAmount $992,403.80 

Nine Hundred Ninety-Two Thousand Four Hundred Three Dollars and Eighty Cents 

P" °~ ~~ 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROAD RFSURFAONG B[Q-SPEdFIC ROADS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATEp QUANTITIES 

Town Yarmouth 

Item 
~uaM~ 

Item wlth ilntt Bid Price Written in Wards 
~~ 81d Prke 

Ct011ars Cents 

Amount 

Dottars Cenfis 

129.4 23,604 

Pavement M#!ling 

At Two Dollars and No Cents 2 00 47,200 0fl 

Per SY 

220.0 

. 

30 

Drainge Structure Adjusted 

At Three Hundred Sixty Dollars and No Cents 360 00 10,800100 

Per EA 

~~ ~ 

Drainage Structure Rebuilt 

At Four Hundred Sixty Dollars and No Cents 460 00 9,200100 

Pm' VF 

358.4 i4 

Ga#a Bax Adjusted 

At One Hundred Twenty-Five DaAars and No Cents 12~0fl 1,25flAfl 

Per l:A 

460.0 2,104 

Hat Mhc Asphalt 

At Ninety-Four Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents 94.25 197,425,00 

Per TON 

472.0 10 

Hot Mlx Asptral# tar Mfscetlanews Wack (Handwork) 

At Two Hundred Seventy Dollars and No Cenis 27 ~40 2,700A0 

Per TON 

4722 10 

Partial Depth Pavement Palch 

At One Hundred Forty-Six Dollars and No Cents 146 Ofl 1.460A0 

Per 5Y 

Yarmarrfh TotalAmount $270,535.flfl 

Two Hundred Seventy Thousand Five Hundred Thirty-Five Dollars and No Cents 

BF- p2~ 





20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8i 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with Lawrence Lynch Corp. for Roadway 
Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 1, 2019 through 
March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one additional year 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
Lawrence-Lynch Corp 
396 Gifford Street 
Falmouth, MA 02540 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 8th day of February, 2019 by and between Lawrence-
Lynch, Corp (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Mary Pat Flynn, Ronald Beaty and 
Ronald Bergstrom as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal 
liability. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Roadway Materials 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
items highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Towns 
harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, unemployment compensation 
benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Contractorfiles such claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as At#achment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 30, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year. 

4. Payment. Bids submitted as highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either party 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend #his Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. 
Such notice shall be given at least fifteen {15) calendar days before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the performance of #his Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 

7. Changes. The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 
performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 



performed hereunder. Such changes, inGuding any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Customer costs, which are mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, shall be 
incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shah take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran staters. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited 
to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1984, as amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 
1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. If this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. Ali subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shalt have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly or indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to 
became due the Contractor from the Towns under #his Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other ftnancial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Cantractorshall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 
All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. if this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 

14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 
by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 



not be made available to any individual or organiza#ion by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Contract. 

16, Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used for any partisan poll#ical activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 {b} (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51 % of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 
entities which directly or indirectly awn at least 51 % of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a party. All parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 
penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the ContractoPs failure 
to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. 1f the Contractor receives federal 
funds pursuant to #his Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal 
requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Profit entities that receive 
federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract. !f any provision 
of this Con#Tact is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of all obligakions under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 
and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any liability arising out 
of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the year Twa Thousand and Nineteen 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIDNERS: 

Ronald Beaty 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Bergstrom 

THE CONTRACTOR: 

Date 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

GENERAL 

The Work under this Contract consists of providing various materials as described herein to the Towns of 
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Orleans, 
Provincetown, Sandwich, Truro, Wellfleet and/or Yarmouth through an Agreement with the County of 
Barnstable. 

All Work done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the 1988 Massachusetts Highway 
Department {MDOT) Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the Supplemental Specifications, 
the 2005 Standard Special Provisions, the 2010 Construction Standard Details, and the 2009 Manual an 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and these Special Provisions. 

NO FUEL PRICE ADJUSTMENT WILL BE ALLOWED FOR ANY OF THE CONTRACT BID ITEMS 
CONTAINED HEREIN. As noted on the Bid Form, a liquid asphalt price adjustment will be allowed for 
the Hot Mix Asphalt (Loaded on Town Trucks) ONLY. No other bid items will be allowed price 
adjustments. 

The SpecaB! Provisions shall take precedence over the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

The vendor shall furnish manufacturer's certification that the materials conform tv the specifications. All 
material shall be delivered to and off loaded at each Town's Highway Division yard or to a mutually 
agreeable site, except Hot Mix Asphalt which shall be loaded on Town trucks at the plant. All costs of 
transportation shall be included in the prices bid. If, at any time, the materials delivered are found to be sub-
standard, the vendor shat) be responsible for removing the offending material at their cost, within ten (l 0) 
working days after receiving notification from the Town. 

All deliveries shall be made during each Town's normal business hours, Monday through Friday (except 
legal holidays), and in the presence of an authorized Town employee or agent. 

Delivery shalt be immediate unless the item is out of stock or not normally stocked, then the vendor shall 
notify the Town and shall make delivery within ten {10) days. 

If at any time the vendor is unable to famish materials or services as ordered by a Town. 

* The vendor shall be obligated to obtain delivery from another supplier and will in turn 
invoice the Town at the price specified in the Contract, or 

* The Town may order such materials or services from such places as are available, and 
the vendor shall reimburse the Town for al! expenses incurred above the Contract Brice. 

If services of the vendor are subsequently deemed to be unsatisfactory to any Town and/or are in violation 
of these specifications, aTown shall notify the said vendor in writing. If mutually agreeable arrangements 
cannot be achieved between the Town and the vendor, the tenors of the Contract for that Town will be 
terminated. Notice of termination will be in writing and notification will be sent by registered or certified 
mail. Termination will become effective three (3) days after mailing said notification. Termination of a 
Contract by any Town shall not invalidate or alter the terms of a similar Contract with any other Town. 

The vendor receiving an award shall, at no expense to any Town, adhere to Massachusetts General Law 
Chapter 1 i 1F - "Right to Know Law" as it shall apply to the items contained in the award notice. 

SP-! 



MSDS labels and data are required where applicable. 

ESTIMATED QUANTITIES BY TOWN 

Each Town has provided the estimated quantities far each bid item that it is presently planning to ase 
which can be found is Attachmeat A. Because of unanticipated funding levels and bid results, these 
estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. It there is no quantity provided for 
an item, then that specific Town does not intend to use that item. 

UN1T PRICE WORK 

Initially, the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the 
established unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of 
each item as indicated in the Agreement. The estimated quantities of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed 
and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. 
Determinations of the actual quantities and classification of Unit Price Work performed by CONTRACTOR 
will be made by each Town. 

Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by CONTRACTOR to be adequate to cover 
CONTRACTOR'S overhead and profit far each separately identified item. The prices bid shalt, without 
exception, include all royalties and other costs arising from patents, trademarks, and copyrights in any way 
involved in the materials to be supplied. 

When the accepted quantity of Work varies from the estimated quantity, the CONTRACTOR shall accept as 
payment in full, so far as each contract item is concerned, payment at the original Contract unit price for the 
accepted quantity of Work done. No allowance will be made for any increased expenses, loss of expected 
reimbursement or loss of anticipated profits suffered or claimed by the Contractor, resulting either directly 
or indirectly from such increased or decreased quantity. 

Each Town does not guarantee any minimum quantity of Unit Price Work. The CONTRACTOR may 
contact each Town to obtain information regarding quantities used in previous years, if he so chooses. 
However, each Town will not guarantee that an equal or greater quantity of Unit Price Work will be 
requested. Each Town reserves the right to purchase quantities of Contract materials from other sources far 
emergency or other reasons. 

The vendor shall submit separate invoices accompanied by signed delivery slips to each using division/ 
department of each Town. 

It shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to inform each Town when the sum of all orders for 

units of Work is within 90% of the total Contract price for that Town. The CONTRACTOR'S rotal billing 
can noE exceed the total Contract price without prior written approval by each Town. 

TAXES 

State taxes will be excluded from alI General and Sub-bids. The Towns shall provide their exemption 
certificate number to the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall gay all taxes required to be paid by 
CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are 
applicable during the performance of the Work. 

SP-2 



WEIGHING

AU materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery and the 
weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may provide use of its 
scale and require gross weights and vehicle tare weights verified at Lime of delivery. 

MISCELLANEOUS

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding 
on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically, but 
without limitation, moneys that may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically 
stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

The County and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and Icgal 
representatives in respect to al! covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

This CONTRACT shall be deemed to include all terms and requirements imposed by laws related to the 
performance of the Work on the Project or Services. 

This is not an exclusive contract to provide services or materials to the County and Towns. The County and 
Towns reserve the right to contract for similar services or materials. 

INTEREST

AlI monies not paid when due hereunder shall bear interest at the maximum rate allowed by law at the place 
of the Project. 

SP-3 



ITEM 200 HOT MUC ASPHALT {LOADED ON TQWN TRUCICSI 

Bituminous Concrete {Hot Mix Asphalt} shall be manufactured in conformance with the material, 
composition, mixing, testing and plant requirements of Standard Specification Section M3. Top course mix, 
binder course mix and dense mix shall be furnished, as required, and loaded en Town trucks. 

ITEM 20I SAND BORROW 
ITEM 202 LOAM BORROW 

Sand and Loam Borrow materials shall conform to the following Standard Specification subsections: 

Sand Borrow -for Winter Maintenance • M 1.04.0 Type a {Washed} 
Loam Borrow - M 1.05.0 

Sand shall be washed and screened through a one quarter inch (1/4") screen. The sand must be coarse and 
free from clay, silty loam and other undesirable materials. Deliveries of sand shall be made during the 
vendor's normal business hours, Monday through Friday. A Town may require, at its discretion, that 
emergency deliveries must be made during other periods to include Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays and non-
business hours Monday through Friday at no extra cost to the Town. The vendor shall complete normal and 
emergency deliveries within a l2 hour period after receiving a request for delivery (maximum delivery 
1,000 tons per 1 ~ hours). 

Loam borrow shall be screened to removed alI stones and ether material larger than I inch. 

ITEM 203 1-I12" CRUSHED STONE {DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM 204 3/4" CRUSHED STONE (DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM 20~ 318" PEASTONE (DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM 206 aid" DENSE GRADES CRUSHED STONE 

Aggregate materials shall conform to the following Standard Specification subsections: 

Crushed Stone - M 2.01.1 through 2.01.6 (double washed) 
Dense Graded Crushed Stone - M 2.01.7 (3/4") 

A requirement for all grades of crushed stone {except dense graded) shall be that not more than 0.3°/'0 of 
unsatisfactory material xhall pass a No.4 sieve. 

ITEM 207 RECYCLED ASPHALT 

The recycled asphalt material shall meet the following gradation requirements: 

Sieve 
Designation 
3" 

1-i/2" 
3/4" 
#4 

#50 

#200 

Percentage By Weight 
Passing Through 

100 
70 -loo 
50 - 85 
3©- 60 

8 - 24 
0- 10 

5F-0 



The stone and sand material shall consist of inert material that is hard, angular, and durable, and free from 
cement concrete, brick, reinforcing steel, glass, wood, building rubble, loam and clay and other deleterious 
materials. Native round stone and materials that break up when alternately frozen and thawed or wetted and 
dried shall not be used. The material shall be "T-base" as manufactured by Aggregate Industries, Inc. or 
approved equivalent. 

Each stockpile shall be tested {at no additional cost to the Town) far sieve analysis and California Bearing 
Ratio {CBR} by an independent, qualified Massachusetts laboratory. The certified results shall be equal to 
or 

greater than that of gravel borrow {M I .U3.0 type b}, and the certifications shall be supplied to each Town, 
The processed material shall be stockpiled in such a manner as to minimize segregation of particle sizes. 
All recycled pavement material shall come from approved stockpiles. 

The material shall be subject to review and approval by a Town prior to delivery. 

ITEM 248 4'x4' PRECAST LEACH GALLEY 
ITEM 209 I,QOp GALLON PRECAST CATCH BASIN 
ITEM 214 1,000 GALLON PRECAST LEACH PIT 
ITEM ail 4' DIA,,METER PRECAST CATCH HASIN W/OFFSET TOP 

All precast structures shall be capable ofwithstanding H-201oading with a minimum concrete strength of 
4,000 psi (rr~ 28 days. Steel reinforcement shall be Grade 60 meeting ASTM-A-615 requirements. 

The 1,00{? Gallon Precast Solid Catch Basin shall have a solid bottom or include a 6' diameter Basin Pad 
meeting the same rquirements as the structures. The cost of the Base Pad shall be included with the cost of 
the structure. 

The 4' Diameter Precast Catch Basin w/Offset Tap shall have separate top with an offset opening. The 
structure shall have a 4 foot deep sump below the outlet pipe. 

The Town shall specify the hole diame#er and hole location{s) at the time of order. 

The manufactwer shall deliver the structure to the Town DPW or at the installation location as specified by 
the Town. 

Payment for the precast drainage structures shall be by the Contract Untt Price per Each delivered, 

5A-5 



BID FORM 
MATERIALS 

{UNIT PRICE WORK) 

State the Unit Bid Frice {written in words and in numerals) far each Town listed (see At#aehtneat A fos 
Estimated Quantities}, Bidders may wish to contact each Town to obtain actual quantities purchased 
during prior years. Bidders may bid on any or all items far any or all Towns. Bid selection will be by each 
item and will be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each 
Town. 

Price Aduusmments: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation {MassD4T) method for calculating 
price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel fuel, gasoline, and 
structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Liquid Asphalt adjusmmnnt shall apply to Hat Mix Asphalt 
(Loaded on Town Tracks) on orders greater than 1~ tons where the adjustment results in a change 
in the Unit Price of 5% or more. No other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt price adjustment shall be based on the difference between the price at the time of the bid 

{base bid price) and the pries on the date of paving. The Liquid Asphalt base bid price shall be the price 
posted on the MassDOT Website for the month of December, 201$. 

Tied Bids: In the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the awarded bidder. 



PLEASE USE THIS AS THE COVER SHEET FOR YOUR B1D 

CERTIFICATE of NON-COLLUSION AND TAX COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter 62C, Section 49A, t certify under the penalties of perjury that 1, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with all taws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and con#rectors, and withholding and 

remitting child support. 

1 certify under the penalties of perjury that this bidlproposal has been made and submitted in good 

faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certificate, the word 

"person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, 

club or other legal organization, entity or group of individuals. 

Company:  Lawrence-Lynch Cori. 

Address:  396 Gifford Street 

Falmouth, MA 02540 

Signature of Individual Sig 

Bid, or Gorporate Officer: 
Christopher M. Lynch, P 

Telephone Number:  (SOS) 548-1800 

Social Security Number 

Or Federal Identification Number; OJ-0807936 

Date:  January 24, 2019 

Any person or corporation which tally to axaaute thin document 

will ba cansidarad a non~rasporurlve bidder 

and will be roJected putsnant tc MdL Chapter 30, 34iN. 

~~•3 



Charles ¢ 9ater, Gduerrwr 

Karyn E Pdna, Clct:trnarrc Gc~srnor 
SrcPharnc f'dldOt Sccrtary S tE0 
Jorwttf~in L tiuikvaG Nighway.ltlrtYnkvatot 

LAWRENCE LYNCH GORP 

PO BOX 913 

FAlMOtJ31i, MA 02541-0913 

Oear Contractor. 

Oep~roncr+i o! 3tteaQo+rladd+uf 
Highway Lkivision 

January 03, 2019 

Prequalification Certificate No LA30~7 

in accordance with the Reputations Governing Prequalificatian of Contractors, as approved by the Massachusetts Department of 
Transportation Prequalification Ganmfttee, you are hereby notfied that the following class{es) of work and Single Contract Limits 
(if applicable) have been assigned to you as of the date of this letter_ !fin the opinion of the Cammiitee you fated to submit 
proper documentation or have not demonstrated the abiNty to perform alt classes of work requested then you were denied 
Prequalification Status far that classes) of work. 

Qualified Class of Wark Umit Amount Dualitied Class at Work Limit Amount 

Bridge - Constnx~ion 54,114,000.00 Bridge -Culverts 51,800,000.00 

Bridge -Deck Repairs 51,800,000.00 Dam Construction s3,00a,oao.ao 
Demolition sa,aoo,000.ao Drainage 57sao,00a.00 
t-~ghway - B~Ce Paths 517,200,000.00 Highway -Construction s17,2o0,000.aa 
:highway -Sidewalk And Curbing 517,200,000.00 Pavement -Milling And Colo Planing 55,000,000.00 

pavement -Surfacing 58,000,000.00 Recreation Facititias 54,430,000.00 

Sewer and Water 57,5ao2ono.o0 

Bonding Capacity S200,000,000.00 Bond Single Limit 5120,000,000.00 Facpiration Date 5!3112019 

The class{es) of work, Single Contract Limits and Aggregate Bonding Capacity set forth will continue in effect until May 3i, 2019 
unless previously modified or rescinded in accordance with the Regulations, or by taw. in order to be continuously eligible to bid 
on pn~cts to be undertaken for this Department, your next Prequalification Statement should be submitted at feast 30 days prior 
to expiration of this Certificate. if there are arty questions or concerns, contact the Prequalification Department at {857) 388-8660 
or email to prequai,r104l~state.ma.us. 

Very ~: y yours, 
THE_ - ~ QUALIi=r~,~' Ct~MM1TTEE 

By: ~ ~ s '~ _ , , 
Q'L'l1'~ 

tsido ~'OeJesus Pe 
Direct:•. -Office of Construction Prequalification 
R- • ., ~ Procedures 



ATTACIIMENT A 
BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES BY TOWN 

BID FOAM 

Each Town has provided estimated quantities for each bid item that it presently intends to order. These 

estimated quantities are far bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. The estimated amounts are also a 

total aggregate which the town intends to use during the contract period and the bidder should familiarize 

themselves with the minimum job quantities defined in the individual specifications for each item. 

BID IDENTIFICATION: ROAD CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 
{UNIT PRICE WORIQ 

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO: 
{Name and Address 
of Owner) 

Office of the County Commissioners 
Superior Court House 
P.O. Box 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts fl2630 

1. The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if the Bid is accepted to enter into an Agreement with 
the County, to complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract 
Unit Prices during the contract period of April I, 2019 to March 3i, 2026, with an option to renew 
for one additional year and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

2. BIDDER accepts alI of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders. This Bid will remain 
open for sixty (60} days a$er the day of Bid opening. BIDDER will sign the Agreement and submit 
other documents (e.g. Bands, Insurance Binders} required by the Contract Documents within five (5} 
working days after the date of the County's Notice of Award. 

3. In submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that: 

3.1 BIDDER has examined copies of all the Contract Documents and of 
the fallowing addenda: NlA 

Date Number 
Date Number 
Date  Number 

{receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged} and also copies of the Notice to 
Bidders arni the Instructions to Bidders. 

3.2 BIDDER has examined the legs! requirements {federal, state and local laws, by-laws, Hales and 
regulations) and the conditions affecting cost, progress of performance of the Work and has 
made such independent investigations as BIDDER deems necessary. 

3.3 This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or an behalf of any undisclosed person, firm 
or corporation, and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement ar rules of any group, 
association, organization or corporation; BIDDER has not directly or indirectly induced or 
solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; BIDDER has not solicited or induced 
any person, firm ar corporation to refrain from bidding; and BIDDER has pat sought by 
collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or aver the County. 

BF-1 



4. BIDDER will complete alI the Work assigned for the unit prices} Iisted in the Bid Farm. 

5. The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid: 

5.1 A tabulation of Subcontractors and other persons or organizations required to be identified in 
this Bid. 

5. Communications concerning this Bid shall be addressed to: 

Company Name: 

Address: 

Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 

396 Gifford Street, Falmouth, MA 42544 

Telephone No.:  (548? 5~8-1840 

Fax No.:  (548) 548-6917 

E-mail Address:. cllrrrch@lawrencelynch.com 

Bidder's Contact Person:  _Christo~rher M. Lynch 

7. Bid comparison will be based on each item unit price provided for each Town. Bidden may bid on 
any or all items for any or all Towns listed, Bid selection will be by each item by Town and will be 
based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid far each item for each Town. 

8. The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this Bid is in all respects bona fide, fair and 
made without collusion or fraud with any ocher person. As used in this paragraph, the word "person" 
steal! mean any natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal entity. 

SUBMITTED on  _ Ianuary 24 

An Individual 

BY  ,  r_,~ ...-- (SEAL) 
{Individual's Name and Signature) 

doing business as 

Business address: 

Phone No.: 

SF•2 

.2Q18 



A Pat-ltiersbip 

By (SEAL) 
{Firm Narne) 

(General Partner Name and Signatwe) 

Business address; 

Fbone Na.:  

A Cornoration 

By Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 

{Corporation Name) 

MA 

(Name of pe - uthorized ~i ~ r :and Signatwe) 
Christopher M. Lynch, President 

{Corporate Seal) 

Attest _ 
Doris Christiani (Secretary) 

Business address:,  ,~ 396 Gifford Street 

Falmouth. Mf+. 42540 

Phone No.: 1508), 54$-_18U0 

B F-3 



A Jain# Veatare 

By 
(Name and Signature) 

(Address} 

By 
(Name and Signature) 

(Address) 

(Each joint 1~enture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and corporation that 
is party to L~:e joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.) 



BID Ft3RM 
MATERIALS 

(UNIT PRICE WORK] 

State the Unit Hid Price (written in words and in numerals) for each Town Listed (see Attachment A for 
Estimated Quatttities}. Bidders may wish to contact each Town to obtain actual quantities purchased 
during prior years. Bidders may bid on any or all items for any ar all Towns. Bid selection will be by each 
item and wi[I be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each 
Town. 

Price Adjustments: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) method for calculating 
price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel fuel, gasoline, and 
structure! steel shall apply to this bid The Liquid Asphalt adjustznent shall apply to Hot Min Asphalt 
(Loaded as Town Tracks) on orders greater than 104 tuns where the adjustment resells in a change 
in the Unit Price of 5% ar more. No other adjustments will made io the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt price adjustment shall be based on the difference between the price at the time of the bid 
{base bid price) and the price on the date afpaving. The Liquid Asphalt base bid price shall be the price 
pasted on the MassDOT Wehsite for the month of December, 2418. 

Tied Bids: in the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the awarded bidder. 

9F-6 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS 81D 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATEI3 QUANTITIES 

Item 200 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Hot Mix Asphalt {Loaded on Town Trucks) Per TON 

Town Unit 8fd Prfre in Wards !n Numerals 

Barnstable 7S0 
Seventy-Four Dollars and No Cents ~74.ao 

Bourne 400 Seventy-Four Dollars and No Cents $74.00 

Brewster 500 Seventy-Four Dollars and No Cents $74.00 

Chatham 100 
Ceventy-Four Dollars and No Cents 574.00 

Aennis S00 Seventy-Four Dollars and No Cents 574,00 

Harwich 100 Seventy-Four Dollars and No Cents 574.00 

Orleans 100 Seventy-Four Dollars and No Cents $74.00 

Sandwich 700 
SPvant-?t-Fniir Dollars and No Cents 574.00 

Yarmouth 500 Seventy-Four Dollars and No Cents 574.00 

item 201 

Town 

eamstable 

Estimated 

Quantity 

500 

Brewster 2,000 

Chatham 1,OD0 

Dennis 

Item 202 

Town 

Barnstable 

200 

Estimated 

Quantity 

500 

Brewster 100 

Chatham 200 

Oennfs 20D 

Sandwich 200 

Sand Borrow 

Unit 81d Prlre in Words 

Loam Borrow 

tlnfr 6fd Prfce fn Words 

Per TON 

fn Numerols 

Per TON 

In Numerols 

BF-



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS BiD 

81D FORM ANO ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 203 

Town 

Barnstable 

Estimated 

Quantity 

l0D 

Bourne 30D 

Brewster 500 

Chatham 150 

Dennis 500 

Sandwich 20D 

Yarmouth 

Item 204 

500 

Estimated 

quantity 

1-Ij2" trusteed Stone {Daubte Washed] 

UAit 8fd Prue in Words 

3j4" Gushed Stone (Double Washedy 

Per TON 

in Numernls 

Per TON 

Town Unit Bid !=rite in Wards fn fUumerais 

Barnstable 50 

Bourne 200 

Brewster 250 

Chatham 50 

Dennis 200 

Sandwich 200 

Yarmouth 50 

item 2135 

Tawn 

Barnstable 

Estimated 

Quantity 

50 

Brewster 250 

Chatham 100 

Dennis 200 

Sandwich 100 

Yarmouth 50 

3 j8" Peastone (Double Washed} 

Unit Std Prite to Words 

Per TON 

ttt Numerals 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS BID 

BID FURM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 205 
Estimated 

Quantity 
3/4" Dense Graded Crushed Stone Per TON 

Town Unit Bid Prue in Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 500 

Bourne SQO 

Brewster 500 

Chatham 25 

Dennis 500 

Orleans 2,000 

Sandwich 200 

Yarmouth 500 

Item 207 

Town 

Brewster 

Estimated 

Quantity 

100 

Chatham 100 

i3ennis 6(}0 

Harwich 400 

Sandwich 

Item 20$ 

Town 

Barnstable 

200 

Estimated 

Quantity 

10 

Brewster SO 

Chatham 2 

Dennis 20 

Sandwich 8 

Yarrnauth 10 

Rerycle .Asphalt 

Unit 81d Price in Words 

4'x4' Precast Leach Galley 

Unit Bid Prlte !n Wards 

Per TON 

In Numerals 

Per EA 

in Numerals 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS BID 

BtD FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTtT1ES 

item 209 

Town 

Barnstable 

Estimated 
Quantity 

10 

Brewster 25 

Chatham 

Dennis 

Sandwich 

Item 210 

Town 

Barnstable 

5 

d 

Estimated 

Quantity 

10 

Brewster 25 

Chatham 8 

Dennis 10 

Sandwich 6 

1000 Gallon Precast Catch Basin 

Unli BJd Price 1n Words 

1000 Gallon Precast teach Pit 

Unli 81d Price in Words 

Per EA 

fi Numerals 

Per tJl 

Jn Numerals 

Item 2i1 
Estimated 

Quantity 
4' Diameter Precast Catch Basin w/Offset Top Per EA 

Town Unit 8fd Price In Words !n Nutrrerots 

Barnstable 10 

Brewster 1S 

Chatham 2 

Dennis 5 

Sandwich 2 

Yarmouth 5 

BF ~ 



,a~coRo® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
DATE (MM/DDIYYYY) 

2/8/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 

The Driscoll Agency 
141 Longwater Drive, Suite 203 
Norwell MA 02061 

CONTACT 
NAME: 
PHONE 781-681-6656 Fax 781 681 6686 
( Extl: (AIC Nol: 
MA 

Lo 

ADDREss: kchristianson@driscollagency.com 

INSURERS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INsuRERA:OId Republic General Ins Corp. 24139 
INSURED 3130 
Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 
PO Box 913 
Falmouth MA 02541 

INsuRERB:Travelers Indemnity Co of CT 25682 

INsuRERc:Starr Indemnity &Liability Co. 38318 

INSURER D 

INSURER E 

INSURER F 

ER: 783406208 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
LTR TYpE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL 
INSD 

SUER 
WVD POLICY NUMBER 

POLICY EFF 
(MMIDDIYYYY) 

POLICY EXP 
(MMIDD/YYYY) LIMITS 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY A2CG99941807 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 

PREM SESO(Ea occu ante) $100,000 CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR 

MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000 X X.C.0 InCI 

PERSONAL&ADVINJURY $1,000,000 X BlktContractual 

GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000 GEN'L AGGREGATE

POLICY 

OTHER: 

X 

LIMIT APPLIES 

JERCOT-

PER: 

LOC PRODUCTS-COMP/OPAGG $2,000,000 

$ 

A AUTOMOBILE 

X 

X 

LIABILITY 

ANY AUTO 

OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY 
HIRED 
AUTOS ONLY X 

SCHEDULED 
AUTOS 
NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY 

A2CA99941807 (MA) 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 EaaBcideDt51NGLE LIMIT 
$1,000,000 

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
(Per accident) $ 

Comp 8 Coll Deductib $1,000 

C 

X 

UMBRELLA LIAB 

EXCESS LIAB 

X  OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE 

1000585026181 4/1!2018 4/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000 

AGGREGATE $10,000,000 

$ DED X RETENTION $0 
A WORKERS COMPENSATION 

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 
OFFICER/MEMBOER/EXCLUDED?ECUTIVE  

(Mandatory in NH) 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 

y / N
N N!A 

A2CW99941807 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 X STATUTE X 
~RH USLBH 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000 

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000 

E.L. DISEASE -POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000 

B Contractors Equipment 
Leased/Rented Equipment All Risk 
Installation Floater 

OT660739X9338-TCT-18 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 Schad 8 Unsched On File W/Ins. Co. 
Max Per Item: $500,000 
Per Job site Limit $1,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS /LOCATIONS /VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

FY2019 Barnstable County "Supply of Roadway Materials" 4/1/19 through 3/31/20. 

Barnstable County is included as Additional Insured for Automobile Liability on a Primary Basis for the conduct of the (Named) Insured, but 
only to the extent of that liability. 

Barnstable County is included as Additional Insured for General Liability for ongoing operations per form CG2010 04/13 and for completed 
See Attached... 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

I 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable MA 02630 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
//', 

r 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: 3130 

LOC #: 

ACS ~ 
~' 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1 

AGENCY 

The Driscoll Agency 

POLICY NUMBER 

CARRIER NAIC CODE 

NAMED INSURED 

Lawrence-Lynch Corp. 
PO Box 913 
Falmouth MA 02541 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUMBER: 25  FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 

operations per form CG2037 04/13 and Excess Liability, as required by a signed written contract or agreement with the Named Insured. 

The Additional Insured coverage for a General &Excess Liability detailed above applies on a primary, non-contributory basis where required 
by a signed written contract or agreement with the named insured. 

The General Liability, Excess Liability, Automobile Liability and Workers Compensation /Employers Liability Policies include a Waiver of 
Subrogation in favor of Barnstable County is on whose behalf the Named Insured is required to obtain this Waiver under a written contractor 
agreement executed prior to a loss. 

General Liability policy includes coverage for "X, C, U" (hazards, collapse of building, blasting and damage to underground property), 
Completed Operations and Contractual Liability. 

30 day's notice of cancellation, except 60 days applies to GL, Auto, WC and Excess Liability. 10 Days notice applies to non-payment of 
premium, on all policies. 

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 









20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8j 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with Markings Inc. for Miscellaneous 
Public Works for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 1, 2019 
through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one (1) additional year 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

ark 

Markings, Inc. 
30 Riverside Drive 
Pembroke, MA 02359 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day of 2019 by and between Markings, 
Inc. (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Ronald Bergstrom, Ronald Beaty and Mary Pa# 
Flynn as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal liability. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Miscellaneous Public 
Works 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
items highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to pertorm the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Towns 
harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, unemployment compensation 
benefits, retirement benefi#s, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Contractorfiles such claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year. 

a. Payment. The low prices submitted in their bid and as highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to fulfill or pertorm its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either party 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. 
Such notice shall be given at least fifteen (7 5) calendar days before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of #his Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the pertormance of this Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 



7. Changes. The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 
performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Customer costs, which are mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, shall be 
incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and empbyees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran status, The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited 
to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 
1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9, Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. If this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affrmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly or indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11, Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly ar indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to 
become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer period as is specified herein 
All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. If this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 

14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 



by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 
not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other ma#erials prepared under this 
Contract. 

16. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51 % of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 
entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51 % of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the taws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a party. All parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shah promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonweal#h and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 
penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractor's failure 
to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal 
funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal 
requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Profit entities that receive 
federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract. if any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 
and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any liability arising out 
of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the year Two Thousand and Nineteen. 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABI.ECOUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Beaty 

Date 

FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 

Date 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Work under this Contract consists of providing various materials as described herein to the Towns of 
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Orleans, 
Provincetown, Sandwich, Truro, Wellfleet, and Yarmouth through an Agreement with the County of 
Barnstable. 

All Work done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the i 988 Massachusetts Highway 
Department (MassDOT) Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the Supplemental Specifications. 
the 2005 Standard Special Provisions, the 2010 Construction Standard Details, and the 2009 Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and these Special Provisions. The General Conditions and 
Specia) Provisions shall take precedence over the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

As noted on the Bid Form, steel price adjustments will be allowed for a limited number of items. 

FOR ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 5EE ATTACHMENT A 

WORK SCHEDULE 

The Contractor shall commence Work within ten (10) working days of receiving a Notice to Proceed from a 
Town. If the Contractor can not begin work within the ten (10) working days, that Town may order such 
services from such contractors as are available, and the Contractor shall reimburse that Town for all expenses 
incurred above the Contract Price. When needing work completed for those items that will be awazded to the 
two (2) lowest bidders, each Town shall first forward by a-mail or fax a Notice to Proceed to the lower of the 
two lowest bidders. If the lowest bidder does not schedule the work requested within forty-eight (48} hours 
of receiving the Notice to Proceed and/or can not begin (and remain at) work within ten (10) working days, 
then the Town shall have the right to forward a Notice to Proceed to the second low bidder. 

Work is restricted to a normal eight-hour day, five-day week, with Contractor and all subcontractors working 
on the same shift. 

No Work shall be done on this Contract on Saturdays, Sundays or holidays or on the day before or the day 
after a long weekend which involves a holiday without prior approval by the specific Town. 

OSHA REQUIREMENT 

Any employee found on the worksite without documentation of the successful completion of a course in 
construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

that is at least 10 hours in duration shall be subject to immediate removal. OSHA certifications must be 
submitted with the certified payrolls for all workers during the first week they work on a project. 

PROGRESS OF WORK 

The Contractor shall promptly starE and continue actual construction work under this Contract with the 

necessary equipment to properly execute and complete this Contract in the specified time. No cessation of 

Contractor's operations will be allowed without the approval of the Engineer. The rate of progress shall be 

satisfactory to that Town and the Engineer. The Contractor shall famish to the Engineer a schedule for the 

Work prior to the start of construction. 

SP-I 



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THE FIELD 

The Contractor shall keep a copy of the Contract Documents at the work site at all times while work is being 

performed and said copy is to be available to those in charge of work. 

POLICE SERVICES 

Each Town shall provide all Town police services at no cost to the Contractor to direct traffic when such 

protection is required by that Town's Police Department. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for 

contacting and scheduling police services with the Police Department. If the Contractor must cancel police 

services, he must do so within the time limits set by the Police Department. If the Contractor does not cancel 

police services within the time limits, then Contractor shall be responsible to promptly pay the minimum 

required amount. 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE 

The Contractor shall be required without additional compensation to provide safe and convenient access to all 

abutters during the prosecution of the Work. 

No excavation shall be left open during non-working hours. 

MSDS sheets and information shall be available on site and copies submitted to a Town as requested. 

NECESSARY ACCESS FOR FIRE APPARATUS AND OTHER EMERGENCY VEHICLES SHALL BE 
MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE POLICE 

AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS AT ALL TIMES REGARDING ACCESS. 

For the protection of life and property, all backfill operations shall follow closely behind completed work. 

The Contractor shall insure that no excavation be left open, unguarded, or water filled during any period of 
time when work is not actually in progress. It is the purpose and intent that all excavations and backfill, 
including consolidation operatians, and temporary surfacing within an area be accomplished expeditiously 
before proceeding to other work areas. 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws, regulations and Guidelines of any public body (example: 

OSHA, DIGSAFE, MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines, Police) having jurisdiction for the safety of 
persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary 
signs/ safeguards for such safety and protectian at no extra cost to the Owner. See General Conditions also. 

CLEANUP

Cleanup shall be done on a daily basis. At the end of each working period, the Contractor shall completely 

backfill all holes and trenches, and remove all equipment from the traveled way. The Contractor shall ensure 

that all safety marking and warning devices are satisfactorily in place prior to leaving any job. 

During the course of the Work, the Contractor shall keep the site of his operations in as clean and neat 

condition as is possible. He shall dispose of all residue resulting from the construction work and, at the 

conclusion of the work, he shall remove and hau! away any surplus excavation, broken pavement, lumber, 

equipment, temporary structures, and any other refuse remaining from the construction operations, and shall 

leave the entire site of the work in a neat and orderly condition. 
SP-2 



Sweeping and cleaning of surfaces beyond the limits of the Project to clean up material caused by spillage or 
vehicular tracking during the various phases of the work shall be considered as incidental to the Work being 
performed under the Contract and there will be no additional compensation. 

EMERGENCY CONTACTS 

The Contractor shall maintain a 24-hour, 7-day a week telephone service and a local facility to handle 
emergency requirements such as settled trenches, clogged drains, rain damage, work zone safety issues, etc. 
A list of personnel (minimum of two) and their telephone numbers shall be submitted to the Engineer, the 
Highway Superintendent (or his designee), the Public Works Director and to the local Police and Fire 
Departments. This requirement shall apply during the entire length of the Project. or Service for each Town 
where work is being completed. This list shall be submitted on the Contractor's letterhead and shall state that 
should an emergency arise during the implementation of this Project or Service, these people are to be 
contacted. The Contractor shall submit this letter to the Engineer prior to initiating construction. The 
Highway Superintendent for each Town or his designee has the right to determine whether or not an 
emergency exists and to require Contractor to promptly resolve the emergency at no cost to that Town. If 
Contractor can not respond in a timely manner as determined by the Highway Superintendent, the Town has 
the right to complete the necessary work and to bill Contractor for that work. 

DIGSAFE

The Contractor shall notify "Mass. DIG SAFE" and the Local Water Department or District and procure a 
DIG SAFE number of each location prior to disturbing ground in any way. 

"DIG-SAFE" Calt Center: Tcicphone 1-888-344-7233 

Commonwealth Electric has a policy regarding the location of eieciric utilities. Dig-Safe can no longer be 
relied upon to locate electric utilities that are "privately" owned. This can include electric cables located in 
Public ways that run from utility poles to buildings. It is therefore incumbent upon Contractor to ascertain if 
any electric cables are located in any area prior to excavation. This will be done at Contractor's expense. 

The Contractor shall make his own investigation to assure that no damage to existing structures, drainage 
lines, traffic signal conduits, and other utilities will occur as a result of his operations 

PROTECTION OF UTILITIES AND PROPERTY 

The Contractor, in constructing or installing facilities alongside or near sanitary sewers, storm drains, water 
or gas pipes, electric or telephone conduits, poles, sidewalks, walls, vaults or other structures shall, at his 

expense, sustain them securely in place, cooperating with the officers and agents of the various utility 
companies and municipal departments which control them, so that the services of these structures shall be 

maintained. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the repair or replacement, at his own expense, of 
any damage to such structures caused by his acts or neglect, and shall leave them in the same condition as 
they existed prior to commencement of the Work. In case of damage to utilities, the Contractor shall 
promptly notify the utility owner and shall, if requested by the Engineer, furnish labor and equipment to work 
temporarily under the owner's direction in providing access to the utility. Pipes or other structures damaged 
by the operation of the Contractor may be repaired by the municipality or by utility owner which suffers the 

loss. The cost of such repairs shall be borne by the Contractor, without compensation therefor. 

SP-3 



If, as the Work progresses, it is found that any of the utility structures are so placed as to render it 
impracticable, in the judgment of the Engineer, to do the Work called for under this Contract, the Contractor 
shall protect and maintain the services in such utilities and structures and the Engineer will, as soon thereafter 
as reasonable, cause the position of the utilities to be changed or take such other actions deemed suitable and 
proper. 

If live service connections are to be interrupted by excavations of any kind, the Contractor shall not break the 
service until new services are provided. Abandoned services shall be plugged off or otherwise made secure. 
Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals for doing all the work 
involved in protecting or repairing property as specified in this section, shall be considered included in the 
prices paid for the various Contract items of Work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 

PROVISIONS FOR TRAVEL AND PROSECUTION OF THE WORK 

Far the items that require traffic control, the Contractor shall supply and use traffic control devices, 
positioning and methodology, conforming with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
and MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines at no additional cost to any Town. Traffic control devices 
required only during working hour operations shall be removed at the end of each working day. Signs having 
messages that are irrelevant to normal traffic conditions shall be removed or properly covered at the end of 
each work period. Signs shall be kept clean at all times and legends shall be distinctive and unmarred. 

Particular care should be taken to establish and maintain methods and procedures which will not create 
unnecessary or unusual ha2ards to public safety. 

WORK DONE BY OTHERS 

Relocation and/or resetting to new grades of all private utilities, including utility poles, made necessary by 

the construction of this Project, will be accomplished by the respective utility companies. 

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS MATERIALS 

All materials not required or needed for use on the Project, and not required to be removed and stacked, shall 

become the property of the CONTRACTOR and shall be removed from the site and legally disposed of. No 

separate payment will be made for this Work, but all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the 

prices bid for various Contract items. 

COMPACTION

Compaction offilled areas under pavement (no matter what type of fill material) shall be completed in b" 

lifts. Compaction offilled areas elsewhere (no matter what type of fill material} shall be completed in 12" 

lifts. Appropriate compaction equipment shall be used. 

PROPERTY BOUNDS 

Any bounds or markers flagged by a Town and disturbed by the Contractor shall be replaced utilizing the 

services of a Registered Land Surveyor. The cost of replacing flagged bounds or markers disturbed by the 

Contractor's operations shall be at the Contractor's expense. 

WEIGHING

5P-4 



All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery and the 
weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may provide use of its 
scale and require gross weights and vehicle tare weights verified at time of delivery. 

SP-5 



ITEM 100 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 
ITEM 101 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR STOP BARS &CROSSWALKS 
ITEM IOZ CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR ARROWS &MISCELLANEOUS 
MARKINGS 

The Work shall include the famishing and installing of alkyd traffic paint modified with chlorinated rubber 
and glass beads conforming to Section M7 of the Standard Specifications. The white or yellow reflectorized 
traffic paint shall comply with Section 860 of the Standard Specifications. 

Low VOC Chlorinated Rubber Traffic Paint 

The durable, fast drying, Alkyd modified with chlorinated rubber traffic paint shall conform to the current 
V.O.C. regulations and the following: 

Composition White Yellow (lead free) 
Vehicle % by wt. 40-43 40-43 
Pigment % by wt. 57-80 57-60 
Total Solids % by wt. 74 min 74 min 
Total Solids % by vol, 50 min 50 min 
V.O.C. grams/liter 150 max 150 max 
Titanium dioxide rutile (type II) 1 lb/gal min .3 lbs/gal min 
Organic yellow pigment (lead free) n/a .2S lbs/gal min 
Chlorinated rubber .S lbs/gal min .S Ibs/gal min 

Detailed Rectuirements 
WUGaI 12.5 +/-.2 12.1 +/-.2 
Viscosity K.U. 75-85 75-85 
Dry Time I S mils wet film 10 max 10 max 
@ 77 F Minutes 
Dry Opacity @ 15 mils wet .96 min .96 min 
Reflectance 84 min 50 min 
Grind 3 min 3 min 
CC Flash Point (F) (-4 F) min {-4 F) min 

The application rates shall be l galIan of paint and 5 pounds of beads per 320 iineaz feet of 4" wide line. 

Application Conditions 

Temperature: 50°F {10°C}minimum, 110°F (43°C} maximum (air, surface, and material) and at least 5°F 
(2.8°C) above dew point 
Relative humidity: 8S%maximum 

Equipment

The Contractor shall supply 1 long line spray truck, manufactured with stainless steel components to properly 
apply alkyd traffic paint modified with chlorinated rubber, capable of applying solid lines in a sharp and true 
manner. The unit must have a minimum paint tank capacity of 400 gallons and a minimum bead truck 
capacity of 2,000 pounds. The long line spray truck must be capable of producing an acceptable 4" wide 
single or double line at the application rate of S pounds of beads and 320 lineal feet per one gallon of paint 
while traveling at a minimum of 7 miles per hour. 

SP-6 



The Contractor shall supply 1 cone truck (rack body with hydraulic tail gate) with 300 cones. 

The above units shall include protective devices and warning signs for the painting operation. Each unit shall 
be radio controlled with a portable unit available for the Highway Division lead truck. 

The Contractor shall supply 2 operating personnel for the spray truck and 3 cone setters/retriever personnel 
for the traffic cone setting truck. 

The Contractor will place traffic cones on all freshly painted lines to reduce tracking. 

Contractor Responsibilities 

The Contractor shall complete the painting as indicated herein, subject to weather conditions, such as wet or 
extremely cold pavement. The Contractor shall have backup equipment available to him in the event of a 
breakdown. 

The Contractor shall have a supervisor or foreman available to direct operations. The supervisor or foreman 
will report to the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee, any problem, as well as, give daily 

progress reports. 

The Contractor must show by past performance that he is capable of performing a Contract of this magnitude. 

On new road surfaces, the Contractor shall pre-mark the centerlines and foglines, as needed, at no 
additional cost to the Town. 

Measurement and Pavment 

The measured quantity for 4" Reflectorized Line and 12" Stop Bars and Crosswalks will be paid at the 
Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and incidental 

costs required to complete the Work. The measured quantity for Arrows and Miscellaneous Markings will be 

paid at the Contract Unit Price per Square Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and 

incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

1TEM 103 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 

ITEM 104 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR STOP BARS &CROSSWALKS 

ITEM 105 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR ARROWS &MISCELLANEOUS MARKINGS 

The Work under these items shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 860 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

Material used and method of installation shall conform with the relevant provisions of Subsection M7, 

M7.41.03, M7.01.04, M7.01.18, and 860 of the Standard Specifications. All dimensions and spacing shall be 

as directed by the Engineer. 

The Contractor shall install all pavement markings at locations as directed by the Engineer. On new road 

surfaces, the Contractor shall pre-mark the centerlines and foglines, as needed, at no additions! cost to 

the Town. 

Measurement and Pavment 

SP-7 



The measured quantity for 4" Reflectorized Line and 12" Stop Bars and Crosswalks will be paid at the 
Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price shall include al! Iabor, equipment, materials and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The measured quantity for Arrows and Miscellaneous Markings will be 
paid at the Contract Unit Price per Square Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and 
incidental costs required tv complete the Work. 

ITEM 106 EPDXY PAINT FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 

Work under these items cover white and yellow epoxy reflectarized pavement marking material that is 
sprayed onto the pavement. Immediately following this, a surface application of glass beads is applied. The 
work, materials, and methods of installation under these items shall conform to the relevant provisions of 
Sections 860 and subsection M7 of the Standard Specifications. and the following: 

The epoxy mazking material shall be two-component (Part A and Part B), 100% solids type system 
formulated and designed to provide a simple volumetric mixing ratio (e.g. two volumes of Part A to one 
volume of Part B). 

Part A of both white and yellow shall conform to the following requirements: 

Percent by weight: 

WHITE Pigment - 1$ Minimum, Titanium Dioxide (ASTM D47b, Type II) Epoxy Resin -
75 to 82 

YELLOW Pigment - 18 Minimum, Titanium Dioxide (ASTM D476, Type II) 5 Minimum, Organic 
Yellow, Epoxy Resin — 73 to 77 

The entire pigment composition shall consist of either titanium dioxide or titanium dioxide and organic 
yellow. No extender pigments are permitted. Yellow pigment shall be lead-free. 

The work of these items shall only be performed when atmospheric and surface temperatures are 40°F higher 

All dimensions and spacing shall be as directed by the Engineer. 

The measured quantity for Epoxy Paint for 4" Reflectorized Lines will be paid at the Contract Unit Price per 

Linear Foot, which price shall include all labor, materials and incidental costs required to complete the work.. 

ITEM 107 PAVEMENT MARKING REMOVAL 

The Work under this section shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 850.67 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following. Existing pavement markings shall be removed to the fullest extent possible 

by an approved method. Pavement removal methods shall not cause damage to the pavement or cause drastic 

change in texture, which could be construed as delineation at night, and shall be approved by the Town. It is 

not permissible to paint over existing markings with black paint in lieu of removal. Approved methods 
include but are not limited to: 

1. High pressure air. 
2. High pressure water (cold weather use not permitted). 

3. Sand blasting. 
4. Mechanical devices such as grinders, sanders, scrapers, scarifiers, and wire brushes. 

SP-8 



Painting over a pavement marking by use of asphaltic liquids or paints will not be permitted. Conflicting 
pavement markings shall be removed before any change in the traffic pattern. 
Material deposited on the pavement as a result of removing markings shall be removed as the work 
progresses. Accumulations of sand or other material, which might interfere with drainage or could constitute 
a hazard to traffic, will not be permitted. 

Any damage to the pavement or surfacing caused by pavement marking removal shall be satisfactorily 
repaired at no additional cost to the Town. 

Where the removal operation is being performed near a lane occupied by traffic, a vacuum attachment 
operating concurrently with the removal operation must be in use. All residues shall be removed immediately 
from the surface being treated. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Foot which price shall include 
alt labor, equipment, vacuuming, sweeping, hauling, disposing, and incidental costs required to complete the 
Work. 

ITEM 108 DRAINAGE PIPE CLEANING 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage pipes. Work under this item shall be 
performed under the direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage pipe cleaning will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Day (8 working hours exclusive of 
travel time) broken down as follows: 

Drainage pipe cleaning performed between 0 and 4 hours will be paid for at half the Contract Unit 
Price per Day. 

* Drainage pipe cleaning performed for a period greater than 4 hours will be paid for at a proportion of 
the full Contract Unit Price per Day. 

The Contract Unit Price per Day shall include all labor, equipment, transportation and incidental costs 
required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal disposal of 
hazardous material. 

ITEM 109 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY CLAMSHELL (WITH DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 
complete removal and legal disposal ofhe debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 

direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%) 

removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 

the Town Engineer or his designee. 

The contractor shall be responsible for stockpile area management including confinement of debris, erasion 

control, loading, and removal of the debris. The contractor shall provide documentation of proper disposal to 

the town as a condition of payment. The contractor shall be responsible for any testing costs required for legal 

disposal of the catch basin cleanings. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to contact each Town and 

SP-9 



determine if a staging and stockpile area is available on town property or if the contractor will have to make 
alternative arrangements for a legal stockpile area. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM I10 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY CLAMSHELL (W/O DISPOSAL 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. Work under this item shall 
be performed under the direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his 
designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%) 
removed from the structure wails and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Town Engineer or his designee. 

The town shall provide the contractor an area to dump the catch basin cleanings. The town will manage the 
stockpile area and legally dispose of the debris. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 111 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY VACUUM TRUCK (WITH DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 

complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 
direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%) 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 

the Highway Division Superintendent. 

The contractor shall be responsible for stockpile area management including confinement of debris, erasion 

control, loading, and removal of the debris. The contractor shall provide documentation of proper disposal to 

the town as a condition of payment. The contractor shall be responsible for any testing costs required for Iegal 

disposal of the catch basin cleanings. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to contact each Town and 
determine if a staging and stockpile area is available on town property or if the contractor will have to make 
alternative arrangements for a legal stockpile area. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include alI labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 

costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 

disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 112 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY VACUUM TRUCK !W/O DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 

complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 

direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

SP-10 



Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially {95°/a) 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Highway Division Superintendent. 

The town shall provide the contractor an area to dump the catch basin cleanings. The town will manage the 
stockpile area and legally dispose of the debris. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM I I3 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE ADJUSTED 

The Work under this item shall consist of the adjustment of utility castings for overlays and minor 
reconstruction where said adjustment is no greater than 6 inches (rise or fall} from existing line and grade and 
shall conform to the relevant provisions of Sections 201, 202, and 220 of the Standard Specifications and the 
following: 

The Contractor shall maintain the drainage (or sewer) system in the project areas or drainage facilities outside 

the project area affected by the work performed by the Contractor to provide continual drainage of the 

travelways and construction areas. All drainage (or sewer} castings required to be raised to accommodate 
pavement overlays shall be paid for under this item. 

When in the judgment of the Engineer, the masonry below the casting shows deterioration and directs the 

contractor to remodel, the pay item shall be by the vertical foot and the cost per vertical foot as measured 

from the bottom of the existing casting, shall be paid as described in Item I08 Drainage Structure Rebuilt. 

Clay brick conforming to Subsection M4.OS.2 of the Standard Specifications shall be used to make grade 

adjustments of structure frames. 

Any castings damaged due to the Contractor's operations shall be replaced with similar H-20 North 

American made cast iron castings at no cost to the Town. 

A structure adjusted more than once by the Contractor, due to his plan of operation, will be paid for only 

once regazdless of how many adjustments are made to the structure. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 

costs required to complete the Work. No separate payment will be made for the maintenance of the existing 

drainage (or sewer) system, but all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the unit prices bid for 

the various Contract items. 

ITEM 114 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE REBUILT 

This item applies to the complete rebuilding of an existing structure and includes new masonry 

construction, backfilling around structures and other incidental work and shall conform to the relevant 
provisions of Sections 201 and 220 of the Standard Specifications and the following: 

The Work shall consist of rebuilding, removing, replacing and adjusting the masonry units and adjusting 

the castings of existing structures. The casting and deteriorated masonry shall be removed in a neat manner 

SP-11 



TFIIS PAGE IS TO BE USED AS ThIE COVER OF YOUR BID 
CERTIFICATE of NON-C~LLUSiON ANQ TAX COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter 62C, Section 48A, (certify under the penalties of perjury that i, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with ail laws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and 

remitting child support. 

certify under the penalties of perjury that this bid/proposai has been made and submitted in good 

faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certificate, the word 

"person° shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, club 

or other legal organization, entity or group of individuals. 

r-. 
Company:  ~ ~'i9S -l1'EC 

/ y 

Address:  ~ f 1!P/ZS!©~'l~- 

12 m~/~a~.c,/~ 4 ~.3 

Signature of lndividua! Signing 

Bid, or Corporate ~tTrcer: 

Telephone Number. 

Social Security Number 

Or Federal identification Number: 

Date: /' .z.~• ~ 

Any person o~corporitton which fails to seewta this document 

wip be canoidsred a non-naponshre bidder 

and wid bs reacted pursuant to i11G~ Chaplet 30, 39t~R, 

~ ~ ~~3~ 8~ 

BF-S-



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED BID QUANTITIES 

Each Town has provided estimated quantities for each bid item that it presently intends to order. These 
estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. The estimated amounts are also a 
total aggregate which the town intends to use during the contract period and the bidder should familiarize 
themselves with the minimum job quantities defined in the individual specifications for each item. 

BID FORM 

BID IDENTIFICATION: MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS FOR HIGHWAYS 
(UNIT PRICE WORK) 

TWS BID IS SUBMITTED TO: 
{Name and Address Office of the County Commissioners 
of Owner) Superior Court House 

P.O. Box 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630 

l . The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if the Bid is accepted to enter into an Agreement with 
the County, to complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract 
Unit Prices during the contract period of April 1~ 2019 to March 31~ 24Z0. with the ontioa to renew 
for one additional one near period and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

2. BIDDER accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders. This Bid will remain 
open far sixty (60) days after the day of Bid opening. BIDDER will sign the Agreement and submit 
other documents (e.g. Bonds, Insurance Binders} required by the Contract Documents within five {5} 
working days after the date of the County's Notice of Award. 

3. [n submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that: 

3.1 BIDDER has examined copies of all the Contract Documents and of 
the following addenda: 

Date Number 
Date Number _ 

{receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged) and also copies of the Notice to 
Bidders and the Instructions to Bidders. 

3 ~ BIDDER has examined the legal requirements (federal, state and local Iaws, by-laws, rules and 
regulations) and the conditions affecting cost, progress of performance of the Worlc and has 
made such independent investigations as BIDDER deems necessary. 

3.3 This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm 
or corporation, and is not submitted in conformity with any agreemeat or rules of any group, 
association, organization or corporation; BIDDER has not directly or indirectly induced or 
solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; BIDDER has not solicited or induced 

BF-1-



any person, firm or corporation to re&ain from bidding; and BIDDER has not sought by 
collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or over the County. 

4. BIDDER will complete ail the Work assigned for the unit prices) listed in the Bid Form. 

5. The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid: 

5.1 A tabulation of Subcontractors and other persons or organizations required to be identified in 
this Bid. 

6. Communications 

Company Name: 

Address:  „30

Telephone No.: 

Fax No.. 

concerning this Bid shall be addressed to: 

~2~ ~M ~I"o((~ rI"!~ 

~~1- ~z6 - ~r~. ~ 

o ~.3s~ 

E-mail Address:  /'►'~~'1tQL~~, r►-~su-1~,~5/ht. 

Bidder's Contact Person:  II I~UN<QU~ .30v.24q 

7. Bid comparison will be based on each item unit price provided for each Town. Bidders may bid on any 
or all items for any or all Towns listed. Bid selection will be by each item by Town and will be based 
on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each Town. 

8. It is the intent to award a contract to the two (2) lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive 
bidders for Bid Items l I5 to 122. 

9. The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this Bid is in all respects bona fide, fair and 
made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this paragraph, the word "person" 
shall mean any natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or Iegal entity. 

[ 0. The undersigned also certifies: that he is able to famish labor that can work in harmony with all other 
elements of labor employed or to be employed in the work; and, that all employees at the worksite will 
have successfully completed a course in construction safety and health approved by the United States 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is at least I O hours in duration at the time the 

employee begins work and who shall fiunish documentation of successful completion of said course 

with the first certified payroll report for each employee. 

SUBMITTED on 
~~ b T' 

  ~ 0 r~ 

BF-2-



A CornoraHon 

By 1 `'1~-2 ~.c~vc~ ~ . 
(Corporation Name) 

r l~ 

By 

(State of Incorporation) 

~"Io~urQv~ ~ou 
(Name of person authorized to sigma d Signature 

{Corporate Seal) 

Attest 

Business address: 

~~~s 
(Secretary) 

~o

Pm 
111 ~t ~~ /J~2. 

r~~c~ !'? o a 3s~ 

Phone No.: 

A Joint Vcature 

~ ~~- y~ 6 - 5! ~-1 

By 
(Name and Signature) 

(Address) 

By  

(Name and Signatwe) 

(Address) 

(Each joint venture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and corporation that is 
party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above. 

BF- 4 - 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item i00 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Town 

Barnstable 2,000,000 

Bourne 200,000 

Brewster 600,000 

Dennis 300,000 

Harwich 1,000,000 

Orleans 374,348 

Sandwich 150,D00 

~1tei(fleet 1D0,000 

Yarmouth SDO,ODO 

Item IOI 
Estimated 

Quantity 

7o wn 

Barnstable 32,000 

Bourne 2,000 

Brewster 5,000 

Dennis 500 

Orleans 1,1D0 

Sandwich 1,500 

Yarmouth 500 

Item 10Z 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Town 

Barnstable 21,250 

Bourne 500 

Brewster 3,000 

Orleans 3,50D 

Yarmouth 500 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for 4" 

Reflectorized lines 

Unit Bid Price In Words 

rovR a.,u~ ~hR~€ 7~Ths fie,, ~s 

tou/~ R.~vo r'h2l~ ~cnrf~ s i..~n ~3 

Per LF 

to Numerals 

. o ~f 3 
.a~3 

Far1~Z ~~ TG►R1~' ~~r+lfvs P1n~  , D~3 

Tbv R ~Mr~ Tl~t lzEg 3~~nT1~5 (i n ~  , OY.3 

~u2 ~Rn~ ~~~' ~i 7~ ~,~ fs ,p~3 

tout ~D Tl~a.c~ i enT~ (~1 n (-3  •d'~3 

fnU2 14~tD T~i2~e %PhTl13~ ~ n ~  • ~~#3 

tbu~2 ►~wD T~(re~ cn7hs3 lcn ~  .b~f3 

~v2 ~vl, ~l►rc+° ~ „thss l~cn l~  • D ~ 3 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for Stop Bars & 

Crosswalks 
Per LF 

Unit Bid Price In Words In Numerals 

to~2Tc~ rr v ~ ~ n ~'S ~S 

lt~2Tt~ 1~ Ct n {-11'.~~~ +~~ 

2l~ 

rr~ 

!'7Y b ~9 C Z . ~/~ 

tb~t~ FrYs !gin ~ 

~Q~ C'fYE ~ f3 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for Arrows & 

Miscellaneous Markings 

Unit aid Price !n Words 

• Lf $~ 

f`fS'

.N~ 

Per SF 

In Numerals 

ONE Do 1 !'i~.Q ~'LA Se.QQ~[er1 ~y ti ti~ L
,
iQqn. ~'3  / . ~'S 

d N Lr DD III~.R Aga D .~21ern F, YE' (:cn f S  1. 
on1 ~ ao lli~.2 q~r, p Yen ~nc~ L.c° n ~ I . ~~ 

4~1g PJ06I~ I~.ND 1CQ,2S~y ~iYE ~n fS / • ~brQQ

DIU~' Ddl~~ ~1b •~21Cp~► ~.y ~1VE ~~ ~• ~~ 

B F-



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORK5 BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item ia3 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Tatvn 

Barnstable 28,000 

Bourne 25,040 

Dennis 84,000 

hiarwlch 25,404 

Item 104 

Town 

Estimated 

Quantity 

Thermoplastic Paint for 4" Refledorized Lines 

Unit Bid Price !n Words 

rn2t~ Fvc G4~ 
~2.~ ~~~ 

~2~ ~v~. 

,p

~ [~ 
(—p2~j 

F[Yt~ ~R 

Thermoplastic Paint for Stop Bars &Crosswalks 

Unit Bld Pr/te In Words 

Barnstable S00 jw0 ~d ~f✓AH~pB l4np ~ ~1_ ~1 n

Bourne 1000 
ff
~~

~ 
`~(/ 

Per LF 

!n Numerals 

•~S 

~~1 S~ 
. y~ 

Per LF 

!n Numerals 

.2. Sa 

Tt,un 11.1 ~~ y.~ ~ ~ n ~y  P2.5a 
Dennis 2,000 

r 
  /moo a~ ~ ~ ~ 0 c ~--c ~ ~  a, 50 

Harwich 600 ~~ ~ Dol~~.~ ~D ~ ~,,,~  a. ~o 
~1Nellfleet 600 )~tJt1 ~U~~a„Q ~~ ~ ~ A 

Item 105 

Town 

Estimated 

Quantity 

Thermoplastic Paint for Arrows &Miscellaneous 

Markings 

Unit Bld Price In Words 

o~ • J~ 

Per SF 

In Numerals 

Barnstable 500 l~UfZ ~~ ~~~~ l4+'!~ ~,~ ~~~. /~~ ~ ~L/~ ~y5" 

Bourne 500 ~~~ ~(1~1~ nR ~ p .~QV~h ~Y~ l~C~~ '7 ~f-s 

Dennis 300  ~UIZ ~11/~~n0 .~{Ven r1Y.~L~rn l'~ '~• 

Harwich 30  ~r/(~ DrI~~2$q~b .~~ 
I  

ti~ ~cti f ~  ~'1~. ~~ 

item 106 

Town 

Estimated 

Quantity 
Epoxy Paint for 4" Refiectorized Lines 

Unit Bld Price In Words 

Barnstable 4,000 j ~~ ~ ~ f n  ~ ~ h

Bourne 2,000 
~ulPr~ 

~ 
!V~ 

Dennis 300,000 u ~ en 1V r ~ ~1~. 

Per LF 

In Numerals 

. ,2q 

. 02~ 

BF- b 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS B!D 

BiD FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

item 107 

Town 

Estimated 

Quantity 

Bamstable 10,400 

Bourne 5,440 

Chatham 204 

Dennis 5,004 

Provincetown Z00 

Sandwich 35,000 

Item 108 

Town 

Brewster 

' Estimated 

Quantity 

5 

Dennis 3 

Sandwich 3 

Yarmouth 

Item 

own 

Barnstable 2,000 

Pavement Marking Removal 

Unit Bid Price in Words 

/Vlnl r-'~ IL2 C.C~1. /~ 

ll~n~ ~y~ ~,.f-s 

11~~n ~N~' ~° . f 3 

N~ ~ ~ F'',~,tic. Cs,, ~s 
~l/i/1 % JY~' 

Drainage Pipe Cleaning 

Unit 

stimated Drainage Structure CI 

Quantity (w/Disposal) sue' 

Brewster 904 

Chatham 

Dennis °~~=" 1,300 

Prov~.~ 4.~=~': Z00 

ndwlch 54 

Yarmouth 100 

Item 

wn 

+n Wards 

y Clamshell 

Unit Bid Prlce fn Words 

imated 

quantity 

Drainage Structure Cleaning By Clamshell (w/o 

Disposal] 

Unit Bid Prlce /n Words 

Per SF 

In Numerals 

95 
~~ 

,Q5' 

~S~ 

,y~~-
'L~ 

Per DAY 

!n Num~ 

Per EA 

In Numerals 

BF-









20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8k 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with MCE Dirtworks for Road 
Resurfacing in the Town of Orleans for the period of April 1, 2019 through March 
31, 2020 

  





















































































20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8l 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with PA Landers, Inc. for Roadway 
Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 1, 2019 through 
March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one additional year 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
PA Landers, Inc 
351 Winter Street 
Hanover, MA 02339 

TWIS AGREEMENT is made this 21st day of February 2019 by and between PA 
Landers, lnc.(hereinafterreferred to as Contractor), and Mary Pat Flynn, Ronald Beaty and 
Ronald Bergstrom as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal 
Ifablllty. 

WtTNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Roadway Materials 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
items highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Towns 
harmless from any claims regarding workers compensation benefits, unemployment compensation 
benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefrt normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Contractorfiles such claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Pertomlance. Apri11, 2019 through March 30, 2020, with the op#ion to renew for one 
additional year. 

4. Payment Bids submitted as highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Cus#omerorthe County shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either party 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. 
Such notice shad be given at least fifteen (15) calendardays before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shaft have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shalt be en#itled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory worts completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 

7. Changes. The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 



performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Customer costs, which are mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, shall be 
incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran status. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment Including but not limited 
to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 
1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. If this 
Contract is funded in whale or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly or indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County #hereto; provided, however that claims for money due or #o 
become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 

and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 

All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 

of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained untsl completion of the action and 

resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. If this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 

14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 

by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 



not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Contract. 

16. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3} and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachusetts General taws, As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 5i% of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 
entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51 % of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents #hereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competentjurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a party. All parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Force Majeure. Neither party shat( be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 

severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 

penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractor's failure 

to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 

any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal 

funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal 

requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Nat-for-Profit entities that receive 

federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 

Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract. If any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 

relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 

to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 

and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any liability arising out 
of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this  21st

day of  February  in the year Two Thousand and Nineteen 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Beaty 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Date 

FOR T

\

HE CONTRACTOR: P.A. Landers, Inc. 

`~ C. F. O. 

David R Prosper 

February 21, 2019 

Date 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

GENERAL 

The Work under this Contract consists of providing various materials as described herein to the Towns of 
Bamstable, Boume, Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Orleans, 
Provincetown, Sandwich, Truro, Wellfleet and/or Yarmouth through an Agreement with the County of 
Barnstable. 

All Work done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the 1988 Massachusetts Highway 
Department (MDOT) Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the Supplemental Specifications, 
the 2445 Standard Special Provisions, the 2010 Construction Standard Details, and the 2009 Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and these Special Provisions. 

NO FUEL PRICE ADJUSTMENT WILL BE ALLOWED FOR ANY OF THE CONTRACT BID ITEMS 
CONTAINED HEREIN. As noted on the Bid Form, a liquid asphalt price adjustment will be aI[owed for 
the Hat Mix Asphalt (Loaded on Town Trucks) ONLY. No other bid items will be allowed price 
adjustments. 

The Specia! Provisions shall take precedence over the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

The vendor shall furnish manufacturer's certification that the materials conform to the specifications. All 
material shall be delivered to and off loaded at each Town's Highway Division yard or to a mutually 
agreeable site, except Hot Mix Asphalt which shall be loaded on Town trucks at the plant. All costs of 
transportation shall be included in the prices bid. If, at any time, the materials delivered are found to be sub-

standard, the vendor shall be responsible for removing the offending material at their cost, within ten (10} 

working days after receiving notification from the Town. 

All deliveries shall be made during each Town's normal business hours, Monday through Friday (except 

legal holidays), and in the presence of an authorized Town employee ar agent. 

Delivery shall be immediate unless the item is aut of stock or not normally stocked, then the vendor shall 

notify the Town and shall make delivery within ten (14) days. 

If at any time the vendor is unable to furnish materials or services as ordered by a Town: 

* The vendor shall be obligated to obtain delivery from another suppliec and will in turn 

invoice the Town at the price specified in the Contract, or 

* The Town may order such materials or services from such places as are available, and 
the vendor shall reimburse the Town for aI] expenses incurred above the Contract price. 

If services of the vendor are subsequently deemed to be unsatisfactory to any Tawn and/or are in violation 

of these specifications, a Town shall notify the said vendor in writing. If mutually agreeable arrangements 

cannot be achieved between the Town and the vendor, the terms of the ConlracE for that Town will be 

terminated. Notice of termination will be in writing and notification will be sent by registered or certifced 

mail. Termination will become effective three (3) days after mailing said notification. Termination of a 

Contract by any Town shall not invalidate or alter the terms of a similar Contract with any other Town. 

The vendor receiving an award shall, at no expense to any Town, adhere to Massachusetts General Law 

Chapter i I I F - "Right to Know Law" as it shall apply to the items contained in the award notice. 

SP-1 



MSDS labels and data are required where applicable. 

ESTIMATED QUANTITIES BY TOWN 

Each Town has provided the estimated quantities for each bid item that it is presently planning to use 
which can be found in Attachment A. Because of unanticipated funding levels and bid results, these 
estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. It there is no quantity provided for 
an item, then that specific Town does not intend to use that item. 

UNIT PRICE WORK 

Initially, the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amounE equal to the 
established unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of 
each item as indicated in the Agreement. The estimated quantities of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed 
and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. 
Determinations of the actual quantities and classification of Unit Price Work performed by CONTRACTOR 
will be made by each Town. 

Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by CONTRACTOR to be adequate to cover 
CONTRACTOR'S overhead and profit far each separately identified item. The prices bid shall, without 
exception, include all royalties and other costs arising from patents, trademarks, and copyrights in any way 
involved in the materials to be supplied. 

When the accepted quantity of Work varies from the estimated quantity, the CONTRACTOR shall accept as 
payment in full, so far as each contract item is concerned, payment at the original Contract unit price for the 
accepted quantity of Work done. No allowance will be made for any increased expenses, loss of expected 
reimbursement or loss of anticipated profits suffered or claimed by the Contractor, resulting either directly 
or indirectly from such increased or decreased quantity. 

Each Town does not guarantee any minimum quantity of Unit Price Work. The CONTRACTOR may 
contact each Town to obtain information regarding quantities used in previous years, if he so chooses. 
However, each Town will not guarantee that an equal or greater quantity of Unit Price Work will be 
requested. Each Town reserves the right to purchase quantities of Contract materials from other sources for 

emergency or other reasons. 

The vendor shall submit separate invoices accompanied by signed delivery slips to each using division/ 
department of each Town. 

It shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to inform each Town when the sum of all orders for 

units of Work is within 94% of the total Contract price for that Town. The CONTRACTOR'S total billing 

can not exceed the total Contract price without prior written approval by each Tawn. 

TAXES

State taxes will be excluded from alI General and Sub-bids. The Towns shall provide their exemption 
certificate number to the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall pay all taxes required to be paid by 
CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are 
applicable during the performance of the Work. 

S P-? 



WEIGHING

All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery and the 
weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may provide use of its 
scale and require gross weights and vehicle tare weights verified at time of delivery. 

MISCELLANEOUS

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding 
on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically, but 
without limitation, moneys that may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction maybe limited by law), and unless specifically 
stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

The County and CONTRACTOR each binds himself his partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

This CONTRACT shall be deemed to include all terms and requirements imposed by laws related to the 
performance of the Wark on the Projector Services. 

This is not an exclusive contract to provide services or materials to the County and Towns. The County and 
Towns reserve the right to contract for similar services or materials. 

INTEREST 

All monies not paid when due hereunder shalt bear interest at the maximum rate allowed by law at the place 

of the Project. 

SP-3 



ITEM 200 HOT MLX ASPHALT (LQADED ON TOWN TRUCKS) 

Bituminous Concrete (Hot Mix Asphalt) shaII be manufactured in conformance with the material, 
composition, mixing, testing and plant requirements of Standard Specification Section M3. Top course mix, 
binder course mix and dense mix shall be furnished, as required, and loaded on Town trucks. 

ITEM 201 SAND BORROW 
ITEM 202 LOAM BORROW 

Sand and Loam Borrow materials shall confornn to the following Standard Specification subsections: 

Sand Borrow -For Winter Maintenance - M 1.04.0 Type a (Washed) 
Loam Borrow - M 1.05.0 

Sand shall be washed and screened through a one quarter inch (1/4'~ screen. The sand must be coarse and 
free from clay, silty loam and other undesirable materials. Deliveries of sand shall be made during the 
vendor's normal business hours, Monday through Friday. A Town may require, at its discretion, that 
emergency deliveries must be made during other periods to include Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays and non-
business hours Monday through Friday at no extra cost to the Town. The vendor shall complete normal and 
emergency deliveries within a 1Z hour period after receiving a request for delivery (maximum delivery 
1,000 tans per l2 hours). 

Loam borrow shall be screened to removed all stones and other material larger than 1 inch. 

ITEM 203 1-1/2" CRUSHED STONE (DOUBLE WASHED 
ITEM 204 3/4" CRUSHED STONE (DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM 20S 3/8" PEASTONE {DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM 206 3/4" DENSE GRADES CRUSHED STONE 

Aggregate materials shall conform to the following Standard Specification subsections: 

Crushed Stone - M 2.01.1 through 2.01.6 (double washed) 
Dense Graded Crushed Stone - M 2.01.7 (3/4") 

A requirement for all grades of crushed stone {except dense graded) shall be that not more than 0.3% of 
unsatisfactory material shall pass a No.4 sieve. 

ITEM 207 RECYCLED ASPHALT 

The recycled asphalt matcrial shall meet the following gradation requirements: 

Sieve 
Designation 
3" 

1-ln° 
3/4" 
#4 
#50 
#200 

Percentage By Weight 
Passing Through 

loo 
70 -100 
50 - 85 
30 - 60 

8 - 24 
0- 10 

5P-0 



The stone and sand material shall consist of inert material that is hard, angular, and durable, and free from 
cement concrete, brick, reinforcing steel, glass, wood, building rubble, loam and clay and other deleterious 
materials. Native round stone and materials that break up when alternately frozen and thawed or wetted and 
dried shall not be used. The material shall be "T-base" as manufactured by Aggregate Industries, Inc. or 
approved equivalent. 

Each stockpile shall be tested (at no additional cost to the Town) far sieve analysis and California Bearing 
Ratio (CBR} by an independent, qualified Massachusetts laboratory. The certified results shall be equal to 
ar 

greater than that of gravel borrow (M 1 A3.0 type b), and the certifications shall be supplied to each Town. 
The processed material shall be stockpiled in such a manner as to minimize segregation of particle sizes. 
All recycled pavement material shall come from approved stockpiles. 

The material shall be subject to review and approval by a Town prior to delivery. 

ITEM Z08 4'x4' PRECAST LEACH GALLEY 
ITEM 209 1,004 GALLON PRECAST CATCH BASIN 
ITEM 210 1,000 GALLON PRECAST LEACH PIT 
ITEM 211 4' DIAMETER PRECAST CATCH BASIN W/OFFSET TOP 

All precast structures shall be capable of withstanding H-201oading with a minimum concrete strength of 
4,000 psi (a3 28 days. Steel reinforcement shall be Grade 60 meeting ASTM-A-6t 5 requirements. 

The 1,000 Gallon Precast Solid Catch Basin shall have a solid bottom or include a 6' diameter Basin Pad 

meeting the same rquirements as the structures. The cost of the Base Pad shall be included with the cost of 
the stricture. 

The 4' Diameter Precast Catch Basin w/Offset Top shall have separate top with an offset opening. The 

structure shall have a ~F foot deep sump below the outlet pipe. 

The Town shall specify the hole diameter and hole locations) at the time of order. 

The manufactwer shat! deliver the structure to the Town DPW or at the installation Location as specified by 
the Town. 

Payment for the precast drainage structures shall be by the Contract Unit Price per Each delivered. 

SP-5 



BtD FORM 
MATERIALS 

{UNIT PRICE WORK) 

State the Unit Bid Price {written in words and in numerals) for each Town listed (see Attachment A for 
Estimated Quantities). Bidders may wish to contact each Town to obtain actual quantities purchased 
during prior years. Bidders may bid on any or 

al

l 

items for any oc all Towns. Bid selection will be by each 
item and will be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each 
Town. 

Price Adinstmeats: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) method for calculating 
price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel fuel, gasoline, and 
structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Liquid Asphalt adyustment shalt apply to Hot Mix Asphalt 
(Loaded on Town Trucks) on orders greater than I{}0 tons where the ad,jastment results in a change 
in the Unit Price of 5% or more. No other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt price adjustment shall be based on the difference between the price at the time of the bid 

(base bid price) and the price on the date of paving. The Liquid Asphalt base bid price shall be the price 
posted on the MassDOT Website for the month of December, 2018. 

Tied Bids: [n the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the awarded bidder. 

t3F 6 



PLE—ASEIUSE~THIS~A~S~THE~COVER~SHEET~FQR~YOURBID 

CERTIFICATE of NON-COLLUSIQN Awd TAX GOMPUANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter 82C, Section 49A, I certify under the penalties of perjury that {, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with all laws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and 

remitting child support. 

I certify under the penalties of perjury that this bid/proposal has been made and submitted in good 

faith and wi#hout collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certificate, the ward 

"person" shall mean any natural person, business, parMership, corporation, union, committee, 

club or other legal organization, entity or group of individuals. 

Company:  P.A. Landers, Inc. 

Address' 351 Winter Street 

Hanover, MA 02339 

Signature of individual Signing ~ 

13id~ or Corporate OfFicer:  ~~~~ r'C~A"z9"' ~'~rp
(David R. Prosper, 351 Winter SL, Hanover, MA 02339; incorp. in Massachusetts) 

Telephone Number:  

Social Secut[ty Number 

Or Federal identification Number:  042660795 

~~sl) s2~-eels 

Date:  January 2Z, 2019 

Any person or carporatlon rvltich falb to axecuta thb document 

wpt 6a eortsldarad a non-esspanslw bidder 

and w!p ba rejecbd pursuant to 1IIGL Chapter 30, 39M. 

8F-S 



ATTACHMENT A 
BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES BY TOWN 

BID FORM 

Each Town has provided estimated quantities for each bid item that it presently intends to order, These 
estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. The estimated amounts are also a 
total aggregate which the town intends to use during the contract period and the bidder should familiarize 
themselves with the minimum job quantities defined in the individual specifications for each item. 

BID IDENTIFICATION: ROAD CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 
(UMT PRICE WORK) 

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO: 
(Name and Address Office of the County Commissioners 
of Owner) Superior Court House 

P.O. Box 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630 

1. The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if the Bid is accepted to enter into an Agreement with 
the County, to complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract 
Unit Prices during the contract period of Anrit 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020, with an option to renew 
far oae additional year and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

~. BIDDER accepts alI of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders. This Bid will remain 
open for sixty (b0) days after the day of Bid opening. BIDDER will sign the Agreement and submit 
other documents (e.g. Bands, Insurance Binders) required by the Contract Documents within five (5) 
working days aRcr the date of the County's Notice of Award. 

3. In submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that: 

3.1 BIDDER has examined copies of all the Contract Documents and of 
the following addenda: 

Date Number 
Date Number 
Date Number 

(receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged) and also copies of the Notice to 
Bidders and the Instructions w Bidden. 

3.2 BIDDER has examined the legal requirements (federal, state and local laws, by-laws, rules and 

regulations) and the conditions affecting cast, progress of performance of the Work and has 

made such independent investigations as BIDDER deems necessary. 

3.3 This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalfof any undisclosed person, firm 
or corporation, and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement ar rules of any group, 

association, organization or corporation; BIDDER has not directly or indirectly induced or 

solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; BIDDER has not solicited or induced 

any person, firm or corporation to reliain from bidding; and BIDDER has not sought by 

collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder or over the County. 

BF-I 



4. BIDDER will complete aI1 the Work assigned for the unit prices) listed in the Bid Farm. 

S. The fallowing documents are attached to and made a condition of this Hid: 

S.1 A tabulation of Subcontracrors and other persons or organizations required to be identified in 
this Bid. 

6. Conununicatioru concerning this Hid shall be addressed to: 

Company Name:  P.A. Landers, Inc. 

Address•  351 Winter Street, Hanover, MA 02339 

TelephoneNo.:  {781} 826-8818 

Fax No.: (78I) 826-7587 

E-mail Address: dprosper@palanders.com 

Bidder's Contact Person:  David Prosper, Chief Financial Officer 

7. Bid comparison will be based on each item unit price provided for each Town. Bidders may bid on 
any or all- items for any or aII Towns listed. Bid selection will be by each item by Town and will be 
based on tha lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each Town. 

8. The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this Bid is in all respects bona fide, fair and 
made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this paragaph, the ward "person" 
shall mesa any natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business ar legal entity. 

SUBMITTED on  January 22 .20 ~g. 

An Individual 

By (SEAL) 
(Individual's Name and Signature) 

doing business as 

Business address: 

Phone No.: 

8F-2 



A Par~tnersIrip 

$Y (SEAL) 
(Fum Name} 

(General Partner Name and Signature) 

Business address: 

Phoac No.: 

A Corporation 

8Y P.A. Landers, Inc. 

(Corporation Name) 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

(State of Incorporation} 

By David R. Prosper 

(Name of person authorized to sign and Signature) 

{Corporate Seal) 

Attest ~~ (his ~ S ~t~ct~.~i:-~
Ass istant(SeCretary} 

(David R Prosper, 35 i Winter St., Hanover, MA 02339; incorp. in Massachusetts) 

Business address: 351 Winter Street 

Hanover, MA 02339 

Phone No.: _,(718) 826-8818 

BF 3 



A daint ~Veahzra 

lay 
{Name and Signature) 

(Address) 

By  
{Name and signature) 

(Address) 

(Each joint venture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and corporation that 
is party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.) 

BF 4 



BID FORM 
MATERIALS 

(UNIT PRICE WORD 

State the Unit Bid Price (written in words and in numerals} for each Town listed (see Attachment A for 
Estimated Quantities}. Bidders may wish to contact each Town to obtain actual quantities purchased 
during prior years. Bidders may bid on any or all items far any or all Towns. Sid selection will be by each 
item and will be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each 
Town. 

Price Adjustments: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) method for calculating 
price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel fuel, gasoline, and 
structural steel shall apply to this bid The Liquid AsghaIt adjustment shall -apply to Sot Mix Asphalt 
(Loaded as Town Trucks) on orders greater than I00 toss where tht'adjnstment resalts is a change 
in the Unit Price of 5% ar more. No other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt price adjustment sha11 be based on the difference between the price at the time of the bid 
{bast bid price} and the price on the date afpaving. The Liquid Asphalt base bid price shall be the price 
posted on the MassDOT Website far the month of December, 2018. 

Tied Bids: In the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the awarded bidder. 

BF-6 



ATTacHM~NT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS BID 

BID FORM AND FS't1MATED QUANT1T1E5 

Item 200 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Hot Mix Asphalt (Loaded on Town Tracks] Per TON 

Town Unit Bid Price In Wards In Numerals 

Bamstable 754 

Bourne 400 

Brewster 500 

Chatham 100 

Dennis 500 

Harwkh 100 

Orleans 140 

Sandwich 700 

Yarmouth 500 

item 20I 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Sand Barrow Per TON 

Town Unft Bld Prke fn Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 5~ Sixteen Dollars and No Cents $16A0 

Brewster 2,000 Sixteen Dollars and No Cents $16.00 

Chatham 1,000 Fifteen Dollars and No Cents $ 15.00 

pennis 204 Fourteen Dollars and No Cents $14.00 

Item 24Z 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Coam Barrow Per TON 

?awn Unit eld Price !n Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 500 Twenty Seven Dollars and Sixty Cents $27.60 

Brewster 100 Thirty Dollars and No Cents $30.00 

Chatham 200 Thirty Dollars and No Cents $30.00 

Dennis 20o Twenty Seven Dollars and Sixty Cents $27.60 

Sandwich 200 Twenty Four Dollars and No Cents $24.00 

BF- '~ 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATE'RIAES BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 203 
Estimated 

QuantKy 
1-i/2" Crushed Stone (Double Washed) Per TON 

Town Unit eld Prue in Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 140 Twenty Four Dollars and No Cents $24A0 

Bourne 300 Twenty Four Dollars and No Cents $24.00 

Brewster 504 Twenty Seven Dollars and No Cents $ 27.00 

Chatham I50 Twenty Seven Dollars and No Cents $27.00 

Dennis 500 Twenty Five Dollars and No Cents $25.00 

Sandwich ADO Twenty Dollars and No Cents $20.00 

Yarmouth 500 Twenty Six Dollars and No Cents $ 2b.00 

Item 204 
Estimated 

Quantity 
3j4" Crushed Stone (Double Washed} Per TON 

Town UnR 81d Prlre !n Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 50 Twenty Six Dollars and No Cents $26.00 

Bourne 204 Twenty Six Dollars and No Cents $26.00 

Brewster 250 Twenty Nine Dollars and No Cents S 29.00 

Chatham 50 Twenty Nine Dollars and No Cents $29.00 

Dennis Z00 Twenty Seven Dollars and No Cents $27.00 

Sandwich 200 Twenty Two Dollars and No Cents $22.00 

Yarmouth 54 Twenty Eight Dollars and No Cents $28.00 

Item 205 
Estimated 

Quantity 
3j8" Peastone (Double Washed) Per TON 

Town Unit B!d Prlre !n Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 50 Thirty Five Dollars and No Cents $35.00 

Brewster ZSO Thirty Five Dollars and No Cents $35.00 

Chatham 1~ Thirty Five Dollars and No Cents $35.00 

Dennis 200 Thirty Five Dollars and No Cents $35.00 

Sandwich 100 Twenty Five Dollars and No Cents $25.ao 
Yarmouth 50 Thirty Five DoIIars and No Cents $35.00 

BF-~ 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIAES BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 2p6 
Estimated 

Quantity 
3j4" Dense Graded Crushed Stone Per TCiN 

Town Unft e1d Price Tn Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 500 Twenty Five Dollars and No Cents $25.00 

Bourne 500 Twenty Three Dollars and No Cents $23.00 

Brewster 500 Twenty Five Dollars and No Cents $25.00 

Chatham ZS Twenty Eight Dollars and No Cents $28.00 

Dennis 500 Twenty Eight Dollars and No Cents $28.00 

Orleans 2,000 Twenty Eight Dollars and No Cents $28.00 

Sandwich 200 Twenty One Dollars and No Cents $21.00 

Yarmouth 500 Twenty Five Dollars and No Cents $25.00 

Item 2p7 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Recycled Asphalt Per TON 

Town Unit Bfd Price /n Words In Numerals 

Brewster 100 Eighteen DoIIars and No Cents $18.00 

Chatham I00 Nineteen Dollars and No Cents $ I9.00 

lZennts 600 Nineteen Dollars and No Cents $19.00 

Harwich 400 Twenty Three Dollars and No Cents $23.00 

Sandwich 200 Sixteen Dollars and No Cents $16.00 

Item Z08 
Estimated 

Quantity 
4'x4` Precast Leach Galley Per EA 

Town 

Barnstable 10 

Brewster 50 

Chatham 2 

Dennis ZO 

Sandwich 8 

Yarmouth 10 

Unit 91d Price trr Words !n Numerals 

BF 9 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS BID 

BID FORM ANO ES?iMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 209 

Tawn 

Barnstable 

Estimated 

Quantity 

1D 

Brewster 25 

Chatham 6 

Dennis 5 

Sandwlrh 

Item Z10 

Town 

Barnstable 

4 

Estimated 

Quantity 

xo 

Brewster ZS 

Chatham 
e 

Oennfs 10 

Sandwich 

Item Zil 

Town 

Barnstable 

6 

Estimated 

Quantity 

x0 

Brewster x_5 

Chatham 2 

Oennis 5 

Sandwich 2 

Yarmouth 5 

1000 Gallon Precast Catch Basin 

Unit 8ld Price !n Words 

1000 Gallon Precast Leach Pit 

Unit Hld Price !n Words 

4' Diameter Precast Catch Basin w/Offset Top 

Unit Bid Price In Words 

Per EA 

!n Nurnerots 

Per EA 

In Numero(s 

Per EA 

!n Numerals 

9F-



Manufacturers, 
Suppliers & 
Installers of 

Asphalt 

Asphalt Paving 

Redr-Miz Cancrt'!e 

Aggregates 

Sand 

Gravel 

Loam 

Egt~ipmenJ Rental 

Site Development 

RDad COnstrrrCJion 

coRrot:w•re o~Flct:s 
35l Winter Street 

Hanover, MA 02339 
{78!)82b-8818 

Ftu (781)829-8934 
.f~regarc/Concrrte/ 

- COnSrrrK170n do 
Equtpmcm Dhisions 

?26 Gerry Street 
Plymouth, MA 023b0 

(SOB) ?47-t 800 
Fax{506)747-6017 
AsphalbCancrere ~ 
Aggrrgare OfvLslons 

Route 130 Fotestdalc 
.Sandwich, MA 025b3 

(508) 477-8818 
Faa(508)477-8251 
A~regare Dh~ision 

www.palandcrs.com 

P. A. Landes, Inc. 
incorporated 1978 

CORPORATE RESOLUTION 

John R. Souza,  hereby certify that:.` 

1 am the duly qualified and acting Secretary of P< A. Landers, Inc.,. and I 
further certify that at a meeting of the Dtrectors of said entity, duly called and held on 
December 2G, 2012, at which all or a majority of Directors were present and voting: 

It was voted that the President and Chief Financial Officer Oavid Prosper shall be and hereby 
is authorized, directed and empowered far, in the name af, and on behalf of P. A.1_anders, 
Inc., to execute, sign, seal with the seal of P. A. Landers, lnc., acknowledge and deliver 
such forms for general bids, requests for proposals, agreements, contracts, bids, bonds and 
any.other instruments andlar obligations of 1'. A. Landcsrs, Inc., relating to any and all public 
building projects andlor public works projects with the United States Government, including 
any agency or subdivision thereof; and with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and any 
subdivision thereof, including but not limited to counties, cities, towns, districts, political 
subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and any other public agencies andlor 
instrumentalities of said Commonwealth of Massachusetts,. 

I further certify that the above authority is stilt in effect and has not changed or madifed in 
any rr°spect. 

n R: ouio,' Secretary of P: "an • e n 

ated: May 18 201$ 

COMMONWGALT3•t OF MASSACI 

PLYbtOUTN, SS 

On this 18"' day of May, 2013, bclnre me, the undersigned notary public, personally ;sppeared . 

John R. Souza, proved to me through satislitctory evidence of identification, ~~~hich was a 
Massachusetts drivers license, to be the person ~ti~hose Haute is sighed on tbt.~ preceding or attached 
document, and acknowledged to nle tll~i he signed it voiuntaril}' for its stated purpose. 

_ `,,,p~i~+ nrrq,~,

.: O;~o~~s15, s. 
e v ra 

tJ~ ~o i 
_ ~~r_ ~ o ~ , Notary P bite 
_ ~~~ ~ u - Commission Exp. /© fib f?~ ~ O 

O~'! ~'O 
i y  ~ ,t,~TA~ ~41~;Z,y,~.1 

V~ ~ 

' ~~4Y ~MMONW~P6"4,?• 
~~i~,~,'",'1S8AGtI Mt~'~ 









20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8m 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with PJ Keating for Road Resurfacing in 
the Town of Sandwich for the period of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3295 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

PJ Keating Company 
998 Reservoir Road 
Lunenburg, MA 01462 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day of 2019 by and between PJ Keating 
Company (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Ronald Bergstrom, Ronald Beaty and Leo 
Cakounes as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal liability. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Road Resurfacing 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price far the 
Town of Sandwich. 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County harmless from 
any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, unemployment compensation benefits, 
retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" and 
Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Can#roc#orfiles such claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020. 

4. Payment. $834,598.65 for the Town of Sandwich. 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fait to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either party 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. 
Such notice shall be given at least fifteen (15) calendar days before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 

termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the pertormance of this Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 

7. Changes. The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 
performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 



Customer casts, which are mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, shall be 
incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran status. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited 
to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts Genera! Laws Chapter 
1518§(1}; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. If this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly or indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation}, without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to 
become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such de#ail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7} years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 
All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later_ If this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federa( funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 

14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 
by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 
not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 



written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 

under this Con#tact shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 

County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 

otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 

Contract. 

16. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shat! be 
used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 

"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 

boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 

amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 

Sections 2 and 3 of Chap#er 151 E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at leas# 51 % of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 

entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51 % of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shalt be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 

wherever pending, in which;the other is a party. All parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 
penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractors failure 
to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal 
funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with aq federal 
requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Profit entities that receive 

federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requiremen#s ou#lined in the 
Office of Management and 8udgei OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract. if any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of alt obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 

and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barns#able County from any liability arising out 

of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the year Two Thousand and Nineteen. 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Beaty 

Date 

FOR THE CON 

~' ~ 
Date 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Work under this Contract consists of Road Resurfacing as described herein to Towns within 

Barnstable County. Estimated Quantities and project roads are listed in Attachment A. 

All Work done under this Contract shalt be in conformance with the 1988 Massachusetts 

Highway Department (MassDOT) Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the 

Supplemental Specifications, the 2005 Standard Special Provisions, the 2010 Construction 
Standard Details, and the 2009 Manual on Uniforn Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and 
these Special Provisions. The General Conditions and Special Provisions shall take precedence 
over the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

As noted on the Bid Form liquid asphalt, diesel fuel, gasoline, Portland cement, and steel 
price adjustments will be allowed for a limited number of items. 

OSHA REQUIREMENT 

Any employee found on the worksite without documentation of the successful completion of a 
course in construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration that is at least 10 hours in duration shall be subject to immediate removal. 
OSHA certifcations must be submitted with the certified payrolls for al l workers during the first 
week they work on a project. 

WORK SCHEDULE 

The Contractor shall commence Work within ten (10) working days of receiving a Notice to 
Proceed from a Town. If the Contractor cannot begin work within the ten (10) working days, 
that Town may order such services from such contractors as are available, and the Contractor 
shall reimburse that Town for all expenses incurred above the Contract Price. When needing 
work completed for those items that will be awarded to the two (2} lowest bidders, each Town 
shall first forward by a-mail or fax a Notice to Proceed to the lower of the two lowest bidders. If 
the lowest bidder does not schedule the work requested within forty-eight (48) hours of 
receiving the Notice to Proceed and/or cannot begin (and remain at) work within ten (10) 
working days, then the Town shall have the right to forward a Notice to Proceed to the second 
low bidder. 

Work is restricted to a normal eight-hour day, five-day week, with Contractor and all 
subcontractors working on the same shift. 

No Work shall be done on this Contract on Saturdays, Sundays or holidays or on the day before 
or the day after a long weekend which involves a holiday without prior approval by the specific 
Town. 

SP- i 



PROGRESS OF WORK 

The Contractor shall promptly start and continue actual construction work under this Contract 

with the necessary equipment to properly execute and complete this Contract in the specified 

time. No cessation of Contractor's operations will be allowed without the approval of the 

Engineer. The rate of progress shall be satisfactory to that Town and the Engineer. The 

Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer a schedule for the Work prior to the start of construction. 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THE FIELD 

The Contractor shall keep a copy of the Contract Documents at the work site at all times while 
work is being performed and said copy is to be available to those in charge of work. 

POLICE SERVICES 

Each Town shall provide all Town police services at no cost to the Contractor to direct traffic 
when such protection is required by that Town's Police Department. The Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for contacting and scheduling police services with the Police Department. If 
the Contractor must cancel police services, he must do so within the time limits set by the Police 
Department. If the Contractor does not cancel police services within the time limits, then 
Contractor shall be responsible to promptly pay the minimum required amount. 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE 

The Contractor shall be required without additional compensation to provide safe and convenient 
access to all abutters during the prosecution of the Work. 

No excavation shall be left open during non-working hours. 

MSDS sheets and information shall be available on site and copies submitted to a Town as 
requested. 

NECESSARY ACCESS FOR FIRE APPARATUS AND OTHER EMERGENCY VEHICLES 
SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE 
WITH THE POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS AT ALL TIMES REGARDING ACCESS. 

For the protection of life and property, all backfill operations shall follow closely behind 
completed work. The Contractor shall insure that no excavation be left open, unguarded, or 
water filled during any period of time when work is not actually in progress. It is the purpose 
and intent that all excavations and backfill, including consolidation operations, and temporary 
surfacing within an area be accomplished expeditiously before proceeding to other work areas. 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws, regulations and Guidelines of any public body 
(example: OSHA, DIGSAFE, MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines, Police) having 
jurisdiction 

SP-2 



for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss; and shall 

erect and maintain all necessary signs/ safeguards for such safety and protection ai no extra cost 

to the Owner. See General Conditions also. 

CLEANUP

Cleanup shall be done on a daily basis. At the end of each working period, the Contractor shall 

completely backfill all holes and trenches, and remove ali equipment from the traveled way. The 

Contractor shall ensure that all safety marking and warning devices aze satisfactorily in place 

prior to leaving any job. 

During the course of the Work, the Contractor shall keep the site of his operations in as clean and 

neat condition as is possible. He shall dispose of all residue resulting from the construction work 

and, at the conclusion of the work, he shall remove and haul away any surplus excavation, 

broken pavement, lumber, equipment, temporary structures, and any other refuse remaining from 
the construction operations, and shall leave the entire site of the work in a neat and orderly 
condition. 

Sweeping and cleaning of surfaces beyond the limits of the Project #o clean up material caused 

by spillage or vehicular tracking during the various phases of the work shall be considered as 

incidental to the Work being performed under the Contract and there will be no additional 
compensation. 

EMERGENCY CONTACTS 

The Contractor shall maintain a 24-hour, 7-day a week telephone service and a Local facility to 
handle emergency requirements such as settled trenches, clogged drains, rain damage, work zone 

safety issues, etc. A list of personnel (minimum of two} and their telephone numbers shall be 

submitted to the Engineer, the Highway Superintendent (or his designee), the Public Works 
Director and to the local Folice and Fire Departments. This requirement shall apply during the 
entire length of the Project. or Service for each Town where work is being completed. This list 

shall be submitted on the Contractor's letterhead and shall state that 
should an emergency arise during the implementation of this Project or Service, these people are 

to be contacted. The Contractor shall submit this letter to the Engineer prior to initiating 
construction. The Highway Superintendent for each Town or his designee has the right to 
determine whether or not an emergency exists and to require Contractor to promptly resolve the 

emergency at no cost to that Town. If Contractor can not respond in a timely manner as 

determined by the Highway Superintendent, the Town has the right to complete the necessary 

work and to bill Contractor for that work. 

DIGSAFE

The Contractor shall notify "Mass. DIG SAFE" and the Local Water Department or District and 
procure a DIG SAFE number of each location prior to disturbing ground in any way. 

"DIG-SAFE" Call Center: Telephone 1-888-344-'7233 

SP-3 



Commonwealth Electric has a policy regarding the location of electric utilities. Dig-Safe can no 

longer be relied upon to locate electric utilities that are "privately" owned. This can include 

electric cables located in Public ways that run from utility poles to buildings. It is therefore 

incumbent upon Contractor to ascertain if any electric cables are located in any area prior to 

excavation. This will be done at Contractor's expense. 

The Contractor shalt make his own investigation to assure that no damage to existing structures, 

drainage lines, traffic signal conduits, and other utilities will occur as a result of his operations 

PROTECTION OF UTILITIES AND PROPERTY 

The Contractor, in constructing or installing facilities alongside or near sanitary sewers, storm 
drains, water or gas pipes, electric or telephone conduits, pales, sidewalks, walls, vaults or other 
structures shat(, at his expense, sustain them securely in place, cooperating with the officers and 
agents of the various utility companies and municipal departments which control them, so that 
the services of these structures shall be maintained. The Contractor shall also be responsible for 
the repair or replacement, at his own expense, of any damage to such structures caused by his 

acts or neglect, and shall leave them in the same condition as they existed prior to 
commencement of the Work. 

In case of damage to utilities, the Contractor shall promptly notify the utility owner and shall, if 
requested by the Engineer, furnish labor and equipment to work temporarily undec the owner's 
direction in providing access to the utility. Pipes or other structures damaged by the operation of 
the Contractor may be repaired by the municipality or by utility owner which suffers the loss. 
The cost of such repairs shall be borne by the Contractor, without compensation therefor. 

If, as the Work progresses, it is found that any of the utility structures are so placed as to render it 
impracticable, in the judgment of the Engineer, to do the Work called for under this Contract, the 
Contractor shall protect and maintain the services in such utilities and structwes and the 
Engineer will, as soon thereafter as reasonable, cause the position of the utilities to be changed or 
take such other actions deemed suitable and proper. 

If live service connections are to be interrupted by excavations of any kind, the Contractor shall 
not break the service until new services are provided. Abandoned services shall be plugged off 

or otherwise made secure. 

Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals for doing 
all the work involved in protecting or repairing property as specified in this section, shall be 
considered included in the prices paid for the various Contract items of Work and no additional 
compensation will be aliawed therefor. 

TRAFFIC CONTROL 

If requested by a Town, the Contractor shall negotiate a fair additional cost to supply and use 
traffic control devices, positioning and methodology, conforming with the Manual on Uniform 

SP-4 



Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD} and MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines. Traffic 

control devices required only during working hour operations shall be removed at the end of 

each working day. Signs having messages that are irrelevant to normal traffic conditions shall be 

removed or properly covered at the end of each work period. Signs shall be kept clean at all 

times and legends shall be distinctive and unmarred. 

Particular care should be taken to establish and maintain methods and procedures which will not 

create unnecessary or unusual hazards to public safety. 

WORK DONE BY OTHERS 

Relocation and/or resetting to new grades of all private utilities, including utility poles, made 

necessary by the construction of this Project, will be accomplished by the respective utility 
companies. 

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS MATERIALS 

All materials not required or needed for use on the Project, and not required to be removed and 
stacked, shall become the property of the CONTRACTOR and shall be removed from the site 
and IegalIy disposed of. No separate payment will be made for this Work, but all costs in 
connection therewith shall be included in the prices bid for various Contract items. 

COMPACTLON

Compaction of filled areas under pavement (no matter what type of fill material} shall be 
completed in 6" lifts. Compaction of filled azeas elsewhere (no matter what type of fill material) 
shall be completed in 12" lifts. Appropriate compaction equipment shall be used. 

PROPERTY BOUNDS 

Any bounds or markers flagged by a Town and disturbed by the Contractor shall be replaced 
utilizing the services of a Registered Land Surveyor. The cast of replacing flagged bounds or 
markers disturbed by the Contractor's operations shall be at the Contractor's expense. 

WEIGHING

All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery 
and the weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may 
provide use of its scale and require gross weights and vehicle tare weights verified at time of 
delivery. 

SP-5 



ITEM 101.3 STREET SWEEPING 

The Work under this item shall consist of the preparation of areas to be paved by removing and 
drying any standing or puddled water and cleaning all dirt, dust and debris at the locations indicated 
on the plans or where directed by the Engineer. 

Sweeping by means of mechanical and/or vacuum sweepers and all other preparation necessary 
of the areas and surfaces to be paved shall be included in the unit bid price for this item. In areas 
where it is impractical to use a mechanical or a vacuum sweeper, the contractor could use a 
power sweeper, broom, blower or any other method to remove any standing or puddled water 
and all dirt, dust and debris but only with the prior approval of the Engineer and the cost of this 
work shall be included in the unit bid price for this item. 

All locations and methods must be prior approved by the Engineer and all debris removed shall 
become the property of the contractor and be disposed outside of the right-of--way subject to the 
regulations of state and local authorities governing the disposal of such materials, at no 
additional compensation. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Feet of roadway, 
which price shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to 
complete the Work. 

ITEM 120.1 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 

The work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 120 of the Standazd 
Specifications. The work shall include providing all labor and equipment for the excavation, 
removal and satisfactory disposal of any material within the work zone as determined by the 
engineer and which is not covered under any other pay items in this contract. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Cubic Yard, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 124 PAVEMENT MILLING 

The Work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 120, Section 
120.66 of the Standard Specifications and the following: 

The work shall include the cold planing of existing bituminous concrete pavement surface to 
various depths to shape the pavement cross-section (crown or super elevation), to meet 
driveways, and/or to produce a uniform surface for the application of the pavement surfacing. 

Pavement areas abutting utility structures and other areas which cannot be planed by the 
principal cold planing machine shall be excavated with smaller mechanical cold planing 
equipment designed for this purpose or by manual methods at no additional cost to any Town. 

The machine shall be capable of being operated at speeds from 10 to 40 feet per minute and 

SP-b 



designed so that the operator can at alI times observe the planing operation without leaving his 

control area. Pneumatic rubber-tire mounted equipment shall be used only for trimming and 

edging operations. 

The equipment famished by the Contractor shalt be maintained in good repair at all times. 

No pavement cuttings shall remain on the project at the end of each work period. The pavement 

cuttings shall become the property of the Town and the Contractor sha!! be responsible to 
remove, haul, and deposit the pavement cuttings at no additional cost to a site as directed by the 

Town. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental casts required to 
complete the Work. 

ITEM 129.1 COLD PLANED (MILLED} PAWING JOINTS 

The work shall include the cold planing of existing bituminous concrete pavement surface to 
create key ways (paving joints) for the purpose of overlaying pavement. AlI work is to be 
performed no more than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled start of paving. 

The machine shall be capable of milling to a depth of two (2) inches and a minimum width of _. 
twenty four (24) inches. The cutter head must be able to rotate 1 S degrees to provide a beveled 
cut. All key ways shall be one (1) to two (2} inches in depth and twenty four {24) inches to forty 
eight (48) inches in width at the discretion of the Town. The Contractor is responsible milling 
and clean up of all excavated materials. 

The equipment furnished by the Contractor shall be maintained in good repair at all times. 

No pavement cuttings shall remain on the project at the end of each work period. The pavement 
cuttings shall become the property of the Town and the Contractor shall be responsible to 
remove, haul, and deposit the pavement cuttings at no additional cost to a site as directed by the 
Town. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 
shall include alt labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental costs required to 
complete the Work. 

ITEM 191.7 TEST PIT 

The work under this item shall consist of providing labor and equipment necessary to perform a 
test hole through pavement or shoulder material to determine depth of utilities within the 
proposed work area. 

When test holes are deemed necessary and approved by the Engineer, the contractor shall make 

as small a test hole as possible to obtain the necessary information on the utility line. After 

SP-7 



obtaining the information, the test pit shall be brought to proper grade with compacted dense 
graded stone or other approved material. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Each, which price shall 
include a!I labor, materials, equipment, compacting, and incidental costs required to complete the 
Work. 

ITEM 220 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE AD.IUSTED 

The work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Sections 201 and 220 of the 

Standard Specifications and the following: 

The Contractor shall maintain the drainage system in the project areas or drainage facilities 

outside the project area affected by the work performed by the Contractor to provide continual 

drainage of the travelways and construction areas. All drainage castings required to be raised to 

accommodate the pavement overlays or sidewalk improvements shall be paid for under this item. 

Clay brick conforming to Subsection M4.05.2 of the Standard Specifications shalt be used to 

make grade adjustments of drainage structure frames. 

Any drainage castings damaged due to the Contractor's operations shall be replaced with 

similaz North American made cast iron castings at no cost to the Town. 

A siructwe adjusted more than once by the Contractor, due to his plan of operation, will be 

paid far only once regardless of how many adjustments are made to the structwe. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Each, which price shall 

include all labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental costs required to 

complete the Work. 

ITEM 220.2 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE REBUILT 

The ne~v masonry construction, backfilling around structures and other incidental work shall 

conform to the relevant provisions of the Standard Specif cations and the following: 

The work shall consist of rebuilding, removing, replacing and adjusting the masonry and 

castings of existing structures. When, in the judgment of the Engineer or as designated on the 

Plans as "rebuild existing drainage structure", the structure shall be rebuilt. The casting and 

deteriorated masonry shall be removed in a neat manner until a clean sound base is obtained 

upon which concrete blocks and clay bricks may be set to rebuild the structure. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Vertical Foot, which price 

shall include a[t labor, materials, equipment, removal, hauling, and incidental costs required to 

complete the Work. 

SP-8 



ITEM 358 GATE BOX ADJUSTED 

The work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Sections 30I of the 
Standard Specifications and the following: 

Concrete collars shall be included in the work for this item. Concrete shall be 4,000 PSI and 
construction shall meet the MassDOT Construction Standards dimensions for Water Service 
Boxes and relevant sections of Section 301. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Each, which price shall 
include all labor, materials, equipment, sawcutting, excavating, hauling, disposing, and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 402 DENSE GRADED CRUSHED STONE FOR SUB-BASE 

The Work under this item shall conform to the provisions of Section 402 of the Standard 
Specifications. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Cubic Yard, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, fine grading, compacting, and incidental costs 
required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 403 RECLA4MED PAVEMENT FOR BASE COURSE 

The Work under this item shall conform to the provisions of Section l 70 & 403 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

Fine grading and compacting (FG&C) of the subgrade and protection of subsurface utilities shall 

be included in the work for this item. If requested by a Town, the Contractor shall negotiate a 

reasonable additional cost for related work (e.g., excavating and hauling away excess materials). 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unii Price per Square Yard, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, fine grading, compacting, and incidental costs 
required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 403.3 RECLAIMED PAVEMENT FOR BASE COURSE (INCLUDING 
CALCIUM CHLORIDE) 

The Work under this item shall conform to the provisions of Section 170 & 403 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

Fine grading and compacting {FG&C) of the subgrade, protection of subsurface utilities and 
adding and mixing liquid calcium chloride to the pulverized mass shall he included in the work 
for this item. If requested by a Town, the Contractor shall negotiate a reasonable additional cost 

for related work (e.g., excavating and hauling away excess materials). 

SP-9 



The calcium chloride solution shall be provided by the manufacturer as a true solution and shall 
not be reconstituted from flake calcium chloride. The calcium shall meet the following material 
specifications (see ASTM Designation D98; AASHTO-M14~1): 

Calcium Chloride 35%+/-1% 
Alkali Chloride as NaCI 2%max. 

Magnesium as MgCI 0,1% 

Typical {Pounds per gallon} 
Calcium Chloride 5.05 
Sodium Chloride 0.2 
Magnesium Chloride 0.004 
Calcium Sulfate 0.004 
Water 6.002 

1 l .2b 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, fine grading, compacting, and incidental costs 
required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 460 HOT MIX ASPHALT 

The Work shall include the furnishing and placement of top course, binder course, andlor 

leveling course for new pavements and existing pavement overlays by self-powered 
mechanical pavers. Any Town may specify any job -mix formula from Section M3.11.00 of 
the Standard Specifications. 

A tack coat of liquid bituminous material (RS-1 or equal) shall be furnished and applied to 

existing pavements at the rate of 0.10 gallon per Square Yard immediately prior to placement of 
pavement overlay and the cost shall be included in the unit price bid. The tack coat shall be 

machine applied and sprayed uniformly. Hand application will not be allowed. 

Contractor shall install Owner provided risers on gate valve boxes at no additional cost to the 

Town. Drainage and sewer casting adjustments are paid for under a separate item. 

When bituminous concrete berm (Cape Cod berm) is required, the Work shall also include the 

berm construction and the cost shall be included in the unit price bid. 

If requested by the Town, Contractor shall provide and install MassDOT approved temporary 

pavement markings at no additional cost to the Town. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Ton, which price shall 

include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

SP-10 



ITEM 472 HOT MIX ASPHALT FOR MISCELLANEOUS WORK 

The Work shall include the furnishing and placement of top course and binder course material 
by mechanical and hand methods for sidewalk resurfacing, berm, driveway, aprons, and 
other construction. Any Town may specify any jab -mix formula from Section M3.I l .Q0 of the 
Standard Specifications. 

A tack coat of liquid bituminous material {RS-1 or equal) shall be applied to existing pavements at 
the rate of 0.10 gallon per Square Yard immediately prior to placement of pavement and the cost 
shall be included in the unit price bid. 

Contractor shall install Owner provided risers on gate valve boxes at no additional cost to the Town. 
Drainage and sewer casting adjustments are paid for under a separate item. 

The measured quantity will be paid far at the Contract Unit Price per Ton, which price shall include 
all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 472.2 PARTIAL DEPTH PAVEMENT PATCH 

The Work shall consist of the construction of partial depth pavement patches at various locations 
as directed by the Engineer. The Work shall include the following: 

Partial depth pavement patch excavation shall consist of the removal and satisfactory disposal of all 
bound pavement materials, the removal of which is necessary for the proper completion of the work. 

The excavation will be made to a minimum depth of 1.5". Contractor shall make the excavation 
square or rectangular with faces straight and vertical. The Contractor may use any type of pavement 
saw-cutting or milling equipment that will not damage adjacent pavement. Ajack-hammer and 

compressor will not be allowed for cutting the pavement surface. 

The Contractor shall swab or paint the existing vertical faces of the pavement with an approved 

emulsified asphalt such that a uniform film of asphalt will remain when cured. 

Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement shall be placed and properly compacted with a power roller. The 
surface shall not deviate more than 1/8" from a straight edge placed on the existing pavement. 

The perimeter of the patch shall be painted with an emulsified asphalt or approved equal such that 

a 4" wide strip will be equally spaced on the new and existing pavement. The joint sealing 

material shall be dusted with stone screenings or stone dust such that no tracking or pick-up of the 

seal will occur. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Square Yard, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 482.3 SAWING ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

This item is for saw cutting of bituminous asphalt not included as incidental work for other 

SP-11 



payment items. All lines shall be neat and straight. 

Sawcut areas damaged by the contractor shall be re-cut at the contractors expense prior to 
paving. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, and incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 504 GRANITE CURB TYPE VA4 —STRAIGHT 

Work under these items shall conform to the relevant provision of Section 501 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

All curbing shall be set on a bed of dry compacted gravel base. The spaces between the curb and 
the walls of the trench (both front and back sides of the curb) shall be filled with 4,000 PSI 
concrete to the depth directed, and shall then have a 2-inch base of Hot Mix Asphalt placed upon 
it. This shall ensure proper adhesion of the overlays to the existing surface. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for saw cutting the existing pavement edge as directed by the 
Town, for excavating the area needed for the curbing and concrete installation, and for hauling 
and disposing of the excavated material. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for meeting all current Federal and State architectural 
accessibility requirements. This includes but is not limited to: slopes; grades; and construction 
materials. 

If requested by the Town, the Contractor shall negotiate an additional cost per Linear Foot 
for transition and curved granite curbing. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 
shall include all labor, materials, equipment, saw cutting, excavating, hauling, disposing, and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM SOb GRANITE CURB TYPE VB —STRAIGHT 

Work under these items shall conform to the relevant provision of Section 501 of the Standard 

Specifications and the following: 

All curbing shall be set on a bed of dry compacted gravel base. The spaces between the curb and 

the walls of the trench {both front and back sides of the curb) shall be filled with 4,000 PSI 
concrete to the depth directed, and shall then have a 2-inch base of Hot Mix Asphalt placed upon 

it. This shall ensure proper adhesion of the overlays to the existing surface. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for saw cutting the existing pavement edge as directed by the 

Town, for excavating the area needed far the curbing and concrete installation, and for hauling 
and disposing of the excavated material. 

SP-12 



The Contractor shall be responsible for meeting all current Federal and State architectural 
accessibility requirements. This includes but is not limited to: slopes; grades; and construction 
materials. 

If requested by the Town, the Contractor shall negotiate an additional cost per Linear Foot 

for transition and curved granite curbing. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 

shall include all labor, materials, equipment, saw cutting, excavating, hauling, disposing, and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 580 CURB REMOVED AND RESET 

Work under this item shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 580 of the Standard 

Specifications and the following: 

Mortar, concrete, asphalt, soil, and all debris and deleterious material shalt be removed from 

the curbing prior to setting as part of this work item. 

All curbing shall be set on a bed of dry compacted gravel base. The spaces between the curb 

and the walls of the trench (both front and back sides of the curb) shall be filled with 4,000 PSI 

concrete to the depth directed, and shall then have a 2-inch base of Hot Mix Asphalt placed 

upon it. This shall ensure proper{adh~sion of the overlays to the existing surface. 

The measured quantity will be paid far at the Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price 

shall include alI labor, materials, equipment, compacting, and incidental costs required to 

complete the Work. 

SP-13 



THIS FORM IS TO.BE USED AS THE COVER SHEET TO YOUR BID 

CERTIFICATE of NON-COLLUSION AND TAX COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MG!~ Chapfer 62C, Section 49A, t certify under the penalties of perjury that 

!, to the best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with all laws of the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and 

contractors, and withholding and remitting child support. 

t certify under the penalties of perjury that this bid/proposal has been made and 

submitted in good faint and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in 

this certit'fcate, the word "person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, 

corporation, union, committee, club or other legal organization, entity or group of 

individuals. 

Company: 

Address: 

Signature of individual Signing 

Bid, or Corporate Offct~t~--~ 
~~,~,~ ,~ 

Telephone Number:  }~~ ~p.2 ,' o?OD 

Social Security Number 

Or Federal Identification Number: ~ ~Q~l. ~y~t~ 

~~c.,r~/ 

Date:  ~' O~y 

Any person at corporallan whleh /ails to execute this document 

wttt be considered a non•responslve bidder 

and will 6e rejected pursuant to MGt. Chapter 30, 39M. 

B~-~ 



BID FORM 
ROAD RESURFACING PROJECTS 

(UNIT PRICE WORK) 

Bidders may bid for any or all Towns. Bid selection will be by each item and will be based on 
the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each Town. 

MAssDOT Prequalification: Some Towns may use Chapter 90 (State) funds to finance some of 
the work. Therefore, Bidders may be required to be prequatified through the Massachusetts 
Department of Transportation (MassDOT). Bids received from Bidders not prequalsfied by the 
MassDOT will be declared invalid. Items highlighted and noted with an asterisk require vendors 
to be prequalified by MassDOT. 

Price Adiustmentsc The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) method for 
calculating price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel 
fuel, gasoline, and structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Liquid Asphalt adjustment shall 
apply to Hot Mix Asphalt and Hot Mix Asphalt fur Miscellaneous Work (Handwork} on 
orders greater than 100 tons where the adjustment results in a change in the Unit Price of 

5 9/0 or more. The Dicscl Fuel adjustment shall apply to Hot Mix Asphalt and Hot Mix 
AsphAlt for Miscellaneous Work (Handwork} where the adjustment results in a change in 
the Unit Price of IO% or snore. No other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt and Diesel Fuel price adjustment -shall be based on the difference between 
the respective prices at the time of the bid {base bid price) and the prices on the date of paving. 
The Liquid Asphalt and Diesel Fuei base bid price shall be the prices posted on the MassDOT 
Website for the month of December, 2018. 

Tied $ids: In the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the 
awarded bidder. 

BF-6 



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 A
 

R
O

A
D

 R
E

S
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 B

iD
-S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 R

O
A

D
S

 

B
!D

 F
O

R
M

 A
N

D
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

D
 Q

U
A

N
T

IT
IE

S
 (B

Y
 T

O
W

N
] 

C
h

a
th

a
m

 

T
o

ta
! 

IE3o oo~Q`''~Mm~ N-io 
n ~o ►n °D

C~ 

~ 

f—
 ~

 
_~

 

O 

ui . '~'~om000 

~ v .~ 

C
h

a
th

a
m

 

aue~A.te~yi~ ~ 

~ 
S
S
O
 

0
 

2
7
0
 0 

a 

.-i 
.-r ~ 0 

D
 0 0 

0 
~ 
.-i 

M v o~ o 0 0 

C
h
a
th

a
m

 

laa~;Sssaa~ o~a~ 
N r-1 N 117 

0
 

~~n 4
 

ao 
o 
$ 
tf1 

0 
~$a$000 
T.j M 

N 

C
h

a
th

a
m

 

;aa~~5a~p1~8 
o 
~~$ 
~ 

a 

tY1 

o 

U1 

2
7
0
 $ 

~n 
~ 

,-{ o u, m o o 
a 
$ 
U'1 

o 
$ 
N' 

o 
N 
tl1 

o 
v 
0 
~S 

0 0 0 

r 

j .-~ U to ill t!1 

Q

W W~ W~ V1 V1 

Z 

O 
Z 

O {}/~ J J J ...I 

D
e

sc
ri

p
tio

n
 

S
tr

e
e

t S
w

e
e

p
in

g
 

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

 E
xc

av
at

io
n 

P
a
v

e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
li

n
g

 

C
al

d
 P

la
n

ed
 (

M
il

le
d

) 
P

av
in

g
 J

o
in

ts
 

F
in

e 
G

ra
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

p
a
c
ti

n
g
 

T
es

t 
P

it 
D

ra
in

g
e 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 A

d
ju

st
e
d
 

D
ra

in
a 

a 
S

tr
u

ct
u

re
 R

e
b

u
ilt

 

G
at

e 
B

ox
 A

d
ju

st
e

d
 

D
en

se
 G

ra
de

d 
C

ru
sh

 S
to

n
e

 fo
r 

S
ub

-B
as

e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

a
ve

m
e

n
t f

o
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

a
v

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
B

as
e 

C
o
u
rs

e 
(I

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 

C
ai

cl
um

 C
h

lo
ri

d
e

) 

H
o

t M
ix

 A
sp

h
a

lt 

H
o
t 

M
ix

 A
s 

h
af

t 
fo

r 
M

is
c
e
ll

a
n
e
o
u
s 

W
o
rk

 {
H

a
n

d
w

o
rk

 

P
a

rt
ia

l O
e

p
th

 P
a

ve
m

e
n

t 
P

at
ch

 

S
aw

in
g 

A
sp

ha
lt 

P
a

ve
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ite
 C

ur
b 

T
yp

e 
V

A
4

-S
tr

a
ig

h
t 

G
ra

n
ite

 C
ur

b 
T

yp
e 

V
B

-S
tr

ai
gh

t 

C
ur

b 
R

em
ov

ed
 a

n
d

 R
es

et
 

~ 

~ 

~ 
p~ 

~ 

M 
'"~ 
~ 

O 
N 
'-i 

Ol 
N 
e-i 

Qt 
N 
rl 

O 
f~ 
`-1 

N 
al 
e-~ 

O 
N 
N 

O 
N 
N 

o0 
In 
Ci'i 

N 
L7 
Ct 

tr) 
O 
V 

R] 
O 
Cf 

O 
LD 
Q 

N 
1'~ 
cf 

N 
!~ 
d' 

N 
00 
ct 

ct 
O 
Vt 

tD 
O 
!n 

O 
t0 
l!'1 



A
T
T
A
C
H
M
E
N
T
 A
 

R
O
A
D
 R
E
S
U
R
F
A
C
I
N
G
 B
t
D
-
S
P
E
C
I
F
I
C
 R
O
A
D
S
 

B
I
O
 F
O
R
M
 A
N
D
 E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
D
 Q
U
A
N
T
I
T
I
E
S
 (
t3

Y 
T
O
W
N
)
 

:C 
u ..~ 

~.`. a 

Z 

le~ol 
~ 

~o 
;. 

'o 
G 

`~' $ o o~ o 0 0 0 o g o S o o 
,. 

.a :o 

z 

aaa~~gu4e{N u
 J

 

v~~ooN0000 Q oo~000a 

H
a

rw
ic

h
 

Pe~2~ 
u1a}sa/N;ea~~ 

0 0 

o 
~ N $ o 0 7

0
 

o a o o ~ 

~n 
O 

N
N 

ri 
O O O O 

w 
—~ 

r

V 4}fl trft 1/1 W L1J ~! W U N'1 N O O V} j J ..~.1 J J 

D
e

sc
ri

p
tio

n
 

S
tr

e
e

t S
w

ee
pi

n 
'U

nc
la

ss
ifi

ed
 E

xc
av

at
io

n 

P
a

ve
m

e
n

t M
in

in
g

 

C
o

ld
 P

la
ne

d 
(M

in
e

d
} 

P
a

vi
n

g
 J

o
in

ts
 

F
in

e 
G

ra
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

p
a

ct
in

 

T
e

st
 P

it 

D
ra

in
g

e
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
 A

d
ju

st
e

d
 

D
ra

in
a

g
e

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 R
e

b
u

ilt
 

G
a

te
 B

ox
 A

d
ju

st
e

d
 

D
en

se
 G

 ra
ile

d
 C

ru
sh

 S
to

n
e

 fo
r 

S
ub

-B
as

e 
R

ec
la

im
ed

 P
a

ve
m

e
n

t f
o

r 
B

as
e 

C
ou

rs
e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

a
ve

m
e

n
t f

o
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 
{l

n
ci

u
d

in
g

 
C

al
ci

um
 C

h
lo

ri
d

e
] 

H
o

t M
ix

 A
sp

ha
lt 

H
o

t 
M

ix
 A

sp
ha

lt 
fo

r 
M

is
ce

lla
n

e
o

u
s 

W
o

rk
 t

H
a

n
d

w
o

rk
} 

P
a

rt
ia

l D
e

p
th

 P
a

ve
m

e
n

t P
a

tc
h

 

S
a

w
in

g
 A

sp
ha

lt 
P

a
ve

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
ite

 C
ur

b 
T

yp
e 

V
A

4
-S

tr
a

lg
h

t 

G
ra

n
ite

 C
ur

b 
T

yp
e 

V
B

-S
tr

a
ig

h
t 

C
ur

b 
R

em
ov

ed
 a

n
d

 R
es

et
 

_ 

p 
~"" 

~ 
~ 

M
~"~ 
O 

O 
N 
ri 

_ 

QI 
N 
ri 

_ 

OY 
N 
ei 

Q 
f~ 
wi 

_ 

N 
Qt 
.-1 

O 
N 
N 

O 
N 
N 

00 
u1 
('rI 

N 
O 
of 

M 
O 
Q 

M 
O 
of 

O 
l0 
~ 

N 
1~ 
~ 

N 
f~ 
Ct 

N~ 
00 
V 

O 
tl] 

lG 
O 
L/'1 

O 
CO 
ttt 



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 A
 

R
O

A
D

 R
E

S
U

R
F

A
C

IN
G

 B
ID

-S
P

E
C

iF
iC

 R
O

A
D

S
 

61
0 

F
O

R
M

 A
N

D
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

D
 Q

U
A

N
T

1T
tE

S
 (

B
Y

 T
O

W
N

 

O
rle

an
s 

T
o

ta
l"

 
lB}O,}, 0 0~ 

N 

,-i 
0 0 0~ ,t7' N O O 

27
,7

59
 

o0 

~ 

~c 

2S
 

O O~ 0 0 

~ 
O 

p~ sa~~~na ,-, .a M 
ui 

atO, 

N 
~ . 

d 

O

~u1 lla l ~Q~ r~ 

0
 Pn 

N 

(rl 

~ 

1/1 

~ 

O
rl

e
a

n
s 

aloes ~~~a pl0 .-, .~ 
m 
^ 
ati 

o~ 

h 
rP 

O
rle

an
s 

pg a$p1~9 
N 

~ 
N 

~ 1
2

3
 

O
r[

ea
ns

 

1pl 

~ul~~ed ~!Il~e3 Mda 

~ 

O
rl

e
a

n
s 

n 

;~ul~ed oq~eH ~~fla 
d ~ 

o 
~ 

a 
~ ~ 

O
rl

e
a

n
s 1 

ipH ~ogaeH 

0
 

N 

O 
rn
m 

o N 

J V V1 an Vi w w> u~ w V1 0 o N J J J J 

C 
O 

a 
v 

O 

'S
tr

ee
t S

w
ee

pi
ng

 

'U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

 E
xc

av
at

io
n 

P
av

em
en

t M
ill

in
g

 

C
oi

d 
P

la
ne

d 
(M

ill
e

d
) 

P
av

in
g 

Jo
in

ts
 

F
in

e 
G

ra
di

ng
 a

n
d

 C
om

pa
ct

in
g 

T
es

t 
P

it 
D

ra
in

ge
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
 A

d
ju

st
e

d
 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
S

tr
u

ct
u

re
 R

e
b

u
ilt

 

G
at

e 
B

ox
 A

dj
us

te
d 

D
en

se
 G

ra
de

d 
C

ru
sh

 S
to

ne
 fo

r 
S

ub
-B

as
e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

av
em

en
t f

o
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

av
em

en
t f

o
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 
(I

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 

C
al

ci
um

 C
hl

or
id

e)
 

H
o

t M
ix

 A
sp

ha
lt 

H
o

t M
ix

 A
s 

h
a

lt 
fo

r 
M

is
ce

lla
n

e
o

u
s 

W
o

rk
 (

H
a

n
d

w
o

rk
} 

P
a

rt
ia

i D
e

p
th

 P
av

em
en

t P
a

tc
h

 

S
aw

in
g 

A
sp

ha
ft 

P
av

em
en

t 
G

ra
n

ite
 C

ur
b 

T
y 

e 
V

A
Q

-S
tr

ai
gh

t 

G
ra

n
ite

 C
ur

b 
T

yp
e 

V
B

-S
tr

ai
gh

t 

C
ur

b 
R

em
ov

ed
 a

n
d

 R
es

et
 

C
3 

h 

~ 
Q! 
_ 

m
!"~ 
O 
H 

0 
N 
.-~ 

Q1 
N 
.1 

t71 
N 
r1 

O 
n 
'-+ 

N 
Ot 
r-I 

CS 
N 
N 

O 
N 
N 

o0 
u1 
m 

N 
O 
C 

m 
O 
v 

M 
O 
v 

O 
tD 
d 

N 
t'~ 
d 

N 
1`~ 
d 

N 
OfI 
d 

tt 
0 
to 

tD 
0 
t!t 

O 
00 
sn 



A
TT

A
C

H
IV

iE
N

T 
A

 
R

O
A

D
 R

E
S

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 B
ID

-S
P

E
C

iF
LC

 R
O

A
D

S
 

B
ID

 F
O

R
M

 A
N

D
 E

5T
IM

A
T

E
D

 Q
U

A
N

T
IT

IE
S

 i;
BY

 T
O

W
N

] 

P
ro

v
in

c
e
to

w
n
 

T
o

ta
l 

le;ol $o~og000000 ~ ~ QO~,or,No 

P
ro

vi
n

ce
to

w
n

 

;S ~~0~'8 
pJo}peJB uaanrt;aq 

aS ~oJu7ulM 

o ~ 

~ 
2
5
 0 

0~ o ~ m m rn N o r o~ ~ $~~ ~ ,~ 

~ 

a ~ulpue~ 

C O;;O~ 

> 
0 
a 

xJed 

u~eJ~~;~ 

~UI~1@d 

pu3 ;saM woJ~ 

;aaJ;S !elzJawwp~ 

o 
~ 

~ 
~ 

0 
yOj 

m 
S tl ' d' cr ~ 

M N N 3
0
0
 

r'/? m 4
0
 

P
ro

vi
n

ce
to

w
n

 

3S PJo}PeJB 

*g !el~Jawwo~ 

uaan~aq 

;aa~;S o!la;uoW 

o 
ov~,N$ 

c 
~ mmm~ ~ ~~ 

o 
o~~m 

-~ l.J N tP) N W W ~ ~ V ~ N O O H J J J J 

D
e

sc
ri

p
tio

n
 

S
tr

ee
t S

w
e

e
p

in
g

 

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

 E
xc

av
at

io
n 

P
a
v

e
m

e
n

t 
M

il
li

n
g

 

'C
ol

d 
P

la
n

e
d

 (
M

ill
e

d
) 

P
av

in
g 

Jo
in

ts
 

F
in

e 
G

ra
d
in

g
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

p
a
c
ti

n
g
 

T
es

t 
P

it 

D
ra

in
ge

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 A
d

ju
st

e
d

 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
S

tr
u

ct
u

re
 R

e
b

u
ilt

 

G
at

e 
B

ox
 A

d
ju

st
e

d
 

D
en

se
 G

ra
d

e
d

 C
ru

sh
 S

to
ne

 fo
r 

S
ub

-B
as

e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

a
ve

m
e

n
t f

o
r 

S
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

av
em

en
t f

o
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 

C
al

ci
u

m
 C

h
lo

ri
d

e)
 

H
o
t 

M
ix

 A
sp

h
a
lt

 

H
o

t M
ix

 A
sp

h
a

lt 
fo

r 
M

is
ce

lla
n

e
o

u
s 

W
o

rk
 (

H
a

n
d

w
o

rk
) 

P
ar

tia
l D

e
p

th
 P

av
em

en
t 

P
at

ch
 

S
aw

in
g 

A
sp

h
a

lt 
P

av
em

en
t 

G
ra

n
ite

 C
ur

b 
T

yp
e 

V
A

4-
S

tr
ai

gh
t 

G
ra

n
ite

 C
ur

b 
T

yp
e 

V
8

-S
tr

a
ig

h
t 

C
u

rb
 R

e
m

o
v

e
d

 a
n

d
 R

es
et

 
i 

C

N 

E 

~ 

M
~"~ 
O 

O 
N 
ri 

Ol 
N 
ri 

C1 
N 
e-t 

O 
n 
H 

N 
Q1 
rl 

O 
N 
N 

O 
N 
N 

00 
U'1 
Rl 

N 
O 
C 

m 
O 
Q 

M 
O 
~ 

O 
tD 
Ct 

N 
f~ 
~ 

N 
1`~ 
Cf 

N 
CO 
cY 

ct 
O 
U1 

~ 
(7 
tfS 

O 
GO 
~A 



R
O

A
D

 R
E

S
U

R
F

A
C

IN
G

 B
iD

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 R
O

A
D

S
 

B
IO

 F
O

R
M

 A
N

D
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

D
 Q

U
A

N
T

IT
IE

S
 (

B
Y

 T
O

W
N

) 

c - Q 

n 

{q~j ~ M~ O 
N~ 

W~ ~.-~ N W O o 

~^ 

O 

_-3
38

 

0 0 0 0 0 

S
a

n
d

w
i~

 

{~o~ 8ul~lJed 
y~ea~ s~~aN uMol) 

anuany poo/y~ 
~ 
t° 

m N 
O 

~ 
'O

~ 

ry

S
a
n
d
w

ic
h
 

~ 
--

 
--

 -
 --

peQ>i 
p{a~}ssor~ ]saM 

a 

N
m 
N

... 
^ ~

~
 

Z
 

~,,, u+i 
''' 

~ 
N 

v 
''' 

r 
u 

~ 

C 
n 
h 

{1e0}] allow 
N 

pmj 

^ 
ti ~ N N r1 N ~ 

—
7,

93
2 a 

~ 
N 

N 

5
a

n
d

w
lc

h
 

Ae/{~ sauuea~ ~ 
e~ 

~ 2
7
 

~ 
c 

~ N m ~ ~ ~ 

5
a
n
d
w

lc
h
 

PeO21lIaMOJ~ ry
00 

~ t0 
'"~ 

N ~ N N m '~~ 
oo 

~ 
ri 

~ 

~ 

5
a
n
d
w

lc
h
 

aue7 3nWsay? 
m 
o 
m 

m ,  ̀~ 

} 

N O 

~ 

N N ."~-'

E
LO

'E
 5

5
9
 

m 

t 
"~ 

9 
C 
R 
N 

en{]Q WlyBU~)ng 
Q 

uai~
~ 

R 

~ n N ~ N ~^+ `a 
[T 

uQi 
v 

~ m 

S
an

d
w

ic
h
 

an{~Q ysnga{gcueig ~ $ o ~ eo 'rj ~ ,;; 

~~a~r>-a 
YI N V7 W 

a 
W~ W ~ H ~ p 

rr 
~ N~ 1 J J 

C 
O 

~ 

`u
w 

S
tr

ee
t 
S

w
ee

p
in

 

'U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

 E
xc

av
at

io
n 

P
av

em
en

t M
ill

in
 

.C
ol

d 
P

la
ne

d 
(M

ill
e

d
) 

P
av

in
 

Jo
in

ts
 

'F
in

e 
G

ra
di

ng
 a

nd
 C

om
pa

ct
in

 
T

es
t P

it 
D

ra
in

 a
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
 A

d
ju

st
e

d
 

D
ra

in
a 

a 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

 it
e

b
u

ilt
 

G
at

e 
B

ox
 A

d 
u

st
e

d
 

D
en

se
 G

ra
de

d 
C

ru
sh

 s
to

n
e
 fo

r 
S

ub
-b

as
e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

av
em

en
t 
fo

r 
B

as
e 

C
ou

rs
e 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 P

av
em

en
t f

o
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 
(I

nc
lu

di
ng

 

C
al

ci
um

 C
hl

or
id

e)
 

F
io

t 
M

lx
 A

sp
h
al

t 

H
o

t M
ix

 A
sp

ha
lt 

fo
r 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
W

or
k 

N
an

dw
or

k~
 

P
ar

tia
l D

e 
th

 P
av

em
en

t P
at

ch
 

S
aw

in
g
 A

sp
h

al
t 

P
a
v

e
m

e
n

t 

~ _~ 

~ .`. 
`^ 

a 
a 
i--
.n 

v 
a~ 
'c 

l7 G
ra

ni
te

 C
ur

b 
Ty

 
a 

V
8

-S
tr

a
ig

h
t 

C
ur

ti 
R

em
ov

ed
 a

nd
 R

es
et

 

~ 

30 
r 

E y 
m 
"~ 
O 

0 
N 
.ti 

0~ 
N 
.-+ 

Qi 
N^ 
..~ 

O 

.-~ 

N 
Q1 
.-r 

O 
N 
N 

O 
N 
N 

oo 
ul 
m 

N 
O 
v 

m 
O 
c 

m 
O 
v 

O 
tD 
v 

N 
1~ 
a 

N 
n 
v 

N 
O 
v 

Q 
O 
ui 

t0 
O 
v~ 

O 
00 
~n 



V1 
fl
Q 

V 
u.. 
u 

a~ 
f- v 

g~m 

u ~ 
d ~ 

Q ~ 
or 

N 
W 
~. 

Q 
O 
a 

B
ID

 F
O

R
M

 A
N

D
 E

5T
IM

A
T

E
D

 Q
U

A
N

T
IT

IE
S

 {B
Y

 T
O

W
N

) 

Y
ar

m
ou

th
 

T
o

ta
l 

(e;ol ooa0oo, 0,~~~00 
S 
tYl 
CV 

0 
Q 
~ooao0o 
N 

', Y
a

rm
o

u
th

 

;aa~;5 

uolu~ januand 
uot3e3S 

~ 
N 

o 0 0 
0 
Q 
N 

o 0 

~' 
~ -~ U e}i1 v} 1 ~ei1 

qq
~tI W > 

dd
tt7 u vi i ~ 

z 
O 

z 
O ~ ~ ~ ~ .~..i 

c 
0 

_a 

N 
d 

S
tr

e
e

t S
w

e
e

p
in

g
 

U
n

cl
a

ss
ifi

e
d

 E
xc

av
at

io
n 

P
a

ve
m

e
n

t M
iii

in
 

C
ol

d 
P

la
n

e
d

 {M
ill

e
d

) 
P

av
in

g 
Jo

in
ts

 

F
in

e
 G

ra
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

p
a

ct
in

 
T

es
t 
P

it 

D
ra

in
g

e
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
 A

d 
u

st
e

d
 

D
ra

in
a

g
e

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 R
e

b
u

ilt
 

G
at

e 
B

ox
 A

d
ju

st
e

d
 

D
en

se
 G

ra
d

e
d

 C
ru

sh
 S

to
n

e
 fo

r 
S

ub
-b

as
e 

R
e

cl
a

im
e

d
 P

a
ve

m
e

n
t f

a
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 

R
e

cl
a

im
e

d
 P

a
ve

m
e

n
t f

o
r 

B
as

e 
C

ou
rs

e 
(I

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 

C
al

ci
um

 C
h

lo
ri

d
e

} 

H
o

t M
ix

 A
sp

ha
lt 

H
o

t 
M

ix
 A

sp
h

a
lt 

fo
r 

M
is

ce
lla

n
e

o
u

s 
W

o
rk

 {
H

a
n

d
w

o
rk

} 

P
a

rt
ia

l D
e

p
th

 P
a

ve
m

e
n

t P
at

ch
 

S
a

w
in

g
 A

sp
h

a
lt 

P
a

ve
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

ite
 C

ur
b 

T
yp

e 
V

A
4

-S
tr

a
ig

h
t 

G
ra

n
ite

 C
ur

b 
T

yp
e 

V
S

-S
tr

ai
 h

t 
C

ur
b 

R
em

ov
ed

 a
n

d
 R

es
et

 

C
3 

}q 

~ 
y 
_ 

~ 
~"~ 
O 

O 
N 
.-1 

Ql 
N 
~-1 

Ol 
N 
~--I 

O 
1~ 
~-/ 

N 
Ql 
.--! 

O 
N 
N 

O 
N 
N 

W 
tf1 
M 

N 
0 
C 

!'ff 
0 
ct 

rn 
O 
~' 

O 
1p 
Q 

N 
I~ 
!f 

N 
I~ 
Ct 

N 
O 
~ 

~t 
0 
ll1 

tD 
0 
V1 

O 
00 
U1 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROAD REStlRFACING 810•SPECIFlCROADS 
BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town Chatham 

item 
Estimated 
RuantHy 

item wlth Unit gtd t'tice Written In Wonis ~°h Brd Price 

DoJiura Cents 

Amount 

Dollars Cents 

f01.3 T,O10 

Street Sweeping 

At Zero dolfats and fourteen cents 0 14 981 40 
Pet LP 

i2D.f 2,017 

tinclassiAed Excavaifon 

At Forty two dollars and zero cents 42 00 84,714 00 

Per CY 

129.1 810 

Cold Planed (Milled) Pav(ng Joints 

At Twenty eight dollars and zero cents 28 00 22,680 00 

Per SY 

170.0 i1,W4 

Fine Grading and Compacting ~ 

At One dollar and twenty five cents 1 . 25 14,500 00 

Par SY 

191.7 3 

_ 

Test Plt 

At Four hundred fifty dtiflars and zero cents 450 00 1,350 00 

Par EA 

220.0 35 

Drainge Structure AdJus~d 

At Three hundred fifty doliars and zero cents 350 00 12,250 00 

Per EA 

22t?.2 10 

Drainage Structure Retxdfl 

At Three hundred seventy five dollars and zero cents 375 00 3,750 00 

Per VF 

358.0 12 

Gate Box AdJusted 

At One hundred fifty doliars and zero cents 150 00 1,800 QO 

Per teA 

403.3 6,T00 

Reclaimed Pavement for Bsse Course (Including Calcium Chloride} 

At Four dollars and forty five cents 4 45 29,815 00 

Per SY 

460.0 4,110 

Hol Mix Asphalt 

Ai One hundred seven dollars and zero cents 107 00 439,770 00 

Per 70N 

4720 1,020 

Hat Mix Asphalt for Miscellaneous Work (Handwork} 

At One hundred seventy seven doliars end zero cents 177 00 180,540 00 

Per TON 

482.3 B80 

Sawing Asphalt Pavement 

At One dollar and zero cents 1 00 680 00 

Per lF 

BF-l3-Rz 



ATTACHMENT A 

RQAD RESURFApNO 81D-SPECIFIC ROADS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town Cha/hem 

Item 
Qulamtlt~ity~j 

Item wfth Unit Bld Priaa Written in Wards 
Unn 91d Price 

Oo!lars Cents 

Amrwnt 

!btlara Cents 

Chatham FotalAmountSavan hundred ninety two thousand eight hundred kh rty do}tars and forty cants 

X792,830.40 

t3F- t l _ 
~ 2 



ATTACHMENT A 
Rt)AD RESURFACING BID-SPECIFIC ROAQS 
B1D FORM AND ESTIMATER gUANTITif5 

Town FlarwJch 

tram 
E=tlmatad 
Duanttty 

Item with Unit Bid Price Written in Wards 
flair t31d Arks 

Dollars Cants 

Amount 

Daffars Cent 

129,0 32,000 

Pavement Milting 

At Three dollars and forty five cents 3 45 110,400 00 

Per SY 

128,1 700 

Cold Planed (Mined} P~ring Jdnts 

Al Twenty eight dollars and zero cents 28 00 19,600 00 

Per 5Y 

220.0 95 

Dralnee Structure Adjusted 

Ai Two hundred eighty five dollars and zero cents 285 00 27,075 00 

Per EA 

A00.0 4,500 

Hoi Mfx Asphalt 

At One hundred six dollars and zero cents 106 00 477,000 00 

Per TON 

472.0 300 

Hot Mlx Asphalt far Miscellaneous Work (Handwork) 

At One hundred ninety two dollars and fif#y cents 192 50 57,750 00 

Per TON 

472.2 1,806 

Partial Depth PavementPetch 

Al Sixty two dollars and zero cents t32 00 111,600 00 

Par SY 

Nanvkh TMelAdrovnt~ E1ght hundred three thousand four hundred twenty f`vs daNars and zero cents 

$803,425.00 

BF- ~5—~2 



ATTACHMENT A 
ROAD RESURFACING 81D-SPECIFIC ROADS 
810 FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Tovrn Orfearrs, 

ttem 

__ , 

Estlmeted 
quantity 

Item with Unfi Bid Price Written in Words 
Unk 6rd Price 

norim Cents 

Amount 

aona~ tents 

f29.4 1,372 

Pavement Mfilling 

At Twelve dollars and seventy five cents 12 75 17,493 00 

Per SY 

220.0 23 

Drainge Structure Adjusted 

Ai Three hundred sixty dollars and zero cents 380 00 8,280 00 

Per EA 

220.2 4 

Drainage Structure Rebuilt 

At Three hundred seventy five dollars and zero cents 375 00 1,500 00 

Per VF 

358.4 Z 

Gets Box Adjusted 

Ai Three hundred twenty five dollars and zero cents 325 00 650 00 

Per EA 

443.3 -27,759 

Reciafrned Pavement for 8asa Course (including Calcium Chtorkfej 

A~ Four dollars and seventy five cents 4 75 131,855. 25 - 

Pet SY 

4W.4 8,598 

Nai Mix Aaphall 

Atone hundred six dollars and zero cents 106 00 899,388 00 

Per TON 

4720 25 

Hot Mlx Asphalt far Mlscellsneous yltark (Handwork) 

At Two hundred twenty dollars and zero cants 220 00 5,500 00 

Per TON 

544,0 75 

granite Curb Typo VA4-SUaight 

At Fociy five dolars and zero cents 45 00 3,375 00 

Per LF 

t3rreaiis ~otalARruunf`~ Eight hundred sixty eight thousand forty one dollars and twenty five cents 

$668,041.25 

131=- (~ ~,Z. 



ATTACHMENT A 
ROAD ttESURFAClNG 8iD-SPECtPiC ROADS 
BtD FORM AND ESTIMATED gUAtVTrTIES 

Town Pmvfncetown 

Item 
au ~ ty

tt~n with Unit t3id Prtca Wrtttsn in Words 
UnK B!d P>ice 

t?ollars Cents 

anount 

Dollars Cents 

101.3 $500 

Street SYreeping 

At One dollar and fifty cents 1 50 3,750 00 

Per t.F 

12D.1 100 

Unclsasltkd FacC8YattOn 

At Forty dollars and zero cents 40 00 4,000 DO 
Per CY 

129.0 5,500 

Pavement Milting 

A! Seven dollars end zero cents 7 00 38,500 OD 

Per SY 

170.D 600 

Fine Grading and Canpacting 

At Ten dollars end zero cents 1 D DO S,OOD DO 

Per SY 

220.0 !0 

Ekainge SWct~e Ac~usted 

At Five hundred dollars and zero cents ~ 500 QO 5.000 00 

Per EA 

22D.2 10 

Drstnage Structure Rebuilt 

At Three hundred seventy fve dollars and zero cants 375 DO 3,75G DO 

Per VF 

358.D 10 

Gate Box Adjusted 

Al Two hundred fifty dollars and zero cents 250 00 2,500 00 

Per EA 

402D 100 

Dense Graded Crush Stone for Sut}t3ase 

Al One hundred twenty dollars and zero cents 120 00 12,DOC 00 

Per CY 

403.3 5D0 

Reclaimed Pavement for Base Course (Including Calcium Chloride) 

At Forty two dollars and zero cants 42 DD 21,000 00 

Par 5Y 

460.0 45D 

Hot Mix Asphalt 

At Ona hundred sixty five dollars and zero cents 185 00 74,250 00 

Per 70N 

4720 40 

Ftot Mlx Asphalt for Mlsceltaneous Work tNandwak) 

At Two hundred twenty dollars and zero cents 220 00 8,800 00 

Per TON 

482.3 500 

Sawing Asphalt Pavement 

Ak One dollar and zero cents 1 00 500 00 

Per LF 

13F- 1~7' RZ 



ATTApiMENT A 
ROAD RESURFACING 810-SRECiHC RQADS 
B!a FARM AND ESTIMATED QUANTRIES 

Town Provrncetawrt 

Item Estlnlated 
Quantity 

tt~tt wkh Untt 8!d Puce Written in Words 
Unit Btd Pace 

oortars cents 

Amount 

Dorlara cents 

504,0 50 

Gaits Curb Type VA4-5lratght 

At pne hundred twenty five dollars and zero cents 125 00 8,250 00 

Per iF 

506.0 50 

Gr~tte Curb Type VB-Sb~eight 

At One hundred twenty five dollars and zero cents 125 00 8,250 00 

Per !F 

580.0 10D 

Curb Removed and Reset 

qt Sixty dollars and zero cents t30 OD 8,000 OD 

Per tF 

Provincetown TatelAmouat pne hundred ninety seven thousand five hundred Fifty dollars and zero cents 

$197,550.OD 

s>=- lg' R ~ 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROAD RESURFAON6 SID•SPECIFiC ROAD5 
SID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTt7tE5 

Town Sandwich 

Item 
t:atfmated 
QUBRtfty 

tiem whh Unit Btd Prfc! Written In Wnrds 
Urrlt Bld Pdc! 

fl0(1'8r9 (ilRtS 

ArRount 

t7011ard ClRfB 

101.3 15,516 

Sirest Sweeping 

At Zero dollars and fourteen cents 0 14 2,172 24 

Pet LF 

120.1 433 

UrtclesstHed Excavatlan 

At Twenty five dollars and zero cents 
25 00 10,825 00 

Per CY 

129.0 4,889 

Pavement Mlllln$ 

At Two dollars and fifty two cents 2 52 12,320 28 
Per SY 

12$.t 560 

Cdd Planed (Milled) Paving Joints 

At Nine dollars and foriy two cents 9 42 5,275 20 

Per SY 

170.0 4,889 

Eirta Grading and Compecdnp 

Al Zero dollars and seventy five cents 0 75 3,666 75 

Par SY 

1$1.T 8 

Test Pft 

Ai Zero dollars and one cent 0 01 0 08 

Per EA 

22D.0 70 

Dralnpe Structure Adjusted 

At Two hundred fifty dollars and zero cents 250 00 17,500 00 

Per EA 

220.2 11 

Drelnege Structure Retnrtil 

Al One hundred fifty dollars and zero cents 150 00 1,650 00 

Per VF 

358.0 28 

Gate Box Adjusted 

Al One hundred twenty five dollars and zero cants 125 00 3,500 00 

Per F.A 

A02.0 120 

Dense Oreded Crush Stone far Sub•Bese 

At Fifty dollars and zero cents 50 00 6,000 00 

Per CY 

403.3 30,449 

Redelmed Pavement for Base Course (Including Ceiclum Chiaride) 

At Three dollars and fifteen cents 3 15 

. 

95,914 35 

Per SY 

460.0 7,083 

Not Mix Asphalt 

At Eighty eight dollars and twenty five cents 88 25 625,074 75 

Per 70N 

aF- 1`j f~Z 



ATTACHMENT A 

RDAD RESURFACING BID•SPECIFIC RQADS 

BIO Ff?RM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Tawn Ssndwkh 

liern 
Est{rnated 
Quantity 

Item wklr Untt Btd price Writfan In Words 
t/rrlt Bld Arlce 

Doltus Cents 

Amount 

Do1l?rs Cents 

472.0 338 

tiot M1x Asphalt for Miscollaneous Work (Handworky 

At One hundred fifty dollars and zero cents 150 00 50,700 00 
Per TON 

Ssrrdwlch TotaJAmaUntElghthnndred thirty four thousand five hundred ninety eight dollars and sixty five cents 

$834,598.85 

8F-oe~ ~v~ 



ATTACHMENT A 
ROAD RESURFACING BID-SPEC1FtCR0AD5 
BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Town Yarmouth 

{rem 
Queue 

item w{lh Untt told Price Written M Wards 
Unit B/d Pr1Gt 

Dollars Cents 

Amaunl 

Dollars Cents 

129.0 23,800 

Pavement Milpag 

At Three dollars and fifty cents 3 50 82,60C 00 

Per SY 

226,0 ~ 

Drainge Structte Adjusted 

A{Thrsa_burtdre~aeventy thra¢ dolieua and twenty five cents 373 25 11,197 50 

Pet EA 

220.2 20 

Drainage Structure RebuNt 

Al One hundred fifty dollars and zero cents 150 00 3,000 00 

Per VF 

358.0 10 

Gate Box Adjusted 

At One hundred eighty seven dollars and thirty five cents 187 35 1,873 50 

Per EA 

486.0 

_ 

2,100 

Not Mfx Asphalt 

At One hundred five dollars and zero cents 105 00 220,500 00 

Pet TON 

472.0 10 

Hot Mlx Asphalt for Miscellaneous Wak (Ftandrvork) 

At Three hundred forty one dollars and twenty cents 341 20 3,412 00 

Per TON 

412.2 10 

Partial Depth Pavement Patch 

AI Six hundred ninety dollars and zero cents 690 00 6,900 00 

Pet SY 

Yamtouth Total Amount Three hundred twenty nine thousand four hundred eighty three dollars snd zero cents 

$329,483.00 

BF- O2~ ~ o~ 



~ J 

~'~~ ~ ~4/

REQUIRED FORMS 

• Bid Deposit — 5% of bid price in the form of a certified, trcasarcr's, or cashier's 

check payable to Barnstable County; or a bid bond from a licensed surety registered 

to do business in the Common~vcalth of Massachusetts. 

• Bid Forms —pages BF-I through BF-17 

Certificate ofNon-Collusion and Tax Compliance Use this form as the cover to:your 

pia 





20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8n 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with Sealcoating Inc. for Miscellaneous 
Public Works for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 1, 2019 
through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one (1) additional year 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 

Sealcoating, Inc. 
825 Granite Street 
Braintree, MA 02184 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day of 2019 by and between 
Sealcoating, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Ronald Bergstrom, Ronald Beaty 
and Mary Pat Flynn as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal 
liability. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Miscellaneous Public 
Works 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
items highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Towns 
harmless from any claims regarding workers compensation benefits, unemployment compensation 
benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefts, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Contractorfilessueh claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option Eo renew for one 
additional year. 

4. Payment. The low prices submitted in their bid and as highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either parry 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. 
Such notice shall be given at least fifteen {15} calendar days before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 



7. Changes. The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 
performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Customer costs, which are mutually agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, shalt be 
incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vetnam Era 
Veteran status. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited 
to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 
1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. if this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Protect is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly or indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to 
become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be famished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 
All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. if any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. If this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of retards. 

14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 



by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 
not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Contract. 

16. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

i7. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) {3} and (4} of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51% of the ownership interested Is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 
entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51 % of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a party. Ail parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Porce Majeure. Nei#her party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to; acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 
penal#ies and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractor's failure 
to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal 
funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal 
requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Nat-for-Profit entities that receive 
federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract. If any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 
and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any liability arising out 
of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the year Two Thousand and Nineteen. 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Beaty 

Date 

FOR T}iE CONTRACTOR: 

Richard Goodick, Vice President 

February 13, 2019 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Work under this Contract consists of providing various materials as described herein to the Towns of 
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Orleans, 
Provincetown, Sandwich, Truro, Wellfleet, and Yarmouth through an Agreement with the County of 
Barnstable. 

All Work done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the 19$S Massachusetts Highway 
Department (MassDOT) Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the Supplemental Specifications, 
the 2005 Standazd Specia! Provisions, the 2010 Construction Standard Details, and the 2009 Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and these Special Provisions. The General Conditions and 
Special Provisions shall take precedence over the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

As noted on the Bid Form, steel price adjustments wiU be allowed for a limited number of items. 

FOR ESTIMATED QUANTITIES SEE ATTACHMENT A 

WORK SCHEDULE 

The Contractor shall commence Work within ten (10) working days of receiving a Notice to Proceed from a 
Town. If the Contractor can not begin work within the ten (10) working days, that Town may order such 
services from such contractors as are available, and the Contractor shall reimburse that Town for all expenses 
incurred above the Contract Price. When needing work completed for those items that will be awarded to the 
two (2) lowest bidders, each Town shall first forward by a-mail or fax a Notice to Proceed to the lower of the 
two lowest bidders. If the [owest bidder does not schedule the work requested within forty-eight (48) hours 
of receiving the Notice to Proceed and/or can not begin (and remain at) work within ten (10) working days, 
then the Town shall have the right to forward a Notice to Proceed to the second low bidder. 

Work is restricted to a normal eight-hoar day, five-day week, with Contractor and all subcontractors working 
on the same shift. 

No Work shall be done on this Contract on Saturdays, Sundays or holidays or on the day before or the day 

after a long weekend which involves a holiday without prior approval by the specific Town. 

OSHA REQUIREMENT 

Any employee found on the worksite without documentation of the successful completion of a course in 
construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

that is at least 10 hours induration shall be subject to immediate removal. OSHA certifications must be 

submitted with the certified payrolls for all workers during the first week they work on a project. 

PROGRESS OF WORK 

The Contractor shall promptly start and continue actual construction work under this Contract with the 

necessary equipment to properly execute and complete this Contract in the specified time. No cessation of 
Contractor's operations will be allowed without the approval of the Engineer. The rate of progress shall be 

satisfactory to that Town and the Engineer. The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer a schedule for the 

Work prior to the start of construction. 

SP-1 



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THE FIELD 

The Contractor shall keep a copy of the Contract Documents at the work site at all times while work is being 
performed and said copy is to be available to those in charge of work. 

POLICE SERVICES 

Each Town shall provide all Town police services at no cost to the Contractor to direct traffic when such 
protection is required by that Town's Police Department. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
contacting and scheduling police services with the Police Department. If the Contractor must cancel police 
services, he must do so within the time limits set by the Police Department. If the Contractor does not cancel 
police services within the time limits, then Contractor shall be responsible to promptly pay the minimum 
required amount. 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE 

The Contractor shall be required without additional compensation to provide safe and convenient access to all 
abutters during the prosecution of the Work. 

No excavation shall be left open during non-warking hours. 

MSDS sheets and information shall be available on site and copies submitted to a Town as requested. 

NECESSARY ACCESS FOR FIRE APPARATUS AND OTHER EMERGENCY VEHICLES SHALL BE 
MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE POLICE 
AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS AT ALL TIMES REGARDING ACCESS. 

For the protection of life and property, all backfill operations shall follow closely behind completed work. 
The Contractor shall insure that no excavation be left open, unguarded, or water filled during any period of 
time when work is not actually in progress. It is the purpose and intent that all excavations and backfill, 
including consolidation operations, and temporary surfacing within an area be accomplished expeditiously 
before proceeding to other work areas. 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws, regulations and Guidelines of any public body (example: 
OSHA, DIGSAFE, MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines, Police) having jurisdiction for the safety of 
persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary 
signs! safeguards for such safety and protection at no extra cost to the Owner. See General Conditions also. 

CLEANUP

Cleanup shall be done on a daily basis. At the end of each working period, the Contractor shall completely 
backfill all holes and trenches, and remove all equipment from the traveled way. The Contractor shall ensure 
that all safety marking and warning devices are satisfactorily in place prior to leaving any job. 

During the course of the Work, the Contractor shall keep the site of his operations in as clean and neat 
condition as is possible. He shaiI dispose of all residue resulting from the construction work and, at the 
conclusion of the work, he shall remove and haul away any surplus excavation, broken pavement, lumber, 
equipment, temporary structures, and any other refuse remaining from the construction operations, and shall 
leave the entire site of the work in a neat and orderly condition. 

SP-2 



Sweeping and cleaning of surfaces beyond the limits of the Project to clean up material caused by spillage or 
vehicular tracking during the various phases of the work shall be considered as incidental to the Work being 
performed under the Contract and there will be no additional compensation. 

EMERGENCY CONTACTS 

The Contractor shall maintain a 24-hour, 7-day a week telephone service and a local facility to handle 
emergency requirements such as settled trenches, clogged drains, rain damage, work zone safety issues, etc. 
A list of personnel {minimum of two) and their telephone numbers shall be submitted to the Engineer, the 
Highway Superintendent (or his designee), the Public Works Director and to the local Police and Fire 
Departments. This requirement shall apply during the entire length of the Project. or Service for each Town 
where work is being completed. This list shall be submitted on the Contractor's letterhead and shall state that 
should an emergency arise during the implementation of this Project or Service, these people are to be 
contacted. The Contractor shall submit this letter to the Engineer prior to initiating construction. The 
Highway Superintendent for each Town or his designee has the right to determine whether or not an 
emergency exists and to require Contractor to promptly resolve the emergency at no cost to that Town. If 
Contractor can not respond in a timely manner as determined by the Highway Superintendent, the Town has 
the right to complete the necessary work and to bill Contractor for that work. 

DIGSAFE

The Contractor shall notify "Mass. DIG SAFE" and the Local Water Department or District and procure a 
DIG SAFE number of each location prior to disturbing ground in any way. 

"DIG-SAFE" Cail Center: Telephone 1-888-344-7233 

Commonwealth Electric has a policy regazding the location of electric utilities. Dig-Safe can no longer be 
relied upon to locate electric utilities that are "privately" owned. This can include electric cables located in 
Public ways that run from utility poles to buildings. It is therefore incumbent upon Contractor to ascertain if 
any electric cables are located in any area prior to excavation. This will be done at Contractor's expense. 

The Contractor shall make his own investigation to assure that no damage to existing structures, drainage 

lines, traffic signal conduits, and other utilities will occur as a result of his operations 

PROTECTION OF UTILITIES AND PROPERTY 

The Contractor, in constructing or installing facilities alongside or near sanitary sewers, storm drains, water 
or gas pipes, electric or telephone conduits, poles, sidewalks, walls, vaults or other structures shall, at his 
expense, sustain them securely in place, cooperating with the officers and agents of the various utility 
companies and municipal departments which control them, so that the services of these structures shall be 
maintained. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the repair or replacement, at his awn expense, of 
any damage to such structures caused by his acts or neglect, and shall leave them in the same condition as 
they existed prior to commencement of the Work. In case of damage to utilities, the Contractor shall 

promptly notify the utility owner and shall, if requested by the Engineer, furnish labor and equipment to work 
temporarily under the owner's direction in providing access to the utility. Pipes or other structures damaged 

by the operation of the Contractor may be repaired by the municipality or by utility owner which suffers the 

loss. The cost of such repairs shall be borne by the Contractor, without compensation therefor. 

SP-3 



If, as the Work progresses, it is found that any of the utility structures are so placed as to render it 
impracticable, in the judgment of the Engineer, to do the Work called for under this Contract, the Contractor 
shall protect and maintain the services in such utilities and structures and the Engineer will, as soon thereafter 
as reasonable, cause the position of the utilities to be changed or take such other actions deemed suitable and 
proper. 

If live service connections are to be interrupted by excavations of any kind, the Contractor shall not break the 
service until new services are provided. Abandoned services shall be plugged off or otherwise made secure. 
Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals for doing all the work 
involved in protecting or repairing property as specified in this section, shall be considered included in the 
prices paid for the various Contract items of Work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 

PROVISIONS FOR TRAVEL AND PROSECUTION OF THE WORK 

Far the items that require traffic control, the Contractor shall supply and use traffic control devices, 
positioning and methodology, conforming with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
and MassDOT Work Zone Safety Guidelines at no additional cost to any Town. Traffic control devices 
required only during working hour operations shall be removed at the end of each working day. Signs having 
messages that are irrelevant to normal trai~ic conditions shall be removed or properly covered at the end of 
each work period. Signs shall be kept clean at all times and legends shall be distinctive and unmarred. 

Particular care should be taken to establish and maintain methods and procedures which will not create 
unnecessary or unusual hazards to public safety. 

WORK DONE BY OTHERS 

Relocation and/or resetting to new grades of all private utilities, including utility poles, made necessary by 
the construction of this Project, will be accomplished by the respective utility companies. 

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS MATERIALS 

All materials not required or needed for use on the Project, and not required to be removed and stacked, shall 

become the property of the CONTRACTOR and shall be removed from the site and legally disposed of. No 

separate payment will be made for this Work, but all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the 

prices bid for various Contract items. 

COMPACTION

Compaction of filled areas under pavement {no matter what type of fill material) shall be completed in 6" 

lifts. Compaction of filled areas elsewhere {no matter what type of fill material} shall be completed in 12" 

lifts. Appropriate compaction equipment shall be used. 

PROPERTY BOUNDS 

Any bounds or markers flagged by a Town and disturbed by the Contractor shall be replaced utilizing the 

services of a Registered Land Surveyor. The cost of replacing flagged bounds or markers disturbed by the 

Contractor's operations shall be at the Contractor's expense. 

WEIGHING

SP-4 



All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery and the 
weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may provide use of its 
scale and require gross weights and vehicle tare weights verified at time of delivery. 

SP-5 



ITEM 100 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 
ITEM 101 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR STOP BARS &CROSSWALKS 
ITEM 102 CHLORINATED RUBBER PAINT AND BEADS FOR ARROWS &MISCELLANEOUS 
MARKINGS 

The Work shall include the furnishing and installing of alkyd traffic paint modified with chlorinated rubber 
and glass beads conforming to Section M7 of the Standard Specifications. The white or yellow reflectorized 
traffic paint shall comply with Section $60 of the Standard Specifications. 

Low VOC Chlorinated Rubber Traffic Paint 

The durable, fast drying, Alkyd modified with chlorinated rubber traffic paint shall conform to the current 
V.O.C. regulations and the following: 

Composition White Yellow (lead free) 
Vehicle % by wt. 40-43 40-43 
Pigment % by wt. 57-80 57-60 
Total Solids % by wt. 74 min 74 min 
Total Solids % by vol. 50 min 50 min 
V.O.C. grams/liter 150 max 150 max 
Titanium dioxide rutile (type II) 1 lb/gal min .3 lbs/gal min 
Organic yellow pigment (lead free) n/a .25 lbs/gal min 
Chlorinated rubber .5 lbs/gal min .5 Ibs/gal min 

Dctailed Requirements 
WdGal 12.5 +/-.2 12.1 +/-.2 
Viscosity K.U. 75-85 75-85 
Dry Time 15 mils wet film 10 max 10 max 
@ 77 F Minutes 
Dry Opacity @ 15 mils wet .96 min .96 min 
Reflectance 84 min 50 min 
Grind 3 min 3 min 
CC Flash Point (F) (-4 F) min {-4 F) min 

The application rates shall be I gallon of paint and 5 pounds of beads per 320 linear feet of 4" wide line. 

Application Conditions 

Temperature: 50°F {10°C) minimum, l 10°F (43°C) maximum (air, surface, and material) and at least 5°F 
(2.8°C) above dew point 
Relative humidity: 85%maximum 

Equipment

The Contractor shall supply 1 long line spray truck, manufactured with stainless steel components to properly 

apply alkyd traffic paint modified with chlorinated rubber, capable of applying solid lines in a sharp and true 
manner. The unit must have a minimum paint tank capacity of 400 gallons and a minimum bead truck 
capacity of 2,000 pounds. The long line spray truck must be capable of producing an acceptable 4" wide 
single or double line at the application rate of 5 pounds of beads and 3201ineal feet per one gallon of paint 
while traveling at a minimum of 7 miles per hour. 

SP-6 



The Contractor shall supply t cone truck (rack body with hydraulic tail gate) with 300 cones. 

The above units shall include protective devices and warning signs for the painting operation. Each unit shall 
be radio controlled with a portable unit available for the Highway Division lead truck. 

The Contractor shall supply 2 operating personnel for the spray truck and 3 cone setters/retriever personnel 
for the traffic cone setting truck. 

The Contractor will place traff c cones on all freshly painted lines to reduce tracking. 

Contractor Responsibilities 

The Contractor shall complete the painting as indicated herein, subject to weather conditions, such as wet or 
extremely cold pavement. The Contractor shall have backup equipment available to him in the event of a 
breakdown. 

The Contractor shall have a supervisor or foreman available to direct operations. The supervisor or foreman 
will report to the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee, any problem, as well as, give daily 
progress reports. 

The Contractor must show by past performance that he is capable of performing a Contract of this magnitude. 

On new road surfaces, the Contractor shall pre-mark the centerlines and foglines, as needed, at no 
additional cost to the Town. 

Measurement and Pavment 

The measured quantity for 4" Retlectorized Line and 12" Stop Bars and Crosswalks will be paid at the 
Contract Unit Price per Linear Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The measured quantity for Arrows and Miscellaneous Markings will be 
paid at the Contract Unit Price per Square Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 103 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 
ITEM 1Q4 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR STOP BARS &CROSSWALKS 
ITEM 105 THERMOPLASTIC PAINT FOR ARROWS &MISCELLANEOUS MARKINGS 

The Work under these items shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 8d0 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following: 

Material used and method of installation shall conform with the relevant provisions of Subsection M7, 
M7.01.03, M7.01.04, M7.Ol .18, and 860 of the Standard Specifications. All dimensions and spacing shall be 
as directed by the Engineer. 

The Contractor shall install all pavement markings at locations as directed by the Engineer. On new road 
surfaces, the Contractor shall pre-mark the centerlines and foglines, as needed, at no additional cost to 
the Town. 

Measurement and Pavment 

SP-7 



The measwed quantity for 4" Reflectorized Line and 12" Stop Bars and Crosswalks wiiI be paid at the 
Contract Unit Price per Lineaz Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The measwed quantity for Arrows and Miscellaneous Markings will be 
paid at the Contract Unit Price per Squaze Foot, which price shall include all labor, equipment, materials and 
incidental costs required to complete the Work. 

ITEM 106 EPDXY PAINT FOR 4" REFLECTORIZED LINES 

Work under these items cover white and yellow epoxy reflectorized pavement marking material that is 
sprayed onto the pavement. Immediately following this, a surface application of glass beads is applied. The 
work, materials, and methods of installation under these items shall conform to the relevant provisions of 
Sections 860 and subsection M7 of the Standard Specifications. and the following: 

The epoxy marking material shall be two-component (Part A and Part B), 100% solids type system 
formulated and designed to provide a simple volumetric mixing ratio {e.g. two volumes of Part A to one 
volume of Part B). 

Part A of both white and yellow shall conform to the following requirements: 

Percent by weight: 

WHITE Pigment - 18 Minimum, Titanium Dioxide (ASTM D476, Type II) Epoxy Resin -
75 to 82 

YELLOW Pigment - 18 Minimum, Titanium Dioxide (ASTM D476, Type II) 5 Minimum, Organic 
Yellow, Epoxy Resin — 73 to 77 

The entire pigment composition shall consist of either titanium dioxide or titanium dioxide and organic 
yellow. No extender pigments aze permitted. Yellow pigment shalt be lead-free. 

The work of these items shall only be performed when atmospheric and surface temperatwes aze 40°F higher 

All dimensions and spacing shall be as directed by the Engineer. 

The measured quantity for Epoxy Paint for 4" Reflectorized Lines will be paid at the Contract Unit Price per 

Linear Foot, which price shall include all labor, materials and incidental costs required to complete the work.. 

ITEM 107 PAVEMENT MARKING REMOVAL 

The Work under this section shall conform to the relevant provisions of Section 850.67 of the Standard 
Specifications and the following. Existing pavement mazkings shall be removed to the fullest extent possible 

by an approved method. Pavement removal methods shall not cause damage to the pavement or cause drastic 

change in textwe, which could be construed as delineation at night, and shall be approved by the Town. It is 

not permissible to paint over existing markings with black paint in lieu of removal. Approved methods 
include but are not limited to: 

1. High pressure air. 
2. High presswe water (cold weather use not permitted). 
3. Sand blasting. 
4. Mechanical devices such as grinders, sanders, scrapers, scarifers, and wire brushes. 

SP-8 



Painting over a pavement marking by use of asphaltic liquids or paints will not be permitted. Conflicting 
pavement markings shall be removed before any change in the traffic pattern. 
Material deposited on the pavement as a result of removing markings shall be removed as the work 
progresses. Accumulations of sand or other material, which might interfere with drainage or could constitute 
a hazard to traffic, will not be permitted. 

Any damage to the pavement or surfacing caused by pavement marking removal shall be satisfactorily 
repaired at no additional cost to the Town. 

Where the removal operation is being performed neaz a lane occupied by traffic, a vacuum attachment 
operating concurrently with the removal operation must be in use. All residues shaI! be removed immediately 
from the surface being treated. 

The measured quantity will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Squaze Foot which price shall include 
all labor, equipment, vacuuming, sweeping, hauling, disposing, and incidental costs required to complete the 
Work. 

ITEM 108 DRAINAGE PIPE CLEANING 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage pipes. Work under this item shall be 
performed under the direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage pipe cleaning will be paid for at the Contract Unit Price per Day (8 working hours exclusive of 
travel time) broken down as follows: 

* Drainage pipe cleaning performed between d and 4 hours will be paid for at half the Contract Unit 
Price per Day. 

* Drainage pipe cleaning performed for a period greater than 4 hours will be paid for at a proportion of 
the full Contract Unit Price per Day. 

The Contract Unit Price per Day shall include all labor, equipment, transportation and incidental costs 
required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal disposal of 
hazardous material. 

ITEM 109 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY CLAMSHELL (WITH DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 
complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 
direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%) 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Town Engineer or his designee. 

The contractor shall be responsible for stockpile area management including confinement of debris, erosion 
control, loading, and removal of the debris. The contractor shall provide documentation of proper disposal to 
the town as a condition of payment. The contractor shall be responsible for any testing costs required for legal 
disposal of the catch basin cleanings. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to contact each Town and 

SP-9 



determine if a staging and stockpile area is available on town property or if the contractor will have to make 
alternative arrangements for a legal stockpile area. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 110 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY CLAMSHELL (W/O DISPOSALI 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. Work under this item shall 
be performed under the direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his 
designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%) 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Town Engineer or his designee. 

The town shall provide the contractor an area to dump the catch basin cleanings. The town will manage the 
stockpile area and legally dispose of the debris. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 111 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY VACUUM TRUCK (WITH DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 
complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 
direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%) 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Highway Division Superintendent. 

The contractor shall be responsible for stockpile area management including confinement of debris, erosion 
control, loading, and removal of the debris. The contractor shall provide documentation of proper disposal to 
the town as a condition of payment. The contractor shall be responsible for any testing costs required for legal 
disposal of the catch basin cleanings. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to contact each Town and 
determine if a staging and stockpile area is available on town property or if the contractor will have to make 
alternative arrangements for a legal stockpile area. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shalt include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 112 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE CLEANING BY VACUUM TRUCK !V1'/O DISPOSAL) 

The Work under this item consists of the cleaning of existing drainage structures. The Work also includes the 

complete removal and legal disposal of the debris. Work under this item shall be performed under the 
direction and to the satisfaction of the Highway Division Superintendent or his designee. 

SP- l 0 



Drainage structures shall be cleaned along their entire circumference. Debris shall be substantially (95%} 
removed from the structure walls and bottoms. The proposed equipment shall be submitted for approval by 
the Highway Division Superintendent. 

The town shall provide the contractor an area to dump the catch basin cleanings. The town will manage the 
stockpile area and legally dispose of the debris. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 
costs required to complete the Work. The Work under this item does not include the removal and legal 
disposal of hazardous material. 

ITEM 113 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE ADJUSTED 

The Work under this item shall consist of the adjustment of utility castings for overlays and minor 
reconstruction where said adjustment is no greater than 6 inches (rise or fall) from existing line and grade and 
shall conform to the relevant provisions of Sections 20I, 202, and 220 of the Standard Specifications and the 
following: 

The Contractor shall maintain the drainage (or sewer} system in the project areas or drainage facilities outside 
the project area affected by the work performed by the Contractor to provide continual drainage of the 
travelways and construction areas. All drainage (or sewer) castings required to be raised to accommodate 
pavement overlays shall be paid for under this item. 

When in the judgment of the Engineer, the masonry below the casting shows deterioration and directs the 
contractor to remodel, the pay item shall be by the vertical foot and the cost per vertical foot as measured 
from the bottom of the existing casting, shall be paid as described in Item I08 Drainage Structure Rebuilt. 

Clay brick conforming to Subsection M4.05.2 of the Standazd Specifications shall be used to make grade 

adjustments of structure frames. 

Any castings damaged due to the Contractor's operations shall be replaced with similar H-20 North 
American made cast iron castings at no cost to the Town. 

A structure adjusted more than once by the Contractor, due to his plan of operation, will be paid for only 

once regardless of how many adjustments are made to the structure. 

The Contract Unit Price per Each shall include all labor, materials, equipment, transportation and incidental 

costs required to complete the Work. No separate payment will be made for the maintenance of the existing 

drainage (or sewer) system, but all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the unit prices bid for 

the various Contract items. 

ITEM 114 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE REBUILT 

This item applies to the complete rebuilding of an existing structure and includes new masonry 

construction, backftlling around structures and other incidental work and shall conform to the relevant 

provisions of Sections 201 and 220 of the Standard Specifications and the following: 

The Work shall consist of rebuilding, removing, replacing and adjusting the masonry units and adjusting 

the castings of existing structures. The casting and deteriorated masonry shal! be removed in a neat manner 

SP-11 



THIS PAGE IS TO BE USED AS THE COVER OF YOUR BIO 
CERTIFICATE of NQN-CO~.L_U$IQN AND TAX CQMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter 62C, Section 49A, I certify under the penalties of perjury that i, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with al! laws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and 

remitting child support. 

I certify under the penalties of perjury that this bid/proposal has been made and submitted in good 

faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certificate, the word 

"person° shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, club 

ar other legal organization, entity or group of individuals. 

Company: Sealcoating, lnc. D/B/A Indus 

Address: 
825 Granite Street 

Braintree, MA 02184 

Signature of Individual Signing 

Bid, or Corporate Officer: 
Richard L Goodick, Vice President 

Telephone Number:  1781 } 428-3400 

Socia! Security Number 

Or Federal Identification Number: 
04-3520246 

Date: 
January 22, 2019 

Any parson or corporation which falls to exocuta this document 

wHl be coneiderad a non•reaportsive bidder 

and will be reJectnd purauont to MGL Chapter ~0, 38M. 

t3 ~- ~ - 



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED BID QUANTITIES 

Each Town has provided estimated quantities for each bid item that it presently intends to order. These 
estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. The esttmated amounts are also a 
total aggregate which the town intends to use during the contract period and the bidder should familiarize 
themselves with the minimum job quantities defmcd in the individual specifications for each item. 

BID FORM 

BiD IDENTIFICATION: MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS FOR HIGHWAYS 
(UNIT PRICE WORK) 

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO: 
(Name and Address Office of the Conaty Commissioners 
of Owner) Superior Court House 

P.O. BoY 427 
Barnstable, Massachusetts Q2630 

1. The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if the Bid is accepted to enter into an Agreement with 
the County, to complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract 
Unit Prices during the contract period of Aaril 1, ~~to jVlarcb 31. Z02Q, with the ontlon to renew 
!or one additional one veer period and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

2. BIDDER accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Hidders. This Bid will remain 
apes for sixty (ti0) days after the day of Bid opeting. BIDDER will sign the Agreement and submit 
other documents (e.g. Bonds, insurance Binders) required by the Contract Documents within five (S) 
working days after the date of the County's Notice of Award. 

3. [n submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that: 

3.1 BIDDER has examined copies of all the Contract Documents and of 
the following addenda: 

Date None Number 
Date Number 

(receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged) and also copies of the Notice to 

Bidders and the instructions to Bidders. 

3.2 BIDDER has examined the legal requirements {federal, state and local laws, by-laws, rules and 

regulations) and the conditions affecting cost, progress of performance of the Work and has 
made such independent investigations as BIDDER ckems necessary. 

3.3 This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm 
or corporation, and is not submiaed inconformity with any agreement or rules of any group, 
association, organization or corporation; BIDDER has not directly or indirectly induced or 

solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; BIDDER has not solicited or induced 

BF-1-



any person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding; and BIDDER has not sought by 
collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other Bidder ar ovec the County. 

4. BIDDER will complete all the Work assigned for the unit prices) listed in the Bid Form. 

5. The following documents arc attached to and made a condition of this Bid: 

5. i A tabulation of Subcontractors and other persons or orgaaizativns required tv be identified in 
this Bid. No subcontractors. See attached manufacturer/suppliers list for materials. 

6, Communications concemiag this Bid shall be addressed to: 

Company Name•  
Sealcoating, Inc. D/B/A Indus 

Address• 825 Granite Street, Braintree, MA 02184 

Telephone No.:  (761) 428-3400 

Fax No.:  (781) 428-3430 

E-trail Address:  fconroy~sealcoatinginc.com 

Bidder's Contact Person:  Fran Conroy, Regional Manager 

7. Bid comparison will be based on each item unit price provided for each Town. Bidders may bid on any 
or all items for any or ap Towns listed. Bid selection will be by each item by Town and will be based 
on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and respansive bid for each item for each Town. 

S. It is the intent to ttwsrd a costtract to the two (2) lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive 
bidders for Bid Items lI5 to 12Z. 

9. The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this Bid is in all respects bona fide, fair and 
made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this paragraph, the word "person" 

shall mean any natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal entity. 

[ 0. The undersigned also certifies: that he is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other 

elements of labor employed or to be employed in the work; and, that all employees at the worksite will 
have successfully completed a course in consbvction safety and health approved by the United States 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is at least i0 hours in duration at the time the 
employee begins work and who shalt Cornish documentation of successful completion of said course 
with the first certified payroll report for each employee. 

SUBMITTED on January 22nd   ZO 19 

BF-2-



i6^ . _.
±c:~. Ef, Governor 

~tl+~ Karyrl E. Porlto. LleutCJtdrit Govorrwr .•.,~~ 
5eephanie Pollack Seaetay 6 [Eo 

fJJ (( 
JanaUian C. CwCne[ Highway /ldmintsaator 

SIJILCOATING INC 
825 GRANITE ST 
BRAINTREE, MA 02184-5329 

Dear Contractor. 

®1 

.,A, 

%t~'~~ss r~~~1°~ 
rl9saacs,►ae:se Depareneerrt or 7Ysrapor4sran 
HEghway Otvlstotr 

March 15, 2016 

Prequatificatlon Certificate No S06fi-46 

In accordance with the Regulations Governing Prequallfication of Contractors, as approved by the Massachusetts Department of 
Transportation PrequaEification Committee, you are hereby notified that the folbwing classes) of work and Single Contract Umits 
{if applicable) have been assigned to you as of the date of this letter. K in the opinion of the Committee you failed to submk 
proper documentation or have not demonstrated the ability to perform all classes of worts requested then you were denied 
Prequatification Status for that classes) of work. 

Qualified Class of Work Limit Amount Qualified Class of Work Limit Amount 

Bridge -Construction Sz,soo,000.00 Bridge -peck Repairs 58,704,000.04 
Bridge -Joints 59,200,000.00 Crack Seating 51,oao,000.00 
Pavement - Millhg And Cold Planing Szs4,oao.o4 Pavement - Surfacing 53,000,000.40 

Bonding Capacity Sfi0,000,000.00 Bond Single Umtt 520,000,400.00 Expiration Date 212 812 01 9 

The class{es) of work, Singie Contract Umits and Aggregate Bonding Capacity set forth will continue in effect until February 28, 
2019 unless previously mod~ed or rescinded in accordance with the Regulations, or by law. In osier to be continuously eligible to 
bid on projects to be undertaken for this Department, your next Prequallfication Statement should be submitted at least 30 days 
prior to expiration of this Certificate. If there are any questions or concerns, contact the Prequalificaflon Department at (857) 36& 
8660 or email to Qrequal.r109@state.ma.us. 

Very t ~,' yours, 
THE P -' QU ~ L ' T~' 710 COMMITTEE 

By: 
Isldoro ~ -Jesus Pe 
Acting i' ectorof Construction Prequal~catlon 



Product Data 106-15 

Neyra Force 
I. PRODUCT NAME 

Neyra Force® 

2. MANUFACTURER 
Neyra Industries, Inc. 
10700 Evendale Drive 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45241 

Phone: 5 13-733- 1000 
Tol I-Free: 800-543-7077 
Fax: 5 13-733-3989 
Email: info@neyra.com 

Website: www.neyra.com 

3. PRODUCT DESCRIPTION 
Neyra Force is a petroleum resin 

emulsion specifically formulated as a 
weather protective, water resistant 
coating for all asphalt surfaces. 

Packaging: 
Bulk shipments made in tank trucks. 

Color: 
In the liquid state, Neyra Force is a 

reddish brown emulsion. When dry, 
Neyra Force is a deep black coating. 

Basic Uses: 
Neyra Force extends the service 

life and reduces maintenance costs of 
asphalt pavements, protecting them 
from the destructive effecu of water, 
sunlight and oxidation. When mixed 

and applied according to manufacturer's 
recommendations, Neyra Force 
provides a new looking, long lasting 
surface that is easy to clean. 

Composition: 
Neyra Force is a concentrated, 

mineral colloid stabilized emulsion 
fortified with our proprietary blend 
of high molecular weight polymer and 
petroleum resins. This binder base is 
emulsified in our high temperature, high 
shear, state-of-the art manufacturing 
process. The superior fusion of 
the quality raw materials creates a 
homogeneous coating capable of high 
sand loads, providing an exceptionally 
tough, long lasting,skid resistant surface. 

• Superior Bond: Neyra Force is chemically reinforced to enhance the 
adhesion to the asphalt pavement, rejuvenating the surface and preventing 
raveling. 

• Tough &Durable: Contains proprietary high molecular weight 
petroleum resin which creates tough and long lasting protection. 

• Protect &Beautify: Neyra Force forms a tight seal creating an 
impenetrable barrier that protecu against the destructive effects of sun, 
water & chemicals, giving your pavement a deep Mack color and making it 
easier to clean. 

• Environmentally Friendly: Neyra Force is a low VOC, non-flammable 
coating that emits no obnoxious odors or fumes and contains no coal tar. 

Limitations: 
In the liquid state, Neyra Force must 

be protected from freezing. Do not 
store where temperature exceeds 120~F. 

4. INSTALLATION 
Preparatory Work: 

The asphalt surface must be 
structurally sound, surface cured and 
free from all loose or foreign matter 
prior to the application of Neyra Force. 

Methods: 
Neyra Force can be applied by 

spray, squeegee, brush or mechanical 
equipment designed for this purpose. 
Due to the heavy body of the Neyra 
Force slurry mix,application by means of 
specialized equipment is recommended. 
This equipment can be of two types, high 
volume positive displacement airless 
spray or mechanical squeegee. Both 
types must be capable of keeping material 
thoroughly mixed and homogenous 
throughout the application process. 
All equipment used must be capable of 
supplying a sufficient quantity of material 
for uniform application over the entire 
width of the application mechanism to 
provide a uniformly coated surface. 

Mix Design: 
Neyra Force is a highly concentrated 

material intended to be co be mixed 
with water and mineral aggregate to 
farm a ready to use pavement sealer. 

Do not over dilute. 

Use only Neyra additives specifically 
designed for Neyra Force. Do not 
ute other additives. They are not 
chemically compatible with Neyra 
Force and will degrade the emulsion. 

Per ! 00 gallons of Neyra Force 

Water Sand Yield ' 

30 gal. 300-500 lbs. 144 -153 gal. 

All sand used should be clean, dry, 
pure silica sand, free of contaminants. 
Medium fine sand with an A.F.S. rating 
of 50 to 70 gives best results. There 
should be no more than 2% retained on 
30 mesh or coarser, no more than 10% 
retained on 140 mesh and no more than 
0.3% retained on 200 mesh. 

Application: 
For use over sound asphalt pavement, 

the following application procedures are 

recommended for best resulu: 

Application Rate per Coat 

Gal/SY GaI/SF 

Concentrate .10 .01 1 

Mix .13-.15 .014-.016 

One gallon of concentrate will cover 
90 square feet per coat Multiply square 
yards of surface x 0. ( to determine 
gallons of concentrate per coat. 



Product Data 106-15 

NEI~RA 

Coverage rates can vary with the 
application method and the age, texture, 
and porosity of the pavement to be 
sealed. For low to moderate traffic areas, 
we recommend applying two full sand 
slurry coati. Far high traffic areas, a 
third coat is advised. For highly oxidized 
surfaces, a primer. Polyprime (Product 
Data Sheet 155) is recommended. Each 
coat must be dry before additional 
applications. On a typical parking lot, 
a combination of application systems 
could be used. For example, two coats 
for the parking stalls and a third for the 
drive lanes where most of the wear 
occurs. 

Application must be made when 
ambient temperawres and pavement 
temperatures are above 50'F. Good 
drying conditions above 50'F are 
required during the subsequent 8 hours 
and no temperatures below 50"F should 
be anticipated for 48 hours. Night 
time application is not recommended. 
It is recommended that the area over 
which the application is made be 
opened to use only after trial shows 
it to be sufficiently dried to accept 
regular traffic. Lower temperatures, 

high humidity, clouds or shade and 
lack of air movement slow drying time. 

Precautions: 

Do not apply Neyra Forte over 

sealers which contain gilsonite. Neyra 

Force is not recommended for use on 
pordand cement concrete. 

Keep out of reach of children. 
Container should be closed when not in 
use. Contains petroleum distillatesAvoid 
breathing vapor or prolonged contact 

with skin or eyes. Flush immediately 
with water. 

New asphalt should be allowed to 
cure for a minimum of 30 days prior to 
application and must not exhibit 
ribboning, crawling, nor show oil rings 
when I gal. of clean water is poured 
onto the surface. 

Protect wet Neyra Force at alt times 
from freezing and rain. 

Consult specific Neyra material safety 
data sheet before use. 

5. MAINTENANCE 
As a rule, a clean, well marked 

parking lot is safer and will last longer. 
Occasional flushing with water or the 
use of a contras cleaning service will 
help to retain an attractive appearance, 

6. TECHNICAL DATA 
Applicable Standords: 

Neyra Force meets the composition 
and performance standards listed below 
when tested according to the following 
ASTM methods: 

D 140: Sampling o f 8itumous Motcrials 
D244: Standard Test Methods for 

EmuhifiedAsphafts 
D529:Tesang of t3itumous Materiah 

D2939: StandardTest Methods for 
Emulsified Biwmens used es 
Protective Coatings 

Drying Time: 
When tested according to ASTM 

D2939, "set to touch" in I hour, exhibit 
"final set" in less than 8 hours. 

Non-F►amma6flity: 
The cured coating shows no 

tendenry to flash or ignite. 

Adhesion &Resistance to Water: 
The cured coating exhibits no 

penetration, blistering, loss of adhesion, 
nor tendency to re-emulsify after 
immersion for 24 hours. 

Physics! Composition: 
Neyra Force meets the following 

requirements when tested according 
to ASTM D2939: 

Requirements Max Min 

Non-Volatiles % - 47 

Water % 53 -

Ash of Non-Volatiles % 40 30 

Specific Gravity - i.l 

Environmental Considerations: 

Neyra Force is considered 
non-hazardous when tested according 

to the EPA's TCLP (Toxicity 

Neyra Force 

Characteristic Leaching Procedure). 
Neyra Force is a water based material 
containing less than I Og/L (0.08 lbs./gal.) 
VOC content. 

7. TECHNICAL SERVICES 
Material safety data sheets, product 

and application recommendations, as 
well as assistance with special situations 
and field service are available upon 
request Special project submittals are 
available through Customer Service. 

8. WARRANTY 
The above specifications on 

product usage are believed to be 
true and accurate. Neyra Industries, 
Inc. Guarantees that all materials 
manufactured comply with quality 
standards as described in the product 
data sheets. Because the application, 
handling, weather, workmanship,and 
equipment are beyond the control of 
this manufacturer,onlylhe quality of the 
products as shipped is guaranteed. In no 
case will the liability of Neyra Industries, 
Inc. exceed the purchase price of the 
shipped materials. 

9. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Neyra Industries, Inc. manufactures a 

full line of asphalt pavement maintenance 
and recreational surface products as 
well as application equipment sold and 
distributed nationally at our plants and 

through distributors and contractors. 

To find the supplier most convenient to 
you, please contact us. 

Caution: Application p#this produc>i 
in marginal weather conditions or 

improper mix designs can result in 
premature wear or product failure, 

NE'~RA 
Neyra Industries, Inc. 
10700 Evendale Drive 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45241 

Phone: S 13.733-(000 
Toll Pree: 800-543-7077 

Fax: 513-733-3989 
Email: info(~neyra.com 

Website: wvvw.neyra.com 



Product Data 152-OS 

NE17'RA Petrobond 

3. PRODUCT NAME 

Petrobond 

2. MANUFACTURER 

Neyra Industries, Inc. 

10700 Evendale Drive 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45241 

Phone: 5 13-733- 1000 
Toll Free: 800-543-7077 

Fax: 5 ! 3-733-3989 
Email: info@neyra.com 

Website: vvvvw.neyra.com 

3. PRODUCT DESCRIPTION 
Petrobond is a blend of copolymers 

and surfactants. It seals oil, gas, grease 
and chemical stained areas on asphalt 
pavements. 

Pockogfng: 
Available in 5 gal. pails. 

Color: 
Petrobond is light gray as a liquid and 

dries clear. 

t3osic Uses: 
Petrobond is an oil spot primer for-

mulated toensure adhesion of pavement 

sealer to oil, gas, grease and chemical 
stained areas on asphalt pavements. Ic 

may be used as a primer for new as-
phalt patches. Petrobond can also be 
used to de-tack fresh hot applied crack 
and joint sealant. 

Composition: 
As shipped, Petrobond is a water-

based oil spot primer. 

Limitotfons: 
Do not allow to freeze. Do not store 

in direct sunlight or where temperature 
exceeds 120 F. 

4. INSTALLATION 
Preparatory Work: 

The areas to be treated must be free 
of dirt and grime. Scrape away build-up 

of oil,gas and/or grease deposits before 

priming. 

011 Spot Primer 

• Rapid Drying: In just minutes you can sealcoat. 

• Insures Bonding: Penetrating surfactant package provides 
maximum bond to oil stains and sealer. 

• Prevents Bleeding: The tough copolymers provide maximum 
shield against bleeding. 

• Versatile: Can be used to de-tack fresh hot applied sealants. 

Methods: 
Application of Petrobond by spray is 

recommended. Can also be brushed or 
rolled. 

Mix Design: 
Use full strength, do not dilute. 

Appficotion: 
The coverage rate will vary 

depending on the condition of pavement 
and on the application method. Rough 
surface will consume more when applied 
with a roller or brush. 

Precautions: 
Keep out of reach of children. 

Close container when not in use. 

5. MAINTENANCE 
Tools and equipment may be cleaned 

promptly with water. 

6. TECHNICAL DATA 
Environmentof Considerations: 

Petrobond is considered non-
hazardous when tested according to the 
EPA's TCLP (Toxicity Characteristic 

Leaching Procedure). Petrobond is a 
water-based material containing less 

than 50g/L (.42 lbs./gal.) VOC content 

7. TECHNICAL SERVICE 
Material safety data sheets, product 

and application recommendations, as 

well as assistance with special situations 
and field service are available upon re-

quest. 

8. WARRANTY 
The above specifications on product 

usage are believed to be true and accu-
rate. Neyra Industries, Inc. guarantees 
that all materials manufactured comply 
with quality standards as described in 
the product data sheets. Because the 
application, handling, weather, workman-
shipand equipment are beyond the con-
trol of this manufacturer, only the qual-
ity ofthe produce as shipped is guaran-
teed. In no case will the liability of Neyra 
Industries, lnc. exceed the purchase 
price of the shipped materials. 

9. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Neyra Industries, Inc. manufactures a 

full tine of asphalt pavement maintenance 
and recreational surface products as well 

as application equipment sold and dis-
tributed nationally at our plants and 
through distributors. To find the sup-
plier mast convenient to you, please 
contact us. 

NE`~'RA 
Neyra Industries, Inc. 
[ 0700 Evendale Drive 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45241 

Phone: S 13-733- 1000 
Toll Free: 800-543-7077 

Fax: 5 13.733-3989 
Email: into@neyra.com 

Website: www.neyra.com 



Indus 
roads. bridges. airports. 

Polymer &Crumb Rubber Modified Crack Sealing IteFerences 

Quincy, MA (Customer since 2004) 

Department of Pub c Works 

1306 Hancock Street 

Quincy, MA D2169 

Ph: (617) 376-1937 

Contact Paul CosteE'o, Cay Engineer 

Fx (617) 37&1969 

Email• pcostello®qumcyma.gov 

lob #02 18-0280 

Start Date.•A9/10.2018 

Comp/etiotr Date. )0/19/21018 

Con1rdct Amours t $255, 67S B5 

Amherst, MA (Customer since 2017) 

Public Works Department 

586 South PEeasant St 

Amherst, MA Ot 002 

Ph: (413) 256.4050x12 

Contact: Guilford Mooring, Public Works Superintendent 

Fx (413} 256-4054 

Email: mooringgQamherstma.gov 

Job #02-18.0056 

Start Date.• 06/18/201 B 

Completion Oate.~ 016/29/2018 

Contrdc t Am Durst • ,$8.$ 767.09 

Manchester, NH (Customer since 1996) 

Department of Public Works 

475 Valley Street 

Manchester, NH 03103 

Ph: (603) 624-6444 

Contact Todd Connors, Engineering Manager 

Fx: (603} 624-6487 

Email: tconnors~manchestemh,gov 

Job #02-18-0025 

Start Date.'G14/01/2018 

Comp/efion Date: Oi4/27/2018 

COn trd ct Amours t.• ,5267, 864.42 

l3every, MA (Customer since 1997) 

Public Services Department 

148 Park Street 

Beverly, MA 01915 

Ph (978) 605 2358 

Contact Sean CaancarefEi, Assistant City Engineer 

Fx (978) 921.6003 

Email sc~antareu~beveryma.gov 

Job +40218-0136 

Stag Dale. 10/25.2018 

Completion Date. 1609/201$ 

Contract Amount- $10~ 075.00 

Easton, MA {Customer since 2009) 

Department of Public Works 

417 i3ay Road 

South Easton, MA 02375 

Ph: (508} 230-0800 

Contact Gregory Swan, Assistant Director of Public Works 

Fx: (508) 230.3354 

Email: gswan(~leaston.ma.us 

lob #OZ-18-01750 

Scan Date.' 04/24/2018 

Completion Dates• 05/15/2018 

ContrdctAmount• $f07,35C92 

Torrington, C7 (Customer since 2017) 

t 40 Main Street, Room 307 

Torrington, CT 06790 

Ph: (860}489-2234 

ContacC Mark Zorctan, Construction Project Coordinator 

Fx (860) 489.2550 

Email: mark_zordan~torringtonctorg 

lob #02-18.01045 

Stan Date.• 04/26/201 B 

Comp/elron Date: 10/22/2018 

ContractAmount. 5356, 803.06 

825 Granite Street, Braintree. MA 02184 phone 781.428.3400 fax 781 426.3430 indusinacom 



Indus 

roads bridges. airports. 

County of Barnstable 

Individual Miscellaneous Public Works Items: Crack Filler 

Bid Due Date: January 24, 2019 

The following are the trade names for crack sealant our company intends to use for the modified crack 

sealer. I have also provided the names of our manufacturers/suppliers. 

Asphalt Binder: 

Manufacturer 

Modified Asphalt 

Bitumar 

171 Brownstone Ave 

Portland, CT 06480 

Phone: {860} 209-5769 

Polyester Fibers 8% Polyester Fibers 

Manufacturer Advanced Fiber Solutions 

403 Powderhorn Road 

Laurens, SC 29360 

Phone: (800} 351-5410 

Tri-Products 

All States Materials Group 

325 Amherst Rd., Rte. 116 

Sunderland, MA 01375 

Phone: (413) 665-7021 

825 Granite Street, Braintree, MA 02t 84 phone 781.428 3440 fax 781 428 3430 indusinc.com 



• 

1 
Indus 
roads. bridges. airports 

Random Crack Scaling by Rubberized Method References 

Connecticut Department of Transportation (District #2) 

(Customer since 2013) 
171 Salem Turnpike 

Norwich, CT 06360 

Contact Gary Selina, Administrative Manager 

Ph: (860) 5943099, Fx {860) 594-3370 
Email: Gary.Belina@ctgav 

lob 4'02--18-0150, Stan' Date' 3/11/1B 

Completion Date.• 10/Z4/1Q Contract.4mounr,$189,551.00 

Ag®repata Industries; 58ugua (Customer since 1996} 

Rubber Joint -Rte. 128 (Yankee Division Highway) 

1715 Broadway 

Saugus, MA 01906 

Ph:1781) 231-3400, Fx (781)941-3115 

Contact Jeffrey Beskid, Superintendent 

lob 4'01-15-0269, 57artDate.•9/7/16 

CompletionQate.' 11/21/161 ConlractAmount•a101,78125 

Pike Industries, Inc./Brewer, ME/Contract #22054 (Customer since 2017) 

95 Western Ave. 

Fairfield, ME 04937 

Ph; (207} 453.9357, Fx: {207} 453-0362 

Contact Mike Susi, Superintendent 

/ob #02-17-0157, Scarf Date.•6/13/17 

Completion Date.• 06/29/17, ContractAmoun~• $57,350.00 

Ciry of Oover, NH (Customer since 2004) 

Department of Public Works 

271 Mast Road 

Dover, NH 03820 

Contact Joseph Boucher, Supervisor 

Ph: (603) 516.8457, Fx: (603) 516-64&3 

Email: j.bouchen~dover.nh.gov 

Job A02-16.0230. Start Date•9/27/ 16 

Completion Date.• 10/A6/1Q ContractAmount. ,839,985.10 

MDOT Hiphwey Division (District #1} (Customer since 1998} 
270 Main Street 

Lenox, MA 01240 

Contact Mike Fabiano 
Ph: (413) 637-5735, Fx (413) 637-0309 

Email: Michael.fabiano~state.ma.us 

Job 4'02- 87-024Q Start Dete.• 9/11/17 
Completion Date.• 10/13/17, ContractAmount•,5287,753.80 

City of New Bedford, MA (Customer since 2008) 
Department of Public Works 

133 William Street 

Nevv Bedford, MA 02740 

Contact Manny Silva, Deputy Commissioner 

Ph: (508) 979.1400, Fx (508) 979-1735 

Email: msilva~newbedford-ma.gov 

/ob ,CO2-18.0224, StartQate.~ 9/28/18 
Completion Date.• 10/A?/16( ContractAmount$24,374.28 

East Hartford CT Public Schools (Customer since 2017) 

734 Tolland Street. 

East Hartford, CT O6t08 

Contact: Eric Krauch, Supervisor of Custodial Services 

Ph: (860) 522-5955, Fx (860) 289-0492 

Email: krauch.ea~easthartford.org 

/ob 4'OZ--18-0241, StartDete.~8/8/18 

CompletionDate.•DB/10/1Q ContractAmount.,S31,18t.15 

Town of Kennebunk ME (Customer since 2018) 
Public Works Department 
t Summer Street 

Kennebunk, ME 04043 

Contact Eric Labelle, Public Services Director 

Ph: (207) 985-08a 1, Fx (207) 965-1144 

Email: elabelle~a icennebunkmaine.us 

Job #02-17-0102 Start Dale.• 6/8/17 

Comp/etion Date.• 11/20/17, ContiactAmount.8'99,219.18 

825 Granite Street, Braintree, MA 02184 phone 781.428.3400 fax ?81.428.3430 indusinc.com 



PRODUCT DATA SHEET 

nry taarooare toa4rrwnty 
420 H. aot>avvalt Ava. • cl,artdlar Az es226 
1-800-628-Q242 • {602) 27B-0406 •FAX (480)161-0513 
vrww.txafco.crntt 

IKc ROADSAVER 201 
PART HO. s4201 

JAIVtJARY 20tig 

REI1D BEFORE US84G THIS PRODUCT 

GENERAL Ctafco RosdSavcr 20! is shot-applied, asphalt based product used to seal and fill cracks and joints in asphalt or portland 
certertt concrete pavements is rtodente to cold clinuttes. RoadSaver 201 is supplied In solid form which when mdted and properly applied 
farms a highly adhesive and flexible tmatpottnd that trsiats cracking in Ute winter and resists flow at summer tetnperatwea. RoadSaver 20I 
is used in highway. street and airfield pavements aad is applied to pavement cracks and joints using pressure feed welter applicators a 
pour pots. The unique formulation of RoadSever 201 contains a minimum of 18% nxyckd robber by weight of asphaltic kxtmponertts, 
which increases application temperature viscosity. RosdSever 201 has been a quality Crafib product for 25 years. During this time 
RoadSaver 201 has become a profaned product by many users For sealing asphalt pavement cracks due to the increased viscosity and 
improved slump and flow taistamx when applied. VOC = 0 g/1. 

USAGE GUIDEUNi:S RoedSaver 201 pavement 
krrtpenadna ptxGxrrottce limits are 64-28 for sack suing and 64-

34 far txack 6ldrrg. Utage tmarrartntdatiorts are shown in Crafbo 
pawyrteat Onttpetapue grde deals shown et dre rigid. Rekr b 
Cmfco Pmdud Selxtion Ptooedtaes b determine sealant; ~ fiUer 
use and Pn"a~ ~~ 8~ 

.s,' 3! ®~s.warrtJx 

. t t~a 

a 

G
~ 
6 

t~ 

•C ss w ~o » a 

©~~~~~ 
~~~~~~ 
~~~~~ 

~: _~~~ 
I■.I■ 

®....- 

-.... 

. ~... 

PaveaurttTcrapforSealao Usaec 

v 

High Temperslure Grade (•C) 

•C sa w >, n s~ 

il~~~l•~ 
~~~~~~ 

a
~~~~~~ 
w ~ !A tj;,i 1.1.11. 

. -. 

~-.■.. 

~-...-

Paveaamt Teatp fir FIBer Urge 

SPECIFICATION CONFORMANCE RoedSaver 201 meets ail requirements of A51M D6690 (AASHTO M324), Type 1I, "Joint 
and Ct~aclk Sealants, Hot-Applial, for Concrete and Asphalt Pavements". (fomtcdy ASTM D3405 end AASH'f0 M301). RwdSaver 201 

extxeds requinertrtntts of ASTM D6690 (AASHTO 324), Type I, (fotrtxrly ASTM DI 190, AASHTO M173), and Federal Specification SS-

5-164. AST>vI 1Xdi20 (AASHTQ N~t4)t
Test Tvoq II limits 

Cone Penetration, T7°F (25°C) 90 max. 

Resilience, 77°F (25°C) 60%min 
Flow, 140°F (60°C) 3mm max. 
Softening Point 17b°F (80°C) min. 

Bond, -20°F, SO% ext. Pass 3 cycles 
Asphalt Compatibility Compatible 
Minimum Applicatiom Temperature 380°F (193°C) 
Maximum Heating Temperature 400°F {204°C) 

INSTALLATION The unit weight ofCrako RoadSaver 201 is 9.3 Ibs. per gallon (1.12 kg/L) at ti0°F {I5.5°C). Prior to ttse, the user 

must read and follow lnstalletion lnstructioas for Hot- Applied RoadSaver, PolyFlex, Parking Lot and Asphah Rubber Products to verify 

proper product selection, heeling methods, pavement prepsatioa procedures, applicatiom geometry, usage prccauliora and safety 

procedures. These instructiorn ere provided with each pallet of product. 

PACKAGING Packaging canists of individual tsoxes of product which are palletized into shipping units. Boxes emaain a non-adherent film which 

penaits easy rernova! of the prodtwt. 6th pallet kxmtahra TZ boxes which arc stacked in six layers of 12 lwzes pa Iayec The weight of prodrrcl in each box 

dtka not exceed 40 Ibs. (I tOtg) and pallet weights do not exceed 2,8g016a. (1310kg) Pallets of produU aka weighed and product is aoW by the net weigh of 

product. Product boxes arc manufactured Aom double wall laaN board prodrrcng a minimum basting test artifiation of 350 psi (24t Nhmry and usikrg 

water resislard adhesives. Boxy use tape clasurc and do not contain nay atapla. Boxp are labeled with she product ru111C, part raradkr, lot »ura6er. 

specifiation coafomrsree, appliadan tarnpertdtrrss and safety irobuttions. Pdletizcd units ere protected 6om qte weadra usekg a three and thick plastic 

bog, a weather arrd moistare resisWrt cap sheet and a minimum of two layws of six taonlb u.v. protected stretch wrap. Pallets ase labeled with the product 

part number. tat nutrdter and met wei6ht. Installation IratrtrcUons ore provided whh each ptlld in a weather reaistent enclosute 

WARRANTY CRAFCO, Ire. warwnb that CRAFCO products meet applkable ASTiuI, AASHTO, Federal err State spmi6ations at time of 

sfiipaxrd. TecMiques used far dka praparetion of dre e3acks and joints prior to aealirrg or filling are bryond our control as are the use and application of the 

products; therefore, Crafco shall rat be resporaible Cm improperly applied or misused products. Ilea►edia agairut Crofco, Inc., as agreed to by Cmko, are 

limited to replacing uonoonfonning product or refiard (full or panid) of purchase price from Cnko, lnc. All elaima for breath of this waaruy must be 

made within tlase {3) months of the date of use or Twelve (12) months (iem the dale of delivery by Crafco, Inc. whicrever is earlier. There slrll be fro othtt 

waranties expressed or implied. For aptlmum perferauete, fdtosv Crafeo reoom+aeadatlaaafor prndutt iasfa8afioa. 

oma, taro., tae.. ptr aitlr a....a 



SAFETY DATA SHEET 
.w a~ecorrs co~wrw 

~~ 

L Identfficateon 

Product klentifier Crafty Roadsaver, Polyfiex, Parkhg Lot, Asphalt Rubber, DF, Supeeflcx, Matrix Binder, 
Loop Detector, Pavement 7oirst Adhesive, Polyflber, Fiber Asphalt, Marker Adheshre, 
Quikstbc, Asphalt Adhesive, PCF 100, High Shtpe, QWIKSEAL, QWIKDOT 

Other means of klentifiwtion Nat availalrie. 
Rccommended use Pavement Crack and Joint Sealing and Preservation 
Recommended rartridbns Naze known. 

Manubcturar/Importer/supplier/DistrFbutor Mfonnation 

Manufacturer 

Manufacturer. Crafto, Inc. 
Address: 420 Natty Roosevelt Avenue 

Chanrker, AZ 85226 USA 
Contact Name: Jim CFseliovits 
Telephone: 502-276-0406 
E-maik )Im.chehovfts~crafca.com 
CHEMTREC: B00~24-9300 

2. Hazards} identification 

Plrysical hazards Not classified. 
Health hazards Not classified. 
Environmental hazards Not classified. 
OSHA defined hazards Not dassitkd 

*Hazaiids not stated hen: are "!plot classlffed", "Not applicable" or "Classffiratlon not possible". 
Label element 

Hazard symbol None. 

Signal word Not applicable. 
Hazard statement Not appllwbk» 

Prevention Not applcable. 
Response Speclfic trrabrient see 5ettfon 4 of this SOS. 
Storage Not applicable. 

Disposal Dispose of mnbents/container In ac~rdance with (oral/reg~nal/natlonai~nternational regulations. 
Hazards) not otherwise None known. 
otassifled (HNOC) 
Supplemental tnfermatkm None. 

3. Composition/itrtotmation on ingredients 

Mlixtures 

Chemical name Common name and synonyms CA5 member "Iro 

ASPHALT 8052-42-4 20 -100 

DISTILLATE5 {PETROLEUl4), 64742-52-5 0 . q0 
HYOROTRFATED HEAVY 
NAPHTHENIC 

Other components below n:porbbk levels 4 - 75 
Composition wmments * All rnnrentratkMs arc percent by weight unless ingredient is a gas. Gas concentrations an: In 

percent by volume. 

4. First-aid measures 

Inhalation 

Skin centact 

if breathing k diftiarlt, remove to fresh air and keep at rest fn a position comfortable for breathing. 
Get medical atber~lon, if needed. Cal! a physk3an if symptoms develop or persist. 

In case of mrrtact, immediately flush skin with plenty of water for ~ least 15 minutes while 
removing txtrNaminated dothfng oriel shoes. Thonwghly wash {or discard) clothing and stores 
before reuse. 

Maberiad name: Qarco Roadsaver, Palylkz, ParWrg Lot, Aspiiaft Rubber. DR, Superlleu, Matrix Binder, Loop Detector, Pavemen sus us 

4988 Versiwi #: 07 Re~siai date: 09-24-2014 Lssue date: i1-25-20i3 1/6 



Eye contact 

Ingestion 

Most important 
symptoms/effects, acute and 
delayed 

Indication of immediate 
medical attention and special 
ibeahnent needed 

General information 

5. Fire-fighting measures 

Suitable extinguishing media 

Unsuitable extinguishing 
media 

Specific hazards arising from 
the chemical 

Special protective equlpnsent 
and premutlons fos 
tirefighters 

Flro-fighting 
equipment/Instructions 

Spedflc methods 

Inrrnedia6efy flush eyes with plenty of water far at least 15 minutes. if a contact fens is present, DO 
NOT delay irrigation or attempt to remove the lens. Get medical attention if kritatlor► develops and 
persists. 

Rinse mouth. Do not induce wmitlng. Do not use mouth-to-mouth method ff vktlm ingested the 
substance. Call a POISON CENTER or doctor/physician if you feel unwell. 

Not available. 

In rase of Ingestion, tfie dedston of whether or not to Induce vomiting should be made by the 
attending physldan. Certain pn~-eexisting conditlons may make workers particularly susceptlble Go 
the effeds of this chemical: asthma, apergies, impaired pulmonary fundion. 

If you feel unwell, seek medical advice (show the label where possible). Ensure that mediol 
personnel are aware of the maberlal(s) Involved, acrd take precautlor~ to protect tlten~Jves. Show 
this safety data sheet W the doctor In attendance. Discard any shoes or doth(ng items that cannot 
be decor~aminated. 

Water fog. Foam. Dry dtemkal powder. Carbon dioxide (CO2). Additlon of water or foam to the fke 
may cause frothing• 

!>a not use a solid water stream as It may scatter and spread fire. 

Fire may produce irritating, wrrosive and/or toxic gases. Development of hazardous combustion 
gases or vapours possible in the event of a fke. The fallowing may develop: Acrolein. 

Firefighters must use standard protedhre equipment Induding flame retardant wat; helmet with 
face shield, gksves, rubber boots, and in enclosed spaces, SC9A. fareflghters should wear full 
protective cbtiring irx9udinq self contained breathing apparetus. Structrral firefighters protective 
dothing wAl only provide IfnAbed protadfon. 

in case of fke and/or expbsbn do not breathe fumes. Firefighters must use standard pratective 
equipment irxludinq flame rdardartt cant, heknet with face shlekf, gloves, rubber boats, and In 
enclosed spaces, SCBA. ALWAYS stay away from tanks engulfed In flame. Fight fire from maximum 
dfstarxe or use unmanned hose holders or monitor nozzles. In the event of fire, cod tanks wRh 
water spray. BY fire, taudc gases may be formed (COx, NOx). Keep nm-off water out of sewers and 
water sources. Dike for water aontrot. 

In the event of fire and/or explosion do not breathe fumes. in the event of fire„ cool tanks with 
water spray. Ilse water spray bo cool unopened containers. 

6. Aaadental release measures 
Personal precautbns, 
protective equipment and 
emergenry procedures 

Methods and mabertals for 
containment and leaning up 

Environmental preputions 

7. Handling and storage 
PrecautMns for safe handling 

Canditions for safe storage, 
including any 
incompatib8ities 

Keep unr ry personnel away. Wear appropriate proterSive equipment and dothing during 
clean-up. VentUate dosed spaces before entering them. Do not booth ar walk through spiNed 
material. 

ELIMINATE all Ignition sources {no smaldrrg, flares, sparks or flames in Immediate area). Dike far 
ahead of spill for later disposal. Following product recovery, flush area with water. 

Never rehrm spills in arigkral containers for re-use. 

Pnavent further leakage or spillage if safe to do so. Runoff or release to sewer, waterway or ground 
is forbidden. 

The produd: is non-combustf6le. If heated, Mrrtattng vapors may be farmed. Do not use in area: 
without adequate ventllatlon. Wash hands thoroughly after handling. Wash hands after handling. 

Observe good tndusMai hygiene practices. 

Pn:vent e[ectrostatic charge build-up by using wmman bonding and grounding techniques. Store In 
a well-ventlfated place. Keep the container tightly lased and dry. Store in a closed conbiner away 
from inoompatlble materials. Keep out of the reach of children. 

8. Exposure controls/personal protection 

Occupational exposure Nmits 

US. OSHA Table Z-i Limits for Atr Contaminants (29 CFR 1910.1000) 

Components Type Value Form 

D15TILLATFS 
(PI?fROLEUM), 
HYtNtOTitEATED HEAVY 
NAPHTIIENIC (CAS 
64742 52-5) 

PEL 5 mg/m3 Mist 

Materta! name: Giotto Roadssver, Paly6ex, Parking Lot, Asphalt Rubber, dF, SuperAex, Mabbc 6lnder, Loop Detector, Pevemen sos us 

4988 Version ~: 07 RevWon date: 69-24-2614 Issue date: 31-25-2013 2 / 6 



US, ACQIH Threshold Limit Values 
Camportertts ~~ Value Form 

ASPHALT (CAS 8052-42-4) TWA 

liS. NIOSH: Pocket Qrttde to Chemical Hasards 

0.5 mg/m3 Inhatable fraction. 

Components Type Value Forth 

ASPHALT (CAS 8052-42-4) CelNng 5 mg/m3 Fume. 
10 mgJm3 . Mist DLSTILLATES STEL 

(PE1'FtDLEtJM), 
HYDROT1tEATED HEAW 
NAPFI7'HENIC (CAS 
64742-52-5} 

TWA 5 mglm3 f4'ist. 
8lologkal Ifmit values No bldoglcal exposure limtts noted far the ingredient(s). 
Appropriate etgineeritrg Good general ventNation (typkaNy 10 air changes per hoax) should be used. VentllaUon rapes should 
controls be matched to ronditior~s. If appikable, use process endasures, local exhaust ventiatlon, or other 

engineering contrds bo maintain airborne levels below recommended exposure 4nrits. If exposure 
limits have not been established, malntakt airborne levels to an acceptable feud. Ensure adequate 
ventilation, espedafly to confined areas. 

Individual probection measures, such as personal protective equipment 

Eye/face protection Wear safety gta55es; [hernlcal goggles (If splashing is possible). Wear dxmkal goggles; face shield 
(If handling rnoken material). 

Hand protection Chemkxl resistant gloves are rewmrnended. If contact with fonearrns b Nkely wear gauntlet style 
Slaves• 

Other Wear suitable protedive dothing and eye/face protection. Use of an Impervious apron is 
recommended. 

Skht protection 

Respiratory protection 

Thermal hasards 

General hygiene 
oonsideratiores 

When workers are fadng mntentrations above the exposure limit they must use appropriate 
certified respirators. 

During product: use, there is a risk of thermal bums. 
when using do not smoke. Avald contact with eyes. Avoid contact: with skin. Keep away from food 
and drlek; Handle In aomrdance with good tndustrfai hygiene and safety practke. 

9. Physical and chetnica! properties 

Appearance 

Physipl state 

Form 

Color 

Odor 

Odor threshold 

pH 

Melthtg paint/freezirry point 

Initial hoping point and 
boiling range 

Flash poMt 

fvaporatbn rate 

RamrrrabiilRy (solid, gas) 

solid. 

SoBd. 

Sold. 

131ack. Dark brown 

Product is a black, seml-solid with a burnt tar odor. 

Nat avaBable. 

Not available. 

150 -250 °F (65.56 -121.11 °C} ASTM D36 Softening Point 

> 800 °F (> 426.67 °G) 

> 400.0 °F (> 204.4 °n 

Not avaNable. 

Not avatable. 

Upper/lower llammabi0ly or acpinsive Emits 

Flamnrab6ity Iimit -lower Not available. 
(°~) 
Hammability limit - Not available. 
upper (%) 

Expbstve tbnit -lower Not available. 
(°~) 
ExPlos(ve limit -upper Not avaNable. 
{%) 

Vapor pressure 

Vapor density 

RelaWe density 

Not available. 
Not ava0abk. 

Not ava8able. 

Malzriai name: Crafco Roadsaveq Polylkx, Parking lot, Asphdt Rubber, OF, Supernex, Matrix fibrder, loop Detector. Pavemm 

9988 Yersbn ~r: 07 Ravisbn date: 09-24-2014 issue date: 11-25-2013 
~ us 
3/6 



Inhalation 

Skin contact 

Eye contact 

Symptoms related to the 
physical, chemical and 
toxicobgicat charaderisttcs 

Information on toxicological effects 

Awte toxicity Not available. 

Skin corrosion/irritation Defats the skin. Causes irritation. 
Serious eye damage/eye ]nitating to eyes. 
Irritation 

Respiratory or skin sensitization 
Respiratory senskization Not available. 

Skin sensitization Irritating to skin. 
Germ cell mutagenicity 

Sohrbility(ks) 

Sokrbility (water) 

Partition coefficient 
(n-octanol/water) 

Auto-Ignition temperature 

Decomposition temperature 
Viscos[ty 

Other htformatbn 

Density 

Percent volatile 

Spedfic Brevity 

Not available. 

Not available. 

> 700 °F {> 371.11 °C7 

Not available. 
Not available. 

Not Available 
0 96 
1 - 1.9 

10. Stability and reactivity 
Reactivity Not avallatile. 
Chemical stability Material is stable under nom~al conditions, 
Possibility of hazardous Hazardous polymerization does not occur. 
reactions 
Conditions to avoid Strong oxidizing agents. 
Incompatible materials Incormpatlble with oxidizing agents. 
Hazardous decomposition upon decomposition, product emits acid dense smoke with carbon dioxide, carbon monoxide, trace 
products oxides of nitrogen and sulfur, and water. 

11. Taxioological information 
Information on likely routes of exposure 

Ingestion May cause dLscamfort if swallowed. However, ingestion ~ not likely to be a primary route of 
occupational exposure. 

May cause Irritation to the respiratory system. 

Irritating Go skin. 

Causes eye irritation. MolOen material will produce thermal twins. 

Not available. 

No data available bo Indicate product or any rnmponents present at greater than 0.196 are 
mutagenk: or genotoxic. 

cardnogenicity This product b not wnsidered bo be a carcinogen by IARC, ACGIH, NTP, or OSHA. 

URC Monographs. Overall Evaluation of Carcinogenicity 

ASPHALT {CAS 8052-424) 26 Possibly carcinogenic to humans. 
US. OSHA SpeNfically Regulated Substances (29 CFR 1910.1001-1050) 

Not listed. 
Reproductive taxh3ty Contains no ingredient psted as toxic to reproductlan 

Specific target organ toxicity Not available. 
-single exposure 

5pedfic target organ toxicity Not available. 
- repeated exposure 

Aspiration hazard Not available. 

Chronic effects Prolonged inhalatlon may be harmful. May cause eaema-Iike skin disorders (dermatitis). 

Material name: Crafoo Roadsaver, Pdyfkx, Parking tot, AsphaR Rubber, DF, Superflex, Matrbc Binder, Loop Detector, Pavemen 

4988 Version ale: 07 Revisbn date: 09-24-2024 Issue date: 11-25-2013 
sns us 
4/6 



12. Ecological information 

Eootoxkky This product has rw known em-bxkokxiiCal effects. Not expected to be harmful b aquatic 
orgarNsms. 

Persistence and degradabi~ Not avaNable. 
eioaccumub>tive potential Not available. 
PlobgRy in saU Not available. 

Other adverse affects Not avaUable. 

13. Disposal Cotuitierations 

Disposal Instructions Dispose of cantents/rnntainer In akxxxdanoe with kxal/regional/natlonal/intematkxral regr~atians. 
When thls product as suppilad b to be discarded as waste, R does not meet the da}6adon of a 
RCRA waste under 40 CFR 261. 

Hazardous waste code Not apple. 
Warta fromresidues / Dispose of In accordance with local regulations. 
unused products 

CorKaminated packaging Offer rinsed packaging material to kxal recycling facpitles. 

14. Transport information 

DOT 

Not regulated as dangerous goods. 
IATA 

Not regulated as dangerous goods. 
IMDG 

Nat regulated as dangerous goods. 
Transport in buNc according to Not avalable. 
Annex ZZ of MARPOL 7'J/78 
and the YBC Coda 
Further Mformatlon If the product is shipped at ambient bempere[ure, not regulated for transport by ground, air or 

vessel. If shipped above 212 deg F: "UN3257, Elevated Temperature Liquid, n.o.s. (Asphalt 
mixture), 9, PG IfI" 

15. Regulatory information 

US federal regulations All cornpone~ an: a~ the US. EPA TSCA Inventory List 

TSCA Section 12(b) Export Notification {40 CFR 787, Subpt. D) 

Not regulated. 
CERCLA Hazardous Substance Lfst (40 CFR 802.4) 

ASPHALT (CAS 8052-42~) LisYed. 
US. OSHA Specifically Regulated Substances (29 CFR 1910.1001-1050) 

Not listed. 

Suparfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA) 

Hazard categories Immediate Hazard - No 
Delayed Hazard - No 
Fire Hazard - No 
Pressure Hazard - No 
Reactivity Hazard - No 

SARA 302 Extremely hazardous substances 
Not listed. 

SARA 31i/312 No 
Hazardous dremi®) 

SARA 313 {TRI reporting) 
Not regulated. 

other fades! reguiatkurs 

dean Ak Ad (CAA) Secliotr 112 Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs) List 

Not regulated. 
Chian Air Ad (CAA} Section i12{r) AcddeMal Release Prevention (40 CFR 68.130) 

Not reguleted. 
Safe Drinking Water Act Nat regulated. 
(SDWA} 

US state regulations WARNING: Thy product contains a chemical lknawn bo the Stabs of CalifonMa m carne cancer. 

FtaEiyial nan►e: araico Rgadsaves; PoWftex, Parkhsg Lnt, AsphaR Rubber, OF, 5uper6esy Matrbr Bbder, ~ betecbor, Pawxnen roans 

4986 Version ~: 07 RevlsWn date: 09-24-2014 Issue date: 11-25-2013 5 / 6 



US. Massachusetts RTK -Substance LLst 

ASPHALT (CAS 8052-42-4} 
DISTILLATES (PETROLEUM), HYDROTREATED HEAVY NAPHTHENIC (CAS 54742-52-5} 

t1S. New Jersey Worker and Community Right-to-Know Act 

Not r+egulabed. 
US. Pennsylvania RTK -Hazardous Substances 

ASPHALT {CAS 805212-4} 
US. Rhode island RTK 

Not regulatEd. 

US. California Proposition 65 

tJS - California Proposition 65 -CRT: Listed date/Cardnogenie substance 

ASPHALT (CAS 8052-42-4) Fisted: January i, 1990 

International Inventories 

Cauntry(s) or region Inventory name On inventory (yes/no)a 

Australia Australian Inventory of Chemical Substances {AILS} Yes 

Canada Domestk Subsbnces List (DSL) Yes 

Canada Non-Domestic Substarloes List {ND5L} No 
China Inventory of Existlng Chemical Substances in China (fECSC) Yes 

Europe European Inventory of Existing Commerdal Chemica! Substances Yes 
{EINECS} 

Europe European List of Notified Chemical Substances {FLINGS} No 

Japan Inventory of Existing and New t3remical Substantes (ENCS} Yes 

Korea ExlsUng Chemkals LLst {ECL} Yes 
New Zealand New Zealand Inventory Yes 

Philippines Philippine lnventnry of Cheml~ls and Chemical Substances Yes 
(PICCS) 

United States &Puerto Rlco Toxk: Substances Control Act (TSCA} dnventory Yes 
'A "Yes" Indicates that aM components of this product comply with the inventory requirements administered by the governing owntry(s} 
A "No" indictee that one nr more components of the product are not listed or exempt from Iistlng on the inventory administered by the governing 
country(s}. 

ib. OtFter information, including date of preparetion or fast revision 

Issue date 11-25-2013 

Revision date 09-24-2014 

Version # 07 

Further Information HMIS® is a registered trade and service mark of the NPCA. 

References ACGIH 
EPA: AQUIRE database 
US. IARC Monographs on Occupational Exposures to Chemkal Agents 
HSDB®-Hazardous Substances Data Bank 
IARC Monographs. Overafl Evaluatlon of Carcinogenidty 
Natlonai Toxlmlogy Program {NTP) Report on Cardnogens 
ACGIH Documentatlan of the Threshold Limit Values and Biological Exposure ]ndlces 

Disclaimer The information in the sheet was written based on the hest knowledge and experience current!} 
available. The infonnatlon provided in this Safety Data Sheet Is correct bo the best of ow 
knowledge, infonnatlon and belief at the dace of its publication. The infonnatlon given is designed 
only as a gukiance for safe handling, use, processing, storage, banspottatlon, disposal and release 
and is not M be considered a warranty ar quality spedflcatlon. The informatlon relates only >b the 
spedflc material designated and may not be valki far such materia! used in combination with any 
other rrraberiats or In any process, unless specified in the text 

Revision Information Physical &Chemical Propertles: Multlple Properties 

Flaterial name: Gafm Roadsaver, Polyfiex, ParkNxj Lot, AsphaR Rubber, OF, Superllex, Matrix 8lnder, Loop Detector, Pavemen sflsus 

4988 Version A~: 07 RevLsion date: 09-24-2014 Issue date: 11.75.2413 5 / 6 



An Indivldaal 

By   (SEAL) 
(Individual's Name and Signature) 

doing business as 

Business address: 

Phone No.: 

BY  ~_ 
(Firm Name} 

 (SEAL) 

(General Partner Name and Signature) 

Business address: 

Phone No.:  



~ Carnarat~o4 

By Sealcoating, Inc. DBA Indus 

{Corporation Name) 

Massachusetts 

(State of incorporation) 

By 
(Name of person authorized to silty and Signature) 
Richard L. Goodick, Vice President 

(Corporate Seal) 

April Durant 

Business address•  825 Granite Street 

Braintree, MA 02184 

Phone No.: {78f) 428-3400 

A Joint Venture 

By 
(Name and Signature} 

(Address) 

ey  
(Name and Signature) 

(Address) 

(Each joint ventwe must sign. 'The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and corporation that is 

party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above. 

BF-4-



BID FORM 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS 

{UNIT PRICE WORK} 

State the unit bid price (written in words and in numerals) for each Town listed. See Attachment A for 
estimated quaatities. Bidders may wish to contact each Town to obtain actual quantities purchased during 
prior years. Bidders may bid on any or all items for any or all Towns. Bid selection will be by each item and 
wil! be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid for each item for each Town. 

Price Adiasttaeats: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT} method for calculating 
price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel fvei, gasoline, and 
structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Steel adjustment shall apply to all items containing steel. No 
other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Steel price adjustment shall be based on the difference between the respective prices at the time of the 
bid (base bid price) and the prices on the date the work is performed. The Steel base bid price shall be the 
prices posted on the MassDOT Website for the month of December, 2018. 

Two Low~Bidder3: It i9 the intent to award a coatract to the two (2) lowest, gnatified, responsible, 
aad responsive bidders for did [toots ll5 to !?.2. When needing work completed for each of these items, 
each Town shall first forward by e-mail or fax a Notice to Proceed to the lower of the two lowest bidders. If 
the lowest bidder does not schedule the work requested within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving the Notice 
to Proceed and/or cannot begin (and remain at} work within ten (10) working days, then the Town shall have 
the right to forward a Notice to Proceed to the second low bidder. 

Tied Bids: in the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the awarded bidder. 

MassDOT Preanalification: Items highlighted and noted with an asterisk require vendors to be prcqualified 
by MassDOT. 

BF-b-



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

item I00 

Tawn 

Estimated 
Quantity 

Barnstable 2,000,000 

Bourne 200,000 

Brewster 600,000 

Dennis 300,000 

Harwkh 1,000,000 

Orleans 374,348 

Sandwich 150,000 

~Nellfleet 100,000 

Yarnwuth 500,000 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for 4" 
Reflectorized Lines 

Unit Bid Prke /n Words 

Per LF 

M Numerals 

Item 101 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads far Stop Bars & 

Crosswalks 
Per LF 

'town Unit Bid Prkc !n Words In Numero/s 

Barnstable 32,000 

Bourne z000 

Brewster 5,000 

Dennis 500 

Orleans 1,100 

Sandwich 1,500 

Yarmouth 500 

Item 102 

Town 

Estimated 
Quantity 

Barnstable 11,250 

Bourne 500 

Brewster 3,000 

Orleans 

Yarmouth 

3,500 

500 

Chlorinated Rubber Paint and Beads for Arrows & 
Miscellaneous Markings 

Unit BW Price 1n Words 

Per SF 

!n Numerals 

BE-''~ 



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTi1'IES 

Rem 103 

Town 

Estimated 
Quantity 

Barnstable 28,000 

Bourne 75,000 

Denny 8D,000 

Flarwkh 

Rem 104 

25,000 

Estimated 
Quantity 

Thermoplastic Paint for 4" Refledorized Lines 

Unit Bhl J~rJce Jn Words 

Thennoplastk Paint for Stop Bars &Crosswalks 

Per tF 

In Numerals 

Per LF 

Town Unit BJd Prlce fn Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 500 

Bourne 1,000 

Dennis 2,000 

Haneich 600 

elllleet fi00 

item 105 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Thermoplastic Pain#for Arrows &Miscellaneous 
Markings 

Per SF 

Town Un/t Bld PrJ[e Jn Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 500 

Bourne 500 

Dennis 300 

Harwkh 30 

Item 106 

rown 

Estimated 
quantity 

Barnstable 4,000 

Bourne 2,000 

Dennis 300,000 

Epoxy Paint for 4" Reflectorized Unes 

UrtJt BJd Prlce !n Words 

Per LF 

fn Numerals 

BF- g 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCEL4ANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BID 
BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

!tent 10T 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Pavement Marking Removal Per SF 

Town Urrlt BJd Price fn Wards In Numerols 

Barnstable 10,000 

Bourne 5,000 

Chatham 200 

Dennis 5,000 

Provincetown 200 

Sandwkh 35,000 

Item 106 
Estimated 

Quantity 
Drainage Pipe Cieantng Per DAY 

Town Unit SJd Prke /n Words M Nurgerols 

Brewster 5 

Dennis 3 

Sandwich 3 

Yamnouth 3 

Item 109 

Town 

Estimated 

Quantity 

Drainage Structure Ueaning ey gamshe!! 

(w/Disposal) 

unit BId Price ire Words 

Per EA 

In Numerols 

Barnstable 2,000 

Brewster 900 

Chatham 200 

Dennis 1,300 

Provtncetawn 200 

Sandwich 50 

Yarmouth 100 

Item 110 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Drainage Structure Cieaning By damshell(w/o 

Disposal) 
Per EA 

town tlnk Bid Prke in Words In Nurnerols 

sr g 



ATTACHMENT A 

MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS 81D 

B!D FORM AND E5TIMA'I'ED QUANTITIES 

Item 111 
Estimated 

Quantity 

Orainage Structure peening By Vaucuum Trudc 
(w/Disposal) 

Per EA 

Town Unft 8fd Frfce in Worts In Numerois 

Barnstable 2,000 

Brewster SO 

Chatham 200 

Dennls 100 

Provincetowrt 200 

Sandwich 40 

Yamnouth 100 

Item lit 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Drainage Structure Leaning 6y Vaccuum Trudc (w/o 

Disposal) 
Per EA 

Town Unit 8!d Prfce !n Wards fn Numerals 

HarvWch 100 

~ellileet 30 

Item 113 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Drainage Structure Adjusted Per EA 

town Un/t 81d Prke fn Words fn Numerals 

Barnstable 100 

Brewster 50 

[hatham 20 

Dennis 25 

Provincetown 20 

Sandwkh 20 

Yannauth 50 

B~ to 



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC WORKS BID 

i31D FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTiT1ES 

Item 114 

Town 

Barnstable 

Estimated 
Quantity 

25 

Brewster 50 

Chatham 20 

Dennis 20 

Provincetown ZO 

Sandwkh IO 

Yarmouth 20 

Oralnage Structure Rebuilt 

Unit Bid Prke Jn Words 

Per VF 

In Numerals 

Item 115 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Steel beam (Weathering) Highway Guardrail (Single 
Faced/Wood Posts) 

Per LF 

Town Unit BW Prke Jn Wards M Numerals 

Barnstable 300 

Oennis q00 

Harwich 500 

Orleans 750 

Sandwich 100 

Yarmouth zao 

Item 116 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Steel Beam (Weathering) Highway Guardrail (Single 
Faced/Wood Postsj (Induding Removal and Stacking 

Hof Existing Guardrail] 

Pet LF 

Town Unit BJd Price !n Words !n Numerals 

earnsWbie 4,000 

Oennis q00 

Harwkh 500 

Sandwkh 100 

Yarmouth Z00 

BF-~, 



ATTACHMENT A 
MtSCELLANE0U5 PUBLIC WORKS BIO 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTRIES 

item 117 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Steel Beam (Weathering) Highway GuardreiMTerminal 
End 

Per EA 

Town Unit 8fd Ptfte fn Words !n Nurnemis 

Barnstable 75 

O~ennEs 10 

Harwich 10 

Sandwich 5 

Yarmouth 4 

Item 118 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Steel Beam Highway Guardrail (Single Faced/Wood 
Posts) 

Per LF 

town Unit B1d Prkt in Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 500 

Bourne 300 

Sandwich 100 

Item 119 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Steei-Backed Timber Guardrail Per LF 

Town Unit Bid Prke fn Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 300 

Brewster 250 

Dennis 200 

Sattdwkh 100 

~!WeRfleet 1,500 

Yarmouth 200 

Item 120 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Wooden Guardrail Per LF 

Town Unft 8fd Price Jn Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 200 

Bourne 200 

Oennls 150 

Orleans 275 

Sandwich lOD 

B~.,z 



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLI[ WORKS BiD 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 121 

Town 

Barnstable 

Estimated 

Quantity 

300 

Bourne 300 

Brewster 2S0 

Chatham 50 

Dennis 300 

Provincetown SO 

Sandwich SO 

Yarmouth 

Item 122 

Town 

eamstable 

800 

Estimated 

Quantity 

300 

Boume 200 

Chatham 50 

Provincetown 50 

Sandwch 

Item 123 

100 

Estimated 
quantity 

Granite Curb Type VIB-Straight 

Unit Bid Price !n Wards 

Granite Curb Type VA4-Straight 

Unit eld Price !n Words 

Pave Shield Pavement Sealing X1500 Square Yards or 

Greater} 

Per LF 

!n Numerols 

Per LF 

In Numerals 

Per SY 

Town Unit Bld Price !n Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 4,000 Two Dollars and Thirty-three Cents per Square Yard $2.33/SY 

Bourne 1,500 Two Dollars and Fifty-three Cents per Square Yard $2.53/SY 

Brewster 12,000 Two Dollars and Sixty-seven Cents per Square Yard $2.67/SY 

Dennis 6,008 Two Dollars and Seventy-seven Cents per Square Yard $2.77/SY 

Yarmouth 1,588 Two Dollars and Sixty-one Cents per Square Yard $2.61 /SY 

BF- ~'~ 



ATTACHMENT A 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBUC WORK5 BID 

BID FORM ANO ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 1Z4 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Pave Shield Pavement Sealing (Under 1500 Square 

Yards) 
Per SY 

town Unit Bid Prke !n Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 1,000 Six Dollars and Eleven Cents per Square Yard $fi.11 /SY 

Bourne 1,00D Six Dollars and Twenty Cents per Square Yard 
$fi.20/SY 

Dennis 1,000 Eight Dollars and Nineteen Cents per Square Yard $8.19/SY 

Item I?5 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Mtxiffied Asphalt-Fiber Crackfiller Per GAL 

Town Unit 81d Frke !n Words !n Numero/s 

Barnstable 12,000 Ten Dollars and Sixty-five Cents per Gallon $10.fi5/Gal 

ournf ' ~ 10,000 Ten Dollars end Ninety-two Certte per Gallon $1092/Gal 

Brewster 5,000 Ten Dollars and Twenty-five Cents per Gallon $1025/Gal 

Chatham 1,500 Eleven Dollars and Forty-seven Cents per Gallon $11.47/Gal 

npi; . 7,000 Eleven Dollars and Forty-efx Cents per Gafbn S11.48/Gal 

Harwich 5,000 Eleven Dollars and Fifteen Cents per Gallon $11.15/Gal 

Orleans 4,459 Eleven Dollars and Fifteen Cents per Gallon $11.15/Gal 

Proviecetown 1,500 Eleven Dollars and Seventy-two Cents per Gallon $11.72/Gal 

Sandwich 7,000 Ten Dollars and Thirty-four Cents per Gallon $10.34/Gal 

~MelfFieet 800 Eleven Dollars and Seventy-seven Cents per Gallon $t 1.77/Gel 

Yarmouth 8,000 Ten Dollars and Eighty-four Cents per Gallon $10.84/Gal 

Item 126 
Estimated 
quantity 

Rubber Crackflller Per GAL 

rows Unit Bld Price !n Words In Numerate 

Barnstable 12,000 Eighteen Dollars and Three Cents per Gallon $18.03/Gel 

Bourne 5,000 Sixteen Dollars and Eight Cents per Gallon $16.08/Gal 

Brewster 5,000 Eighteen Dollars and Fifty-three Cents per Gallon $16.53/G81 

Dennis 1,000 Nineteen Dollars and Thirty-five Cents per Gallon $19.35/Gal 

Sandwich 1,000 Seventeen Dollars and Fifty-three Cents par Gallon $17.53/Gal 

Yarmouth 2,000 Eighteen Dollars and Thirty-four Cents per Gallon $18.34/Gal 

BF-1 L~ 









20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8o 
 

Authorizing the execution of a discharge of mortgage by Arthur R. Hillier and 
Katherine E. Hillier to Barnstable County, acting by and through the Cape Cod 
Commission, dated October 23, 2000, recorded with the Barnstable County 
Registry of Deeds Book 13824 Page 249 

  















20190227 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8p 
 

Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 



 
 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
COMMUNITY SEPTIC MANAGEMENT 

LOAN PROGRAM 
 

3195 MAIN STREET/ P.O.BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 

Kendall Ayers Phone: (508) 375-6610 

Program Administrator  Fax: (508) 375-6854 

 www.barnstablecountysepticloan.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE: February 27, 2019 
TO: County Commissioners 
FROM: Community Septic Management Loan Program 
SUBJECT: Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
  

 
Please execute Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments certifying that the betterment assessment upon the 
hereinafter described parcels of real estate in the Notices of Betterment Assessment recorded in Barnstable 
County Registry of Deeds or Barnstable Registry District of the Land Court as listed below, stating that 
betterments were to be assessed pursuant to a betterment agreement for septic improvements, in accordance with 
General Laws, Chapter 111, Section 127B 1/2 have, together with any interest and costs thereon, been paid or 
legally abated.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved: 
 
 
 
Board of Regional Commissioners 

 

Mary Pat Flynn, Commissioner Ronald R. Beaty, Vice-Chair Leo G. Cakounes, Chair 

Date 



Notice of

Betterment 

Assessment

Book

Notice of

Betterment 

Assessment

Page

Deed

Reference

Book

Deed

Reference

Page

Owner(s) Named in Betterment Assessment Location of Property

31771 136 4928 246
Eileen Mescall

Patricia A. Mescall

Assessors Map 212

Parcel 59 

1 7 Hazelwood Road

 South Dennis (Dennis)

23848 44 8224 14
Christopher M. Hamilton

Karen E. Hamilton 

Assessors Map 8‐185

Parcel 63 

21 Ryder Circle

Sandwich 

28634 196 5728 54
Lee J. Sarafin

Suzanne W. Sarafin

Assessors Map 151 

Parcel 079 

129 Saddler Lane 

West Barnstable (Barnstable)

29788 281 13209 45
Steven Faucher

Catherine Faucher

Assessors Map 76 

Parcel 75 

80 Trowbridge Path 

West Yarmouth (Yarmouth)

31771 136 30318 306

Helen Cohen, Hyman Cohen, Trustees Helen 

Cohen Revocable Trust 

UAD 10/11/16 

Hyman Cohen, Helen Cohen, Trustees Hyman 

Cohen Revocable Trust UAD 10/11/16 

Assessors Map 29 

Parcel 160 

166 Cranberry Hollow Road 

Wellfleet 

31771 136 22865 237

Clinton W. Smith 

Deborah S. Mooney 

Meredith J. St. Sauveur Successor Trustees 

Natalie B. Smith Irrevocable Trust u/d/t dated 

December 23, 2004 

Assessors Map 18 Parcel V4 

50 Depot Road West West 

Harwich (Harwich)

Recorded in Book and Page No.,  Barnstable Registry of Deeds



Notice of

Betterment 

Assessment

Document No.

Deed

Reference

Document No.

Deed

Reference

Certificate

of Title No.

Owner(s) Named in Betterment Assessment Location of Property

1237895

35132 

Lot 5 

Plan 42122‐B

124398
Karl E. Pitz

Maureen E. Pitz

Assessors Map 124 

Parcel 004‐011 

84 Liberty Lane 

Marstons Mills 

(Barnstable)

1054789
813650 Land 

Plan 20920‐A
159395 Judy L. Laverty

Assessors Map 7 5

Parcel 28 

149 Depot Street

Dennisport (Dennis)

Recorded as Document No., Barnstable Registry of the Land Court


	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Agenda_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 6c_Discussion_BRC_ERIP_20190227
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 6d_Discussion_BRC_Executive Session Minures Reveiw_20190227
	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 6e_Discussion_BRC_Posting Method for Meetings _20190227
	Item 6e1_Discussion_BRC_Posting Method for Meetings _20190227
	Item 6e_Discussion_BRC_Posting Method for Meetings _20190227
	29.01: Purpose, Scope and Other General Provisions
	29.02: Definitions
	29.03:Notice Posting Requirements
	29.04: Certification
	29.05:Complaints
	29.06: Investigation
	29.07:Resolution
	29.08: Advisory Opinions
	29.09: Other Enforcement Actions
	29.10:Remote Participation
	29.11: Meeting Minutes


	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8a_Personnel_HS_HMIS Position_Creation_20190227
	Item 8a_Personnel_HS_HMIS Position_Creation_20190227
	DATE:
	February 26, 2019

	TO:
	County Commissioners

	FROM:
	Justyna Marczak, Human Resources Director

	SUBJECT:
	Creation of the position of HMIS Program Manager


	Item 8a1_Personnel_HS_HMIS Position_Creation_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8b_Personnel_HLTH_Laboratory Director Position_Filling_20190227
	Health and Environment
	Health and Environment

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8c_General Approval_RDO_Amara_SAM Entity Administrator_Deignation_20190227
	Item 8c_General Approval_RDO_Amara_SAM Entity Administrator_Deignation_20190227
	Item 8c1_General Approval_RDO_Amara_SAM Entity Administrator_Deignation_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8d_Grounds Request_BRC_Cape Cod Doxie Day _20190227
	Item 8d_Grounds Request_BRC_Cape Cod Doxie Day _20190227
	DATE:
	February 26, 2019

	TO:
	County Commissioners

	FROM:
	Owen Fletcher, Executive Assistant

	SUBJECT:
	Grounds Request by 2019 Cape Cod Doxie Day


	Item 8d1_Grounds Request_BRC_Cape Cod Doxie Day _20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8e_Purchasing_Tradespersons List_Addition_20190227
	DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
	DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8f_Contract Award_Purchsing_Agilent_ICP-MS Delivery_20190227
	DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
	DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8g_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Misc Public Works_20190227
	Item 8g1_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Misc Public Works_20190227
	Item 8g_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Misc Public Works_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8h_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Road Resurfacing_20190227
	Item 8h1_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Road Resurfacing_20190227
	Item 8h_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Road Resurfacing_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8i_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Roadway Materials_20190227
	Item 8i1_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Roadway Materials_20190227
	Item 8i_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Lawrence Lynch_Roadway Materials_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8j_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Markings_Misc Public Works_20190227
	Item 8j1_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Markings_Misc Public Works_20190227
	Item 8j_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Markings_Misc Public Works_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8k_Contract Execution_Purchsing_MCE Dirtworks_Road Resurfacing_20190227
	Item 8k_Contract Execution_Purchsing_MCE Dirtworks_Road Resurfacing_20190227
	Item 8m_Contract Execution_Purchsing_PJ Keating_Road Resurfacing_Sandwich_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8l_Contract Execution_Purchsing_PA Landers_Roadway Materials_20190227
	Item 8l1_Contract Execution_Purchsing_PA Landers_Roadway Materials_20190227
	Item 8l_Contract Execution_Purchsing_PA Landers_Roadway Materials_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8m_Contract Execution_Purchsing_PJ Keating_Road Resurfacing_Sandwich_20190227
	Item 8m1_Contract Execution_Purchsing_PJ Keating_Road Resurfacing_Sandwich_20190227
	Item 8m_Contract Execution_Purchsing_PJ Keating_Road Resurfacing_Sandwich_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8n_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Sealcoating_Misc Public Works_20190227
	Item 8n1_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Sealcoating_Misc Public Works_20190227
	Item 8n_Contract Execution_Purchsing_Sealcoating_Misc Public Works_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8o_Mortgage Discharge_HS_Home Program_Hillier_20190227
	Item 8o_Mortgage Discharge_HS_Home Program_Hillier_20190227
	Item 8o1_Mortgage Discharge_HS_Home Program_Hillier_20190227

	Board Packet_Cover Sheets_BRC_20190227_Regular
	Item 8p_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20180227
	Item 8p_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20180227
	DATE:
	February 27, 2019

	TO:
	County Commissioners

	FROM:
	Community Septic Management Loan Program

	SUBJECT:
	Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments


	Item 8p1_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20180227
	Item 8p2_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20180227




